
 
The mission of OCFEC is… 

CELEBRATION OF ORANGE COUNTY’S  
COMMUNITIES, INTERESTS, AGRICULTURE AND HERITAGE 

(with results justifying resources expended) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

32ND District Agricultural Association 
OCFEC Board of Directors 

Thursday, August 27, 2015 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Administration Building 
OC Fair & Event Center 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, California 

 
Board of Directors 

 
Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair 
Gerardo Mouet, Vice Chair 

Stanley Tkaczyk, Member 
Douglas La Belle, Member 

Nick Berardino, Member 

Barbara Bagneris, Member 
Sandra Cervantes, Member 
Bao Nguyen, Member 

     Robert Ruiz, Member  
 
  

Secretary-Treasurer                32nd DAA Counsel 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP           Deborah Fletcher 
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC                                                      Office of the California Attorney General 
 

 
 
Those persons wishing to attend the meeting and who may require special accommodations pursuant to the provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act are requested to contact the office of the 32nd District Agricultural Association (714) 708-1500, at 
least five working days prior to the meeting to insure the proper arrangements can be made. 
 
At the discretion of the Board of Directors, all items appearing on this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be 
deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board of Directors.  The Board may convene to closed session pursuant to 
Government Code section 11126, subdivisions (a) and (e) to consider personnel evaluation and/or possible litigation.  Items may 
not necessarily be taken up in the order shown on this Agenda. This agenda, and all notices required by the Bagley-Keene 
Open Meeting Act are available on the Internet at: www.ocfair.com 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AUGUST 27, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 5 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

All matters noticed on this agenda, in any category, may be considered for action as 
listed.  Any item not so noticed may not be considered.  Items listed on this Agenda may 
be considered in any order, at the discretion of the chairperson. 

 
2.  THE MISSION OF OCFEC IS… 

Celebration of Orange County’s Communities, Interests, Agriculture and Heritage (with 
results justifying resources expended). 

 
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.  ROLL CALL (Policy 4.5.2.B) 
 
5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES 
 
6.  MATTERS OF PUBLIC COMMENT  

Public comment is allowed on issues NOT on the current Agenda.  However, no debate 
by the Board shall be permitted on such public comments, and no action will be taken on 
such public comment items at this time, as law requires formal public notice prior to any 
action on a docket item. Speakers are requested to sign in prior to the start of the 
meeting and are limited to three minutes.   
 
Comments will be accepted on Agenda items during the meeting.  Speakers wishing to 
address the Board on items on the agenda are requested to sign in prior to the start of 
the meeting and identify the agenda item(s) on which you desire to address the Board. 
Speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held June 25, 2015 
 Action Item 
 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Policy 4.3.4) 
All matters listed under Consent Calendar are operational matters about which the Board 
has governing policies, implementation of which is delegated to the CEO.  They will be 
enacted in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the 
Board of Directors votes on the motion, unless members of the board, staff or public 
request specific items to be discussed separately and/or removed from this section.  Any 
member of the public who wishes to discuss Consent Calendar items should notify the 
Chair of the Board, at the time requested and be recognized by invitation of the Chair to 
address the Board. 
 
A.  Standard Agreements: SA-126-15FT; SA-140-15FT; SA-144-15FT; SA-145-15FT; 

SA-151-15SP; SA-152-15SP; SA-160-15FT; SA-161-15PA; SA-162-15PA;  
SA-163-15PA; SA-167-15FT; SA-168-15FT; SA-170-15FT; SA-171-15FT;  
SA-172-15PA; SA-173-15PA; SA-174-15PA; SA-175-15CS; SA-176-15AS;  
SA-177-15AS; SA-178-15PA; SA-179-15PA; SA-180-15PA; SA-181-15PA;  
SA-182-15PA; SA-183-15PA; SA-184-15HB; SA-185-15FT; SA-186-15HB;  



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AUGUST 27, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 5 

 
SA-187-15PA; SA-188-15PA; SA-189-15FT; SA-190-15FT; SA-191-15FT;  
SA-192-15GE; SA-193-15FT; SA-194-15AS; SA-195-15BB; SA-196-15FT;  
SA-197-15FT; SA-198-15SP; SA-199-15SP; SA-200-15SP; SA-201-15SP;  
SA-202-15PA; SA-203-15PA; SA-204-15SP; SA-205-15SP; SA-206-15PA;  
SA-207-15PA; SA-208-15FT; SA-209-15FT; SA-210-15FT; SA-211-15FT;  
SA-212-15FT; SA-213-15FT; SA-214-15FT; SA-215-15FT; SA-216-15FT;  
SA-217-15FT; SA-218-15FT; SA-219-15FT; SA-220-15FT; SA-221-15FT;  
SA-222-15FT; SA-223-15YR; SA-224-15YR; SA-225-15FT; SA-226-15FT;  
SA-227-15FT; SA-228-15HB; SA-229-15HB; SA-230-15SP; SA-231-15SP;  
SA-232-15HB; SA-233-15FT; SA-234-15FT; SA-235-15FT; SA-236-15SP;  
SA-237-15SP; SA-238-15SP; SA-239-15CS; SA-240-15CS; SA-241-15SP;  
SA-242-15FT; SA-243-15FT; SA-244-15FT; SA-245-15FT; SA-246-15FT;  
SA-247-15FT; SA-248-15SP; SA-249-15SP; SA-250-15PS; SA-251-15SP;  
SA-252-15SP; SA-253-15SP; SA-254-15FT; SA-255-15FT; SA-256-15FT;  
SA-257-15FT; SA-258-15SP; SA-259-15FT 

 
B.  Amendments: SA-028-15BL (Amend. #1); SA-56-12PA (Amend. #3); SA-061-15YR 

(Amend. #1); SA-062-15FT (Amend. #1); SA-067-15GE (Amend. #1); SA-084-15GE 
(Amend. #1); SA-086-15FT (Amend. #1); SA-124-15AS (Amend. #1); SA-054-15FT 
(Amend. #1); SA-167-12SP (Amend. #3) 

 
C. Interagency Agreements: none. 

 
D. Letters of Understanding: none. 
 
E. Rental Agreements: R-042-15; R-043-15; R-044-15; R-050-15; R-069-15; R-083-15; 

R-084-15; R-110-15; R-116-15; R-120-15; R-124-15; R-126-15; R-130-15; R-131-15; 
R-134-15; R-142-15; R-014-16; FT-018-15 

 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none. 

 
G. Platinum Rental Agreements: 15717; 15741 
 
H. Judging Agreements: GF-014-15; GF-015-15; GF-016-15; GF-017-15; HA-022-15; 

VA-027-15 
 
I. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board discussion or to 
comments made before the Board are to be listed on the meeting agenda and 
included in the Board materials as an item of public disclosure.  
 
i. none. 

 
-End of Consent Calendar- 

 
 

 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AUGUST 27, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 5 

 
9. GOVERNANCE PROCESS 
 

A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
Information Item 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for the 
purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a verbal 
update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not already on 
the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board meeting.  
 

i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Vice Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Director Berardino, Director La Belle) 
iii. Workers Memorial Task Force (Director Berardino, Chair Aitken) 
iv. 2015 OC Fair City Liaison Committee (Director La Belle, Director Nguyen) 
v. Legislative Monitoring Task Force (Director Nguyen, Director Cervantes) 

  
B. Discussion on Board Position Regarding SB 716 Related to Treatment of 

Elephants  
 Action Item 
 
C.  Discussion of the Hiring of a Legislative Monitoring Firm 
 Action Item 
 
D.  Approval of Architectural Designs Service for Heroes Hall Project 

Action Item 
 
E.  Discussion of Appointees to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation Board of 

Directors 
 Action Item 
 
F. Approval of Issuance of OC Fair Lifetime Credential to Roger Grable 
  Action Item 
 
G. Appointment of Members to the Nominating Task Force by the Board Chair 
 Information Item 
 
H.  Operational Report on Designated Smoking Policy 

Information Item 
 

I. Approval of Submission of Bad Debt Write Off 
Action Item 
 

K.  Orange County Marketplace Rental Agreement Amendment to Relocate Two 
Structures 
Action Item 

 
 
 
 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AUGUST 27, 2015, PAGE 5 OF 5 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION (Closed to the Public) 

 
A. Pending Litigation – The Board will meet in closed session to consult with legal 

counsel regarding the following pending litigation.  [Gov. Code section 11126(e).]  
 

i. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 
involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association.  Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, the Board of Directors will decide whether to initiate litigation. 

 
ii. To confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding potential litigation 

involving the 32nd District Agricultural Association.  Based on existing facts and 
circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation against the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association. 

 
11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 
 
12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  SEPTEMBER 24, 2015 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Kathy Kramer CFE, CMP  
Secretary-Treasurer                               
Chief Executive Officer, OCFEC    Date of notice: 4:00 p.m. August 16, 2015 



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

76684 06/04/15 626 Night Market 4,882.47               

76685 06/04/15 Association of State CA Supervisors 72.00                    

76686 06/04/15 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 18,299.00             

76687 06/04/15 AT&T 31.38                    

76688 06/04/15 Barbara Thompson 126.73                   

76689 06/04/15 California Technology Agency 646.00                   

76690 06/04/15 California Fair Services Authority 1,683.87               

76691 06/04/15 California Fair Services Authority 405.00                   

76692 06/04/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 8,380.40               

76693 06/04/15 CWF, Inc. dba A1 Event & Party Rental 28,788.00             

76694 06/04/15 Damian Tsutsumida Photographs 216.00                   

76695 06/04/15 DeltaCare USA 686.88                   

76696 06/04/15 Delta Dental Plan Of California 4,393.63               

76697 06/04/15 Department of General Services 434.36                   

76698 06/04/15 Event Production Solutions, LLC 7,375.00               

76699 06/04/15 Franchise Tax Board 822.52                   

76700 06/04/15 Franchise Tax Board 175.00                   

76701 06/04/15 IUOE, Craft/Maint. Division 1,404.00               

76702 06/04/15 Jerry Liu & Associates 2,612.50               

76703 06/04/15 Johanna C. Svensson 271.89                   

76704 06/04/15 Kaiser Permanente 38,235.56             

76705 06/04/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 1,090.00               

76706 06/04/15 Modular Space Corporation / Modspace 1,040.00               

76707 06/04/15 Orange County Treasurer‐Tax Collector 8,050.38               

76708 06/04/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 48,520.08             

76709 06/04/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 1,736.67               

76710 06/04/15 RCX, LLC 4,849.25               

76711 06/04/15 Red Wing Hatchery 93.95                    

76712 06/04/15 Sarah Breucop 44.65                    

76713 06/04/15 So‐Ca Sanitary Supply Association, Inc. 1,615.38               

76714 06/04/15 Sectran Security, Inc. 60.00                    

76715 06/04/15 SEIU Local 1000 CA State Employees Asso. 1,879.02               

76716 06/04/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 11,057.50             

76717 06/04/15 SnuggBuds Headsets 250.00                   

76718 06/04/15 Sound Media Fusion, LLC 12,000.00             

76719 06/04/15 State Disbursement Unit 331.00                   

76720 06/04/15 The Gas Company 377.82                   

76721 06/11/15 American Express 2,609.98               

76722 06/11/15 AT&T 1,305.96               

76723 06/11/15 Backyard BBQ Village, Inc.  1,809.50               

76724 06/11/15 B & L Productions 449.38                   

76725 06/11/15 Boyd & Associates, Inc. 125.00                   

76726 06/11/15 Brothers of Industry, LLC 29,839.91             

76727 06/11/15 California Fairs Financing Authority 4,562.94               

76728 06/11/15 ChopShop Entertainment 3,350.00               

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

June 2015

Page 1 of 6



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

June 2015

76729 06/11/15 City of Costa Mesa 9,327.10               

76730 06/11/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 3,783.04               

76731 06/11/15 Deep South Barrels 250.00                   

76732 06/11/15 Edward Leon 618.75                   

76733 06/11/15 Eisel Enterprises, Inc. 4,423.68               

76734 06/11/15 Franchise Tax Board 278.61                   

76735 06/11/15 Haitbrink Asphalt Paving, Inc. 14,180.00             

76736 06/11/15 Kathy Kramer 1,750.33               

76737 06/11/15 Kennah Construction, Inc. 4,800.00               

76738 06/11/15 Lawrence Roll‐Up Doors, Inc.  352.41                   

76739 06/11/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               

76740 06/11/15 Martin Container, Inc.  1,090.80               

76741 06/11/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 2,060.00               

76742 06/11/15 Mobile Mini 513.00                   

76743 06/11/15 Moreno Party Rentals 92.88                    

76744 06/11/15 Gravity Technologies Inc. 745.00                   

76745 06/11/15 Pacific Coast Sport Fishing 1,293.50               

76746 06/11/15 Red Wing Hatchery 36.70                    

76747 06/11/15 The Ruzika Company, Inc.   1,707.50               

76748 06/11/15 Sectran Security, Inc. 80.00                    

76749 06/11/15 Southern California Edison 4,006.07               

76750 06/11/15 Spectra  1,283.04               

76751 06/11/15 ThyssenKrupp Elevator Corporation 800.00                   

76752 06/11/15 United Scottish Society 18,549.75             

76753 06/11/15 Universal Protection Security System, LP 6,518.12               

76754 06/11/15 Westlake Davar Corporation 3,483.00               

76755 06/17/15 Ricardo Mendoza 22,000.00             

76756 06/17/15 626 Night Market 832.62                   

76757 06/17/15 Advanced Surfaces, Inc. 9,237.00               

76758 06/17/15 AT&T 2.56                      

76759 06/17/15 B & L Productions 283.05                   

76760 06/17/15 Brad's Concrete Cutting, Inc. 420.00                   

76761 06/17/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 294.97                   

76762 06/17/15 California Boring, Inc. 7,000.00               

76763 06/17/15 California Concrete Ready Mix, Inc. 1,336.00               

76764 06/17/15 California Fair Services Authority 24,641.19             

76765 06/17/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 4,409.20               

76766 06/17/15 CR&A Custom, Inc. 1,407.17               

76767 06/17/15 Damian Tsutsumida Photographs 216.00                   

76768 06/17/15 Department of Forestry & Fire Protection 1,186.96               

76769 06/17/15 Eisel Enterprises, Inc. 405.00                   

76770 06/17/15 Extreme Reach Talent, Inc. 9,813.66               

76771 06/17/15 Franchise Tax Board 206.25                   

76772 06/17/15 HD Supply ‐ White Cap 388.73                   

76773 06/17/15 Kennah Construction, Inc. 6,340.00               

Page 2 of 6



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

June 2015

76774 06/17/15 La Banda Elastica 500.00                   

76775 06/17/15 Loomis Armored US, LLC 22.74                    

76776 06/17/15 MediaWorks Resource Group 3,900.00               

76777 06/17/15 Medical and Safety Management, Inc. 830.00                   

76778 06/17/15 Mike's Precision Welding, Inc. 3,420.00               

76779 06/17/15 Mobile Mini 1,026.00               

76780 06/17/15 Mobile Modular Portable Storage 2,322.85               

76781 06/17/15 Moor + South/Pier Management Company 18,232.00             

76782 06/17/15 Pacific Clippings 59.00                    

76783 06/17/15 Pre‐Fab Builders, Inc. 42,494.00             

76784 06/17/15 Ready Steady Go Productions 4,950.00               

76785 06/17/15 Sound Media Fusion, LLC 5,250.00               

76786 06/17/15 Southern California Edison 4,685.18               

76787 06/17/15 Spectra  224.12                   

76788 06/17/15 State Disbursement Unit 331.00                   

76789 06/17/15 The Gas Company 24.00                    

76790 06/17/15 Whitney Tang 44.91                    

76791 06/24/15 A & H Refrigeration, Inc. 738.60                   

76792 06/24/15 American Vintage Designs 3,721.14               

76793 06/24/15 AT&T 3,061.38               

76794 06/24/15 Brad's Concrete Cutting, Inc. 472.50                   

76795 06/24/15 BurrellesLuce 231.02                   

76796 06/24/15 California Fairs Financing Authority 4,848.85               

76797 06/24/15 California Fair Services Authority 60.00                    

76798 06/24/15 CCS Orange County Janitorial, Inc. 905.20                   

76799 06/24/15 Conetrix ‐ Compu‐Share,Inc. 94.50                    

76800 06/24/15 CORT Business Services, Inc. 440.60                   

76801 06/24/15 CR&R Inc. 5,312.89               

76802 06/24/15 CWF, Inc. dba A1 Event & Party Rental 720.00                   

76803 06/24/15 Department of Justice 2,155.00               

76804 06/24/15 Franchise Tax Board 438.56                   

76805 06/24/15 Haitbrink Asphalt Paving, Inc. 11,850.00             

76806 06/24/15 Heider Engineering Services, Inc. 2,031.00               

76807 06/24/15 Images In Ice 55,000.00             

76808 06/24/15 Kelly Associates Management Group 1,125.00               

76809 06/24/15 Kennah Construction, Inc. 1,900.00               

76810 06/24/15 KOLA 1,266.50               

76811 06/24/15 Lisa Sexton 6,996.75               

76812 06/24/15 Lopez Works, Inc. 28,831.87             

76813 06/24/15 Mobile Mini 513.00                   

76814 06/24/15 VOID ‐                        

76815 06/24/15 Pinnacle Landscape Company 4,457.00               

76816 06/24/15 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 1,662.77               

76817 06/24/15 Pre‐Fab Builders, Inc. 16,230.00             

76818 06/24/15 Sandscapes 12,000.00             

Page 3 of 6



Check No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center 

Accounts Payable Checks Summary

June 2015

76819 06/24/15 Quijote Corporation dba Sensis 12,000.00             

76820 06/24/15 Southern California Edison 41,987.60             

76821 06/24/15 Statewide Seating & Grandstands, Inc. 32,445.00             

76822 06/24/15 TalentWise, Inc. 2,913.00               

76823 06/24/15 The ACE Agency, Inc. 1,000.00               

76824 06/24/15 Verizon Wireless 2,013.01               

76825 06/24/15 Venue Solutions Group 2,883.00               

76826 06/24/15 Orange County Treasurer‐Tax Collector 5,464.32               

792,516.81Total June 2015 AP Checks

Page 4 of 6



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

E060115‐1 06/01/15 Signapay JLA ‐ 6845 529.91                   

E060115‐2 06/01/15 Signapay PacAmp Sales ‐ 1608 71.06                    

E060115‐3 06/01/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 64.87                    

E060115‐4 06/01/15 Signapay Accounting ‐ 0964 15.88                    

E060115‐5 06/01/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 10.00                    

E060115‐6 06/01/15 Signapay PacAmp Merch ‐ 5003 10.00                    

EP060115‐1 06/01/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 56,832.79             

EP060115‐2 06/01/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 7,153.48               

EP060115‐3 06/01/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 50.60                    

E060215‐1 06/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ WiFi 32.55                    

E060215‐2 06/02/15 Authorize.net Gateway ‐ ESS 29.95                    

E060215‐3 06/02/15 Global Payments ESS ‐ 4284 20.95                    

E060215‐4 06/02/15 Global Payments Visual Arts ‐ 3277 20.95                    

E060215‐5 06/02/15 Global Payments WiFi ‐ 3304 41.77                    

E27494846 06/03/15 PayPal 167.55                   

EP060315 06/03/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 2.08                      

E060315‐1 06/03/15 CBB Exhibit Entries ‐ 8888 1,179.43               

E060315‐2 06/03/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 492.65                   

E060515‐1 06/05/15 AMEX TM ‐ 5809 527.79                   

E060515‐2 06/05/15 AMEX JLA ‐ 7773 435.38                   

E060515‐3 06/05/15 AMEX Entries ‐ 8152 111.56                   

E060515‐4 06/05/15 AMEX WiFi ‐ 3435 0.97                      

E060815‐1 06/08/15 AMEX Entries ‐ 8152 20.00                    

E060815‐2 06/08/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 262.31                   

E060815‐3 06/08/15 Signapay Carnival ‐ 3185 10.00                    

E060915 06/09/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 86.08                    

E061015 06/10/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 129.82                   

E49354582 06/15/15 Pitney Bowes 3,000.00               

E061515 06/15/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 135.03                   

EP061515‐1 06/15/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 7,181.08               

EP061515‐2 06/15/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 682.98                   

E061615 06/16/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 110.71                   

E061715 06/17/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 159.60                   

EP061715‐1 06/17/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 54,708.35             

EP061715‐2 06/17/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 7,642.74               

EP061815 06/18/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 25.76                    

E14313237 06/18/15 CA Public Employees Retirement System 132,032.23           

E062215‐1 06/22/15 CBB Analysis Statement Fee 913.73                   

E062215‐2 06/22/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 178.68                   

EP062215‐1 06/22/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 135.69                   

EP062215‐2 06/22/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 14.87                    

E062315 06/23/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 114.71                   

Ed50494f9d7 06/24/15 US Bank 235,517.67           

E062415 06/24/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 273.72                   

E062915 06/29/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 158.71                   

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

June 2015

Page 5 of 6



Reference No. Date Vendor Name Amount

OC Fair & Event Center

Electronic Payments Summary

June 2015

EP062915‐1 06/29/15 Payroll Tax ‐ Federal 8,588.77               

EP062915‐2 06/29/15 Payroll Tax ‐ State 835.72                   

E063015 06/30/15 Paymentech TM ‐ 6990 121.81                   

Total June 2015 Electronic Payments 520,842.94

Page 6 of 6



MINUTES OF OCFEC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
HELD JUNE 25, 2015 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER: 

Vice Chair Mouet called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
2. MISSION STATEMENT 
  
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by Director Ruiz. Roll call taken by 
Jeff Willson. 
 

4.  DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Vice Chair Mouet, Director Tkaczyk, Director La Belle, Director Berardino, 
Director Bagneris, Director Cervantes, and Director Ruiz 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT/EXCUSED: 
Chair Aitken and Director Nguyen 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO; Sharon Augenstein, OCFEC CFO; Michele 
Richards, OCFEC Chief Business Development Officer; Doug Lofstrom, 
OCFEC; Jeff Willson, OCFEC; Jessica Zimmerman, OCFEC; Elaine 
Kumamoto, OCFEC Director of Finance; Joan Hamill, OCFEC Director of 
Community Relations; Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC Director of Facilities; 
Howard Sandler, OCFEC Director of Events; Robin Wachner, OCFEC 
Director of Communications; Jason Jacobsen, OCFEC Director of 
Planning and Presentation; Evy Young, Centennial Farm Supervisor; Nick 
Buffa, OCFEC Safety & Security Supervisor; Deborah Fletcher, Office of 
the Attorney General; Roger Grable, Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP; Janet 
Taylor, stenographer; Reggie Mundekis; Theresa Sears; Beth Refakes; 
Stewart Suchman, OCMP; Ryan Miller, OCMP; Lisa Sabo; Larry Sassone; 
Bradley Zint, Daily Pilot; Mike Robbins; Jeanine Robbins; Bob Palazolla; 
Guy Leavitt, Ray Cammack Shows; Chris Epting 
 

5. CEO’S OPERATIONAL UPDATE 
 
Kathy Kramer, OCFEC CEO, introduced Jessica Zimmerman, the new 
OCFEC Executive Assistant. 
 
Kramer discussed the excitement of Fair set up and the OCFEC Relay For 
Life Team which raised almost $3,000 for an OCFEC employee battling 
cancer. She then spoke about the Centennial Farm Docents’ Luncheon 
thanking over 100 docents who volunteer over 5,000 hours at the Farm, 
noting that over 90,000 school children visited the Farm this school year. 
She then thanked Director Berardino for his work securing a $25,000 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 2 OF 8 

 
donation from the city of Costa Mesa for Heroes Hall. She discussed 
Fairtime security operations including the introduction of magnetic 
wanding at the entrance gates.  
 
Kramer then introduced Chris Epting, author of “The Orange County Fair – 
A History of Celebration,” a history of the OC Fair. 
 
Epting then discussed the book and historical anecdotes about the OC 
Fair.  
 
Director Berardino asked how much the Fair will make from sales of the 
book. Sharon Augenstein, OCFEC CFO, answered that OCFEC would 
receive the usual merchandise percentage of 17.5%. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet congratulated Epting on the book stating that it is a win-
win for the author and the Fair. 
 
Augenstein the provided budget projections for the 2015 OC Fair.  
 
Director Berardino asked about the average hourly wage for 119-Day 
employees and who approves their rate. Augenstein answered that staff 
sets rates for those employees. Director Berardino then asked counsel to 
look into whether staff can approve pay rates or whether the Board needs 
to approve that rate.  
 
Deborah Fletcher, Deputy Attorney General, stated that she would look 
into the issue.  
 
Nick Buffa, OCFEC Safety & Security Manager, presented a preview of 
the Friends of the Fair Day scheduled for July 24, 2015, which provides 
exclusive access to the OC Fair for special needs customers.  
 
Director Berardino asked if the event accepts cash donations instead of 
services or products. 
 
Buffa answered that the question had never been asked but he would look 
into it.  
 
Director Ruiz asked if there was information that could be provided so that 
the Board members could reach out to groups they are involved with that 
might be interested in the program.  
 
Director Berardino suggested reaching out the special needs foster care 
children. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 3 OF 8 

 
Kramer then discussed her recent trip to the San Diego County Fair and 
noted that their success might be an indicator of success for the OC Fair. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
Beth Refakes thanked Director Berardino for working with the City to 
secure the $25,000 donation for Heroes Hall. She asked about the status 
of the repeal of ABX4 22. She then complimented Epting on his previous 
work. 
 
Theresa Sears spoke enthusiastically about the Epting book and reminded 
the Board of why it was important to stop the sale of the fairgrounds. She 
then commended Kathy on her work with the 4H community. 
 

7. MINUTES: 
 

A.  Board Meeting held May 28, 2015 
 Action Item 
 

ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director Ruiz seconded to 
review and approve the minutes from the Board meeting held May 28, 
2015. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Vice Chair Mouet, Director La 
Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, 
Director Cervantes, and Director Ruiz. NAYES: none. 

 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 
A.  Standard Agreements: SA-103-15PA; SA-118-15FT; SA-119-15FT; 

SA-120-15FT; SA-121-15FT; SA-122-15PA; SA-123-15PA;  
SA-124-15AS; SA-125-15YR; SA-127-15PA; SA-128-15CS;  
SA-129-15PA; SA-130-15PA; SA-131-15PA; SA-132-15PA;  
SA-133-15FT; SA-134-15FT; SA-135-15GE; SA-136-15GE;  
SA-137-15GE; SA-138-15GE; SA-139-15FT; SA-141-15PA;  
SA-142-15FT; SA-143-15PA; SA-146-15PA; SA-147-15PA;  
SA-148-15SP; SA-149-15SP; SA-150-15SP; SA-153-15PA;  
SA-154-15PA; SA-155-15PA; SA-156-15PA; SA-157-15PA;  
SA-158-15PA; SA-159-15PA; SA-164-15FT; SA-165-15FT;  
SA-166-15FT; SA-169-15FT 

 
B.  Amendments: SA-108-15FT (Amend. #1); SA-182-10SP (Amend. #2) 
 
C. Interagency Agreements: none. 

 
D. Letters of Understanding: none. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 4 OF 8 

 
E. Rental Agreements: R-102-15; R-105-15; R-112-15; R-114-15; R-115-

15; R-121-15; R-122-15; R-125-15; R-127-15; FT-062-15; FT-063-15; 
FT-064-15 

 
F.   Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements: none. 

 
G. Commercial Rental Agreements: 15251; 15252; 15253; 15254; 15255 
 
H. Concession Rental Agreements: 15528 
 
I. Platinum Rental Agreements: 15707 
 
J. Judging Agreements: CA-016-15; CA-019-15; CA-020-15; CA-022-15; 

CA-023-15; CA-026-15; CA-028-15; CA-029-15; CA-030-15; CA-031-
15; CA-032-15; CA-033-15; EX-001-15; EX-002-15; EX-003-15; EX-
004-15; EX-005-15; GF-001-15; GF-002-15; GF-003-15; GF-004-15; 
GF-005-15; GF-006-15; GF-007-15; GF-009-15; GF-010-15; GF-011-
15; GF-012-15; GF-013-15; HA-001-15; HA-002-15; HA-003-15; HA-
004-15; HA-005-15; HA-006-15; HA-007-15; HA-008-15; HA-009-15; 
HA-010-15; HA-011-15; HA-012-15; HA-013-15; HA-014-15; HA-015-
15; HA-016-15; HA-017-15; HA-018-15; HA-019-15; HA-020-15; HBL-
001-15; VA-001-15; VA-002-15; VA-004-15; VA-005-15; VA-006-15; 
VA-007-15; VA-008-15; VA-009-15; VA-010-15; VA-011-15; VA-012-
15; VA-014-15; VA-015-15; VA-016-15; VA-017-15; VA-018-15; VA-
019-15; VA-020-15; VA-021-15; VA-022-15; VA-023-15; VA-025-15; 
VA-026-15 

 
K. Correspondence 

Communications to the Board from the public in response to Board 
discussion or to comments made before the Board are to be listed on 
the meeting agenda and included in the Board materials as an item of 
public disclosure.  
 
i. none. 

 
Director La Belle asked that SA-148-15SP and SA-149-15SP be pulled 
from the Consent Calendar for further discussion. 
 

ACTION: Director Cervantes motioned and Director La Belle seconded 
to review and approve the Consent Calendar with SA-148-15SP and 
SA-149-15SP pulled for further discussion. MOTION CARRIED. 
AYES: Vice Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, 
Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director Cervantes, and 
Director Ruiz. NAYES: none.  

  



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 5 OF 8 

 
 Relative to SA-148-15SP and SA-149-15SP, Director La Belle then noted 

that he owned ninety-seven shares of Verizon stock that had been 
disclosed on his Form 700. 

 
ACTION: Director La Belle motioned and Director Bagneris seconded 
to review and approve the SA-148-15SP and SA-149-15SP. MOTION 
CARRIED. AYES: Vice Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director 
Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director Bagneris, Director 
Cervantes, and Director Ruiz. NAYES: none.  
 

9.  GOVERNANCE PROCESS: 
 

A.  Committee/Task Force/Liaison Reports 
Information Item 
 
Vice Chair Mouet on behalf of the Centennial Farm Foundation 
announced the Poker Tournament fundraiser. 
 
Michele Richards, OCFEC Vice President, Business Development, 
noted that Centennial Farm Foundation will not be meeting in June or 
July. 
 
Director Berardino on behalf of the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation 
Board discussed the $25,000 donation from the City of Costa Mesa. 
 
Director Berardino on behalf of the Workers Memorial Task Force 
spoke enthusiastically about the memorial.  
 
Jason Jacobsen, OCFEC Director of Production, provided a recap of 
the construction of the workers memorial.  
 
Director Berardino described the finished memorial and spoke of 
justice for the agriculture workers in the county. He then thanked the 
Board and staff for their efforts to complete this project. 
 
Jacobsen thanked Joan Hamill, OCFEC Director of Community 
Relations, and her team and Jerry Eldridge, OCFEC Director of 
Facilities, and his team for all their work in completing this project. 
 
Richards on behalf of the City Liaison Committee spoke about RSVPs 
for the morning flag raising ceremonies during the OC Fair.  
 
Director Berardino provided Director Tkaczyk of the Consumer 
Initiatives Task Force a coupon book for the San Diego County Fair. 
 
Jeanine Robbins described the San Diego coupon book. 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 6 OF 8 

 
 

B. Discussion of Board Ticketing Policy (Policy 4.8.5.E) 
Action Item 
 
Kramer introduced the item. Counsel recommended establishing an 
ad-hoc two person task force to review existing ticketing policy and 
make recommendations to the Board of Directors to ensure all policies 
are consistent and are aligned with the Fair Political Practices 
Commission regulations. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet appointed Director Bagneris and Director Tkaczyk 
the ad hoc task force.  
 

C.  Discussion of Appointees to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation 
Board of Directors 
Action Item 
 
Director Berardino presented Julio Perez, OC Labor Federation 
Executive Director; Pat Lavin, IBEW Local 47 Business Manager; and 
Carina Franck-Pantone, President of the Franck Firm as nominees to 
the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation Board of Directors.  
 
Director La Belle presented Attorney David Brahms (USMC Retired); 
Attorney Douglas Applegate (USMC Retired); Tina Javid, Sempra 
Energy; and Darrell Miller, Vice President of Youth and Facility 
Development for Major League Baseball as nominees to the Heroes 
Hall Veterans Foundation Board of Directors. 
 
Beth Refakes expressed concerns about whether or not any disabled 
veterans, female veterans or Costa Mesa residents had been 
nominated as Board members. 
 
ACTION: Director Tkaczyk motioned and Director Cervantes seconded 
to approve the appointment of Julio Perez, Pat Lavin, Carina Franck-
Pantone, David Brahms, Douglas Applegate, Tina Javid, and Darrell 
Miller to the Heroes Hall Board of Directors. MOTION CARRIED. 
AYES: Vice Chair Mouet, Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, 
Director Berardino, Director Cervantes, and Director Ruiz. 
NAYES: none. ABSTENTIONS: Director Bagneris 
 

D. Review of Board of Directors All Access Policy 
  Action Item 

 
Kramer presented the amended language of the All Access Policy and 
presented the All Access pass to each Board member. 
 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 7 OF 8 

 
E. Review and Approve Heroes Hall Architectural Design and CEQA 

Determination 
 Action Item 

 
Director Berardino introduced the staff report.  
 
Richards presented the draft architectural designs for Heroes Hall. 
 
Director La Belle asked about the schedule regarding the bid package. 
Richards answered that the bid package will be released upon 
approval of the Board of Directors. 
 
Richards noted that part of the recommendation before the Board is 
the approval of the determination of exemption from CEQA as 
restoration of a historic building. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet suggested that staff research the inclusion of plant 
types from the original Memorial Gardens. 
 
ACTION: Director Bagneris motioned and Director Cervantes 
seconded to approve Heroes Hall Architectural Design and CEQA 
Determination. MOTION CARRIED. AYES: Vice Chair Mouet, 
Director La Belle, Director Tkaczyk, Director Berardino, Director 
Bagneris, Director Cervantes, and Director Ruiz. NAYES: none. 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 
Vice Chair Mouet adjourned to closed session at 10:50 a.m. Meeting 
resumed at 11:30 a.m. 
 
Vice Chair Mouet announced that there were no reportable actions from 
Closed Session. 

11.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MATTERS OF INFORMATION 

Director La Belle and Director Ruiz congratulated Jeff Willson for his new 
position and welcomed Jessica Zimmerman to OCFEC. 
 
Director Bagneris noted that she was looking forward to the OC Fair. 
 
Director Tkaczyk welcomed Zimmerman. 
 
Director Cervantes welcomed Zimmerman to OCFEC. 
 
Director Berardino asked to receive a weekly report on security matters at 
the OC Fair.  Additionally, he asked for clarification regarding the 



OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER, 32ND DAA  
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 25, 2015, PAGE 8 OF 8 

 
responsibility of the Board versus the responsibility of staff relative to 
operational duties. 
 
Fletcher noted that any such report would be a matter of public record and 
recommended that the discussion be agendized for the next Board 
meeting.  
 
Director Berardino then asked that discussion related to WFA’s opposition 
to a bill about elephants in light of the Board of Directors opposition to 
elephant rides at the OC Fair. Then Director Berardino asked that the 
CEO look into the status of Ovations’ high school fundraising partnership 
and whether it had been extended to other Orange County schools and 
what schools would be participating this year.  
 
Director Berardino noted that he was not sure if the trailer bill for ABx 422 
had passed.  
 
Director Berardino asked that staff agendize a discussion regarding the 
possible hiring of a legislative advocacy firm.  
 
Vice Chair Mouet welcomed Zimmerman and congratulated Willson on his 
new position.  
 

12.  NEXT BOARD MEETING:  THURSDAY, AUGUST 27, 2015 
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned at 11:50 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________  
Ashleigh Aitken, Chair 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer 



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

SA-126-15FT EventCorp Services, Inc. Kiosk survey development and implementation services Fair Time 06/15/15 - 08/31/15 $28,000.00

SA-140-15FT Seaside Ice, LLC dba Ice-America Provide and operate ice rink for "Fairenheit 32 Degrees" at the 2015 OC 
Fair

Fair Time 06/29/15 - 08/21/15 $231,366.00

SA-144-15FT Mobile Mini LLC Mobile unit rental Fair Time 05/12/15 - 08/31/15 $3,375.00

SA-145-15FT On hold

SA-151-15SP Click Heat, Inc. Sponsorship Fair Time 06/15/15 - 08/17/15 $21,000.00 

SA-152-15SP Select Comfort Corporation dba Sleep Number Sponsorship Fair Time 06/15/15 - 08/17/15 $75,000.00 

SA-160-15FT Images In Ice Provide walk-in ice museum for the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 06/23/15 - 08/19/15 $147,850.00

SA-161-15PA The Fab Four Corp f/s/o The Fab Four and The 
Wings Band

"The Fab Four" and "The Wings Band" performing at Pacific 
Amphitheatre

Fair Time 08/01/15 $36,000.00

SA-162-15PA Heavensake, Inc. f/s/o Berlin "Berlin" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of "Echo & The 
Bunnymen"

Fair Time 08/07/15 $20,000.00

SA-163-15PA Noisy S.O.D. Inc. f/s/o Foghat "Foghat" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of "Deep Purple" Fair Time 08/12/15 $23,000.00

SA-167-15FT Royal Restrooms of California, Inc. Shower trailer rental Fair Time 06/26/15 - 08/31/15 $40,550.00

SA-168-15FT On hold

SA-170-15FT On hold

SA-171-15FT Brook Furniture Rental, Inc. Courtyard furniture rental Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/18/15 $4,320.00

SA-172-15PA Pacific Symphony "Pacific Symphony" performing with "America" at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 07/16/15 $63,540.00

SA-173-15PA Bleachers Touring Inc. f/s/o Bleachers "Bleachers" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre as co-headline with 
"Charli XCX"

Fair Time 07/22/15 $62,500.00

SA-174-15PA 5th Harmony Touring Inc. f/s/o Fifth Harmony "Fifth Harmony" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/08/15 $75,000.00

SA-175-15CS Cooperative Personnel Services dba CPS HR Consulting Chief Operations Officer search services Year Round 06/17/15 - 09/30/15 $4,900.00

SA-176-15AS International Speedway, Inc. "X-treme Freestyle Moto-X" in the Action Sports Arena Fair Time 07/17/15 $26,000.00

SA-177-15AS International Speedway, Inc. "41st Annual Speedway Fair Derby" in the Action Sports Arena Fair Time 07/18/15 $26,000.00

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

Page 1 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

SA-178-15PA Thames Live, Ltd. f/s/o Deep Purple "Deep Purple" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/12/15 $102,500.00

SA-179-15PA Charli XCX Inc. f/s/o Charli XCX "Charli XCX" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre as co-headline with 
"Bleachers"

Fair Time 07/22/15 $62,500.00

SA-180-15PA Compound One f/s/o The Interrupters "The Interrupters" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 07/30/15 $2,500.00

SA-181-15PA The English Beat LLC f/s/o The English Beat "The English Beat" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/14/15 $15,000.00

SA-182-15PA Back Bay Management LLC f/s/o The Wailers "The Wailers" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/15/15 $25,500.00

SA-183-15PA International Music Group, LLC f/s/o Natalie La Rose "Natalie La Rose" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of "Fifth 
Harmony"

Fair Time 08/08/15 $1,500.00

SA-184-15HB Seedless "Seedless" performing in the Hangar Fair Time 07/19/15 $4,000.00

SA-185-15FT Pacific Events Entertainment Master of Ceremony serves during the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/16/15 - 08/16/15 $2,875.00

SA-186-15HB Common Sense "Common Sense" performing in the Hangar Fair Time 07/19/15 $1,500.00

SA-187-15PA Imabeast LLC f/s/o Bea Miller "Bea Miller" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of "Fifth 
Harmony"

Fair Time 08/08/15 $500.00

SA-188-15PA Ann Marie Raffaelli f/s/o Annie McQueen "Annie McQueen" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of "The 
Band Perry"

Fair Time 07/23/15 $500.00

SA-189-15FT Orange County Transportation Authority In-kind trade for OCTA's bus services and OCFEC's coupon marketing 
campaign

Fair Time 07/17/15 - 08/16/15 $0.00

SA-190-15FT The Magic of Frank Thurston "Magician Frank Thurston" shall perform at the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/16/15 - 08/16/15 $12,500.00

SA-191-15FT Premiere Events Group DJ services for Fairenheit 32 Degrees "DJ Skate Party" Fair Time 07/17/15 - 08/16/15 $3,625.00

SA-192-15GE Day-Ton Management f/s/o Side Effect Present "Side Effect" as grounds entertainment at the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/16/15 - 08/16/15 $20,000.00

SA-193-15FT Marc Seligson Present "Selly" performing at the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 07/25/15 - 07/26/15 $500.00

SA-194-15AS Cavallo Equestrian Arts, LLC Present "Cavallo Equestrian Arts - Ma'Ceo" equestrian event in the 
Action Sports Arena

Fair Time 07/20/15 - 07/27/15 $40,000.00

SA-195-15BB Daniel Tello f/s/o The Originalites "The Originalites" performing at Baja Blues Fair Time 07/22/16 - 07/26/15 $5,000.00

SA-196-15FT Edward Russell Provide "Russell Brothers Circus" and "Let's Play Circus" at the 2015 
OC Fair

Fair Time 07/12/15 - 08/18/15 $22,000.00

SA-197-15FT All-Alaskan Racing Pigs, LLC Provide "Racing Pigs" and "Pedal Tractor Pull" events at the 2015 OC 
Fair

Fair Time 07/14/15 - 08/17/15 $36,500.00

Page 2 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

SA-198-15SP El Aviso Sponsorship Fair Time 07/15/15 - 08/16/15 $32,850.00 (Trade)

SA-199-15SP Los Angeles Times / Daily Pilot Sponsorship Fair Time 05/04/15 - 08/17/15 $28,000.00 (Cash)
$93,500.00 (Trade)

SA-200-15SP Orange County Register Sponsorship Fair Time 04/01/2015 - 08/17/15 $10,000.00 (Cash)
$60,000.00 (Trade)

SA-201-15SP On hold

SA-202-15PA Runnin' Behind, Inc. f/s/o Chris Young "Chris Young" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/13/15 $125,000.00

SA-203-15PA Babe, Inc. f/s/o Dennis DeYoung "Dennis DeYoung" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre Fair Time 08/06/15 $36,250.00

SA-204-15SP The Toll Roads Service Center Sponsorship Fair Time 05/22/15 - 08/16/15 $5,000.00 (Cash)
$4,500.00 (Trade)

SA-205-15SP Bottling Group, LLC Sponsorship Fair Time 06/19/15 - 08/16/15 $2,100.00 (Cash)
$49,154.00 (Trade)

SA-206-15PA Ryan River, Inc. f/s/o Debby Ryan & The Never 
Ending

"The Never Ending" performing at Pacific Amphitheatre in support of 
"Fifth Harmony"

Fair Time 08/08/15 $18,000.00

SA-207-15PA Bladerocker Entertainment, Inc. f/s/o Richard Blade "Richard Blade" to DJ at the Pacific Amphitheatre in support of 
"Spandau Ballet"

Fair Time 07/29/15 $1,600.00

SA-208-15FT Muddy's Studio Provide ceramic demonstration and exhibit Fair Time 07/06/15 - 08/20/15 $0.00

SA-209-15FT Orange County Beekeepers Association Provide beekeeping demonstration and exhibit Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/17/15 $0.00

SA-210-15FT Peter James Riojas Leather crafting demonstration and exhibit Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/21/15 $2,000.00

SA-211-15FT OCLocalHoney.com Provide honey and beekeeping demonstration and exhibit Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/17/15 $0.00

SA-212-15FT The Plant Stand Provide gardening demonstration and exhibit Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/17/15 $0.00

SA-213-15FT Southland Sod Farms Provide educational sod and weed control display Fair Time 07/18/15 - 08/16/15 $0.00

SA-214-15FT Orange County Organic Gardening Club Provide educational organic gardening display Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

SA-215-15FT Los Angeles Mycological Society Provide educational display about the Los Angeles Mycological Society Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

SA-216-15FT California Organic Gardening Club Provide educational display about the California Organic Gardening Club Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

SA-217-15FT Sherman Library and Gardens Provide educational display about the Sherman Library and Gardens Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

Page 3 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

SA-218-15FT American Begonia Society-Doug Frost Branch Provide educational display about the American Begonia Society-Doug 
Frost Branch

Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

SA-219-15FT Whittier Begonia Society Provide educational display about the Whittier Begonia Society Fair Time 07/14/15 - 07/20/15 $0.00

SA-220-15FT Orange Agriculture Boosters Board heifer and ram at the Orange High School Farm Fair Time 07/16/15 - 08/17/15 $150.00

SA-221-15FT Steve Miller Provide milking demonstrations at Centennial Farm Fair Time 07/17/15 - 08/16/15 $2,300.00

SA-222-15FT Orange Agriculture Boosters Provide educational display in Livestock Fair Time 08/10/15 - 08/16/15 $3,500.00

SA-223-15YR Scott Brothers Dairy Farms Provide donated calves and loaned cows in exchange for 2015 OC Fair 
concert tickets

Year Round 09/01/14 - 08/31/15 $3,400.00 (Trade)

SA-224-15YR Scott Brothers Dairy Farms Provide donated calves and loaned cows in exchange for 2016 OC Fair 
concert tickets

Year Round 09/01/15 - 0/8/31/16 $3,400.00 (Trade)

SA-225-15FT Prehistoric, Inc. Provide reptile display in the Explorium: Destination Kids Tent Fair Time 06/29/15 - 08/19/15 $0.00

SA-226-15FT Modular Space Corporation dba ModSpace Provide five (5) rental office trailer units Fair Time 07/07/15 - 08/31/15 $10,000.00

SA-227-15FT Mt. San Antonio Community College District Setup and removal of Swine Tent in Livestock Fair Time 07/20/15 - 08/03/15 $2,000.00

SA-228-15HB AER Touring, Inc. f/s/o Aer "Aer" to perform at the Hangar Building Fair Time 07/26/15 $15,250.00

SA-229-15HB Easy Star Records, Inc. f/s/o Easy Star All-Stars "Easy Star All-Stars" to perform at the Hangar Building Fair Time 07/30/15 $12,750.00

SA-230-15SP Hampton Inn & Suites Santa Ana/Orange County Airport Sponsorship Year Round 07/01/15 - 06/30/16 $5,481.00 (Trade)

SA-231-15SP Subway Franchise Advertising Fund Trust Sponsorship Fair Time 07/17/15 - 08/16/15 $6,000.00 

SA-232-15HB Star Productions, LLC f/s/o Under the Streetlamp "Under the Streetlamp" to perform at the Hangar Building Fair Time 08/02/15 $14,750.00

SA-233-15FT Premster Productions, LLC Merchandise sales for Pacific Amphitheatre and The Hangar Fair Time 07/13/15 - 08/17/15 $40,000.00

SA-234-15FT On hold

SA-235-15FT Hi-Way Safety Rentals, Inc. Electronic reader board rental Fair Time 07/15/15 - 08/21/15 $21,000.00

SA-236-15SP Experian Sponsorship Fair Time 07/01/15 - 08/17/15 $40,000.00 (Trade)

SA-237-15SP Mobile Media Enterprise, LLC Mobile marketing tour (Olive Garden) Fair Time 07/16/15 - 07/19/15 $7,500.00 

Page 4 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

SA-238-15SP rEvolution Marketing, LLC Mobile marketing tour (Spin Master) Fair Time 07/17/15 - 07/27/15 $18,000.00 

SA-239-15CS On hold

SA-240-15CS On hold

SA-241-15SP Attack! Marketing Mobile marketing tour (SoCalGas) Fair Time 07/20/15 - 07/27/15 $12,000.00 

SA-242-15FT Oasis Camel Dairy LLC Educational camel display in Livestock Fair Time 08/04/15 - 08/17/15 $10,000.00

SA-243-15FT Theresa Vargas Educational chicken display in Livestock Fair Time 08/04/15 - 08/16/15 $1,200.00

SA-244-15FT SoCal Health Coach Educational horse display in Livestock Fair Time 08/04/15 - 08/09/15 $0.00

SA-245-15FT European Equine Associates, Inc. Educational horse display in Livestock Fair Time 08/11/15 - 08/17/15 $5,390.00

SA-246-15FT Silver Rose Ranch Educational sheepherding display in Livestock Fair Time 08/11/15 - 08/16/15 $850.00

SA-247-15FT Rat & Mouse Club of America Educational rat and mouse display in Livestock Fair Time 08/11/15 - 08/16/15 $0.00

SA-248-15SP Makai Events, Inc. Mobile marketing tour (Maruchan) Fair Time 07/23/15 - 08/03/15 $7,500.00 

SA-249-15SP Makai Events, Inc. Mobile marketing tour (General Mills) Fair Time 07/24/15 - 08/17/15 $29,250.00 

SA-250-15PS C. Epting, Inc. Commemorative OC Fair book services Year Round 06/22/15 - 06/21/16 $4,975.00

SA-251-15SP Trilogy LLC Mobile Marketing tour (Hewlett Packard) Fair Time 08/15/15 - 08/14/15 $7,500.00 

SA-252-15SP RedPeg Marketing, Inc. Mobile Marketing tour (GEICO) Fair Time 08/07/15 - 08/17/15 $25,000.00 

SA-253-15SP Fuse, LLC Mobile Marketing Tour (Starbucks) Fair Time 08/06/15 - 08/10/15 $10,000.00 

SA-254-15FT On hold

SA-255-15FT On hold

SA-256-15FT On hold

SA-257-15FT On hold

Page 5 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

SA-258-15SP Avalon Bay communities, Inc. Mobile Marketing Tour (Avalon Irvine Apartments) Fair Time 08/14/15 $2,500.00 

SA-259-15FT Josh Barnett Productions, Inc. dba Lightasmic! Twinkle Lights for the 2015 OC Fair Fair Time 06/08/15 - 08/19/15 $20,390.00

Amendments

CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM CHANGE IN 
RECEIPT AMOUNT

CHANGE IN NOT TO 
EXCEED EXPENSE 

SA-028-15BL
(Amend #1)

Statewide Seating and Grandstands, Inc. Additional rental bleachers in the Action Sports Arena and Livestock 
area; total contract value increased to $52,085.00

Fair Time 04/27/15 - 10/07/15 $13,400.00

SA-56-12PA
(Amend #3) XL Video, Inc. Video equipment and services at the Pacific Amphitheatre with the third 

year option to renew; total contract value increased to $788,278.96 Fair Time 07/08/15 - 08/31/15 $205,891.60

SA-061-15YR
(Amend #1)

County of Orange Incorporate County's Agreement for law enforcement services for 
interim/year-round events

Year Round 07/01/15 - 06/30/16 $0.00

SA-062-15FT
(Amend #1)

County of Orange Incorporate County's Agreement for law enforcement services for the 
2015 OC Fair

Fair Time 07/17/15 - 08/16/15 $0.00

SA-067-15GE
(Amend #1)

Music Zirconia, Inc. f/s/o Heavy Mellow & Ben Woods Additional performance on August 16, 2015, at the Hangar Building; total 
contract value increased to $1,800.00

Fair Time 08/07/15 - 08/16/15 $900.00

SA-084-15GE
(Amend #1)

Entertaining the King Touring, Inc. f/s/o Street Drum 
Corps

Additional performance in support of the Pacific Amphitheatre Ribbon 
Cutting Ceremony; total contract value increased to $18,325.00

Fair Time 07/16/15 - 08/16/15 $500.00

SA-086-15FT 
(Amend #1)

Shaile Socher Reduced number of days worked; total contract value decreased to 
$3,860.00

Fair Time 07/22/15 - 08/16/15 ($920.00)

SA-124-15AS
(Amend #1)

Monster Truck Entertainment, LLC Additional dollars to provide "Monster X Tour Monster Truck Show" at 
Action Sports Arena; total contract value increased to $75,000.00

Fair Time 07/27/15 - 08/03/15 $1,500.00

SA-054-15FT
(Amend #1)

Cart Mart, Inc. Additional cart rental for the 2015 OC Fair; total contract value increased 
to $11,354

Fair Time 04/13/15 - 08/31/15 $5,515.00

SA-167-12SP
(Amend #3)

Backyard BBQ Village Inc. Water sponsorship Year Round 07/01/15 - 06/30/16 $15,000.00 

Interagency Agreements

CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM CHANGE IN 
RECEIPT AMOUNT

CHANGE IN NOT TO 
EXCEED EXPENSE 

Letters of Understanding

Page 6 of 7



CONTRACT # CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
EXPENSE AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

STANDARD AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

LOU # DEMONSTRATOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

Page 7 of 7



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                  R_____ A_____ F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-126-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1427776 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 

2. The term of this         06/15/15 through 08/31/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $28,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide freestanding kiosk survey development and implementation Pages 2 – 4 
 services at the OC Fair & Event Center for the 2015 OC Fair.  Additional Scope of Work continued on 

page 2. 
 

  
 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 
  
 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9  
  
 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

  
 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement)  Pages 14 – 16 
   

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Omar Mawjee, CEO/Owner 
ADDRESS  
7931 152nd Avenue NE, Redmond, WA 98052 
(866) 469-7250 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 16  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
1. To provide freestanding kiosk survey development and implementation services at the OC Fair & Event Center for 

the 2015 OC Fair.  
 

2. The survey period shall take place for a minimum of two (2) consecutive weeks, from July 29, 2015 – August 9, 
2015. The survey shall be administered during the following times:   

 
Wednesdays – Fridays: Noon – Midnight 
Saturdays and Sundays: 10:00 a.m. – Midnight 
(Closed Mondays & Tuesdays) 

 
3. In addition to the scope provided herein, Contractor shall provide kiosk survey development, implementation and 

equipment as detailed in Contractor’s proposal dated June 9, 2015. 
 

4. Survey Development & Capability Requirements: 
 

a. To develop a bilingual (English and Spanish) survey questionnaire based on the District’s objectives. Spanish 
translation of the survey is the responsibility of the Contractor. Contractor must be capable of providing guidance 
to the District regarding preparation, wording and subject of questions for the patron survey.  
 

b. The survey shall consist of no less than fifteen (15) but no more than twenty (20) questions in both English and 
Spanish text, and it shall take no more than four (4) minutes for a guest to complete. 

 
c. The survey shall be capable of processing/storing an average of 1,300+ responses per day, allowing for a 

statistically significant sample size. 
 

d. To amend the survey questionnaire (add, hide, unhide, or substitute questions) at any time during the period of 
data collection if required by District.  

 
e. To provide a minimum of ten (10) fully operational survey kiosks, as well as a minimum of two (2) additional 

kiosks as back-up. A minimum of two (2) survey kiosks must comply with ADA accessibility requirements. 
Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring ten (10) kiosks are operable at all times during the required survey 
hours.  
 

a. Survey kiosks must be free-standing and portable such that they are able to be moved at a moment’s notice.  
Equipment must be cordless to ensure the safety of District’s patrons.  Survey kiosks must be equipped to 
handle both indoor and outdoor elements. 
 

b. Survey kiosks are to be placed in key areas of the OC Fair (i.e. Carnival, Centennial Farm, Main Mall, etc.).  
Kiosk locations will be determined by the District’s Marketing Department. 
 

c. Equipment must convey a quality image. Equipment shall be clean with no rust; visible tape, tape residue, or any 
other unsightly remnants; and must be free of fading or scuffs. 
 

d. Contractor is responsible for supplying all equipment necessary to make the survey system is whole and fully 
functional and for the fulfillment of the scope described herein. The cost for equipment as well as costs 
associated with equipment must be paid solely by Contractor.  All equipment must be approved by District prior 
to Contractor’s arrival. 
 

e. To conduct a final review of the data collection plan and to install all survey equipment in their assigned locations 
no later than Tuesday, July 28, 2015. 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 16  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 
3. Staffing Requirements: 
 

a. For the duration of the survey project, a Project Manager and one alternative main point of contact must be 
available by phone Wednesday through Sunday from 9:00 a.m. to Midnight in case of emergency. 
 

b. Project Manager will report directly to the Marketing Department. 
 

c. Project Manager and Contractor, if different, must be available for pre-event and walk-through meetings.  
Specific meeting and walk-through dates shall be mutually determined by Contractor and the District. 

 
d. To provide a Project Manager or an appointed onsite Survey Attendant who shall be present during the time in 

which the survey project is taking place. Contractor’s personnel fulfilling this function must be bilingual 
(English/Spanish) and solely dedicated to the District during the OC Fair hours of operation for the duration of the 
survey project. The personnel must also possess strong interpersonal/customer service skills to enable him/her 
to assist and/or encourage patrons to participate in the survey.  
 

e. Contractor shall have a staffing plan in place such that Contractor is capable of keeping the bilingual Attendant 
position fully staffed in the event of Attendant illness or absence.    

 
f. Contractor and Contractor’s staff are expected to be self-sufficient while conducting their onsite survey role so as 

to minimize a need for District staff to manage resources.  
 

g. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

h. To assume all responsibility for any sub-contractor and/or employees, whether paid or unpaid, including but not 
limited to, Megan’s Law Screenings, as well as issuing payment for services in a timely manner and according to 
Federal wage laws. 

 
4. Deliverables & Reporting Requirements: 

 
a. Contractor shall submit daily reports which provide both the daily survey averages as well as a detailed daily 

survey report by respondent.  Reports must be received in both PDF and Excel form.  Prior day’s reports must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. the following day. 

 
b. Within five (5) days of the conclusion of the Survey Project, Contractor shall supply a minimum of five (5) 

completed hard copies of survey results and a completed electronic Excel version on a flash drive. The final 
report must include the following: 
 Introduction of project noting research objectives, methodology, margin of error and data cleansing; 
 An executive summary of results; 
 Frequency distribution of all responses to every question by category; 
 Comparison of response to like-questions; 
 Cross tabulations; 
 Charting and graphing of top-line data; 
 Customer comments arranged by topic; 
 Questionnaires – survey in both English and Spanish; 
 Sample survey screen shots; and 
 Respondents’ place of residence, zip code maps and listings. 

 
c. An accessible qualified representative must be available to consult with District personnel to review results and 

provide response(s) to tabulation inquiries. 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 16  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 
5. Rights & Ownership: 

 
a. Contractor understands and agrees the District retains the rights, title, and interest in and to the all content 

and/or data collected in the fulfillment of this Scope of Work. Further, Contractor shall not release, in part or 
in whole, any content and/or data collected as a result of or related to information from the survey without the 
expressed written consent of the District. 
 

b. The District retains the right to resell all or part of the survey service to third parties and allow questions to be 
included within the questionnaire to collect data for third party utilization (Example: event sponsors). 
 

c. All marks, logos, and branded materials supplied by the District shall remain the sole property of the District 
(or Sponsor as applicable) and shall not be used without District’s express written consent. 
 

d. The terms of the “rights and ownership” detailed herein shall survive the termination of any Agreement 
between the District and the Contractor. 

 
6. Rates/Pricing: 

 
a. Contractor shall provide kiosk survey development and implementation services from July 29, 2015 – August 

9, 2015 at the costs provided in Contractor’s proposal dated June 09, 2015, which is not to exceed twenty 
eight thousand dollars ($28,000). 
 

7. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide access to District property to conduct the survey, including working credentials and two parking permits 
for Contractor’s personnel. 

2. To provide electronic graphic image files and graphic guides for inclusion and implementation in the survey 
questionnaire and signage. 

3. To provide internet connectivity and a secure on-site storage for Contractor’s equipment used to conduct the survey 
during the survey period, including a/c power supply for overnight recharging of data collection devices.     

4. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($28,000.00) upon completion 
of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be made Net 30 and delivered via the US 
Mail. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 16  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5100-15 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
  
Invoices shall be submitted upon completion of services rendered to the District and shall contain the following, as 
applicable to services rendered: 
 
1. Contractor’s invoice number; 
2. Invoice date; 
3. District Purchase Order (PO) Number 45582; 
4. Survey Period 
5. Itemization of costs, including flat fee for the survey development, deliverables, and onsite meetings as well as the flat 

fee for all equipment. 
 

Invoices may be sent via email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 16  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State 
Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or 
in any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With 
Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to 
have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in 
no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC 
Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents 
(excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform 
the requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such 
termination the State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the 
State shall be deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be 
paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 16  

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of 
Section 12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. 
Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the 
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code 
Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which 
they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated 
by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly 
so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means 
of a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set 
out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or 
materials by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the 
Attorney General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the 
Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public 
purchase. Government Code Section 4550. 

 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 16  

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a 

monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to 
receive reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 
body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by 
the assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract 
Code 7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply 

with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but 
not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then 
Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time 
period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual 
percentage of small business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise 
(DVBE) participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract 
(or within such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the 
awarding department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the 
name and address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount 
each DVBE received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been  

 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 16  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or 
entity that knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. 
& Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or 
product as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 16  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code 
§12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against 
employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements 
if the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, 
or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 16  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of 
less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may 
be taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured 
labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or 
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, 
abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further 
declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the 
California Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract 
Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor 
is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 16  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, 
arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity 
by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or 
employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a 
policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms 
to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the 
purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, 
rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good 

standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a 
corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist  



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 16  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 16  

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sub-lessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated 
agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional 
insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except 
arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all 
types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All 
Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival 
Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type 
Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized 
Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other 
contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed 
vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 15 of 16  

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the 
fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for 
herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. 
New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the 
event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, 
in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by 
contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is 
received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums 
for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



 
SA-126-15FT 
EVENTCORP SERVICES, INC. 
PAGE 16 of 16  

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in 
excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under 
contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity 
obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or 
assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime 
Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, 
skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-140-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1419910 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA 

2. The term of this         06/29/15 through 08/21/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $231,366.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide and operate a turnkey ice rink for “Fairenheit 32 Degrees” Pages 1 – 4  
 at the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  5 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 14 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Contractor’s Price List (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 17  

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Scott Williams, Managing Member 
ADDRESS  
807 Sprucelake Drive, Harbor City, CA 90710 
(323) 776-9423 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 2 of 18 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

1. To provide and operate a fully equipped turnkey ice rink as “Fairenheit 32 Degrees” located at Park Plaza from 
July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair according to the rates provided in Contractor’s Price List dated June 8, 
2015, attached hereto as Exhibit F. 
 

2. The size of the ice rink size shall be 70’x50’ with additional space for queuing, ticketing, lockers, skate and 
accessory rentals, resurfacer, and chillers. The total footprint size is 80’x90’. 

 
3. To begin setup, construction and installation of the ice rink and related equipment on Monday, June 29, 2015.  

Setup must be completed by Wednesday, July 15, at 6:00 p.m.  Teardown shall begin no earlier than 11:59 p.m. 
on Sunday, August 16, 2015, and removal completed no later than 4:00 p.m., Friday, August 21, 2015.  The 
District reserves the right to modify installation and removal dates and times at its sole discretion. 
 

4. To be responsible for all production of staging platform, portable ice rink and ancillary equipment, shipping and 
transportation, installation, operations, maintenance and removal.   
 

5. To provide, construct and install a staging platform with ADA compliant ramps and handrails. 
 

6. To supply and maintain a Trane RT AA300, 300-ton rating chiller unit. 
 

7. To provide six (6) outdoor speakers, console, amplifier, CD player, mp3 player, cordless microphone and cables. 
Contractor further agrees to work with District staff on other sound equipment needs. 
 

8. To provide LED Colorblast Powercore programmable lights, truss, board, and light strings. Contractor further 
agrees to work with District staff on other lighting equipment needs. 
 

9. To provide an adequate number of skates, helmets, skate racks, bobby skate aids, skate sharpener, and all other 
related skate rental equipment. 
 

10. That all equipment will be in good condition, professionally inspected and maintained for safety by Contractor’s 
staff on a continual basis, and that the condition of the ice will be inspected and maintained daily and before each 
session. 

 
11. Hours of operation for the ice rink shall be Wednesdays through Fridays from 12:00 p.m. – 11:30 p.m., and 

Saturdays and Sundays from 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 p.m.  
 

12. Operations will consist of 60-minute skate sessions, each followed by a 30-minute break for resurfacing, from 
opening until 9:30 p.m. each night. There will be an open DJ skate party every night of operation from 9:30 p.m. – 
11:30 p.m. 
 

13. Other exhibits, attractions, concessionaires and performances may be in the Fairenheit 32 Degrees footprint. 
 

14. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair trademarks and logos. All display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Contractor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 
 

15. All revenue from the event and its related operations, including skating admission, skate rental, skate aid rental, 
merchandise and concessions shall be collected by and remain with the District. 
 

16. The District will allow Contractor to solicit sponsorship opportunities which are reviewed and approved by the 
District prior to finalizing any such agreement.  The District shall retain eighty percent (80%) of all sponsorship 
obtained by Contractor. 
 

17. To allow the District to sell sponsorship of ice rink clear dasher boards at District’s discretion. The District is 
entitled to one hundred percent (100%) of revenue generated from the sale of dasher boards initiated by the 
District.  



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 3 of 18 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 

18. To manage the customer waiver process to ensure that all insurance requirements are met. 
 

19. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, 
is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

20. Contractor’s staff will be provided a photo badge credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for 
obtaining his or her credential from the badging office during open hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office, 
the required paperwork must be submitted to District including Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge 
credentials must be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

21. To provide a mutually agreed upon number of staff to manage the skate and accessories rental process, and on-
ice supervision. 
 

22. To train District staff on Contractor’s Point of Sale (POS) system for skate and equipment rental. Contractor is also 
requested to refer to the District previously trained personnel who can be hired by the District for this purpose. 
 

23. To ensure ice rink operations are fully staffed by uniformed Contractor representatives: 
 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and remain open to the public from 12:00 p.m. to at least 11:30 p.m. Wednesdays through 
Fridays of the 2015 OC Fair, and 
 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and remain open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:30 p.m. Saturdays and Sundays 
of the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
24. To work with the District to maintain the Fairenheit 32 Degrees footprint at all times in a way that complies with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, and to conduct all ice skating activities in order to allow disabled people to 
participate. Contractor agrees to train and have available a minimum of one (1) manager during all operational 
hours that shall be able to assist with disabled individuals who desire to ice skate and require special devices. 

 
25. To warrant and represent that Contractor shall be solely responsible for all monies due its personnel for services 

rendered hereunder and will indemnify and hold harmless the District from any liability in connection therewith. 
 

26. To be solely responsible, at its own expense, for maintenance of all equipment furnished by Contractor. 
 

27. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department and/or any other 
applicable entities and ensure all elements are at all times operating within the parameters of these organizations. 
 

28. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications, and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during and following the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

29. Payment is inclusive of all necessary elements required to fulfill this Scope of Work, including, but not limited to, 
equipment, shipping, transportation, installation, removal, maintenance, licenses, insurance, training, labor, travel, 
hotel accommodation, and meals. 
 

30. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract, at any time, by giving Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such terminations shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide one (1) 100’x100’ space for installation of the Fairenheit 32 Degrees ice rink. 
 
2. To provide continuous water supply, drainage locations, and electricity for: 

a. The refrigeration system (3-Phase, 480-Volt, 600-Amps);  

b. Resurfacer chargers and ice melt troughs; 

c. Lighting; 

d. Sound; and  

e. Waiver equipment (200-Amps at 220-Volts). 
 
3. To provide security during installation, hours of operation, and while the ice rink is not in use. 
 
4. To provide a mutually agreed number of credentials and employee parking passes for Contractor staff who will be 

working on-site. 
 

5. To provide District staff to operate Contractor’s Point of Sale (POS) system for skate and equipment rentals. All 
revenue generated will be collected by and shall remain with the District. 
 

6. To provide marketing and public relations support to promote participation in the ice rink by OC Fair patrons, 
including collateral, advertising and website promotions. 
 

7. To pay Contractor twenty percent (20%) commission on any sponsorship agreements obtained by Contractor with 
prior review and approval by District. 
 

8. To provide Contractor employees with District-issued uniform shirts. 
 

9. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWO HUNDRED THIRTY ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
SIXTY SIX DOLLARS ($231,366.00) upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and according to the 
payment provisions as listed in Exhibit B. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: Distribution 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWO HUNDRED THIRTY ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY SIX 
DOLLARS ($231,366.00) upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoices 
according to the following schedule:  
 
Payment Schedule: 

1. Friday, July 3, 2015   
a. Payment shall be FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($50,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of rink 

platform, lighting and sound.   
b. Contractor shall submit invoice prior to Tuesday, June 30, 2015. 

  
2. Tuesday, July 14, 2015 

a. Payment shall be FIFTY SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($56,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of rink ice 
and chiller equipment installation. 

b. Contractor shall submit invoice on Monday, July 6, 2015. 
 

3. Saturday, August 1, 2015    
a. Payment shall be SIXTY TWO THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED EIGHTY THREE DOLLARS ($62,683.00) for 

the first half of operations.  
b. Contractor shall submit invoice on Monday, July 27, 2015. 

 
4. Sunday, August 16, 2015   

a. Payment shall be SIXTY TWO THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED EIGHTY THREE DOLLARS ($62,683.00) for 
the second half of operations. 

b. Contractor shall submit invoice on Monday, August 10, 2015. 
 
Invoice Instructions: 
Invoices shall be submitted upon completion of services rendered to the District and shall contain the following, as 
applicable to services rendered: 
 
1. Contractor’s invoice number; 
2. Invoice date; 
3. District Purchase Order (PO) Number 45536; 
4. Itemization of costs with corresponding order number, specifications and rates for each piece of equipment ordered, 

and dates of delivery/pick-up; and 
5. Name of personnel with listing and/or schedule of date(s) worked, including shift start and end times. 
 
Invoice may be sent via email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 6 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 7 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 8 of 18 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 9 of 18 
 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 10 of 18 

 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-140-15FT 
SEASIDE ICE, LLC DBA ICE-AMERICA  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – CONTRACTOR’S PRICE LIST 
 

The below Price List is an estimation of anticipated needs for the “Fairenheit 32 Degrees” project at the 2015 OC Fair.  
The District is only responsible for payment of actual services rendered. 

 
 

 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-144-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 

 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 

MOBILE MINI LLC 
 

2.  The agreement term is from             05/12/15 through          08/31/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      3,375.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   3,375.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Mobile Office Unit Rental for 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Mobile Unit Schedule 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List)  See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MOBILE MINI LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
John Vaughn, Sales Manager 

ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2660 North Locust Avenue, Rialto, CA 92377 
(800) 727-8648 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
Distribution 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 

 





SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide four (4) rental mobile office units (“Units”) to the 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center 
(“District”) for the 2015 OC Fair.   
 

B. Rental fees, delivery/pick-up fees, sales tax, and all other fees to be charged by Contractor are included the “Mobile Unit 
Schedule” provided herein as Exhibit F.  The District reserves the right to modify rental period.  Reduced and/or additional 
costs, if any, will be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the District. 

 
C. To deliver and pick up mobile units according to the dates and times outlined in the “Mobile Unit Schedule” provided herein 

as Exhibit F.   
 
D. Contractor shall provide Units that are in good condition and Units shall be delivered clean and ready to use. 
 
E. All deliveries and pick-ups shall take place between the hours 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. unless otherwise directed by the 

District. The delivery and pick-up dates are critical.  Each delivery/pick-up must be completed on the date and/or time 
specified, unless otherwise agreed upon by the District. 

 
F. Contractor shall bear all responsibility for theft, damage, injury, or death arising during the Contractor’s delivery, installation, 

removal, and/or return delivery of Units unless such theft, damage, injury, or death is the direct result of Districts’ negligence 
or willful misconduct. 

 
G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide Contractor access for delivery, installation, and removal of the Units. 
 

B. Except as otherwise stated herein, the District shall assume liability for all risk of loss or damage to the Units while Units are 
in the District’s sole possession and agrees to indemnify and hold Contractor harmless for any such loss. Further, in the 
event any of the Units are lost, stolen, damaged beyond repair, or wholly destroyed, the rental for said Unit(s) shall cease 
and terminate as of the date of the event, accident or occurrence causing such loss or destruction and the District shall bear 
the responsibility for the replacement cost of lost Unit 

 
C. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE DOLLARS 

($3,375.00) based upon the included the “Mobile Unit Schedule” provided herein as Exhibit F. 
 
 

 
- End Exhibit A – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 3 of 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 

BUDGET DETAIL: 

District Account #: Distribution 
                               

PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 

All invoices are to be itemized and include the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 44763.  Invoices may be sent via email 
to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 
 
  

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 6 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 7 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 8 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 9 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 11 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-144-15FT 
MOBILE MINI LLC 
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT F – MOBILE UNIT SCHEDULE 
 

All deliveries and pick-ups shall take place on the dates and between the hours stated with each piece of equipment.  The 
schedule below will be used to determine the “not to exceed” amount of the contract and is not a guarantee of services. 
   

 

 
 

-End Exhibit F- 

All Items

Rental 
Months

Rental 
Fee Per 
Month

Unit Tax
Total Cost for 
Rental Period 

(Incl. Tax)

Delivery 
Fee

Pick-Up 
Fee

Total 
Delivery/Pick-

Up Per Unit 
(Incl. Tax)

Total Unit Cost 
(All Fees)

RENEE 5220-80 1
8' x 20' Open Bay Office 
- with HVAC

Exhibit Promenade 05/12/15 08/21/15 3 $175.00 $14.00 $567.00 $150.00 $150.00 $324.00 $891.00 

JANIS B. 5220-47 1
8' x 20' Open Bay Office
- with HVAC
- Two window

Call Center (Near Admin) 05/22/15 08/25/15 3 $175.00 $14.00 $567.00 $150.00 $150.00 $324.00 $891.00 

TERESA M. 5220-64 1
8' x 20' Open Bay Office 
- with HVAC
- Two window

Evaluators (Near Admin) 05/22/15 08/25/15 3 $175.00 $14.00 $567.00 $150.00 $150.00 $324.00 $891.00 

TERESA M. 5220-64 1
8' x 20' Open Bay Office 
- with HVAC
- Two window

Courtesy Booth 
(Family Fair Way)

06/02/15 08/19/15 2 $175.00 $14.00 $378.00 $150.00 $150.00 $324.00 $702.00 

$3,375.00

Delivery /Pick‐Up

Grand Total (Inclusive of all Rental Fees, Delivery/Pick-Up, &Taxes):

Super Account
Item 

Quantity
Item Description Location Deliver Pick-Up

Rental



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-151-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             06/15/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $21,000.00 SPONSORSHIP ($5,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP; $16,000.00 SPACE FEE)  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Hila Gadot, Vice President, Marketing 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
350 Motor Parkway, Suite 404, Hauppauge, NY 11788 
(929) 224-0680

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To be a Sponsor of the Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink at the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 
2015.) 

2. To provide payment in the sum of TWENTY ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($21,000.00) ($5,000.00 CASH 
SPONSORSHIP, $16,000.00 PREMIUM SPACE), due upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must 
be received no later than July 16, 2015. 

a. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

5. To verify all Sponsor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo badge 
credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential from the 
badging office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office the required paperwork 
must be submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge credentials must 
be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Sponsor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-
day working credentials to Sponsor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon until at least 11:00 p.m. each Wednesday-Friday; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. until at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and 
Sunday of the 2015 OC Fair. 

9. That mobile tours and other exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook 
and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

  



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS (CONT.) 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Click Heat, Inc. with Sponsorship of the Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink at the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To provide Sponsor with the following signage at the Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink during the 2015 OC Fair 
(signage to be produced/installed by the District): 

a. Two (2) dasher boards in the rink area 

3. To provide sponsor with the following signage at Carnival of Products Booth (CP #607 & #707): 

a. One (1) 36” round, branded floor decal to display in front of booth(s) CP #607 & #707. Decal to be 
designed, produced, and installed by the District; logo to be provided by Sponsor 

b. One (1) 4’x2’ branded sign to display above booth(s) CP #607 and #707. Sign to be designed, produced, 
and installed by the District; logo to be provided by Sponsor 

4. To provide Sponsor one 10’x16’ space located in Carnival of Products (CP #607 & CP #707) 

a. To provide access to one (1) complimentary Wi-Fi connection or DSL line for staff to use at booth(s) CP 
#607 & #707. 

5. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the Shopping Guide; 

b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising; 

c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline); and 

d. On the 2015 OC Fair web site under the “Shopping” page.  

6. To provide recognition on Platinum Partner slide(s) shown on the Pacific Amphitheatre video screens prior to the 
start of each concert. 

7. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 

a. One hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets (for business development); and 

b. Twenty (20) 2015 Terrace Level Pacific Amphitheatre concert tickets (not to exceed four [4] tickets to 
any one select show and not exceed a maximum of [10] performances [pre-order deadlines & pending 
availability apply]). 

8. To provide a mutually-agreed number of credential badges and parking passes for working staff to access the 
property. 

9. To provide one (1) 2015 OC Fair F Lot Parking Hang Tag. 

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-151-15SP 
CLICK HEAT, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 9 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-152-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION DBA SLEEP NUMBER 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             06/15/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $75,000.00 SPONSORSHIP ($35,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP; $40,000.00 SPACE FEE) 

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER  Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION DBA SLEEP NUMBER 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Jim Levine, Senior Manager of US Events 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 

9800 58th Avenue North, Minneapolis, MN  55442 
(763) 551-7069 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 2 of 9 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To be a sponsor of the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015. 

2. To provide payment in the sum of SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($75,000) ($35,000.00 as 
CASH SPONSORSHIP; 40,000.00 as a SPACE FEE), due upon execution of this agreement. Payment in 
full must be received no later than July 10, 2015.   

Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

5. To verify all Sponsor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of 
this contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo 
badge credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential 
from the badging office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office the required 
paperwork must be submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge 
credentials must be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Sponsor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of 
single-day working credentials to Sponsor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the 
following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from 12:00 p.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. each Wednesday-
Friday; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and 
Sunday of the 2015 OC Fair. 

9. That mobile tours and other exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires 
Handbook and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or 
following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any 
other applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 3 of 9 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS (CONT.) 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Sponsor with onsite space as well as sponsorship of Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink. 

2. To include Sponsor name/logo in the following signage at Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink during the 2015 
OC Fair (signage to be produced/installed by the District): 

a. Four (4) Dasherboards at Ice Rink 

3. To include Sponsor name/logo in the following signage in Festival of Products Building during the 2015 OC 
Fair (signage to be produced/installed by the District): 

a. Ten (10) 32”x12” window decals at the entrance(s) 

b. Hanging banner on the outside entrance 

c. One (1) 36” round, branded floor decal to display in front of display space FP #401, #402, #501, 
#502 

d. One (1) 4’x2’ branded sign to display over display space FP #401, #402, #501, #502.  

4. To provide Sponsor with one (1) 20’x20’ display space in Festival of Product Building (FP #401, #402, 
#501, #502). 

5. To provide Sponsor access to one (1) complimentary Wi-Fi connection or DSL line for staff use at display 
space FP #401, #402, #501, #502. 

6. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, Daily Schedule, etc. 
(pending deadlines) 

b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising 

c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline) 

d. On the 2015 OC Fair web site with a link to the Sponsor web site 

7. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 

a. One hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets 

b. Two (2) Terrace Level tickets to each of the 23 concerts at the Pacific Amphitheatre (pre-order 
deadlines and availability apply). 

8. To provide a mutually-agreed number of credential badges and parking passes for working staff to access 
the property. 

9. To provide one (1) 2015 OC Fair F Lot Parking Hang Tag. 

 
 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 4 of 9 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 5 of 9 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 6 of 9 

 
U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 

Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 7 of 9 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 8 of 9 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-152-15SP 
SELECT COMFORT CORPORATION 
DBA SLEEP NUMBER 
PAGE 9 of 9 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-161-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1421791 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND 

2. The term of this         08/01/15 through 08/01/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $36,000.00 
       of this Agreement is: ($27,500.00 FOR THE FAB FOUR PLUS $8,500.00 FOR THE WINGS BAND)
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “The Fab Four” and “The Wings Band” on stage at the  Page  1   
  Pacific Amphitheatre on Saturday, August 1, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Josh Humiston, Agent                                                      32610 
ADDRESS  
APA, Inc. 
405 S. Beverly Drive, Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
(310) 888-4200 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 1, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 1, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-161-15PA 
THE FAB FOUR CORP F/S/O THE FAB FOUR AND THE WINGS BAND  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-162-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1421872 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 HEAVENSAKE, INC. F/S/O BERLIN 

2. The term of this         08/07/15 through 08/07/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $20,000.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Berlin” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre on Page  1   
  Friday, August 7, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Mitch Okmin, Agent                                                          3819       
ADDRESS  
The M.O.B. Agency 
6404 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 505, Los Angeles, CA 90048 
(323) 653-0427 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Friday, August 7, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Friday, August 7, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received by 
the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-162-15PA 
HEAVENSAKE, INC. f/s/o BERLIN  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-163-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1421934 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT 

2. The term of this         08/12/15 through 08/12/15 FED ID:   
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $23,000.00 Inclusive of Backline Buyout
       of this Agreement is: ($22,500.00 FLAT PLUS $500.00 Backline Buyout)
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Foghat” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Wednesday, August 12, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Howard Silverman, Agent                                                  3702   
ADDRESS  
Paradise Artists, Inc. 
108 E. Matilija Street, Ojai, CA  93023 
(805) 646-8433 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Wednesday, August 12, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Wednesday, August 12, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-163-15PA 
NOISY S.O.D. INC. F/S/O FOGHAT  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                  R_____ A_____ F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-167-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1425414 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 

2. The term of this         06/26/15 through 08/31/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $40,550.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To rent two (2) 8-stall stall shower trailer units and two (2) single-
stall ADA compliant shower trailer units to the 32nd District Agricultural Association 
(“District”) for the 2015 OC Fair. Additional Scope of Work continued on page 2. 

Pages 1 – 4 

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9  

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement)  Pages 14 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Shower Trailer Unit Specifications (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18  

   

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kristin Reynolds, President 
ADDRESS  
Business Address: 5552 La Ribera St., Livermore, CA 94550 
Mailing Address: 1452 N. Vasco Rd. #101, Livermore, CA 94551 
(877) 922-9980 x5

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 18 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To rent two (2) 8-stall stall shower trailer units and two (2) single-stall ADA compliant shower trailer units (“Units”) to 
the District from June 26, 2015 – August 19, 2015 for the 2015 OC Fair at the rates as specified in Contractor’s quote 
dated May 11, 2015. The District reserves the right to modify the rental period. Reduced and/or additional costs, if 
any, will be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the District. 

2. The first delivery of one (1) 8-stall Unit and one (1) single-stall ADA compliant Unit shall take place Friday, June 26, 
2015 between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. The second delivery of one (1) 8-stall Unit and one (1) single-
stall ADA compliant Unit shall take place Monday, June 29, 2015 between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

3. Pickup of all Units shall take place Wednesday, August 19, 2015 between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

4. The rental rate and “one-time fees” submitted in Contractor’s quote dated May 11, 2015 and listed in the table below 
are inclusive of all equipment, fuel, materials, tools, labor, taxes, and any other fees necessary for the delivery, 
installation, rental period, removal and pick-up of four (4) Units. 

Monthly Rental Fees (June 26, 2015 ‐ August 19, 2015) 

QTY  UOM  Description 

Monthly Rate 
Per Unit  

(30 Day Cycle)  Months
Per Unit Full 
Rental Period  Tax 

Both Units Full 
Rental Period 

2  EACH  ADA Shower Trailer   $            4,050.00  2  $      8,100.00   None   $    16,200.00 

2  EACH 
8 Stall Shower 
Trailer   $            6,450.00  2  $    12,900.00   None   $    25,800.00 

4  EACH  Per Trailer Discount   $             (400.00) 2  $       (800.00)  None   $    (3,200.00)

         Total Rental Fees (Full Rental Period):   $    38,800.00 

One Time Fees 

QTY  UOM  Description  Per Unit  Tax  Both Units 

4  EACH  Delivery   $           50.00  None   $          200.00 

4  EACH  Set up, Breakdown and Pick up   $         350.00  None   $       1,400.00 

2  EACH  Additional Insured Certificate   $           75.00  None   $          150.00 

            Total All  One‐Time Fees:   $       1,750.00 

         Grand Total (All Fees, Full Rental Period):   $    40,550.00 

5. For the purpose of this Agreement “months” are charged on a thirty (30) day billing cycle. Any rental days that do not 
fall within a “monthly” period shall be prorated. Any proration of less than one month, shall be at the daily and/or 
weekly rates stated on Contractor’s quote. 

6. Invoices shall be submitted at the end of each monthly billing cycle and the District shall submit payment within thirty 
(30) days of completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 

7. Unit floorplan and appearance shall be identical or nearly identical to photos and specifications presented in 
Contractors quote specified herein on attached Exhibit F unless otherwise agreed to by the District. 

8. The 8-stall Units shall include the following features:  
a. Quantity: Two (2); 
b. Dimensions (per Unit): 36’L (inclusive of trailer hitch) x 14’D (inclusive of stairs);   
c. Hot and cold running water; 
d. Two (2) propane-fueled hot water heaters with refillable tanks; 
e. Eight (8) individual showers with dressing room (Four [4] Women’s stalls, Four [4] Men’s stalls); 
f. Separate Women’s and Men’s entrance; 
g. Two (2) sinks with water saver faucets, vanity with cabinet and mirror; 
h. Paper towel dispensers and soap dispensers; 
i. Each compartment is climate controlled and properly vented; 
j. Fold up platform with steps and grab bars; 
k. HVAC; 
l. Interior/Exterior lighting system; and  
m. Units shall have no toilet compartment. 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 18 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 

9. Each ADA Unit shall include the following features:  
n. Quantity: Two (2); 
o. Dimensions (per Unit): 18’L (inclusive of trailer hitch) x 12’D (inclusive of ramp);   
p. Meets all California State and Federal ADA requirements; 
q. Hot and cold running water; 
r. Propane-fueled hot water heater with refillable tank; 
s. One (1) individual compartment with one (1) shower stall and one (1) sink; 
t. Paper towel dispenser, soap dispenser and mirror; 
u. Each compartment is climate controlled and properly vented; 
v. ADA accessible ramp with hand rails; 
w. HVAC; and 
x. Interior/Exterior lighting system. 
y. Units shall have no toilet compartment. 

10. Contractor will supply all initial toilet paper, trash liners and hand towels. 

11. Contractor will supply an inventory list of all Contractor’s equipment such as electrical cords, water hoses, etc. left on 
District property in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

12. Units shall have readily identifiable, standard stub-outs for plumbing hook-up.  District Staff will provide material and 
labor to connect gray water waste line from Units stub-out to sewer. 

13. Contractor has certified Units are compliant with all federal, state, municipal or local building codes, zoning 
ordinances, rules, laws or other types of regulations or use codes. 

14. District staff shall be responsible for connecting and disconnecting plumbing and electrical upon Unit installation and 
removal.  

15. Contractor shall be responsible for Unit placement, and installation and removal of all decking, ramps, stairs, etc. 

16. Contractor shall not charge the District for ordinary use and wear of rental unit. 

17. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Contractor with access to District property in order to deliver/install and pick-up/remove rental units. 

2. District is responsible for supplying utilities to Unit upon delivery. 

3. District is responsible for connecting and disconnecting electrical upon Unit installation and removal. 

4. District is responsible for connecting and disconnecting Unit to and from sewer upon Unit installation and removal. 

5. To supply Contractor with power for set-up and removal on ADA unit. 

6. District is responsible for monitoring and maintaining the inside of rental unit on a daily basis during the rental term. 

7. District is responsible for restocking janitorial supplies (paper products, trash liners, soap, etc.) and disposal of 
garbage/waste during the rental term. 

8. District is responsible for emptying holding tanks as needed as well as prior to Contractor pick up. 

9. Contractor shall charge the District for any missing or damaged equipment. 

10. District will not move or alter Units without prior written consent of Contractor. If movement is need after the initial 
setup, Contractor must be notified and if possible will move the units at an additional charge of $75 per hour per 
person portal to portal. 

11. District is responsible for cost of replacement and/or repairs to rental unit that are due to fire, theft, accidental 
damage, vandalism or riot while rental unit is in sole possession of the District. Contractor shall not charge the 
District for ordinary use and wear. 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
DISTRICT AGREES (CONT.): 

12. The Units shall be used only for the purpose for which they are intended. The District is not to put the Units to any 
use which is illegal, creates a nuisance, or causes the rate of insurance on the property to increase. Smoking and 
burning candle are not permitted in the Units.  

13. District will use the Units in a careful and proper manner, in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and 
regulations and any manufacturer's or supplier's instructions or manuals provided to Customer. All local and state 
laws must be followed and any disputes including law suits are subject to the laws and regulations as set by State 
and Local County. 

14. District shall not sublet the whole or any part of the Units, nor reassign this Agreement, or any interest therein, 
without the prior written consent of the Suppliers. A violation of this covenant shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement, in which case Customer shall forfeit the term and Suppliers will have the right to terminate and seek 
restitution.   

15.  To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FOURTY THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($40,550.00) 
upon completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice. 

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5220-63 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required at end of each monthly billing 
cycle and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
Invoice shall be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45623.  Invoice may be sent via email 
to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State 
Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
1. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or 
in any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, but only to the extent caused by or 
resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor and/or Contractor’s employees, contractors, or 
Agents.  
   
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor and 
Contractor’s respective agents, directors, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and 
costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance or nonperformance of 
this Agreement, but only to the extent caused by or resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
District and/or District’s employees, contractors, or Agents.  
 

5. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 

 
6. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform 
the requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such 
termination the State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the 
State shall be deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be 
paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 18 

 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of 
Section 12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. 
Contract Code §12205). 

 
9. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the 
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code 
Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which 
they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

10. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated 
by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
11. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
12. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly 
so provided.  

 
13. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
14. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means 
of a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set 
out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or 
materials by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the 
Attorney General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the 
Business and Professions Code. 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 18 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public 
purchase. Government Code Section 4550. 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a 

monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to 
receive reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 
body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by 
the assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
15. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract 
Code 7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply 

with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but 
not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
16. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
17. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
18. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then 
Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time 
period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual 
percentage of small business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise 
(DVBE) participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract 
(or within such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the 
awarding department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 18 

name and address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount 
each DVBE received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or 
entity that knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. 
& Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
19. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or 
product as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 18 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code 
§12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against 
employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements 
if the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, 
or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of 
less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may 
be taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured 
labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or 
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, 
abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further 
declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the 
California Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract 
Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor 
is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, 
arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity 
by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or 
employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a 
policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms 
to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the 
purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, 
rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good 

standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a 
corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist  



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated 
agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional 
insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except 
arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all 
types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All 
Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival 
Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type 
Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized 
Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other 
contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed 
vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 15 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the 
fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for 
herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. 
New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the 
event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, 
in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by 
contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is 
received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums 
for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



 
SA-167-15FT 
ROYAL RESTROOMS OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
PAGE 16 of 18 

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in 
excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under 
contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity 
obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or 
assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime 
Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, 
skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-172-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422343 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 PACIFIC SYMPHONY 

2. The term of this         07/16/15 through 07/16/15 FED ID:   
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $63,540.00  
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Pacific Symphony” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Thursday, July 16, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

PACIFIC SYMPHONY 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

John Forsyte, President                                                   
ADDRESS  
3631 S. Harbor Boulevard, Suite 100, Santa Ana, CA  92704 
(714) 755-5788 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, July 16, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, July 16, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-172-15PA 
PACIFIC SYMPHONY  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-173-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422362 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS 

2. The term of this         07/22/15 through 07/22/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $62,500.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Bleachers” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Wednesday, July 22, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Keith Shackleford, Agent                                                   3565       
ADDRESS  
Paradigm Talent Agency 
124 12th Avenue, South, Suite 410, Nashville, TN  37203 
(615) 251-4400 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Wednesday, July 22, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Wednesday, July 22, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-173-15PA 
BLEACHERS TOURING INC. F/S/O BLEACHERS  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-174-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422375 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY 

2. The term of this         08/08/15 through 08/08/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $75,000.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Fifth Harmony” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Saturday, August 8, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Craig Bruck, Agent                                                             49656   
ADDRESS  
International Creative Management, Inc. 
10250 Constellation Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA  90067 
(310) 550-4000 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 8, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 8, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-174-15PA 
5TH HARMONY TOURING, INC. F/S/O FIFTH HARMONY  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-175-15CS 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 

COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA  
CPS HR CONSULTING 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             06/17/15 through          09/30/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      4,900.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   4,900.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Chief Operations Officer Search Services 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List)  See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA  
CPS HR CONSULTING 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Vicki Quintero Brashear, Director of Products & Services 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 

241 Lathrop Way, Sacramento, CA  95815 
(916) 471-3111 

FUND TITLE 
 
Professional Services 

ITEM 
 
5100-06 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To work with the District’s Chief Executive Officer, Director of Human Resources, and any other District-identified key 
personnel to attract and recruit qualified candidates to apply for the Chief Operations Officer (“COO”) position posted 
by the District. 

2. To assist in the generation of the COO recruitment brochure, as well as recommend advertisement resources. 

3. To contact vetted, experienced industry leaders to identify outstanding potential COO candidates.  

4. To ensure the position is marketed to the appropriate audience so as to garner a diverse and qualified pool of 
candidates.  

5. To provide each potential candidate with a copy of the recruitment brochure and instructions for applying for the 
position per State-mandated procedures.  

6. To contact potential candidates by telephone, or other means deemed necessary, to explain the career opportunity, 
answer questions, and encourage them to submit a resume. Contractor understands and agrees this component may 
necessitate multiple conversations with the same person to pique his/her interest and to answer his/her questions 
sufficiently.  

7. To provide guidance and resources to candidates regarding the area’s cost of living, mean and median housing prices, 
higher education opportunities, K-12 education information, and other aspects of interest to those who are considering 
relocating to the area. 

8. To ensure the candidates with whom Contractor is in communication, have accurate and helpful information.  

9. To participate in the State exam process along with District’s representatives if requested and facilitate subsequent 
interviews as requested by the District. 

10. To provide all personnel, equipment, and materials necessary to perform the duties describe herein and in 
Contractor’s proposal dated April 16, 2015. 

11. Contractor’s quoted fee of FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($4,900) is inclusive of all services 
required in the fulfillment of the work describe herein, including but not limited to, labor, meetings, recruitment, travel, 
and meals.  

12. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($4,900.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of work herein required, with “completion” defined as, “upon the acceptance of an offer of 
employment to the selected candidate resulting from the recruitment process supported by the Contractor,” and receipt 
of proper invoice. 

 
 

 
- End Exhibit A - 

  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 

BUDGET DETAIL: 

District Account #: 5100-06 
                               

PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
“Completion” is defined as, “upon the acceptance of an offer of employment to the selected candidate resulting from the 
recruitment process supported by the Contractor.” 

All invoices are to be itemized and include the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45571.  Invoices may be sent via 
email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 
 
  

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-175-15CS 
COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL SERVICES DBA CPS HR CONSULTING 
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-176-15AS 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422512 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 

2. The term of this         07/17/15 through 07/17/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $26,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide the 32nd District Agricultural Association with all labor, equipment, Pages 1 – 4  

 and materials to produce “X-treme Freestyle Moto-X” Jumping Invitational on Friday, July 17, 2015.  Event  

 to begin at 8:00 p.m. and conclude by 9:30 p.m.  See Page 2 for additional details.  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 

   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9 

   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Action Sports Arena Rider (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 14 – 17 

 Exhibit F – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 18 – 20 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Brad Oxley 
ADDRESS  
P.O. Box 3334, San Clemente, CA 92672-3334 
(949) 492-9933 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To provide the 32nd District Agricultural Association with all labor, equipment and materials to produce the X-treme 
Freestyle Moto-X Jumping Invitational, Friday, July 17, 2015.  Event to begin at 8:00 p.m. and conclude by 9:30 p.m. 

 
2. To provide a minimum of six (6) freestyle moto-x riders and twelve (12) mini cycle riders.   

3. Provisions: 

a.   Each rider must complete and sign a participation waiver produced by an OC Fair & Event Center representative. 
Waivers must be delivered to the OC Fair & Event Center representative before any participation, including warm-
ups, take place.  

b.   To provide and pay all prize monies and trophies.  Total purse: EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($8,000.00). 

c. To provide a professional event announcer. The event announcer may promote non-Fair International Speedway 
events at an interval approved by the District’s Entertainment Director.  The event announcer will also promote 
specific OC Fair events as detailed by the District’s OC Fair Entertainment Director. 

d. To provide a singer to perform the “National Anthem.”  

e. To provide track and stadium preparation and tear-down, including cover-up, for a total cost of TWO THOUSAND 
FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00), which is included in this contract and in this contracted amount.  

f. To provide all required equipment to facilitate the event.  

g. To include a special freestyle moto-x ramp and mini cycle course. 

h. To promote contracted event via Contractor’s email, mailer, mobile (if available) and website prior to the 2015 OC 
Fair.  

i. To include all administrative costs.   

j. To provide participant and public liability insurance with additional insured language.  

k. To provide emergency service personnel as required by Contractor’s insurance provider.  
 

2. Programs: 
a. The Contractor will provide programs for races. 

b. The Contractor may provide programs free to the public without payment of any fees to the District, unless the 
advertising income and the value of tickets exchanged to finance the program exceeds the cost of producing and 
printing the programs.  The Contractor shall provide the District with evidence of the cost of production of the 
program and the value of the tickets exchanged. 

c. In the event the Contractor elects to sell programs, the District is to receive 30% of gross sales, after applicable 
sales taxes. 

 
3. Participants/Staff Parking: 

a. Participant parking to be located in the Action Sports Arena Pits.  Staff parking to be located in designated parking 
areas, as directed by District Management. 

 
4. Notice of Schedule of Events: 

a. To provide copy of all advertising and promotional material related to annual OC Fair racing. 
 

5. Race: 
a. No race shall begin without an ambulance on standby in the “Pit Area.”  Ambulance to be provided by Contractor. 

b. No alcoholic beverages to be consumed in the “Pit Area” or by anyone involved in the production of races prior to 
the scheduled race and during the racing program.  Contractor accepts responsibility for monitoring and enforcing 
this restriction. 

c. The “Pit Area” shall be restricted to participants, mechanics and officials until the race program is concluded. 

d. Repair and maintenance of all vehicles to be done in designated “Pit Area” only. 

e. To adhere to all State of California building, safety and fire codes and laws. 

 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
6. Sound: 

a. To be held responsible for the installation of the effective and approved mufflers, on all participant’s vehicles in 
motorized racing events, to reduce noise as to be in compliance with rules and regulations of this contract regarding 
noise as recommended in good faith by District Management and in order to comply with applicable law and/or court 
orders.  Contractor fully understands that the decibel levels are to be recorded of each motorcycle crossing the finish 
line with a checkered flag.  Specific decibel levels and distances shall be ninety-five (95) dba measured at one 
hundred feet (100’) from the source which may be modified by District Management, in good faith, at a later date if 
deemed necessary.  
 

b. Sound system will be set at a decibel level specified by District Management.  The use of the sound system in an 
outside area on the Fairgrounds shall not be permitted to continue after 10:00 p.m.  Violations of the decibel level or 
termination time of the use of the sound system will be subject to discontinued use of the sound system 

 
7. Concession Privilege: 

a. Contractor may sell at no commission, T-shirts, buttons and other souvenirs that relate to the races and events 
produced by Contractor, within confines of Action Sports Arena during the Speedway X-treme Moto-X event. 

 
8. Food/Alcoholic Beverage Concession: 

a. District retains all concession rights for the sale of food, beverage and alcohol in and about the Action Sports Arena, 
and reserves the right to assign concession privileges and to establish and collect charges payable in consideration 
of the assignment of concession privileges.  The existing concessionaire under the District shall have exclusive 
rights to cater said event. 

 
9. Exit Gates: 

a. Major exits shall not be obstructed or secured in the closed position. 
 

10. Additional Costs: 
a. All costs deemed necessary and mutually agreed upon and incurred by the District on behalf of the Contractor will 

be billed. 
 

11. Acceptance of Grounds: 
a. Contractor accepts the grounds as they exist. If the Contractor believes that repairs and/or adjustments need to be 

made to the grounds and/or venue, Contractor should contact District Event Operations to discuss, and not make 
repairs and/or adjustments. The District will not pay for repairs and/or adjustments that are made without notification. 
 

b. If the Contractor feels an area is unsafe, Contractor should report the area immediately to the District Event 
Operations staff. 

 
12. Injuries: 

a. All injuries must be reported immediately to the District’s Security personnel, giving the name of individual, type of 
injury, location of injury and description of how injury occurred. 

 
13. Decorative Materials: 

a. All decorating material must be removed by the Contractor at the conclusion of the event. 
 

b. The use of staples, nails, tacks or cellophane tape for the attachment of decorations to the Fairground facilities and 
equipment is strictly prohibited.  Masking tape and duct tape is permitted. 

 

c. Any repairs required as a result of the Contractors decorative materials will be the financial responsibility of the 
Contractor. 

 
14. Signs: 

a. That the OC Fair & Event Center has exclusive sponsorship rights to this event. It is the responsibility of the 
Contractor to inform non-Fair International Speedway sponsors that they may not participate in this event unless 
permission has been given by the OC Fair & Event Center Entertainment Director.  In the event that non-Fair 
International Speedway sponsors arrive at the Fair-owned event, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to inform 
non-Fair sponsors that they cannot set up. 

 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

15. Arrival of Items: 
a. All articles, exhibits, displays and materials shall be brought into District facilities only at such entrances and during 

such hours as designated by District.  Contractor assumes all responsibility for any goods or materials which may be 
placed in storage with Contractor before, during or after event. 

 
16. Distribution Outside Contracted Space: 

a. No distribution of any tickets, circulars, or advertising materials of any description will be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area, nor will the posting of any directional or advertising signs be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area. 

 
17. Equipment: 

a. Any and all requirements in the set-up, staging or conduct of said events will be provided at Contractor’s expense. 
 

18. Additional: 
a. The Contractor is fully responsible for the behavior and actions of all riders and participants, all rider and participant 

guests given access to the backstage/PIT area, all employees of International Speedway, and all sub-contractors 
provided by the Contractor to facilitate the event. No alcohol or any other controlled substance may be taken while 
any of the aforementioned are on the OC Fair & Event Center grounds. If any riders or participants violate this 
restriction, they will not be allowed to participate in the event and the rider portion of the event fee will be reduced by 
10% per incident. Employees of the International Speedway are expected to act in a professional manner at all 
times while on the OC Fair & Event Center grounds. If employees of the International Speedway abandon their 
responsibilities in advance of the event, during the event or following the event, it is the expectation that International 
Speedway will provide a fully qualified replacement or that the performance fee will be reduced by an appropriate 
amount. 
 

b. The International Speedway is responsible for the oversight of all rider, participant, guest and employee activity in 
the backstage/PIT area, including but not limited to behavior, parking and registration. 

 

c. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 

STATE AGREES: 
 

1. To provide the Action Sports Arena (Production Trailer, Action Sports Arena Ticket Office, Action Sports Arena 
Restrooms, Racetrack, and entire area fenced in and enclosed for seating of the public and Pit Area for participants). 
 

2. To provide event security, parking staff ushers, ticket sellers, ticket takers and event maintenance staff. 
 

3. To provide parking for the event participants. 
 

4. To provide Contractor use of skip loader and water truck for event set-up. 
 

5. To pay Contractor the total sum not to exceed TWENTY SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($26,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of work herein required. 

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 20 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-70   $2,500.00 

5770-70 $23,500.00 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Friday, July 17, 2015. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist and Contractor (terms may be used interchangeably) shall adhere to all starting times as indicated in this 
Agreement. 
 
PERFORMANCE LENGTH/TIMES 
Contractor shall adhere to performance lengths and times as indicated in this Agreement. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association (District) prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor shall be liable and 
subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall be one thousand ($1,000) 
dollars per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand ($10,000) dollars for any period thereafter. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no 
check cashing shall be authorized.  Contractors who are not residents of California will be subject to seven percent (7%) 
State Withholding at Source as determined by the Franchise Tax Board. 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the event.  However, this opening time is subject to 
change at the discretion of the District.  There shall be no exceptions to these stated times. These requirements are 
necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the District, State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange 
County Sheriff’s Department.  
 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor will adhere to the sound ordinance observed by the District.  Exact levels will be available upon request and 
random readings will be taken throughout sound check and performance.  
 
House sound will include stage monitors.  District agrees to use Contractor’s monitor system at Contractor’s request and 
at no additional cost to the District. 
 
Contractor shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the 
concert operate within the sound restrictions.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of 
sound level exceedance by either the District, a designated sound monitor or other designee, Contractor shall immediately 
adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur 
within concert performance after such notification, Contractor agrees to immediately terminate the performance. 
 
Maximum permissible sound levels, as measured flat (no weighting) on a peak reading calibrated SPL meter: 
 

1. FOH @ mixer location:  95 dB flat. 
2. Back of stage, 75 feet:  80 dB flat. 
3. Sides of stage, 75 feet: 75 dB flat. 
4. Surrounding housing areas:  55 dB. 

 
Number 4 is the limiting factor and deciding factor:  1-3 don’t matter if 4 is exceeded. 
 
All other measurements must conform to published sound level limitations for the area.  In any case, measurements made 
in surrounding neighborhoods have precedence, regardless of compliance within the venue. 
 
In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercising its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the sound 
restrictions. 
 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requires that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on its website.  Information should 
include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-link to OC Fair website 
(www.ocfair.com). 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 15 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requires that the Contractor consent to at least one (1) fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a 
local radio station, television station or print reporter in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Media outlet to be 
selected by the District.  Please contact the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the 
interview. 
 
MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Contractor’s representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance  
for news purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall  
be allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate use of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment. The District will provide industry standard sound 
and lighting equipment not to exceed allocated budget. Any costs exceeding the budget are the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District can provide but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment unless otherwise specifically stated in 
this Agreement. 
 
GROUND TRANSPORTATION 
The District will not provide or be responsible for ground transportation of any kind. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide hospitality only when contracted.  When contracted, the District will provide only lunch and dinner 
service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Contractor’s contract rider as a guide but will make the 
final decision as to the meal that will be served.  Accommodations will be made for vegetarian meals upon request.  
Additional food and beverage service (i.e. after show and/or tour bus food service) may be requested by the Contractor at 
the Contractor’s expense from the on-site caterer.  
 
The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products as a part of this Agreement.  
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CD’s is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Contractor is responsible for seller’s fee in addition to 
commission.  Sales will be audited at the end of the evening by a designated District staff member. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District will retain all sponsorship rights to the venue.  In the event that a Performer’s sponsor becomes a contracted 
part of the agreement, the District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Performer’s sponsorships.  Performer’s 
sponsorship signage may be used only with approval of the District representative.  The District’s representative and 
sponsorship manager shall be notified prior to the signing of this agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  
Performers shall not receive any revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Action Sports Arena is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate 
number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Action Sports Arena. 
 
INSURANCE 
Prior to the performance, Contractor shall provide a valid Certificate of Insurance indicating minimum coverage of one 
million ($1,000,000) dollars for General Liability and Automobile Liability, in a manner and form acceptable to the District.  
No indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor. 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 16 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligation are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Action Sports Arena or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any 
unforeseen fulfillment of this agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Contractor impossible.  If such 
an occurrence shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the 
District and the Contractor, then the Contractor shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one show 
only is presented and condition(s) beyond the control of the Contractor and District which would prevent the start of the 
show at scheduled time it is mutually agreed the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition 
and to present herein. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  
“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 
(6) Performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 
 
Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary, artistic works.   
 
Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation.  Contractor shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 17 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL & ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Contractor shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. 
 
All Performer names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot 
be made after the contract has been finalized.  Performers will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or 
advertising material.  All Performer guidelines must be outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artists’ management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  Due to space limitations, Artist logos will not be used in any 
promotional materials. 
 
COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide complimentary reserved seat tickets only when contracted. If available, the Performer may 
purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. Performer’s guests will be subject to a parking charge at the 
event.   
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand ($1,000) dollars 
per incident. 
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Contractor’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Performer or Performer’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement and bind Performer to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Performer is not signing and 
contracting in own name to perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to 
provide the services of the Performer shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of 
incorporation or principal place of business; c) followed by the designation “F.S.O.” (for services of) and immediately 
followed by the name of the performing Artists on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_______________________________________  __________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 18 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 19 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-176-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit F- 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-177-15AS 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422516 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 

2. The term of this         07/18/15 through 07/18/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $26,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide all labor, equipment and materials to produce the Annual Pages 1 – 4  

 Speedway Derby on Saturday, July 18, 2015.  See Page 2 for additional details.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 

   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9 

   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Action Sports Arena Rider (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 14 – 17 

 Exhibit F – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 18 – 20 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Brad Oxley 
ADDRESS  
P.O. Box 3334, San Clemente, CA 92672-3334 
(949) 492-9933 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To provide the 32nd District Agricultural Association with all labor, equipment and materials to produce the Annual 
Speedway Fair Derby in the Action Sports Arena on Saturday, July 18, 2015. Event shall begin at 8:00 p.m. and 
conclude by 10:00 p.m. 

2. Provisions: 
a. Each rider must complete and sign a participation waiver provided by an OC Fair & Event Center representative.  

Waivers must be delivered to the OC Fair & Event Center prior to any race participation, including warm-ups.  

b. To provide and pay all prize monies and trophies.  Total purse: EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($8,000.00). 

c. To provide a professional event announcer. The event announcer may promote non-Fair International Speedway 
events at an interval approved by the District’s Entertainment Director.  The event announcer will also promote 
specific OC Fair events as detailed by the District’s OC Fair Entertainment Director. 

d. To provide a singer to perform the “National Anthem.”  

e. To provide track and stadium preparation, including arena cover-up for a total cost of THREE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($3,000.00), which is included in this contract and in this contracted amount. 

f. To provide all required equipment to facilitate the event.  

g. To promote contracted event via Contractor’s email, mailer, mobile (if available) and website prior to the 2015 OC 
Fair.  

h. To include all administrative costs.   

i. To provide participant and public liability insurance with additional insured language.  

j. To provide emergency service personnel as required by Contractor’s insurance provider.  
 

2. Programs: 
a. The Contractor will provide programs for races. 

b. The Contractor may provide programs free to the public without payment of any fees to the District, unless the 
advertising income and the value of tickets exchanged to finance the program exceeds the cost of producing and 
printing the programs.  The Contractor shall provide the District with evidence of the cost of production of the 
program and the value of the tickets exchanged. 

c. In the event the Contractor elects to sell programs, the District is to receive 30% of gross sales, after applicable 
sales taxes. 

 
3. Participants/Staff Parking: 

a. Participant parking to be located in the Action Sports Arena Pits.  Staff parking to be located in designated parking 
areas, as directed by District Management. 

 
4. Notice of Schedule of Events: 

a. To provide copy of all advertising and promotional material related to annual OC Fair racing. 
 

5. Race: 
a. No race shall begin without an ambulance on standby in the “Pit Area.”  Ambulance to be provided by contractor. 

b. No alcoholic beverages to be consumed in the “Pit Area” or by anyone involved in the production of races prior to 
the scheduled race and during the racing program.  Contractor accepts responsibility for monitoring and enforcing 
this restriction. 

c. The “Pit Area” shall be restricted to participants, mechanics and officials until the race program is concluded. 

d. Repair and maintenance of all vehicles to be done in designated “Pit Area” only. 

e. To adhere to all State of California building, safety and fire codes and laws. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
6. Sound: 

a. To be held responsible for the installation of the effective and approved mufflers, on all participant’s vehicles in 
motorized racing events, to reduce noise as to be in compliance with rules and regulations of this contract regarding 
noise as recommended in good faith by District Management and in order to comply with applicable law and/or court 
orders.  Contractor fully understands that the decibel levels are to be recorded of each motorcycle crossing the finish 
line with a checkered flag.  Specific decibel levels and distances shall be ninety-five (95) dba measured at one 
hundred feet (100’) from the source which may be modified by District Management, in good faith, at a later date if 
deemed necessary.  
 

b. Sound system will be set at a decibel level specified by District Management.  The use of the sound system in an 
outside area on the Fairgrounds shall not be permitted to continue after 10:00 p.m.  Violations of the decibel level or 
termination time of the use of the sound system will be subject to discontinued use of the sound system 

 
7. Concession Privilege: 

a. Contractor may sell at no commission, T-shirts, buttons and other souvenirs that relate to the races and events 
produced by Contractor, within confines of Action Sports Arena during the Speedway Fair Derby. 

 
8. Food/Alcoholic Beverage Concession: 

a. District retains all concession rights for the sale of food, beverage and alcohol in and about the Action Sports Arena, 
and reserves the right to assign concession privileges and to establish and collect charges payable in consideration 
of the assignment of concession privileges.  The existing concessionaire under the District shall have exclusive 
rights to cater said event. 

 
9. Exit Gates: 

a. Major exits shall not be obstructed or secured in the closed position. 
 

10. Additional Costs: 
a. All costs deemed necessary and mutually agreed upon and incurred by the District on behalf of the Contractor will 

be billed. 
 

11. Acceptance of Grounds: 
a. Contractor accepts the grounds as they exist. If the Contractor believes that repairs and/or adjustments need to be 

made to the grounds and/or venue, Contractor should contact District Event Operations to discuss, and not make 
repairs and/or adjustments. The District will not pay for repairs and/or adjustments that are made without notification. 
 

b. If the Contractor feels an area is unsafe, Contractor should report the area immediately to the District Event 
Operations staff. 

 
12. Injuries: 

a. All injuries must be reported immediately to the District’s Security personnel, giving the name of individual, type of 
injury, location of injury and description of how injury occurred. 

 
13. Decorative Materials: 

a. All decorating material must be removed by the Contractor at the conclusion of the event. 
 

b. The use of staples, nails, tacks or cellophane tape for the attachment of decorations to the Fairground facilities and 
equipment is strictly prohibited.  Masking tape and duct tape is permitted. 

 

c. Any repairs required as a result of the Contractors decorative materials will be the financial responsibility of the 
Contractor. 

 
14. Signs: 

a. That the OC Fair & Event Center has exclusive sponsorship rights to this event. It is the responsibility of the 
Contractor to inform non-Fair International Speedway sponsors that they may not participate in this event unless 
permission has been given by the OC Fair & Event Center Entertainment Director.  In the event that non-Fair 
International Speedway Sponsors arrive at the Fair-owned event, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to inform 
non-Fair sponsors that they cannot set up. 

 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

15. Arrival of Items: 
a. All articles, exhibits, displays and materials shall be brought into District facilities only at such entrances and during 

such hours as designated by District.  Contractor assumes all responsibility for any goods or materials which may be 
placed in storage with Contractor before, during or after event. 

 
16. Distribution Outside Contracted Space: 

a. No distribution of any tickets, circulars, or advertising materials of any description will be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area, nor will the posting of any directional or advertising signs be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area. 

 
17. Equipment: 

a. Any and all requirements in the set-up, staging or conduct of said events will be provided at Contractor’s expense. 
 

18. Additional: 
a. The Contractor is fully responsible for the behavior and actions of all riders and participants, all rider and participant 

guests given access to the backstage/PIT area, all employees of International Speedway, and all sub-contractors 
provided by the Contractor to facilitate the event. No alcohol or any other controlled substance may be taken while 
any of the aforementioned are on the OC Fair & Event Center grounds. If any riders or participants violate this 
restriction, they will not be allowed to participate in the event and the rider portion of the event fee will be reduced by 
10% per incident. Employees of the International Speedway are expected to act in a professional manner at all 
times while on the OC Fair & Event Center grounds. If employees of the International Speedway abandon their 
responsibilities in advance of the event, during the event or following the event, it is the expectation that International 
Speedway will provide a fully qualified replacement or that the performance fee will be reduced by an appropriate 
amount. 
 

b. The International Speedway is responsible for the oversight of all rider, participant, guest and employee activity in 
the backstage/PIT area, including but not limited to behavior, parking and registration. 

 

c. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 

STATE AGREES: 
 

1. To provide the Action Sports Arena (Production Trailer, Action Sports Arena Ticket Office, Action Sports Arena 
Restrooms, Racetrack, and entire area fenced in and enclosed for seating of the public and Pit Area for participants). 
 

2. To provide event security, parking staff ushers, ticket sellers, ticket takers and event maintenance staff. 
 

3. To provide parking for the event participants. 
 

4. To pay Contractor the total sum not to exceed TWENTY SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($26,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of work herein required. 

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 20 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-70   $3,000.00 

5770-70 $23,000.00 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, July 18, 2015. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist and Contractor (terms may be used interchangeably) shall adhere to all starting times as indicated in this 
Agreement. 
 
PERFORMANCE LENGTH/TIMES 
Contractor shall adhere to performance lengths and times as indicated in this Agreement. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association (District) prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor shall be liable and 
subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall be one thousand ($1,000) 
dollars per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand ($10,000) dollars for any period thereafter. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no 
check cashing shall be authorized.  Contractors who are not residents of California will be subject to seven percent (7%) 
State Withholding at Source as determined by the Franchise Tax Board. 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the event.  However, this opening time is subject to 
change at the discretion of the District.  There shall be no exceptions to these stated times. These requirements are 
necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the District, State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange 
County Sheriff’s Department.  
 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor will adhere to the sound ordinance observed by the District.  Exact levels will be available upon request and 
random readings will be taken throughout sound check and performance.  
 
House sound will include stage monitors.  District agrees to use Contractor’s monitor system at Contractor’s request and 
at no additional cost to the District. 
 
Contractor shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the 
concert operate within the sound restrictions.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of 
sound level exceedance by either the District, a designated sound monitor or other designee, Contractor shall immediately 
adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur 
within concert performance after such notification, Contractor agrees to immediately terminate the performance. 
 
Maximum permissible sound levels, as measured flat (no weighting) on a peak reading calibrated SPL meter: 
 

1. FOH @ mixer location:  95 dB flat. 
2. Back of stage, 75 feet:  80 dB flat. 
3. Sides of stage, 75 feet: 75 dB flat. 
4. Surrounding housing areas:  55 dB. 

 
Number 4 is the limiting factor and deciding factor:  1-3 don’t matter if 4 is exceeded. 
 
All other measurements must conform to published sound level limitations for the area.  In any case, measurements made 
in surrounding neighborhoods have precedence, regardless of compliance within the venue. 
 
In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercising its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the sound 
restrictions. 
 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requires that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on its website.  Information should 
include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-link to OC Fair website 
(www.ocfair.com). 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 15 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requires that the Contractor consent to at least one (1) fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a 
local radio station, television station or print reporter in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Media outlet to be 
selected by the District.  Please contact the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the 
interview. 
 
MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Contractor’s representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance  
for news purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall  
be allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate use of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment. The District will provide industry standard sound 
and lighting equipment not to exceed allocated budget. Any costs exceeding the budget are the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District can provide but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment unless otherwise specifically stated in 
this Agreement. 
 
GROUND TRANSPORTATION 
The District will not provide or be responsible for ground transportation of any kind. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide hospitality only when contracted.  When contracted, the District will provide only lunch and dinner 
service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Contractor’s contract rider as a guide but will make the 
final decision as to the meal that will be served.  Accommodations will be made for vegetarian meals upon request.  
Additional food and beverage service (i.e. after show and/or tour bus food service) may be requested by the Contractor at 
the Contractor’s expense from the on-site caterer.  
 
The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products as a part of this Agreement.  
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CD’s is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Contractor is responsible for seller’s fee in addition to 
commission.  Sales will be audited at the end of the evening by a designated District staff member. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District will retain all sponsorship rights to the venue.  In the event that a Performer’s sponsor becomes a contracted 
part of the agreement, the District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Performer’s sponsorships.  Performer’s 
sponsorship signage may be used only with approval of the District representative.  The District’s representative and 
sponsorship manager shall be notified prior to the signing of this agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  
Performers shall not receive any revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Action Sports Arena is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate 
number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Action Sports Arena. 
 
INSURANCE 
Prior to the performance, Contractor shall provide a valid Certificate of Insurance indicating minimum coverage of one 
million ($1,000,000) dollars for General Liability and Automobile Liability, in a manner and form acceptable to the District.  
No indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor. 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 16 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligation are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Action Sports Arena or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any 
unforeseen fulfillment of this agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Contractor impossible.  If such 
an occurrence shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the 
District and the Contractor, then the Contractor shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one show 
only is presented and condition(s) beyond the control of the Contractor and District which would prevent the start of the 
show at scheduled time it is mutually agreed the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition 
and to present herein. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  
“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 
(6) Performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 
 
Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary, artistic works.   
 
Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation.  Contractor shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 17 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL & ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Contractor shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. 
 
All Performer names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot 
be made after the contract has been finalized.  Performers will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or 
advertising material.  All Performer guidelines must be outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artists’ management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  Due to space limitations, Artist logos will not be used in any 
promotional materials. 
 
COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide complimentary reserved seat tickets only when contracted. If available, the Performer may 
purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. Performer’s guests will be subject to a parking charge at the 
event.   
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand ($1,000) dollars 
per incident. 
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Contractor’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Performer or Performer’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement and bind Performer to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Performer is not signing and 
contracting in own name to perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to 
provide the services of the Performer shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of 
incorporation or principal place of business; c) followed by the designation “F.S.O.” (for services of) and immediately 
followed by the name of the performing Artists on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_______________________________________  __________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 18 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 19 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-177-15AS 
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, INC. 
PAGE 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit F- 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-178-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422577 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE 

2. The term of this         08/12/15 through 08/12/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $102,500.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Deep Purple” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Wednesday, August 12, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Nick Meinema, Agent or Guy Richard, Agent                                          
ADDRESS  
The Agency Group Ltd. 
1880 Century Park East, Suite 711, Los Angeles, CA  90067 
(310) 385-2800 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Wednesday, August 12, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Wednesday, August 12, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-178-15PA 
THAMES LIVE, LTD. F/S/O DEEP PURPLE  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-179-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422618 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX 

2. The term of this         07/22/15 through 07/22/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $62,500.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Charli XCX” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Wednesday, July 22, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Keith Shackleford, Agent                                                   3565       
ADDRESS  
Paradigm Talent Agency 
124 12th Avenue, South, Suite 410, Nashville, TN  37203 
(615) 251-4400 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Wednesday, July 22, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Wednesday, July 22, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-179-15PA 
CHARLI XCX INC. F/S/O CHARLI XCX  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-180-15PA 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/30/15 through          07/30/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $    2,500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $    2,500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Pacific Amphitheatre Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
c/o Stormy Vehnekamp, Agent 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 
Leave Home Booking 
5406 West 11000 North, Suite #103-314, Highland, UT  84003 
(801) 216-4660

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5790-72 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 









SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 4 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, July 30, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, July 30, 2015 if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 5 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 6 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 7 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 8 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 9 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 10 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 11 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 12 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 13 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.”  
Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 14 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 15 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 

INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 

To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 

CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 

MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 16 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 17 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 



SA-180-15PA 
COMPOUND ONE F/S/O THE INTERRUPTERS  

PAGE 18 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-181-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422740 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT 

2. The term of this         08/14/15 through 08/14/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $15,000.00 
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “The English Beat” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Friday, August 14, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o David Strunk, Agent, or Nick Meinema, Agent                44577       
ADDRESS  
The Agency Group Ltd. 
1880 Century Park East, Suite 711, Los Angeles, CA  90067 
(310) 385-2800 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Friday, August 14, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Friday, August 14, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-181-15PA 
THE ENGLISH BEAT LLC F/S/O THE ENGLISH BEAT  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-182-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1422862 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS 

2. The term of this         08/15/15 through 08/15/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $25,500.00 Inclusive of Backline Buyout
       of this Agreement is: ($25,000.00 FLAT PLUS $500.00 Backline Buyout)
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “The Wailers” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Saturday, August 15, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Ryan Owens, Agent                                                          13109   
ADDRESS  
Monterey International, Inc. 
200 West Superior, Suite 202, Chicago, IL  60654 
(312) 640-7500 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 15, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 15, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-182-15PA 
BACK BAY MANAGEMENT LLC F/S/O THE WAILERS  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-183-15PA 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/08/15 through          08/08/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $    1,500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $    1,500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Pacific Amphitheatre Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

c/o Jbeau Lewis, Agent                       Talent Agency ID: 56599 
ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 
United Talent Agency 
9336 Civic Center Drive, Beverly Hills, CA  90210 
(310) 786-4802

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5790-72 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 









SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 4 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 8, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 8, 2015 if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 5 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 6 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 7 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 8 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 9 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 10 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 11 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 12 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 13 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.”  
Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 14 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 15 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 

INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 

To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 

CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 

MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 16 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 17 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 



SA-183-15PA 
INTERNATIONAL MUSIC GROUP, LLC F/S/O NATALIE LA ROSE  
PAGE 18 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 

 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
SA-184-15HB 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SEEDLESS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/19/15 through          07/19/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      4,000.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   4,000.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Hangar House Rider (Insurance Requirements) (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SEEDLESS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Casey Sullivan 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 

1230 W Balboa Unit B, Newport Beach, CA 92661 
(949) 220-4914, electriccanvs@gmail.com 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5770-70 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 2 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
 

1. To provide the performance group, “Seedless,” on Sunday, July 19, 2015. 
 

2. To perform one (1) 90 to 100-minute set on The Hangar stage beginning at 8:30 p.m. 
 

3. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike. The use of profane or obscene language or gestures 
will not be tolerated. Any display of such language or gestures by any contracted performer, their crew, or their 
representatives or associates while in the view or earshot of any Fair guest will be a finable offense subject to 
ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance 
opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 

4. The Hangar at the OC Fair has market exclusivity for this performance. No performance or advertising is allowed 
for events within a 50-mile radius (Southern Los Angeles, Inland Empire and Orange County) for 50 days prior to 
the performance date. 
 

5. To refer to the performance venue as “The Hangar at the OC Fair” in all advertising and/or communications 
including, but not limited to, email, websites, social media outlets and print schedules. 
 

6. To provide biographical, press release information, and current performer imagery as necessary. 
 

7. To make band members available for media and/or promotional opportunities. 
 

8. To promote this contracted event via Contractor email and mobile (if available) database(s), and website. 
 

9. All requests for press inclusion (written, photography, videography) at this performance event must be submitted to 
and approved by the OC Fair Communications Department. 
 

10. Advance performance with venue Production Manager at HangarProduction@ocfair.com. 
 

11. The Hangar stage will be used by community performers during the day, in advance of this contracted 
performance. The stage will be clear and the venue vacated a minimum of three (3) hours in advance of the 
performance for load in and sound check. It is imperative that Contractor arrive on time and prepared to facilitate 
load in and sound check during this short window of time. 
 

12. Doors for the event open approximately 60 minutes prior to the performance start time. 
 

13. This contract is predicated on the fact that Contractor will be using in-house production as is. Any additional 
production expense will be the financial responsibility of the Contractor. This includes, but is not limited to, 
backline, transportation of any kind, additional risers, musicians or extra talent, hotel accommodations, 
pyrotechnics, video, etc. 
 

14. Artist may bring in supplementary production elements, such as monitor systems, front-of-house console, lighting 
console, etc., at their own expense.  
 

15. Any labor to strike or restore changes or additions to the existing production in The Hangar at the OC Fair will be 
at the sole expense of the Contractor. 
 

16. If seat kills are required as a result of additional production elements brought into The Hangar by Contractor, 
Contractor will be charged the face value of tickets representing lost seats. 
 

17. The venue Production Manager will review any Contractor rider and attempt to make accommodations when 
possible; however, the venue rider for The Hangar is incorporated into this contract and supersedes Contractor 
rider. 
 

18. The following merchandise options apply to this performance: 
a. Option 1: Venue sells, with a 70/30 split on all non-copyrighted material and 90/10 on copyrighted material. 
b. Option 2: Contractor sells: 75/25 split on all non-copyrighted material and 90/10 on copyrighted material. 
c. Regardless of merchandise option, Contractor must provide notification of merchandise sales a minimum of 

three (3) days prior to the contracted date. Without this notification, there is no guarantee that merchandise 
tables, chairs, etc., will be provided. 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 3 of 16 

  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 

19. Video recording of performances will only be allowed using simple hand-held devices such as cell phones. 
Tripods, high-resolution video cameras, multiple-camera recording positions, and other devices, for the purposes 
of this contract known as “professional video recording,” will only be allowed with the permission of the OC Fair 
Entertainment Department.  An origination fee of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00) is required in order 
to receive permission to enlist professional video recording services or video equipment.  

 

20. In cases where professional services are permitted, placement of any/all equipment is at the discretion of the 
venue Production Manager and may not, under any circumstances, interfere with the experience of customers at 
the event. 

 

21. Contractor agrees to grant OC Fair the right to use recordings in whole or in part for promotional purposes. 
Contractor may order a live video feed recording of the performance captured by the District for a fee of TWO 
HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00), requested through the OC Fair Entertainment Department. Such 
recordings will be provided to Contractor on a hard drive once payment is received (check or money order only).   

 

22. Contractor may enlist professional video recording services with the permission of the OC Fair Entertainment 
Department (see Paragraph 19 above) and order a live video recording of the performance captured by the District 
(see Paragraph 21 above) for a combined, reduced fee of THREE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($350.00).  With 
exception to the fee structure, all other requirements in Paragraphs 19 through 21 above shall apply. 
 

23. It is understood that this event includes the contracted performer only, and that there is no direct audience 
participation. If audience participation is to be included, the proper insurance must be arranged through the 
District’s Business Services Department. 

 

24. The District does not provide any alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products to Contractor as part of this 
agreement. The Hangar at the OC Fair is a tobacco-free venue and its use therein is strictly forbidden. 

 

25. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract, at any time, by giving Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such terminations shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide The Hangar stage, lights and sound. Backline is not included. 
 

2. To provide box office, ticket takers, security, usher staff and concessions. 
 

3. To provide a 10’ X 20’ dressing room trailer in the backstage area. 
 

4. To provide a deli-style meal, bottled water and soft drinks for eight (8) band members, crew and management. 
 

5. To provide complimentary parking and admission for band members, crew and management only.  
 

6. To provide twenty (20) complimentary performance tickets upon request. Complimentary tickets shall be requested 
through venue Production Manager at HangarProduction@ocfair.com. Guest tickets include free admission to the 
OC Fair and the performance event, but do not include parking. 
 

7. To provide marketing, advertising and promotion as part of the 2015 OC Fair collateral material. 
 

8. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of work herein required. Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 4 of 16 

  

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5770-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon completion of services herein required and delivered via the US Mail. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 5 of 16 

  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GTC 610 

 
1. APPROVAL:  

This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 6 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 7 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 8 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 9 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 10 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 11 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 12 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 13 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist, and Contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Artist”) shall adhere to all starting and ending times as 
indicated in this Agreement. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:30 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the CEO of the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association (hereinafter referred to as “District”) prior to the performance. If this curfew is not adhered 
to, Artist shall be liable and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall 
be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) for any period thereafter. 
 
PAYMENT 
Artist shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no check 
cashing shall be authorized.  Artists who are non-residents of California will be subject to State withholding by the 
Franchise Tax Board at a rate of seven percent (7%) unless a Form 590 has been completed and returned to the District 
at least ten (10) days prior to the performance date. 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no exceptions 
to this stated time. This requirement is necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the State of 
California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff’s Department.  
 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Sound pressure levels must not exceed: 
1. 85 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at directly backstage.  Random readings will be taken 

throughout sound check and performance.  
2. 95 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at FOH. 
3. 55 dB, LEQ average in surrounding neighborhoods (distance is typically 1,000 feet or more from the Hangar FOH 

location). 
4. If any one (1) of the above conditions is exceeded, regardless of compliance in the remaining areas, Artist will be 

asked to reduce levels to comply. 
 
House sound will include stage monitors.  District Agrees to use Artist’s monitor system, at Artist’s request, at no additional 
cost to the District. 
 
Artist shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the concert 
operate within the sound restrictions.  Artist agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of sound level 
exceedance by either the District, or a designated sound monitor or other designee, Artist shall immediately adjust the 
sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur within 
concert performance after such notification, Artist agrees to immediately terminate the concert. 
 
In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercise of its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the concert performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the 
sound restrictions. 
 
MEDIA - WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Artist place specific information about the contracted event at the OC Fair on its website.  
Information should include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performance(s) at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair 
website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the Artist consent to at least one (1), fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a local 
radio station in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Radio station to be selected by the District.  Please contact 
the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the interview. 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 14 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of Artist’s 
representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for news purposes only. The District 
actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall be allowed to 
photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use 
of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Artist agrees to use District-provided industry standard sound and lighting equipment. Any other expense for gear and 
associated labor to install, strike or cause any other expense is at the sole cost of the Artist. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District may provide, but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated 
in this Agreement. 

 
HOSPITALITY 
The District may provide meal service, when contracted, chosen from a District-determined menu.  District will use Artist’s 
contract rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served. Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request. Additional food and beverage service (i.e., tour bus food service) may be requested by the 
Artist at the Artist’s expense from the on-site caterer. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco 
products as a part of this Agreement. 
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CDs is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Please contact the Production Office for merchandising contact.   
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Artist’s sponsorships.  Artists who have a sponsor will receive one-
half (1/2) the number of signs, posters, impressions compared to the number of the District’s sponsor.  Artist’s sponsorship 
signage may be used only with District Management’s approval.  The District’s CEO and sponsorship manager shall be 
notified prior to the signing of this Agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  Artists shall not receive any 
revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Hangar is eligible for two (2) sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate number 
and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Hangar. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligations are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Hangar or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any unforeseen 
fulfillment of this Agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Artist impossible.  If such an occurrence 
shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the District and the 
Artist, then the Artist shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one (1) show only is presented and 
condition(s) beyond the control of the Artist and District which would prevent the start of the show at the scheduled time it 
is mutually agreed that the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition and to present 
herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 15 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Artist warrants that it maintains Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees as required by law. Prior to date of 
performance, all performers shall submit to the District proof of valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of 
their employees, unless performer has certified on Payee Data Record – STD. 204, that he/she is a sole proprietor and 
has no employees.   It is mutually agreed that the District is relying upon the Artist’s specific representation and warranty 
that it has the proper Workers Compensation Insurance and that the Artist will indemnify and hold harmless the District in 
the event it did not have the insurance. 
 
Artist further certifies that by signing this Agreement, Artist will comply with such provisions under Section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before 
commencing the performance of this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  

“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 

(6) performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 

Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.   

Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed by (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation. Artist shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 



SA-184-15HB 
SEEDLESS 
PAGE 16 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Artist shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. All Artist names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums 
must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot be made after the contract has been finalized. 
 
Artist will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or advertising material.  All Artist guidelines must be 
outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artist’s management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  
 
ARTIST COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide the Artist with a reasonable number of complimentary concert tickets. The amount will be 
negotiated at the point of booking and any tickets past that amount must be purchased by the Artist.   Should the show 
carry a co-headliner, support or an opening act, that number will be reduced proportionately.  Artist’s guests will be subject 
to a parking charge at the event.  If available, the Artist may purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. 
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair. 
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artist’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Artist or Artist’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind Artist to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to 
perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to provide the services of the 
Artist shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation “F/S/O” (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_______________________________________  __________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer or   Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-185-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 

 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/16/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     2,875.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   2,875.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Master of Ceremonies/Commentator at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Timothy Coy, Chief Executive Officer 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
3270 Evening Star Lane, Corona, CA 92881 
(714) 267-2343 

 FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
Distribution 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
 

 





SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK  

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To serve as Master of Ceremonies/Color Commentator during select events, from July 16 – August 16, for the 2015 OC Fair. 

B. To provide services for an hourly rate of one hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) and according to the following schedule: 

1. 07/23 – Special Olympics Welcome Ceremony 2.0 Hours @ $125/hour = $250.00 
2. 08/05 – Extreme Rodeo    3.0 Hours @ $125/hour = $375.00 
3. 08/06 – Broncs & Bulls     3.0 Hours @ $125/hour = $375.00 
4. 08/09 – Fiesta del Charro     3.0 Hours @ $125/hour = $375.00 
5. 08/16 – Toyota Camry Giveaway   2.0 Hours @ $125/hour = $250.00 
 

C. To provide services for a possible additional ten (10) hours for an hourly rate of one hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00). 
Schedule to be determined as needed by the District. 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

E. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide all necessary credentials, parking passes and photo identification. 

B. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE DOLLARS 
($2,875.00) upon satisfactory completion of services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the US Mail 
upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 

 

 

- End Exhibit A - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:   
 
5410-15 - $500.00 
5100-70 - $2,375.00 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and sent via the US Mail. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 
 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-185-15FT 
PACIFIC EVENTS ENTERTAINMENT  
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
SA-186-15HB 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
COMMON SENSE 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/19/15 through          07/19/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      1,500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   1,500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Hangar House Rider (Insurance Requirements) (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
COMMON SENSE 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Billy Sherman 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 

29582 Ana Maria Lane, Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 
(949) 637-8116 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5770-70 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 2 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
 

1. To provide the performance group, “Common Sense,” on Sunday, July 19, 2015 in support of headliner 
“Seedless.” 
 

2. To perform one (1) 50-minute set on The Hangar stage beginning at 7:30 p.m. 
 

3. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike. The use of profane or obscene language or gestures 
will not be tolerated. Any display of such language or gestures by any contracted performer, their crew, or their 
representatives or associates while in the view or earshot of any Fair guest will be a finable offense subject to 
ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance 
opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 

4. The Hangar at the OC Fair has market exclusivity for this performance. No performance or advertising is allowed 
for events within a 50-mile radius (Southern Los Angeles, Inland Empire and Orange County) for 50 days prior to 
the performance date. 
 

5. To refer to the performance venue as “The Hangar at the OC Fair” in all advertising and/or communications 
including, but not limited to, email, websites, social media outlets and print schedules. 
 

6. To provide biographical, press release information, and current performer imagery as necessary. 
 

7. To make band members available for media and/or promotional opportunities. 
 

8. To promote this contracted event via Contractor email and mobile (if available) database(s), and website. 
 

9. All requests for press inclusion (written, photography, videography) at this performance event must be submitted to 
and approved by the OC Fair Communications Department. 
 

10. Advance performance with venue Production Manager at HangarProduction@ocfair.com. 
 

11. The Hangar stage will be used by community performers during the day, in advance of this contracted 
performance. The stage will be clear and the venue vacated a minimum of three (3) hours in advance of the 
performance for load in and sound check. It is imperative that Contractor arrive on time and prepared to facilitate 
load in and sound check during this short window of time. 
 

12. Doors for the event open approximately 60 minutes prior to the performance start time. 
 

13. This contract is predicated on the fact that Contractor will be using in-house production as is. Any additional 
production expense will be the financial responsibility of the Contractor. This includes, but is not limited to, 
backline, transportation of any kind, additional risers, musicians or extra talent, hotel accommodations, 
pyrotechnics, video, etc. 
 

14. Artist may bring in supplementary production elements, such as monitor systems, front-of-house console, lighting 
console, etc., at their own expense.  
 

15. Any labor to strike or restore changes or additions to the existing production in The Hangar at the OC Fair will be 
at the sole expense of the Contractor. 
 

16. If seat kills are required as a result of additional production elements brought into The Hangar by Contractor, 
Contractor will be charged the face value of tickets representing lost seats. 
 

17. The venue Production Manager will review any Contractor rider and attempt to make accommodations when 
possible; however, the venue rider for The Hangar is incorporated into this contract and supersedes Contractor 
rider. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 3 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 

 

18. Video recording of performances will only be allowed using simple hand-held devices such as cell phones. 
Tripods, high-resolution video cameras, multiple-camera recording positions, and other devices, for the purposes 
of this contract known as “professional video recording,” will only be allowed with the permission of the OC Fair 
Entertainment Department.  An origination fee of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00) is required in order 
to receive permission to enlist professional video recording services or video equipment.  

 

19. In cases where professional services are permitted, placement of any/all equipment is at the discretion of the 
venue Production Manager and may not, under any circumstances, interfere with the experience of customers at 
the event. 

 

20. Contractor agrees to grant OC Fair the right to use recordings in whole or in part for promotional purposes. 
Contractor may order a live video feed recording of the performance captured by the District for a fee of TWO 
HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($250.00), requested through the OC Fair Entertainment Department. Such 
recordings will be provided to Contractor on a hard drive once payment is received (check or money order only).   

 

21. Contractor may enlist professional video recording services with the permission of the OC Fair Entertainment 
Department (see Paragraph 19 above) and order a live video recording of the performance captured by the District 
(see Paragraph 21 above) for a combined, reduced fee of THREE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($350.00).  With 
exception to the fee structure, all other requirements in Paragraphs 19 through 21 above shall apply. 
 

22. It is understood that this event includes the contracted performer only, and that there is no direct audience 
participation. If audience participation is to be included, the proper insurance must be arranged through the 
District’s Business Services Department. 

 

23. The District does not provide any alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products to Contractor as part of this 
agreement. The Hangar at the OC Fair is a tobacco-free venue and its use therein is strictly forbidden. 

 

24. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract, at any time, by giving Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such terminations shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide The Hangar stage, lights and sound. Backline is not included. 
 

2. To provide box office, ticket takers, security, usher staff and concessions. 
 

3. To provide a 10’ X 20’ dressing room trailer in the backstage area. 
 

4. To provide a deli-style meal, bottled water and soft drinks for eight (8) band members, crew and management. 
 

5. To provide complimentary parking and admission for band members, crew and management only.  
 

6. To provide twenty (20) complimentary performance tickets upon request. Complimentary tickets shall be requested 
through venue Production Manager at HangarProduction@ocfair.com. Guest tickets include free admission to the 
OC Fair and the performance event, but do not include parking. 
 

7. To provide marketing, advertising and promotion as part of the 2015 OC Fair collateral material. 
 

8. Contractor will receive 100% of all merchandise sales associated with the performance detailed in this contract.  
Contractor must provide notification of merchandise sales a minimum of three (3) days prior to the contracted date. 
Without this notification, there is no guarantee that merchandise tables, chairs, etc., will be provided. 
 

9. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of work herein required. Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 

 
-End Exhibit A- 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 4 of 16 

  

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5770-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon completion of services herein required and delivered via the US Mail. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 5 of 16 

  

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 6 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 7 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 8 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 9 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 10 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 11 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 12 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 13 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist, and Contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Artist”) shall adhere to all starting and ending times as 
indicated in this Agreement. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:30 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the CEO of the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association (hereinafter referred to as “District”) prior to the performance. If this curfew is not adhered 
to, Artist shall be liable and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall 
be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) for any period thereafter. 
 
PAYMENT 
Artist shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no check 
cashing shall be authorized.  Artists who are non-residents of California will be subject to State withholding by the 
Franchise Tax Board at a rate of seven percent (7%) unless a Form 590 has been completed and returned to the District 
at least ten (10) days prior to the performance date. 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no exceptions 
to this stated time. This requirement is necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the State of 
California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff’s Department.  
 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Sound pressure levels must not exceed: 
1. 85 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at directly backstage.  Random readings will be taken 

throughout sound check and performance.  
2. 95 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at FOH. 
3. 55 dB, LEQ average in surrounding neighborhoods (distance is typically 1,000 feet or more from the Hangar FOH 

location). 
4. If any one (1) of the above conditions is exceeded, regardless of compliance in the remaining areas, Artist will be 

asked to reduce levels to comply. 
 
House sound will include stage monitors.  District Agrees to use Artist’s monitor system, at Artist’s request, at no additional 
cost to the District. 
 
Artist shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the concert 
operate within the sound restrictions.  Artist agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of sound level 
exceedance by either the District, or a designated sound monitor or other designee, Artist shall immediately adjust the 
sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur within 
concert performance after such notification, Artist agrees to immediately terminate the concert. 
 
In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercise of its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the concert performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the 
sound restrictions. 
 
MEDIA - WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Artist place specific information about the contracted event at the OC Fair on its website.  
Information should include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performance(s) at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair 
website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the Artist consent to at least one (1), fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a local 
radio station in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Radio station to be selected by the District.  Please contact 
the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the interview. 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 14 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of Artist’s 
representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for news purposes only. The District 
actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall be allowed to 
photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use 
of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Artist agrees to use District-provided industry standard sound and lighting equipment. Any other expense for gear and 
associated labor to install, strike or cause any other expense is at the sole cost of the Artist. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District may provide, but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated 
in this Agreement. 

 
HOSPITALITY 
The District may provide meal service, when contracted, chosen from a District-determined menu.  District will use Artist’s 
contract rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served. Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request. Additional food and beverage service (i.e., tour bus food service) may be requested by the 
Artist at the Artist’s expense from the on-site caterer. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco 
products as a part of this Agreement. 
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CDs is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Please contact the Production Office for merchandising contact.   
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Artist’s sponsorships.  Artists who have a sponsor will receive one-
half (1/2) the number of signs, posters, impressions compared to the number of the District’s sponsor.  Artist’s sponsorship 
signage may be used only with District Management’s approval.  The District’s CEO and sponsorship manager shall be 
notified prior to the signing of this Agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  Artists shall not receive any 
revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Hangar is eligible for two (2) sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate number 
and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Hangar. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligations are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Hangar or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any unforeseen 
fulfillment of this Agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Artist impossible.  If such an occurrence 
shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the District and the 
Artist, then the Artist shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one (1) show only is presented and 
condition(s) beyond the control of the Artist and District which would prevent the start of the show at the scheduled time it 
is mutually agreed that the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition and to present 
herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 15 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Artist warrants that it maintains Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees as required by law. Prior to date of 
performance, all performers shall submit to the District proof of valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of 
their employees, unless performer has certified on Payee Data Record – STD. 204, that he/she is a sole proprietor and 
has no employees.   It is mutually agreed that the District is relying upon the Artist’s specific representation and warranty 
that it has the proper Workers Compensation Insurance and that the Artist will indemnify and hold harmless the District in 
the event it did not have the insurance. 
 
Artist further certifies that by signing this Agreement, Artist will comply with such provisions under Section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before 
commencing the performance of this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  

“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 

(6) performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 

Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.   

Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed by (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation. Artist shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 



SA-186-15HB 
COMMON SENSE 
PAGE 16 of 16 

  

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Artist shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. All Artist names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums 
must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot be made after the contract has been finalized. 
 
Artist will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or advertising material.  All Artist guidelines must be 
outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artist’s management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  
 
ARTIST COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide the Artist with a reasonable number of complimentary concert tickets. The amount will be 
negotiated at the point of booking and any tickets past that amount must be purchased by the Artist.   Should the show 
carry a co-headliner, support or an opening act, that number will be reduced proportionately.  Artist’s guests will be subject 
to a parking charge at the event.  If available, the Artist may purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. 
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair. 
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artist’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Artist or Artist’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind Artist to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to 
perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to provide the services of the 
Artist shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation “F/S/O” (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_______________________________________  __________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer or   Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-187-15PA 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/08/15 through          08/08/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $    500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $    500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Pacific Amphitheatre Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
c/o Craig Bruck, Agent                 Talent Agency ID: 49656           

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 
International Creative Management, Inc. 
10250 Constellation Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA  90067 
(310) 550-4000

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5790-72 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 









SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 4 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 8, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 8, 2015 if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 5 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 6 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 7 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 8 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 9 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 10 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 11 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 12 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 13 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.”  
Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 14 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 15 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 

INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 

To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 

CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 

MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 16 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 17 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 



SA-187-15PA 
IMABEAST LLC F/S/O BEA MILLER  

PAGE 18 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 

 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-188-15PA 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/23/15 through          07/23/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $    500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $    500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Pacific Amphitheatre Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Ann Marie Raffaelli 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 

1414 N. Orange Street, La Habra, CA 90631 
562-217-7307 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5790-72 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 2 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide the entertainment group, “Annie McQueen,” on Thursday, July 23, for the 2015 OC Fair. 

B. The performance will precede “The Band Perry.” 

C. The performance will take place on the Pacific Amphitheatre stage and shall not exceed thirty (30) minutes in length. 

D. To refer to the venue as “The Pacific Amphitheatre at the OC Fair” in all advertising and/or communications, 
including, but not limited to, email, website and any/all social media outlets. 

E. To provide biographical and news release information as necessary. 

F. To make band members available for media and promotional opportunities. 

G. To promote contracted event via Contractor email and mobile (if available) database(s), and website. 

H. Merchandise deal: Venue sells, 70/30 split on all non-copyrighted material and 90/10 on copyrighted material. 

1. Artist must give notification of merchandise sales at least three (3) business days in advance of the 
performance date.  

I. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or obscene language or gestures 
will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their representatives while in the 
view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per 
incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair. 

J. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide The Pacific Amphitheatre stage, lights and sound (backline not included). 

B. To provide complimentary parking and admission for band members, crew and management.  

C. To provide promotion and advertising as part of the 2015 OC Fair collateral material. 

D. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) upon satisfactory completion of 
work herein required on July 23, 2015. 

 
 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 3 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, July 23, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, July 23, 2015 if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 4 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 5 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 6 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 7 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 8 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 9 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 10 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 11 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 12 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.”  
Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 13 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 14 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 

INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 

To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 

CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 

MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 15 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 16 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 



SA-188-15PA 
ANN MARIE RAFFAELLI F/S/O ANNIE MCQUEEN  

PAGE 17 of 17 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                             R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-189-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

  

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

2. The term of this 07/17/15 through 08/16/15  

 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $50,000.00 IN-KIND TRADE
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide OC Fair Express shuttle services for the  Pages 1 – 2 
 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   
 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   3 
   
 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 6  
   
 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages  7 – 10 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

  
 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 11 – 13 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Virginia Abadessa, Director of CAMM 
ADDRESS  
550 South Main Street, Orange, CA 92863-1584 
(714) 560-6282 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 2 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide OC Fair Express shuttle services from nine (9) established locations in Orange County (Huntington Beach, 
Santa Ana, Anaheim, Anaheim/ARTIC, San Juan Capistrano, Fullerton, Laguna Hills, Orange, and Irvine) to the 2015 
OC Fair. 

B. Shuttle service shall take place on Fridays from 12:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m., and on Saturdays and Sundays from        
10:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m. 

C. To include a joint, mutually approved District & Contractor marketing campaign on all marketing efforts. 

D. To secure advance District approval on all marketing/advertising materials using the District’s name and logo. 

E. To distribute one (1) approved discount coupon to each person who rides the OC Fair Express shuttle to the OC Fair. 

F. To provide the District with daily numbers of the amount of riders and the location from which they originated. 

G. To coordinate in advance all shuttle operations on District property with the District. 

H. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not 
a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

I. To cover coupon printing costs for quantities above 70,000. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To honor the established discount coupon pricing that has been pre-approved by the District.  Approved pricing is as 
follows:  $3.00 general admission for all OC Fair Express riders, valid Friday through Sunday. 

B. To provide daily ticket redemption numbers to Contractor for coupons used during the OC Fair. 

C. To provide Contractor’s shuttle with a reasonable on-site shuttle stop near the Yellow Gate and circulation within the 
parking lots. 

D. To provide information on the OC Fair website regarding the OC Fair Express service. 

E. To include a joint, mutually approved District and Contractor marketing campaign. 

F. To provide 60,000 – 70,000 discount coupons to OCTA for distribution to riders of the OC Fair Express.  Coupons to be 
numbered and provided in sequential order.  Quantities above 70,000 shall be paid for by Contractor.  

 
 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 3 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: Not Applicable 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
There are no payment provisions, as this is a trade value contract. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 4 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GTC 610 
  

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this 
Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any 
way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by 
reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal 
accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any 
state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even 
though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be 
obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State 
with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & 
Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its 
employees or agents.) 
 
The 32nd District Agricultural Association agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Coast Community College District, its Colleges, its Board of Trustees, officers, directors and employees 
from any and all claims, suits, actions, damages, judgments and costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted 
from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon 
demand. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 5 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 

9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  
The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or 
sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  
With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, 
or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the 
California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set 
forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor 
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 

the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions 
Code. 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of 
goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such  
assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the 
bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor 
but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 
portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address 
of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from 
the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the 
actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 
 

20. LOSS LEADER:   
If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: 
It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” 
as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 

 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 7 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination 
of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor 
Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 8 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of 
child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of 
perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of 
Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting 
agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s 
compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor 
has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency 
to provide goods or services. 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 9 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or 
any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position 
in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment 
of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the 
ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 10 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order 
not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to 
air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 11 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  

 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 

 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
B. CFSA Special Events Program: 

The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 

OR  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
D. Self-Insurance: 

The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such 
insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter 
under the terms of this contract. 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride  
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 
 



 
SA-189-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PAGE 13 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-190-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1423320 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 

2. The term of this         07/16/15 through 08/16/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $12,500.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide entertainment at the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for Pages 1 – 2  
 additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 3 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 7 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 8 – 11 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 12 – 14 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Frank Thurston, Magician 
ADDRESS  
11806 Willow Park Way, Bakersfield, CA 93311 
(877) 624-4238 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To provide entertainment as, “The Magic of Frank Thurston,” from July 17 – August 16 at the 2015 OC Fair.  

2. Performances shall be approximately 35 – 40 minutes in length and take place three (3) times per day.  Specific 
locations and show times shall be determined by the District and communicated to Contractor. No performances 
shall take place on Mondays or Tuesdays. 

3. To provide all necessary props and equipment needed for performances. 
 

4. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

5. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall 
relieve the District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide stage, lighting and other production items required to facilitate performances, as determined necessary by 
the District.  

2. To provide one (1) non-private dressing facility. 

3. To provide one (1) single hotel room to be purchased at the District’s sole discretion beginning Thursday, July 16, 
2015 through Sunday, August 16, 2015. 

4. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWELVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($12,500.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of work herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 3 of 14 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 

To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWELVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($12,500.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of services herein required.  Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 

 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 6 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 7 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 8 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 9 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 11 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-190-15GE 
THE MAGIC OF FRANK THURSTON 
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-191-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/17/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     3,625.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   3,625.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – DJ Services at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Luke J. Sensebe, Owner/President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
21731 Lanar, Mission Viejo, CA 92692 
(949) 643-5343  luke.s@mypremiereevents.com 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-70 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
 

 





SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK  

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide DJ services for the Fairenheit 32 Degrees “DJ Skate Party,” from July 17 – August 16, daily, except Mondays 
and Tuesdays, from 9:30 p.m. – 11:30 p.m. for the 2015 OC Fair 

B. To provide services for a daily rate of one hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) on Wednesdays, Thursdays and Sundays, 
and two hundred dollars ($200.00) on Fridays and Saturdays. 

C. To provide all pre-recorded music and equipment necessary for services detailed herein. 

D. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike. The use of profane or obscene language or gestures will not be 
tolerated. Any display of such language or gestures by any contracted performer, their crew, or their representatives or 
associates while in the view or earshot of any Fair guest will be a finable offense subject to ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

F. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide unsupervised storage location for equipment, as necessary. 

B. To provide all necessary credentials, parking passes and photo identification. 

C. To provide performance areas. 

D. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed THREE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($3,625.00) 
upon satisfactory completion of services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the US Mail upon 
satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 

 

 

- End Exhibit A - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 3 of 13 

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:   
 
5100-70 - $3,625.00 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and sent via the US Mail. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 
 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-191-15FT 
PREMIERE EVENTS GROUP 
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-192-15GE 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1423652 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT 

2. The term of this         07/17/15 through 08/16/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $20,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide entertainment at the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for Pages 1 – 2  
 additional details.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  3 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 7 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 8 – 11 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 12 – 14 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Natchatia C. Le Day, Owner 
ADDRESS  
P.O. Box 6506, San Pedro, CA  90734 
(310) 704-2787 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

1. To provide the a capella singing group, “Side Effect,” from July 17– August 16 at the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To provide performers who shall stroll the grounds of the OC Fair daily, except Mondays and Tuesdays.  Select 
performances shall take place on Meadows Stage or Plaza Stage, as determined by the District.   

3. Performances shall last approximately 20 to 25 minutes and shall take place five (5) times per day.   

4. No tip jars are allowed. 

5. To cover all expenses and provide all props. 

6. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

7. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

STATE AGREES: 

1. To provide labor to assist in the movement of props and equipment, as determined necessary by the District. 

2. To provide unsupervised storage location for equipment, as necessary. 

3. To provide non-exclusive dressing/break area. 

4. To provide all necessary credentials, parking passes and photo identification for performers and management, as 
necessary. 

5. To provide performance areas. 

6. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of 
work herein required according to the following payment schedule: 

a. Contractor will be paid for first eleven (11) days worked at the daily rate of eight hundred sixty-nine dollars and 
fifty-six cents ($869.56) per day, for a total of NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE DOLLARS AND 
SIXTEEN CENTS ($9,565.16) on Friday, July 31, 2015. 

 
b. Contractor will be paid for last twelve (12) days worked at the daily rate of eight hundred sixty-nine dollars and fifty-

seven cents ($869.57) per day, for a total of TEN THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY FOUR DOLLARS AND 
EIGHTY FOUR CENTS ($10,434.84) on Sunday, August 16, 2015. 

  

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 3 of 14 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 

District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 

Payment will be made upon satisfactory completion of services herein required according to the following schedule:  
 

1. Contractor will be paid for first eleven (11) days worked at the daily rate of eight hundred sixty-nine dollars and 
fifty-six cents ($869.56) per day, for a total of NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE DOLLARS AND 
SIXTEEN CENTS ($9,565.16) on Friday, July 31, 2015. 

 
2. Contractor will be paid for last twelve (12) days worked at the daily rate of eight hundred sixty-nine dollars and fifty-

seven cents ($869.57) per day, for a total of TEN THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY FOUR DOLLARS AND 
EIGHTY FOUR CENTS ($10,434.84) on Sunday, August 16, 2015. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 6 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 7 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 8 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 9 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 11 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-192-15GE 
DAY-TON MANAGEMENT F/S/O SIDE EFFECT  
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-193-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MARC SELIGSON 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/25/15 through          07/26/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $       600.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $     600.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MARC SELIGSON 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Marc Seligson 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 

28341 Clareton Drive, Laguna Niguel, CA 92677 
(954) 579-3578; selly@me.com 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5780-70 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 2 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide entertainment as, “Selly,” in Baja Blues from July 25 – July 26 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

B. The performances begin at 1:00 p.m. and end at 4:00 p.m., and shall consist of three (3) sets of approximately 45 
minutes on and 15 minutes off. 

C. To provide biographical and news release information as necessary. 

D. To promote contracted event via Contractor email and mobile (if available) database(s), and website.  

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

F. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or obscene language or gestures will 
not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their representatives while in the view 
or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per incident and 
may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair. 

G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide complimentary parking and OC Fair admission for performer. 

B. To provide promotion and advertising as part of the 2015 OC Fair collateral material. 

C. To waive venue merchandise split provided Contractor sells said merchandise. 

D. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed SIX HUNDRED DOLLARS ($600.00) upon satisfactory completion of 
services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the US mail. 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 3 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon completion of services herein required and delivered via the US mail. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 4 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 5 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 6 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 7 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 8 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 9 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 10 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-193-15FT 
MARC SELIGSON 
PAGE 11 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-194-15AS 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1423460 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 

2. The term of this         07/20/15 through 07/27/15 FED ID 
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $40,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present the equestrian event, “Cavallo Equestrian Arts – Ma’Ceo,” Pages 1 – 3  
 in the Action Sports Arena from July 22 – July 26 at the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   4 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Action Sports Arena Rider (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 19 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Olissio Zoppe, Representative 
ADDRESS  
7820 Irvin Road, Myakka City, FL 34251 
(949) 999-9600 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To present the equestrian event, “Cavallo Equestrian Arts – Ma’Ceo,” in the Action Sports Arena from Wednesday, 
July 22, through Sunday, July 26, for the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To provide all labor, equipment and materials necessary to produce a turn-key event. 

3. To set up the event beginning Monday, July 20, to be completed by Wednesday, July 22, at 12:00 p.m.  Removal of 
the event will take place following the last performance on Sunday, July 26, to be completed by Monday, July 27, at 
4:00 p.m. 

4. Performance dates/times are as follows: 

a. Wednesday, July 22 – 5:30 p.m. and 8:30 p.m. 
b. Thursday, July 23 – 5:30 p.m. and 8:30 p.m. 
c. Friday, July 24 – 5:30 p.m. and 8:30 p.m. 
d. Saturday, July 25 – 2:30 p.m., 5:30 p.m. and 8:30 p.m. 
e. Sunday, July 26 – 1:30 p.m., 4:30 p.m. and 7:30 p.m. 

5. To provide a performance/circus tent suitable for the event. 

6. To provide a total of nine (9) equestrian and aerial performers. 

7. To provide ten (10) horses of various and exotic breeds.  

8. To display horses in their stalls, pending space adjacent to public areas. 

9. To provide costumes and music. 

10. To provide sound system and state of the art lighting. 

11. To supply advertising materials as needed by the District. 

12. To provide a professional event announcer. The event announcer may be asked to promote non-Fair Cavallo 
Equestrian Arts – Ma’Ceo events at an interval approved by the District’s Entertainment Director.   

13. To promote contracted event via Contractor’s email, mailer, mobile (if available) and website prior to the 2015 OC Fair.  

14. Payment is inclusive of all administrative costs.   

15. To provide participant and public liability insurance according to the State of California requirements contained herein 
as “Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements.”  

16. Participants/Staff Parking: 

a. Participant’s parking to be located in the Action Sports Arena Pits.  Staff parking to be located in designated 
parking areas, as directed by District Management. 

17. Performances: 

b. Performances will start on time.  

c. No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed in the “Pit Area” or by anyone involved in the production of the event 
prior to the scheduled performances and during the program.  Contractor accepts the responsibility for monitoring 
and enforcing this restriction. 

d. The “Pit Area” to be restricted to participants, performers and staff until the performance program is concluded. 

e. To adhere to all State of California building, safety and fire codes and laws. 

18. Food/Alcoholic Beverage Concession: 

a. District retains all concession rights for the sale of food, beverage and alcohol in and about the Action Sports 
Arena, and reserves the right to assign concession privileges and to establish and collect charges payable in 
consideration of the assignment of concession privileges.  The existing concessionaire under the District shall 
have exclusive rights to cater said event. 

19. Exit Gates: 

a. Major exits shall not be obstructed or secured in the closed position. 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 

20. Additional Costs: 

a. All costs deemed necessary and mutually agreed upon and incurred by the District on behalf of the Contractor will 
be billed. 

21. Acceptance of Grounds: 

a. Contractor accepts the grounds as they exist.  Should Contractor view an area and feel it is unsafe, Contractor 
should report the area immediately to the District. 

22. Injuries: 

a. All injuries must be reported immediately to the District’s Security / Front of House personnel, giving the name of 
individual, type of injury, location of injury and description of how injury occurred. 

23. Decorative Materials: 

a. All decorating material must be removed by the Contractor at the conclusion of the event. 

b. The use of staples, nails, tacks or cellophane tape for the attachment of decorations to the Fairground facilities 
and equipment is prohibited.   

24. Signs: 

a. The OC Fair & Event Center has exclusive sponsorship rights to this event. It is the responsibility of the Contractor 
to inform non-Fair sponsors that they may not participate in this event unless permission has been given by the 
OC Fair & Event Center Entertainment Director.  In the event that non-Fair Sponsors arrive at the Fair-owned 
event, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to inform non-Fair sponsors that they cannot set up. 

25. Arrival of Items: 

a. All articles, exhibits, displays and materials shall be brought into District facilities only at such entrances and during 
such hours as designated by District.  Contractor assumes all responsibility for any goods or materials which may 
be placed in storage with Contractor before, during or after event. 

26. Distribution Outside Contracted Space: 

a. No distribution of any tickets, circulars, or advertising materials of any description will be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area, nor will the posting of any directional or advertising signs be permitted outside of the 
Contractor’s contracted area. 

27. Equipment: 

a. Any and all requirements in the setup, staging or conduct of said events will be provided at Contractor’s expense. 

28. Additional provisions: 

a. The Contractor is fully responsible for the behavior and actions of all Cavallo performers and staff, and participant 
guests given access to the backstage/PIT area, all employees of Contractor and all sub-contractors provided by 
the Contractor to facilitate the event. No alcohol or any other controlled substance may be taken while any of the 
aforementioned are on the OC Fair & Event Center grounds. If any performer violates this restriction, they will not 
be allowed to participate in the event and the performer portion of the event fee will be reduced by 10% per 
incident. Employees of the Contractor are expected to act in a professional manner at all times while on the OC 
Fair & Event Center grounds. If employees of the Contractor abandon their responsibilities in advance of the 
event, during the event or following the event, it is the expectation that Contractor will provide a fully qualified 
replacement or that the performance fee will be reduced by an appropriate amount. 

b. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, 
is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

c. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract, at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve 
the District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 20 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide the Action Sports Arena (Production Trailer, Ticket Office, Restrooms, Racetrack, entire area fenced in and 
enclosed for seating of the public and Pit Area for participants). Space provided is 150’ X 250’ of cleared and level 
surface for performance/circus tent. 

2. To provide sufficient dirt for a performance ring sized forty-two feet (42’) in diameter and eight inches (8”) deep. 

3. To provide parking for three (3) living trailers with electric and sewage hookups for two (2) days prior to the event, 
during the event, and one (1) day following the event. 

4. To provide parking for three (3) equipment trailers two (2) days prior to the event, during the event and one (1) day 
following the event. 

5. To provide ten (10) horse stalls and one (1) tack stall. 

6. To provide five (5) bales of hay per day for the duration of the event, starting two (2) days prior and one (1) day after 
the event for a total not to exceed amount of forty (40) bales of hay. 

7. To provide one (1) bag of shavings per stall for the duration, starting two (2) days prior to the event, during the event 
and one (1) day following the event, with three (3) bags to start per stall for a total not to exceed amount of one 
hundred (100) bags. 

8. To provide seating for the arena consisting of bleachers and chairs. 

9. To provide access to electricity (approximately 2 X 220V) and water located within 100 feet of performance site.  

10. To provide event security, parking staff ushers, ticket sellers, ticket takers and event maintenance staff. 

11. To provide adequate parking for the public spectators and event performers and staff. 

12. To pay for any necessary state or local permits as required by law for the performance of this show. 

13. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($40,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of work herein required. Payment will be made following the final performance on Sunday, July 26. 
Payment will be made by California Stage Agency issued check. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 20 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5770-70    
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required following their final performance on Sunday, July 
26, 2015. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 6 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 7 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 8 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 9 of 20 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 10 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 11 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 12 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 13 of 20 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 14 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist and Contractor (terms may be used interchangeably) shall adhere to all starting times as indicated in this 
Agreement. 
 
PERFORMANCE LENGTH/TIMES 
Contractor shall adhere to performance lengths and times as indicated in this Agreement. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association (District) prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor shall be liable and 
subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall be one thousand ($1,000) 
dollars per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand ($10,000) dollars for any period thereafter. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no 
check cashing shall be authorized.  Contractors who are not residents of California will be subject to seven percent (7%) 
State Withholding at Source as determined by the Franchise Tax Board. 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the event.  However, this opening time is subject to 
change at the discretion of the District.  There shall be no exceptions to these stated times. These requirements are 
necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the District, State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange 
County Sheriff’s Department.  
 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor will adhere to the sound ordinance observed by the District.  Exact levels will be available upon request and 
random readings will be taken throughout sound check and performance.  
 
House sound will include stage monitors.  District agrees to use Contractor’s monitor system at Contractor’s request and 
at no additional cost to the District. 
 
Contractor shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the 
concert operate within the sound restrictions.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of 
sound level exceedance by either the District, a designated sound monitor or other designee, Contractor shall immediately 
adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur 
within concert performance after such notification, Contractor agrees to immediately terminate the performance. 
 
Maximum permissible sound levels, as measured flat (no weighting) on a peak reading calibrated SPL meter: 
 

1. FOH @ mixer location:  95 dB flat. 
2. Back of stage, 75 feet:  80 dB flat. 
3. Sides of stage, 75 feet: 75 dB flat. 
4. Surrounding housing areas:  55 dB. 

 
Number 4 is the limiting factor and deciding factor:  1-3 don’t matter if 4 is exceeded. 
 
All other measurements must conform to published sound level limitations for the area.  In any case, measurements made 
in surrounding neighborhoods have precedence, regardless of compliance within the venue. 
 
In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercising its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the sound 
restrictions. 
 
MEDIA - WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on its website.  Information should 
include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair website 
(www.ocfair.com). 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 15 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requires that the Contractor consent to at least one (1) fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a 
local radio station, television station or print reporter in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Media outlet to be 
selected by the District.  Please contact the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the 
interview. 
 
MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Contractor’s representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance  
for news purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall  
be allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate use of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment. The District will provide industry standard sound 
and lighting equipment not to exceed allocated budget. Any costs exceeding the budget are the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District can provide but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment unless otherwise specifically stated in 
this Agreement. 
 
GROUND TRANSPORTATION 
The District will not provide or be responsible for ground transportation of any kind. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide hospitality only when contracted.  When contracted, the District will provide only lunch and dinner 
service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Contractor’s contract rider as a guide but will make the 
final decision as to the meal that will be served.  Accommodations will be made for vegetarian meals upon request.  
Additional food and beverage service (i.e. after show and/or tour bus food service) may be requested by the Contractor at 
the Contractor’s expense from the on-site caterer.  
 
The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products as a part of this Agreement.  
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CD’s is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Contractor is responsible for seller’s fee in addition to 
commission.  Sales will be audited at the end of the evening by a designated District staff member. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District will retain all sponsorship rights to the venue.  In the event that a Performer’s sponsor becomes a contracted 
part of the agreement, the District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Performer’s sponsorships.  Performer’s 
sponsorship signage may be used only with approval of the District representative.  The District’s representative and 
sponsorship manager shall be notified prior to the signing of this agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  
Performers shall not receive any revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Action Sports Arena is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate 
number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Action Sports Arena. 
 
INSURANCE 
Prior to the performance, Contractor shall provide a valid Certificate of Insurance indicating minimum coverage of one 
million ($1,000,000) dollars for General Liability and Automobile Liability, in a manner and form acceptable to the District.  
No indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor. 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 16 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligation are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Action Sports Arena or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any 
unforeseen fulfillment of this agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Contractor impossible.  If such 
an occurrence shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the 
District and the Contractor, then the Contractor shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one show 
only is presented and condition(s) beyond the control of the Contractor and District which would prevent the start of the 
show at scheduled time it is mutually agreed the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition 
and to present herein. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  
“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 
(6) Performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 
 
Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary, artistic works.   
 
Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e., “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation.  Contractor shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 17 of 20 

EXHIBIT E – THE ACTION SPORTS ARENA HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL & ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Contractor shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. 
 
All Performer names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot 
be made after the contract has been finalized.  Performers will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or 
advertising material.  All Performer guidelines must be outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artists’ management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  Due to space limitations, Artist logos will not be used in any 
promotional materials. 
 
COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide complimentary reserved seat tickets only when contracted. If available, the Performer may 
purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. Performer’s guests will be subject to a parking charge at the 
event.   
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand ($1,000) dollars 
per incident. 
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Contractor’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Performer or Performer’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement and bind Performer to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Performer is not signing and 
contracting in own name to perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to 
provide the services of the Performer shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of 
incorporation or principal place of business; c) followed by the designation “F.S.O.” (for services of) and immediately 
followed by the name of the performing Artists on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_____________________________________________       _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or       Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 18 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 19 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-194-15AS 
CAVALLO EQUESTRIAN ARTS, LLC 
PAGE 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT F – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit F- 
 

 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-195-15BB 
AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

1423666 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/22/15 through          07/26/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $       5,000.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $     5,000.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

Daniel Tello 
ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 
17660 San Simeon Circle, Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
(714) 273-5777 

FUND TITLE 
 

Operating 

ITEM 
 

5780-70 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 2 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide entertainment as, “The Originalites,” in Baja Blues from July 22 – July 26 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

B. The performances are scheduled from 8:00 – 11:00 p.m. on 7/22, 7/23, and 7/26, and from 8:30 – 11:30 p.m. on 7/24 
and 7/25.   

C. Each performance shall be three (3) hours in length and consist of three (3) sets of approximately 45 minutes on and 
15 minutes off. 

D. To provide biographical and news release information as necessary. 

E. To promote contracted event via Contractor email and mobile (if available) database(s), and website.  

F. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

G. All performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or obscene language or gestures will 
not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their representatives while in the view 
or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) per incident and 
may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair. 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide complimentary parking and OC Fair admission for performer. 

B. To provide promotion and advertising as part of the 2015 OC Fair collateral material. 

C. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of 
services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the US mail. 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 3 of 11 

  

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon completion of services herein required and delivered via the US mail. 
 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 4 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 5 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 6 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 7 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 8 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 9 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 10 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-195-15BB 
DANIEL TELLO F/S/O THE ORIGINALITES 
PAGE 11 of 11 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-196-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1423735 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 EDWARD RUSSELL 

2. The term of this         07/12/15 through 08/18/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $22,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide “Russell Brothers Circus” and “Let’s Play Circus”  Pages 1 – 2  
 for the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional details.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  3 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 7 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 8 – 11 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 12 – 14 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

EDWARD RUSSELL 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Edward Russell 
ADDRESS  
1065 Lomita Blvd., #40, Harbor City, CA 90710 
(310) 530-0592 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

1. To provide “Russell Brothers Circus” and “Let’s Play Circus” from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

2. To set up “Russell Brothers Circus” and “Let’s Play Circus” beginning Sunday, July 12, 2015, to be completed by 
Wednesday, July 16, 2015, at 6:00 p.m.  To begin final teardown and removal of equipment and structures no earlier 
than 11:30 p.m. on Sunday, August 16, 2015, to be completed by Tuesday, August 18, 2015, at 4:00 p.m. 
 

3. “Russell Brothers Circus” will be located near the Green Gate and will perform Wednesdays through Sundays at the 
following times:  
 

 2:00 p.m.;  
 3:30 p.m.;  
 5:00 p.m.;  
 6:30 p.m.; and  
 8:00 p.m.  

 
4. “Let’s Play Circus” will be located in an area to be determined by the District and will perform Wednesdays through 

Sundays at the following time: 

 12:30 p.m. 

5. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

6. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide space near the Green Gate for the “Russell Brothers Circus” tent and bleachers.  Final space size to be 
determined by the District. 
 

2. To provide space in an area to be determined by the District for “Let’s Play Circus.” Final space size to be determined 
by the District. 
 

3. To provide space for one (1) recreational vehicle from July 12 – August 18, 2015, at the OC Fair & Event Center 
campground or as determined necessary by the District. 
 

4. To provide credentials for “Russell Brothers Circus” and “Let’s Play Circus” employees as determined necessary by 
the District. 
 

5. To pay Contractor EIGHTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($18,500.00) for “Russell Brothers 
Circus” and THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,500.00) for “Let’s Play Circus,” for a combined 
total sum not to exceed TWENTY TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($22,000.00).  Payment will be made Net 10 
upon satisfactory completion of work herein required and delivered via US Mail. 
 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 3 of 14 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 

District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWENTY TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($22,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of services herein required.  Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 6 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 7 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 8 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 9 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 11 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-196-15FT 
EDWARD RUSSELL 
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-197-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1423818 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC 

2. The term of this         07/14/15 through 08/17/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $36,500.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide “Racing Pigs” and “Pedal Tractor Pull” entertainment  Pages 1 – 3  
 events at the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 15 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Bart Noll, Owner 
ADDRESS  
508 Kodiak Street, Eugene, OR 97401 
(541) 513-2142 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 2 of 15 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

1. To provide Racing Pigs and Pedal Tractor Pull events in the Livestock area, or alternate area determined by the 
District, from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To begin setup of race track and associated equipment on Tuesday, July 14, 2015, to be substantially completed by 
Wednesday, July 15, at 6:00 p.m.   

3. To the following provisions related to the Racing Pigs: 

a. Racing pig shows shall consist of four (4) heats of racing, four (4) pigs per heat, at 15 to 25 minutes per show (20 
minutes preferred and intended). 

b. Contractor shall perform four (4) shows on weekdays and five (5) shows on weekends, with each show starting 
approximately two (2) hours apart.  The beginning of the first show and the beginning of the last show shall be no 
more than eight (8) hours apart. 

c. Pig races shall be held Wednesdays through Fridays according to the following schedule: 

i. 3:00 p.m.; 
ii. 5:00 p.m.; 
iii. 7:00 p.m.; and 
iv. 9:00 p.m. 

 
 

d. Pig races shall be held Saturdays and Sundays according to the following schedule: 
 

i. 1:00 p.m.; 
ii. 3:00 p.m.; 
iii. 5:00 p.m.; 
iv. 7:00 p.m.; and 
v. 9:00 p.m. 

 
 

e. To provide race track fencing and starting gates, a high quality PA system, costumes for personnel and pigs, 
climate-controlled housing for pigs, a sufficient number of pigs to fulfill the race requirements, and all personnel 
required for the performance. 
 

f. To provide high-quality care for the animals for the duration of the contract.  State personnel have the right to 
inspect animals and their accommodations immediately upon request. 

4. To the following provisions pertaining to Pedal Tractor Pulls: 

a. To provide two (2) highly-modified toy pedal tractors, two (2) custom-built weight pull sleds, a wooden surface to 
protect venue surface (if necessary), a high-quality sound system, and all personnel needed for show 
performances. 
 

b. Performances shall begin after a 15-minute sign-up period for volunteer participants to register with show 
personnel. Volunteers aged four through twelve (4 – 12) will be invited to participate.  
 

c. Each show shall last approximately 35 – 40 minutes, consisting of three (3) pulls per show.  
 

d. The duration of the show will allow 30 – 40 participants to each make one (1) to four (4) passes down the 
competition track, with the number of passes depending upon how many times the participant pulls the weight the 
full length of the track. The maximum track length is 30 feet. 
 

e. Daily shows shall alternate with Racing Pigs using the following schedule: 
 

i. 4:00 p.m.; and 
ii. 6:00 p.m. 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 3 of 15 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 

5. To remove the race track and associated equipment no earlier than Sunday, August 16, at 11:59 p.m.  Contractor 
must receive approval from the District prior to tear down.  Removal shall be completed by 5:00 p.m., Monday, August 
17, 2015. 

6. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

7. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a flat surface area, consisting of a minimum of 25’ x 45’ for the setup of the pig racing track and equipment, 
with additional space to accommodate spectators, as determined necessary by the District.  
 

2. To provide a flat surface area, on the interior of the Racing Pig track, for setup of the Pedal Tractor Pull track and 
equipment. 
 

3. To provide one (1) 20-amp electrical circuit and lighting. 
 

4. To provide a potable water source within 100’ of the track area, at least six (6) straw bales for Contractor’s use and 
adequate wood shavings to cover the track and for bedding changes while the animals are at the event.  Total amount 
not to exceed thirty (30) bales, if packages, or five (5) cubic yards, if bulk. 

5. To provide dumpster access for, or twice daily pick-up of, Contractor’s disposal of bagged, dirty bedding. 

6. To clean up shavings from the track at the conclusion of the event. 

7. To allow Contractor to sell novelties and services without commission, as determined appropriate for Racing Pigs and 
Pedal Tractor Pull events, respectively.  All items and services shall be pre-approved by the District. 

8. To provide one (1) RV space located on or near the OC Fair & Event Center property, as determined by the District, 
from July 14 – August 17, 2015.  RV space shall have access to water, electricity and sewer/septic tank hook-ups. 

9. To pay Contractor TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) for the Racing Pigs and ELEVEN 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($11,500.00) for the Pedal Tractor Pull events, for a combined total sum not 
to exceed THIRTY SIX THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($36,500.00).  Payment will be made Net 10 upon 
satisfactory completion of services herein required and delivered via US Mail. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 4 of 15 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5780-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 delivered via US Mail. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 5 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 6 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 7 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 8 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 9 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 10 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 11 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 12 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 13 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 14 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-197-15FT 
ALL-ALASKAN RACING PIGS, LLC  
PAGE 15 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-198-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
EL AVISO 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/15/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $32,850.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER $32,850.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
EL AVISO 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Maria A. Zepeda-Eulloqui, Branch Office Manager/Operations 
Director 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 

1524 West 5th Street, Santa Ana, CA 92703 
(714) 263-0399 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 2 of 11 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

 

1. To be Sponsor of the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015 specific to the following events: 

a. Fiesta Del Charro at the Action Sports Arena (August 9, 2015); and  

b. Mariachi Sol De Mexico de Jose Hernandez at Hangar Building (August 9, 2015).  

2. To provide TRADE in the sum of THIRTY-TWO THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS 
($32,850.00) as a sponsorship fee. Sponsorship fee is based on the following deliverables:  

a. To provide the District with one (1) half page ad in El Aviso running for six (6) weeks. Circulation is 
325,000 copies per week in all nine (9) markets. 

b. To provide a cover ad and full page editorial article in the EL AVISO OC Edition for one (1) week. 
Circulation includes 50,000 consumers in Markets 7 and 9; July 27, 2015 Issue.  

c. To provide the District one (1) half page ad in the El Aviso OC Edition to promote Fiesta Del Charro at 
the Action Sports Arena (August 9, 2015) and Mariachi Sol De Mexico de Jose Hernandez at Hangar 
Building (August 9, 2015). 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

5. To verify all Sponsor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo badge 
credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential from the 
badging office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office, the required paperwork 
must be submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge credentials must 
be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Sponsor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-
day working credentials to Sponsor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 5:30 p.m. and open to the public from 6:00 p.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on Sunday, August 9, 2015. 

9. That mobile tours and other exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook 
and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during, or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department, or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during, or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 3 of 11 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

 

1. To provide Sponsor with sponsorship of the 2015 OC Fair specific to the following events:  

a. Fiesta Del Charro at the Action Sports Arena (August 9, 2015); and  

b. Mariachi Sol De Mexico de Jose Hernandez at Hangar Building (August 9, 2015). 

2. To provide Sponsor dedicated display space during the days of the two (2) sponsored events at the 
corresponding locations (Action Sports Arena, Hangar Building), including: 

a. One (1) 6’ table and two (2) chairs.  

3. To provide Sponsor with two (2) sign spaces during the two (2) sponsored events at the Action Sports Arena 
and The Hangar Building.  

4. To produce sponsor name/logo on two (2) bottom sections of the directional cubes at the three (3) Guest 
Entrance Gates (signage to be produced/installed by the District): 

5. To provide Sponsor with the following promotional components: 

a. Sponsor to distribute gift bags including the El Aviso publication before, during, and after the two (2) 
sponsored events at the corresponding location (Action Sports Arena, The Hangar Building). Gift bags 
and content to be designed, funded, provided and distributed by Sponsor. Gift bag design and content to 
be approved by the District in advance of distribution. 

6. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, Daily Schedule, etc. (pending 
deadline); 

b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising; 

c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline); and 

d. On the 2015 OC Fair web site with a link to the Sponsor web site. 

7. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 

a. Three hundred and fifty (350) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets; 

b. Twenty (20) 2015 OC Fair Parking Passes; 

c. Two (2) F Lot Parking Passes for August 9, 2015 for sponsored events at The Hangar and Action Sports 
Arena;  

d. Ten (10) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3] rides per card); 

e. Six (6) tickets to each of the two (2) sponsored events: Fiesta del Charro and Mariachi Sol De Mexico de 
Jose Hernandez; and 

f. Two (2) tickets to one (1) concert at the Pacific Amphitheatre.  

8. To provide a mutually agreed upon number of working credentials and staff parking passes for Sponsor staff 
assigned to the Sponsor’s display in the form of either photo badges or single-day working credentials. 

 

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 4 of 11 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 5 of 11 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 
  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 6 of 11 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 7 of 11 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 8 of 11 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 9 of 11 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 10 of 11 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 
  



SA-198-15SP 
EL AVISO 
PAGE 11 of 11 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-199-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             05/04/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $20,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP; $8,000 SPACE FEE; $93,500.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $20,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP; $8,000 SPACE FEE; $93,500.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP    (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Jeff Young, VP of Advertising, Major & Local Retail 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 

202 W. First Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 
(213) 237-6065 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

  

 





SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 2 of 12 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To be Presenting Sponsor of the Action Sports Arena and Hangar Building as well as a Sponsor of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre at the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015.  

2. To provide payment in the sum of TWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($28,000), inclusive of $20,000 
sponsorship fee and $8,000 space fee, due upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no 
later than July 10, 2015. 

a. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

3. To provide trade value of NINETY THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED ($93,500) to the District. 

4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

5. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

6. To verify all Sponsor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Sponsor, is not 
a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

7. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo badge 
credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential from the badging 
office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office the required paperwork must be 
submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge credentials must be obtained 
prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

8. Sponsor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law Screening[s], 
etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day working 
credentials to Sponsor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

9. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon until at least 11:00 p.m. each Wednesday-Friday; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. until at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and Sunday of 
the 2015 OC Fair. 

10. That mobile tours and other exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

11. To provide the District with advertising in Los Angeles Times Media Group publications to promote the Summer 
Concert Series as outlined here-in: 

a. Three (3) full page color ads in LA Times, “Art & Books” section. 

i. July 5, 2015 – Sunday Calendar  
ii. July 12, 2015 – Sunday Calendar 
iii. July 19, 2015 – Sunday Calendar 

b. Five (5) Front Cover Strip color ads in the Daily Pilot. 

i. July 10, 2015 
ii. July 17, 2015 
iii. July 24, 2015  
iv. July 31, 2015 
v. August 7, 2015 

 
EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS (CONT.) 



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 3 of 12 

 
SPONSOR AGREES (CONT.): 

c. Six (6) ½ page black and white ads in Times Community News. 

i. Two (2) in the Daily Pilot 

1. July 10, 2015 
2. July 17, 2015 

ii. Two (2) in the Huntington Beach Independent 

1. July 16, 2015  
2. July 23, 2015 

iii. Two (2) in the Laguna Beach Coastline 

1. July 10, 2015 
2. July 17, 2015 

12. To give District a royalty-free, non-exclusive license to use and display the service/trademark of Sponsor, only for the 
limited term of this agreement and only for the purposes described herein; provided, however, no such use or 
advertising will be affected unless in compliance with Sponsor’s brand identification. All use of Sponsor logos must be 
approved prior to inclusion by Sponsor with no exceptions.  

13. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 
such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

14. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

15. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Los Angeles Time/Daily Pilot with Presenting Sponsorship of the Action Sports Arena and Hangar Building 
at the 2015 OC Fair.  

2. To acknowledge Sponsor as a Sponsor of the Pacific Amphitheatre at the 2015 OC Fair. 

3. To produce Sponsor name/logo in the following signage at The Hangar during the 2015 OC Fair (signage to be 
produced/installed by the District): 

a. Two (2) signs over each digital board outside of The Hangar. 

b. Four (4) 5’x16’ hanging signs inside Hangar Building. 

c. Logo inclusion on each aisle place card throughout Hangar Building.  

4. To produce Sponsor name/logo in the following signage at the Action Sports Arena during the 2015 OC Fair (signage 
to be produced/installed by the District): 

a. Eight (8) 3’x10’ bleacher signs at the Action Sports Arena. 

b. Logo placement above Action Sports Arena Entrance Signage. 

5. To provide sponsor with the following signage at Carnival of Products Booth (CP #224): 

a. One (1) 36” round, branded floor decal to display in front of booth CP #224; decal to be designed, produced, 
and installed by the District; logo to be provided by Sponsor. 

b. One (1) 4’x2’ branded sign to display above booth CP #224; sign to be designed, produced, and installed by 
the District; logo to be provided by Sponsor. 

6. To provide Sponsor one (1) 8’x10’ space located in the Carnival of Products (CP #224).  

a. To provide access to one (1) complimentary Wi-Fi connection or DSL line for staff to use at booth CP #224. 

  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 4 of 12 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS (CONT.) 
 

DISTRICT AGREES (CONT.): 

7. To provide Sponsor with one (1) 10’x10’ booth space at Baja Blues Grass. Booth space to include the following: 

a. One (1) 10’x10’ tent; 

b. One (1) full back wall; 

c. Two (2) three (3) foot side walls; 

d. One (1) eight (8) foot table; 

e. Two (2) chairs; and 

f. Lighting appropriate for evening business. 

8. To provide Sponsor with one (1) 10’x10’ booth space at Fairenheit 32º area. Booth space to include the following: 

a. One (1) 10’x10’ tent 

b. One (1) full back wall 

c. Two (2) three (3) foot side walls 

d. One (1) eight (8) foot table 

e. Two (2) chairs 

f. Lighting appropriate for evening business 

9. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, etc. (pending deadlines). 

b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising. 

c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline). 

d. On the 2015 OC Fair web site with a link to the Sponsor web site. 

10. To include two (2) thirty (30)-second commercial spots before the start of each concert at Pacific Amphitheatre (video 
content to be approved by the District prior to production).  

11. To include two (2) thirty (30)-second commercial spots before the start of each ticketed entertainment at Hangar 
Building (video content to be approved by the District prior to production).  

12. To include one (1) thirty (30)-second commercial within a looped video schedule on the thirteen video screens at the 
entrances/exits of the 2015 OC Fair (pending production deadlines) (video content to be approved by the District prior 
to production). 

13. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 

a. Five hundred (500) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets. 

b. One hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair Parking Passes (Lot TBD). 

c. Fifty (50) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3] rides per card). 

d. Twenty (20) 2015 Pacific Amphitheatre Orchestra Level concert tickets, not to exceed four (4) tickets to any 
one select show (pending availability). 

a. Twenty (20) 2015 Hangar Building entertainment tickets, not to exceed four (4) tickets to any one select show 
(pending availability). 

e. Twenty (20) 2015 Action Sports Arena entertainment tickets, not to exceed four (4) tickets to any one select 
show (pending availability). 

14. To provide a mutually agreed upon number of working credentials and staff parking passes for Sponsor staff assigned 
to the Sponsor’s display in the form of either photo badges (for staff working ten [10] days or more) or single-day 
working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] days). 

 
- End Exhibit A -



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 5 of 12 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 6 of 12 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 
  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 7 of 12 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 8 of 12 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sub-lessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 9 of 12 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority, and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 10 of 12 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other  additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

- End Exhibit C - 
  



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 11 of 12 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Sponsor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Sponsorship with Rental Space agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the 
Agreement, Sponsor acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules 
and Regulations. 

 
C. Sponsor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Sponsor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Sponsor, and (ii) as far as 
Sponsor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, copyright, 
or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Sponsor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit its employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Sponsor or its employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Sponsor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and Regulations 

referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the District and 
the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the District. 

 
F. No Sponsor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Sponsor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Sponsor must, at its own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Sponsor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Sponsor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Sponsor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Sponsor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Sponsor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of its space in which 

money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes or 
premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 
 



SA-199-15SP 
LOS ANGELES TIMES/DAILY PILOT 
PAGE 12 of 12 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

M. Sponsor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Sponsor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 
damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Sponsor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Sponsor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Sponsor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Sponsor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Sponsor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by Sponsor, at 
his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of Sponsor’s failure to 
vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the District may and is hereby 
authorized and made the agent of Sponsor to remove and store the concession and all other material of any nature 
whatsoever, at the Sponsor’s risk and expense, and Sponsor shall reimburse the District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Sponsor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Sponsor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales on 
said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Sponsor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Sponsor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Sponsor, and any agents and employees of Sponsor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-200-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             04/01/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $70,000.00 SPONSORSHIP ($10,000.00 CASH; $60,000.00 TRADE)                                          

pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $10,000.00 CASH; $60,000.00 TRADE (TRADE ELEMENTS TO INCLUDE: $60,000.00 IN UNRESTRICTED ADVERTISING  TRADE PROVIDED BY 

FADFDSPONSOR; OTHER ITEMS AS OUTLINED IN EXHIBIT A)           

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER  Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Holli Christopher, Director of Marketing 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
625 N. Grand Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701 
(714) 796-7700

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 2 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To be Sponsor of the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015. 

2. To provide SIXTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($60,000) in unrestricted trade print advertising to the OC Fair at the daily 
rate of NINTEY NINE DOLLARS ($99) and Sunday rate of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS ($124) per 
contract rate. 

3. To provide CASH in the sum of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000) as a Premium Space fee, due upon execution 
of this agreement. Payment in full must be received by District no later than July 15, 2015. 

a.  Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 
OC Fair & Event Center 

Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

4. To use its best efforts to take all actions and to do all things necessary, proper, or advisable to provide optimum 
advertising placement in the sections listed in the District’s 2015 Media Plan and to collaborate with the District’s 
Marketing Department in support of this effort. 

5. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

6. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

7. To verify all Sponsor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District’s property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Sponsor, is not 
a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

8. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 
a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s); 
b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo badge 

credential for admission; Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential from the badging 
office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office the required paperwork must be 
submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge credentials must be obtained 
prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

9. Sponsor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law Screening[s], 
etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day working 
credentials to Sponsor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

10. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 
a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 11:00 p.m. each Wednesday-Friday; and 
b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and Sunday of 

the 2015 OC Fair. 

11. That mobile tours and other exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

12. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 
such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during, or following the Term. 

13. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department, or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

14. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

15. To provide OC Register Rack Cards promoting the 2015 OC Fair from June 23 through July 6, 2015 (three [3] weeks 
prior to the OC Fair). Rack Cards must include both OCR Connect Promotion/OC Fair promotions creative only. 

16. To coordinate the logistics, execution, and distribution of the “Register Connect” promotion and sweepstakes (See 
“District Agrees” paragraph 8.a. through 8.b. for additional details).   

 
 



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 3 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS (CONT.) 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide Orange County Register with sponsorship of the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To purchase SIXTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($60,000.00) in print and online advertising through Sponsor to promote 
the 2015 OC Fair and Imaginology. 

3. To purchase SIXTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($16,000) in print and online advertising through Sponsor to promote 
the Pacific Amphitheatre’s Summer Concert Series. 

4. To work with the OC Register on Rack Card creative to promoting the 2015 OC Fair from June 23  through July 6, 
2015 (three [3] weeks prior to the OC Fair). Rack Cards must include both OCR/OC Fair promotions creative only.  

5. To provide Sponsor with one (1) 10’x20’ Family Fair Way West space with (4) retractable walls, two (2) 3’ walls, one 
(1) sliding cable, and one (1) full-wall backdrop.  
 

6. To provide Sponsor with one (1) 10’x10’ Livestock Lane East space with (4) retractable walls, two (2) 3’ walls, One (1) 
sliding cable and one (1) full-wall backdrop.  

7. To include Sponsor logo: 
a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, Daily Schedule, etc. (pending 

deadlines); 
b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising; 
c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline); and 
d. On the 2015 OC Fair web site with a link to the Sponsor web site 

8.  To offer “Register Connect” members the following, as mutually agreed between Sponsor and District 
(promotion/sweepstakes to be executed by Sponsor): 

a. Two (2) Summer Experiences Packs that each include:  
i. Four (4) 2015 OC Fair General Admission Tickets; 
ii. One (1) 2015 F-Lot Parking Passes; 
iii. Eight (8) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3]  rides per card); 
iv. One (1) “Behind the Scenes” OC Fair Tour (pending date selection); 
v. Four (4) Pacific Amphitheater concert tickets to any one select show (pending availability); and 
vi. Four (4) Ovations meal vouchers. 

b. Two thousand (2,000) 2015 OC Fair General Admission tickets: 
i. The two thousand (2,000) 2015 OC Fair General Admission Tickets will be valid for each of the four 

(4) Thursdays and Fridays of the OC Fair. 

9. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 
a. Five hundred (500) 2015 OC Fair General Admission Tickets; 
b. Seventy-Five (75) Adam’s Lot Parking Passes; 
c. Seventy-Five (75) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3] rides per card); 
d. Two (2) seats to two (2) 2015 Pacific Amphitheatre concert (tickets subject to availability); and  
e. Two (2) tickets to each Action Sports Arena event. 

10. To provide the following credentials for Sponsor staff who will be working on-site at Sponsor’s display: 
a. To provide a mutually agreed upon number of working credentials and staff parking passes for Sponsor staff 

assigned to the Sponsor’s display in the form of either photo badges (for staff working ten [10] days or more) 
or single-day working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] days). 
 
 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 4 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 5 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 
  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 6 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers’ fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result 
of or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 7 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sub-lessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sub-lessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 8 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 9 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 10 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Sponsor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Sponsorship with Rental Space agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the 
Agreement, Sponsor acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules 
and Regulations. 

 
C. Sponsor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Sponsor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Sponsor, and (ii) as far as 
Sponsor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, copyright, 
or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Sponsor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Sponsor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Sponsor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and Regulations 

referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the District and 
the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the District. 

 
F. No Sponsor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Sponsor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Sponsor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Sponsor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Sponsor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Sponsor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Sponsor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Sponsor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in which 

money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes or 
premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-200-15SP 
ORANGE COUNTY REGISTER 
PAGE 11 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Sponsor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Sponsor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Sponsor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Sponsor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Sponsor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Sponsor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Sponsor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by Sponsor, at 
his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of Sponsor’s failure to 
vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the District may and is hereby 
authorized and made the agent of Sponsor to remove and store the concession and all other material of any nature 
whatsoever, at the Sponsor’s risk and expense, and Sponsor shall reimburse the District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Sponsor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Sponsor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales on 
said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Sponsor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Sponsor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Sponsor, and any agents and employees of Sponsor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-202-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1424679 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG 

2. The term of this         08/13/15 through 08/13/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $125,000.00  
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Chris Young” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Thursday, August 13, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Gayle Holcomb, Agent                                                      91549   
ADDRESS  
William Morris Endeavor Entertainment, LLC        
9601 Wilshire Boulevard, Third Floor, Beverly Hills, CA  90210 
(310) 859-4461 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, August 13, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, August 13, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been 
received by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-202-15PA 
RUNNIN’ BEHIND, INC. F/S/O CHRIS YOUNG  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-203-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1424696 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG 

2. The term of this         08/06/15 through 08/06/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $36,250.00 Inclusive of Backline Buyout
 of this Agreement is: ($35,000.00 FLAT PLUS $1,250.00 for Backline Buyout) 
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Dennis DeYoung” on stage at the Pacific Amphitheatre Page  1   
  on Thursday, August 6, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Gayle Holcomb, Agent                                                      91549   
ADDRESS  
William Morris Endeavor Entertainment, LLC        
9601 Wilshire Boulevard, Third Floor, Beverly Hills, CA  90210 
(310) 859-4461 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, August 6, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, August 6, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-203-15PA 
BABE, INC. F/S/O DENNIS DEYOUNG  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-205-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             06/19/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $51,254 SPONSORSHIP ($2,100.00 CASH; $49,154.00 TRADE) pursuant to the following 

charges:   Wages/Labor $     Parts/Supplies $      Taxes $      

Other                                                                                                (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Robert Bustos, Key Account Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
27717 Aliso Creek Rd, Aliso Viejo, CA  92656 
(949) 643-5764 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-205-15SP 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 5 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
SPONSOR AGREES: 
 

1. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

2. To execute the Orange Crush 12-pack wrap $2 off 2015 OC Fair admission promotion and co-branded can panel 
throughout the Orange County market and execute Orange Crush TXT2WIN promotion (Trade value of FOURTY-
NINE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FOUR DOLLARS [$49,154.00]). Creative to be supplied by Sponsor for 
District’s approval). 

3. To provide payment in the sum of TWO THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,100) as a sponsorship fee, due 
upon execution of this agreement.  Payment in full must be received by District no later than July 10, 2015. 
Payment shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair and Event Center 
Attn: Account Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

4. To coordinate Orange Crush TXT2WIN promotion at distribution outlets throughout Southern California including: 
a. TWENTY-FIVE (25) Ralphs District 4 locations; 
b. TWENTY-FIVE (25) Ralphs District 5 locations; 
c. TWENTY-FIVE (25) Ralphs District 6 locations; 
d. TWENTY-SEVEN (27) Ralphs District 7 locations; 
e. TEN (10) Super A Foods locations; 
f. THIRTY-TWO (32) Northgate locations; 
g. FORTY-FIVE (45) Superior locations; 
h. SEVEN (7) Superking locations; 
i. TWELVE (12) KV Mart locations; 
j. TWO (2) Best Way locations; 
k. SEVEN (7) King Ranch locations; 
l. FOUR (4) El Tapatio locations; 
m. TWO (2) Advance Food locations; 
n. FIFTY (50) IBS Torrance; 
o. FIFTY (50) IBS Laguna; 
p. TWENTY-FIVE (25) IBS Buena Park; 
q. TWENTY (20) IBS Baldwin Park; 
r. FIFTEEN (15) IBS Riverside; 
s. FIFTEEN (15) IBS San Fernando; and 
t. TEN (10) ISB Indio.  

5. To distribute THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR (364) 2015 OC Fair General Admission tickets as grand prizes for 
TXT2WIN promotion. 

6. To coordinate logistics and execution of Orange Crush Can Panel and Orange Crush TXT2WIN promotion with 
District. 

  
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

1. To provide THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR (364) 2015 OC Fair General Admission Tickets for Orange Crush 
TXT2WIN winners. 

2. To provide EIGHTY-FOUR (84) 2015 OC Fair Carnival Ride Cards (THREE [3] rides per card) for Orange Crush 
TXT2WIN winners. 

3. To provide EIGHTY-FOUR (84), TEN DOLLAR ($10.00) Ovations meal vouchers for Orange Crush TXT2WIN 
winners. 

4. To provide THREE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-EIGHT (3,628) 2015 OC Fair General Admission Tickets 
for key account hospitality. 

5. To coordinate logistics and execution of Orange Crush Can Panel and Orange Crush TXT2WIN promotion with 
Sponsor. 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-205-15SP 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 5 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-205-15SP 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 5 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14  business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 



SA-205-15SP 
BOTTLING GROUP, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 5 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-206-15PA 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1425371 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING 

2. The term of this         08/08/15 through 08/08/15 FED ID 
 Agreement is:  
 

3.  The maximum amount  $18,000.00  
       of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Debby Ryan & The Never Ending” on stage at the  Page  1   
  Pacific Amphitheatre on Saturday, August 8, for the 2015 OC Fair.  

 Performance/Offer Sheet attached hereto as part of this agreement. Pages 2 – 3  

 Contractor certifies compliance with applicable requirements in the talent agency section of the   

 Labor Code (§271, §272, and §1700.5 - §1700.22).  

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 4  

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12  

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

 Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 17 – 18 

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
 

c/o Tim Beeding, Agent                                                           40240       
ADDRESS  
Creative Artists Agency 
401 Commerce Street, Penthouse, Nashville, TN  37219 
(615) 383-8787 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 4 of 18 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Saturday, August 8, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Saturday, August 8, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

 
-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 5 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 6 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 7 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 8 of 18 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 9 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 10 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 11 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 12 of 18 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 13 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.” 
 Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 14 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 15 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 
INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 
To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 
MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 16 of 18 

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 
 



SA-206-15PA 
RYAN RIVER, INC. F/S/O DEBBY RYAN & THE NEVER ENDING  
PAGE 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 



              R_____   A_____  F_____ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-207-15PA 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
Orange County Fair 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/29/15 through          07/29/15   

3.  The maximum amount payable is $    1,600.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $ Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $    1,600.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  (Outline in 
exact detail what is to be done, where it is to be done and include work specifications, if applicable.)    

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Pacific Amphitheatre Entertainment at 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – House Rider/Performance Agreement (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre Decibel Level & Sound Covenant (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

Richard Blade Sheppard, President 
ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS / PHONE / EMAIL 
17620 Doric Street, Granada Hills, CA 91344 
(310) 584-1217 

FUND TITLE 
 

Operating 

ITEM 
 

5790-72 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 









SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 4 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5790-72 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Wednesday, July 29, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Wednesday, July 29, 2015 if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 5 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 6 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 7 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 8 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 9 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 10 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 11 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 12 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 13 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Each party shall adhere to all starting and ending times as indicated on the contract face. 
 
CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:00 pm curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the District prior to the performance.  If this curfew is not adhered to, Contractor may be liable 
and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. 
 
PAYMENT 
Contractor shall be paid by District check in the amount specified in this agreement immediately upon completion of 
performance.  At least ten (10) days prior to performance date, Contractor shall submit to District an accurately completed 
and signed State of California Std. 204 (“Payee Data Record”).  Contractor may be subject to applicable California State 
non-resident entertainer withholding taxes by the State of California Franchise Tax Board (FTB).  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees District is required to withhold seven percent (7%) of payments to nonresident bands, 
orchestras, plays, dance teams, circuses, and other performing entities if all payments by the District to Contractor exceed 
$1,500 for the calendar year.  A waiver or reduced amount of withholding can be initiated by the non-resident entertainer, 
using Franchise Tax Board forms.  For access to the applicable forms, and for further information, refer to the State of 
California Franchise Tax Board website, www.ftb.ca.gov and search “Nonresident Entertainment Withholding Procedures.”  
Additional references for information can be found at www.ftb.ca.gov, www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2008/08_1017.pdf and 
www.ftb.ca.gov/forms/2012/12_1017.pdf.   

 

Contractor acknowledges and understands that in the event Contractor fails to furnish a completed and signed Payee 
Data Record to the District prior to the Artist’s performance date, the District is required to deduct the nonresident seven 
percent (7%) withholding from Contractor payment.  The District is unable to reissue payment checks the day of 
performance.  If Contractor subsequently provides the Payee Data Record to the District showing Contractor is a 
California resident, the District shall issue a check in the amount of the difference owed and paid Net 10. 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no 
exceptions to these stated times.  These requirements are necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures 
set by the State of California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff's Department. 

 
DECIBEL LEVEL 
Contractor shall comply with all decibel and sound level requirements as detailed in Exhibit F – Pacific Amphitheatre 
Decibel Level and Sound Covenant. 

 
MEDIA – WEB SITE 
The District requests that the Contractor place specific information about the OC Fair on the Artist website. 
Information may include the contracted entertainer's name, date, time of performances at the OC Fair, and a web-
link to OC Fair website (www.ocfair.com). 
 
MEDIA – INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the contracted Artist consent to at least one fifteen (15) minute promotional 
interview with a local radio station, to be selected by the District, in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  
Please contact the District's Communications Department at (714) 708-1559 to coordinate the interview. The 
foregoing is subject to Artist's prior approval and availability. 
 
MEDIA – VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of 
Artist's representative, may be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for non-commercial 
news purposes only and subject to advance with Artist's management.  The District actively discourages all non-
legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA – STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, may be 
allowed to photograph a portion of the performance for local, non-commercial review purposes only, subject to 
Contractor’s approval.  The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use of still photography. 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 14 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Contractor agrees to use District-provided sound and lighting equipment, except as otherwise provided on the Contract 
face.  District will provide industry standard sound and lighting equipment. 

 
Ray Woodbury of RK Diversified Entertainment Inc. is the Production and Lighting contact: 
(909) 821-3157 
ray@rkde.net 
 
Gary Hardesty of Sound Media Fusion is the contact regarding specifics for audio systems and dB level limitations: 
(818) 482-0193 
audiomicro@aol.com 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District will upon request, arrange for an independent company to rent any equipment to Contractor that may be 
required by Contractor in connection with Contractor’s performance under this Contract; provided, however, the District will 
not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract or as mutually 
agreed  upon in advance. 
 
HOSPITALITY 
The District will provide meal service chosen from a District determined menu.  District will use Artist's contract 
rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served.  Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request.  Additional food and beverage service (i.e. tour bus food service) may be 
requested by the Artist at the Artist's expense from the on-site caterer.  Catering itself will be capped at $3,000.00 
versus the cost of Artist’s touring personnel staff for meals and dressing room riders, whichever is lower. After 
show food and bus stock is not provided. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products 
as a part of this agreement. 

 
Unless contracted, costs associated with the tour itself, including, but not limited to such items as hotel 
accommodations, travel fares, ground transportation, freight costs and backline are the financial responsibility of 
the Contractor.  
 
Unless contracted, personal Contractor needs, including, but not limited to such items as massage, health care 
professionals and hairstylists are the financial responsibility of the Contractor.  Runners are available on the 
performance day only and within a 15 mile radius. 

 
MERCHANDISING 
All merchandise sales are subject to a commission payable to the District.  In the event any merchandise will be sold, 
please contact the District’s Production Office.  The Artist/Contractor shall provide the District with advance notification of 
Artist/Contractor’s intent to sell merchandise.  Unless otherwise indicated on the Contract face page, merchandising sales 
are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  CD sales will be subject to a 10% commission 
payable to the District.  All merchandise sales are subject to these commission rates or as stated in the face of the 
Contract.  Contractor will be responsible for paying sales tax and, in all instances, the foregoing split shall be paid after 
deduction of tax.   
 
The District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  If the District is to provide individuals to handle sales transactions, 
notification to the District MUST be in advance or the District may be unable to provide individuals to handle the sales 
transactions.  In addition to any commission due and owing to the District under the provisions of the 
Paragraph, Contractor is responsible for all salaries, fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the District in providing 
personnel responsible for the merchandising sales transaction. 
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
District sponsorships shall not be excluded by Artist/Contractor’s sponsorship commitments. District sponsor signage shall 
be used throughout the venue.  District agrees the signage for District’s sponsors will not imply Artist/Contractor endorses 
the sponsor, its products, or services.  Artist/Contractor shall not receive any revenues from any District sponsorship 
agreements.  Artists/Contractor’s sponsorship signage may be used only upon the prior written consent of the District, not 
to be unreasonably withheld.  Each party shall notify the other party of any potential conflicts related to sponsorships to the 
extent it is made aware.  



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 15 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
The Amphitheatre is eligible for two sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the 
appropriate number and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Amphitheatre.  The District retains the 
right to have title and presenting sponsor banners located throughout the Amphitheatre, including the stage area. 

 

INSURANCE  
If Artist’s performance involves the active participation of the audience in the act or any hazardous activity is part of the 
entertainment act, including, but not limited to, pyrotechnics, Contractor shall notify the District and meet all requirements 
for General Liability coverage as required by the California Fairs Services Authority prior to the performance.  No 
indemnification, hold harmless or additional insured certificate will be provided to Contractor by the District. 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Contractor warrants that it maintains Workers Compensation Insurance for Contractor and Contractor’s employees in the 
amounts and to the extent required by law. 
 

To the extent required by law, Contractor will comply with Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before commencing the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
Purchaser and Producer agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees 
and agents from and against any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) or claim for injury or 
damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed (i.e. "welcomed by") a local market radio station personality, which shall be 
selected by the District; however, upon request, Artist shall have the right to pre-approve any references to be 
made with respect to Artist.  In no way shall this be considered a "co-promotion" or "presented by" situation.  The 
Contractor will be informed of the station selected prior to the engagement. 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Contractor shall use Contractor’s best efforts to provide materials, including biographical information and photographs, to 
the District for use in District’s promotional and advertising material. 

 
DRUGS & PARAPHERNALIA 
The District has enacted a very strict anti-drug policy for the facility.  As such, Contractor agrees that Artist shall not 
discuss illegal drug use, use illegal drugs, employ gestures mimicking the use of illegal drugs, or show paraphernalia 
employed in the use of illegal drugs during Artist’s performance or at any time while Artist is on stage. 

 

CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 
both substantive and procedural. In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artists 
Documents, the District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the 
conflict. 

 

MOST FAVORED NATIONS 
The terms of this Agreement shall be on a most favored nations basis with all other artists performing at the OC Fair in the 
year of Artist’s Performance(s).  

 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
If as a result of any Act of God, war, accident, fire, strike, lock-out, or other labor controversy, riot, civil disturbance, act of 
public enemy, law enactment, rule, restraint, order, or act of any governmental instrumentality or military authority, failure 
of technical facilities, failure, delay or reduction in transportation services, fire, explosion, destruction of the Pacific 
Amphitheatre or the destruction of District’s facilities such that the OC Fair is cancelled or other cause not reasonably 
within either Party’s control and which renders either party’s performance impossible, infeasible, or unsafe (“Force 
Majeure Event”), then either party may cancel any performance and neither party shall have any further liabilities and/or 
obligations in connection therewith. 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 16 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT E – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

CONTRACTOR'S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Contractor has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to furnish the services of Artist in connection with the 
terms and conditions contained herein. If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to perform the 
entertainment services, then the business entity that is signing and contracting to provide the services of the Artist 
shall clearly state: a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation "f/s/o" (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist(s) on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________         _____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or               Artist/Contractor Authorized Representative 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 17 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT  
 
The following limitations on sound generated by events in the Pacific Amphitheater as detailed in Paragraph A below 
have been established pursuant to litigation in the case of Orange County Fair Preservation Society v. 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, Orange County Superior Court No. 30-2012-00538751 and cannot be exceeded under any 
circumstances.  Further, in support of the standards in Paragraph A below, the District maintains decibel maximums 
for sound generated by events as witnessed by listening tests and measurements at various locations within the 
District property and surrounding housing areas. These restrictions are detailed in Paragraph B below.  By entering 
into the Agreement to provide entertainment at the Pacific Amphitheater, the Contractor specifically agrees to abide by 
these limits and the directives of the designated Sound Monitor or other designee.  
 

A. Sound Level Standards 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Level: 
Residential neighborhoods (housing areas) 
adjacent to the OC Fair & Event Center 

55 dB(A) 
 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheaters shall not exceed: 
 
1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 

B. District-Required Sound Level Requirements 
 

Sound Level Standards 

Location of Measurement: Sound Pressure Level: 
The surrounding housing areas 55 dBA  
Pacific Amphitheatre Front of House 100 dB, no weighting 

 
The sound levels emanating from the Pacific Amphitheater shall not exceed: 

1. The applicable Sound Level Standard for a cumulative period of more than thirty (30) minutes in any hour; or  

2. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus five (5) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than fifteen (15) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas; or  

3. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus ten (10) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than five (5) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

4. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus fifteen (15) dB(A) for a cumulative period of more than one (1) minutes in 
any hour, as measured in the housing areas ; or  

5. The applicable Sound Level Standard plus twenty (20) dB(A) for any period of time. 
 

 
 



SA-207-15PA 
BLADEROCKER ENTERTAINMENT, INC. F/S/O RICHARD BLADE 
PAGE 18 of 18 

  

EXHIBIT F – PACIFIC AMPHITHEATRE DECIBEL LEVEL AND SOUND COVENANT (CONT.) 
 
Note that the Front of House sound system, stage monitors and band instruments, are all contributors to the environmental noise 
and fall under this agreement, separately and/or in combination.   
 
Contractor shall be bound by this Decibel Level and Sound Covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks 
and the concert itself, operate within the sound level restrictions. Listening tests and random readings will be taken by the District 
throughout sound check and performance and Contractor will be advised by the District immediately in the event of any 
violation(s), whether the violation is based on a housing area listening test (based on the sole professional judgment of the 
District), a measurement, a complaint, or a combination thereof.  Contractor agrees that upon discovery or notification by either 
the designated Sound Monitor or other designee of any occurrence of sound level exceedance, Contractor shall upon notice by 
the District immediately adjust the sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  The determination of 
sound level exceedance is at the sole discretion of the District’s designated Sound Monitor or other designee. 
 
The Contractor is advised that in the event of any repeated violation(s) of these standards after notice to Contractor, the 
Contractor may be subject to fines and/or penalties by public agencies other than the District, including federal, state, and/or 
local governmental or regulatory agencies.  
 
In the event of repeated violations after notice to Contractor, the District may require the Contractor to immediately cease 
performance.  
 
Understood and Agreed 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Contractor 
 
 
Signed: ____________________________ 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
Printed Name, Title: __________________ 
 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 

314552077.1  

 

-End Exhibit F- 
 
 
 

 



  R______ A______ F______        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 

SA-208-15FT 
AM. NO. 
 
 

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 

 REGISTRATION NUMBER 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE TO: 

32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding   

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 

 

2.  The agreement term is from              07/06/15             through             08/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     - 0 -     pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $       - 0 - 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and agrees to 
comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Ceramics Demonstration and Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements 
 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610     GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language  

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section A above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  
 

MUDDY’S STUDIO 
BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Kevin Myers or Gina Myers, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2610 S. Halladay Street, Santa Ana, CA 92705 
(714) 641-4077 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
 

 





SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 2 of 14     

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide a ceramics demonstration stage and retail exhibit in Crafter’s Village from July 17 – August 16 at the 2015 
OC Fair. 

B. To set up the display beginning Monday, July 6, 2015, to be completed by Wednesday, July 15, by 6:00 p.m.  To 
remove the display no earlier than 11:59 p.m., Sunday, August 16, to be completed by Thursday, August 20, 2015.  
Exact schedule to be determined and communicated to Contractor by District staff.  Contractor must receive approval 
from the District prior to tearing down display. 

C. To staff the retail exhibit during all hours of operation. 

D. To provide assistance and oversight in the demonstration area, as determined necessary by the District. 

E. To assist District staff in acquiring demonstrators for all hours of the OC Fair. 

F. To provide narrated demonstrations at 2:30 p.m., 4:30 p.m. and 7:30 p.m. each day of the OC Fair (closed Mondays 
and Tuesdays). 

G. To provide retail opportunities on behalf of ceramics demonstrators as per their contracts with Muddy’s Studio. 

H. To provide record of sales to the District at the end of the OC Fair. 

I. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

J. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide one (1) 20’ x 20’ canopy and space for retail purposes in Crafter’s Village at no cost to Contractor. 

B. To provide three (3) 10’ x 10’ canopies and space for demonstration at no cost to Contractor. 

C. To provide display equipment and décor, as available.  Contractor may install décor and display equipment if desired. 

D. To provide lighting and sound equipment. 

E. To assist in the solicitation and booking of demonstrators with letters, mailings and scheduling. 

F. To provide reasonable amenities for demonstrators such as water, refrigerator and rest area. 

G. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to Contractor and demonstrators. 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 3 of 14     

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
N/A 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
N/A 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 4 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 5 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 6 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 7 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 8 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 9 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 10 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 11 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 12 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority  
 

I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 13 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-208-15FT 
MUDDY’S STUDIO 
PAGE 14 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



  R______ A______ F______        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 

SA-209-15FT 
AM. NO. 
 
 

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 

 
REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE TO: 

32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding   

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 

 

2.  The agreement term is from              07/13/15             through             08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     - 0 -      pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and agrees to 
comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Beekeeping Display at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610     GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language  

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  
 

ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Rob Stone, President 

ADDRESS 
 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
c/o Amy Cripps 1578 Baker Street, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
2973 Harbor Boulevard, #132, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Rob Stone: (714) 328-2580; Amy Cripps: (949) 922-6986

FUND TITLE 
 

N/A 

ITEM 
 

N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 2 of 14     

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide an informative beekeeping exhibit to educate the public at Centennial Farm from July 17 – August 16 for 
the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit during operational hours, 
including Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m.  – 10:15 p.m., and Saturdays and Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. – 10:15 
p.m. 
 

C. To provide to the District by Monday, July 13, 2015, Contractor’s exhibit staffing schedule, including names, dates and 
time slots.   
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To set up the demonstration area beginning Monday, July 13, through Wednesday, July 15, between the hours of 
10:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Setup shall be completed by 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

F. To supply educational materials for the exhibit and provide all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

G. To provide “Honey Stix” and beeswax candles for purchase, as available.  To obtain all appropriate permits from the 
Orange County Health Care Agency to ensure the exhibit is at all times operating within the parameters set by this 
Agency.  
 

H. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, August 17, 2015, between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 
4:00 p.m.  
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide one (1) exhibit space at the Centennial Farm.  Final size and location to be determined by the District. 

B. To provide table(s) and chair(s), as necessary. 

C. To allow Contractor to sell beekeeping and honey-related items.  All items must be pre-approved by the District. 

D. To provide parking passes, as necessary. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 3 of 14     

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 

 
-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 4 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 5 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 6 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 7 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 8 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 9 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 10 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 11 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 12 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority  
 

I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 13 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-209-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION 
PAGE 14 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-210-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/13/15 through          08/21/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $ 2,000.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $ 2,000.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Leather Crafting Demonstration and Exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Peter James Riojas 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
939 W. 19th Street, Unit A-7, Costa Mesa, CA 92627 
(949) 903-9323 

FUND TITLE 
 
Centennial Farm 

ITEM 
 
5100-42 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide educational leather crafting-related exhibits, displays and demonstrations in Centennial Farm from July 17 – 

August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations and public interaction at the exhibit Wednesdays through Fridays, from 12:00 p.m.  – 
10:00 p.m., and Saturdays and Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
 

C. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, Contractor’s staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots. 
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday, July 13, through Wednesday, 
July 15. Setup must be completed by 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

F. Handmade signs are not allowed.  All signs must be professional, computer-generated, and laminated in order to last the 
duration of the OC Fair.  Contractor must receive approval from the Centennial Farm Supervisor prior to display at the OC 
Fair.   
 

G. To submit the leather workshop price list to the Centennial Farm Supervisor for review and approval prior to display at the 
OC Fair.  Prices shall not be changed or altered once approval has been received.  
 

H. To supply black, floor-length tablecloths to cover work tables, decorations, signage and educational materials for the exhibit 
and do all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

I. Leather workshop employees/volunteers shall not ask for tips. 
 

J. Contractor and Contractor’s employees/volunteers shall comply with the District’s dress code standards at all times.  The 
Centennial Farm Supervisor will provide Contractor with a copy of said standards. 
 

K. To purchase Special Events Liability Insurance (SELI).  
 

L. To remove the exhibit and all display materials beginning Monday, August 17, through Friday, August 21, 2015 between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m.   Teardown must be complete by 3:00 p.m. on Friday, August 21, 2015.   
 

M. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an exhibit space in the Millennium Barn for the exhibit. 

 
B. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to the Contractor. 
 
C. To pay the Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of 

services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be net 10 and delivered via the postal service.   
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-42 – Centennial Farm 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45638.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-210-15FT 
PETER JAMES RIOJAS  
PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



  R______ A______ F______        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 

SA-211-15FT 
AM. NO. 
 
 

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 

 
REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE TO: 

32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding   

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM 

 

2.  The agreement term is from              07/13/15             through             08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     - 0 -      pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and agrees to 
comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Beekeeping and Honey Display at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610     GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language  

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  
 

OCLOCALHONEY.COM 
BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Amy Cripps, Representative 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
1578 Baker Street, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
(949) 922-6986 

FUND TITLE 
 
N/A 

ITEM 
 
N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 2 of 14     

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide an informative honey, honey collection, and beekeeping exhibit to educate the public as part of the “Honey 
Show Display” at Centennial Farm from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit during operational hours, 
including Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m., and Saturdays and Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. – 8:00 
p.m. 
 

C. To provide to the District by Monday, July 13, 2015, Contractor’s exhibit staffing schedule, including names, dates and 
time slots.   
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To set up the demonstration area beginning Monday, July 13, through Wednesday, July 15, between the hours of 
10:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Setup shall be completed by 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

F. To provide a photo opportunity with the “Queen Bee” each Thursday of the 2015 OC Fair between the hours of 12:00 
p.m. – 4:00 p.m.   Contractor is not responsible for providing photography equipment or printing of photos. 
 

G. To supply educational materials for the exhibit and provide all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

H. To provide jars of honey for purchase, as available.  To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health 
Care Agency to ensure the exhibit is at all times operating within the parameters set by this Agency.  
 

I. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, August 17, 2015, between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 
4:00 p.m.  
 

J. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide one (1) approximately 10’ x 10’ exhibit space at the Centennial Farm.  Final size and location to be 

determined by the District. 

B. To provide table(s) and chair(s), as necessary. 

C. To allow Contractor to sell honey-related items, including jars of honey.  All items must be pre-approved by the District. 

D. To provide admission credentials and parking passes, as necessary. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 3 of 14     

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 

 
-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 4 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 5 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 6 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 7 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 8 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 9 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 10 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 11 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 12 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority  
 

I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 13 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-211-15FT 
OCLOCALHONEY.COM  
PAGE 14 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



  R______ A______ F______        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 

SA-212-15FT 
AM. NO. 
 
 

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 

 
REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE TO: 

32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding   

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
THE PLANT STAND 

 

2.  The agreement term is from              07/13/15             through             08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     - 0 -      pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and agrees to 
comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Gardening Display at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610     GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language  

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  
 

THE PLANT STAND 
BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Kelly Dougherty, General Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2972 Century Place, Unit A, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
(714) 966-0797 

FUND TITLE 
 
N/A 

ITEM 
 
N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 2 of 14     

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide an informative gardening exhibit to educate the public at Centennial Farm from July 17 – August 16 for the 
2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit during operational hours, 
including Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturdays and Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. – 8:00 
p.m. 
 

C. To provide to the District by Monday, July 13, 2015, Contractor’s exhibit staffing schedule, including names, dates and 
time slots.   
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To set up the demonstration area beginning Monday, July 13, through Wednesday, July 15, between the hours of  
7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Setup shall be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

F. To provide demonstrations Wednesdays through Sundays of the 2015 OC Fair.  Demonstrations shall take place three 
(3) times per day for 30-40 minutes approximately two (2) hours apart. Exact times shall be determined and 
communicated by the District. 
 

G. To provide all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

H. To provide tools, supplies and equipment for demonstrations and gardening displays. 
 

I. To provide District-approved promotional materials for patrons, as available.  
 

J. To provide gardening items for purchase, as available.  Contractor must receive approval from the District for all retail 
items. 
 

K. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, August 17, 2015, between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 
4:00 p.m.  
 

L. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide one (1) approximately 20’ x 20’ exhibit space at the Centennial Farm.  Final size and location to be 

determined by the District. 

B. To provide table(s) and chair(s), as necessary. 

C. To provide signage with Contractor’s name and contact information. 

D. To allow Contractor to sell gardening-relating items without any commission owed to the District.  All items must be 
pre-approved by the District. 

E. To provide credentials and parking passes, as necessary. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 3 of 14     

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not Applicable. 
 

 
-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 4 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 5 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 6 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 7 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 8 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 9 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 10 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 11 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 12 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority  
 

I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 13 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-212-15FT 
THE PLANT STAND  
PAGE 14 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-213-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/18/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Sod and Weed Control Exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
John Domenici, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
8211 Munster Dr., Huntington Beach, CA 92646 
(805) 431-2825 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
A. To provide an educational exhibit on the uses and types of sod and weed control at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Saturday, July 18, and 

Sunday, July 19; Saturday, August 1, and Sunday, August 2; and Saturday, August 15, and Sunday, August 16, 2015 
between 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 
 

C. To provide to the District by July 16, 2015, Contractor’s staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots. 
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To provide proof of insurance.   
 

F. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. on the following Saturdays:  July 18, August 
1, and August 15, 2015. 
 

G. To supply sod samples and educational materials for the exhibit and perform all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

H. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on the following Sundays:  July 19, August 2, and August 16, 2015, between 
the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.  
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
A. To provide one (1) exhibit space at Centennial Farm.  Final exhibit size and location shall be determined by the District. 

 
B. To provide table(s) and chair(s) for the exhibit, as necessary. 

 
C. To provide “Ask the Sod Guy” signage for the exhibit. 

 
D. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to Contractor. 
 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-213-15FT 
SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-214-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Sheryllyn McClintock, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
16027 Brookhurst, Unit I-269, Fountain Valley, CA 92843   
(714) 401-7101  

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the Orange County Organic Gardening Club at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC 

Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 
p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

G. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide Contractor with necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-214-15FT 
ORANGE COUNTY ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 
PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-215-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Gordon Harding, Representative 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
103 Garland Springs Rd., Mt. Vernon, Arkansas 72111 or 
2282 S. Palomares Street, Pomona, CA 91766 
(909) 628-6976 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the Los Angeles Mycological Society at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 

p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To provide proof of insurance. 
 

G. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

H. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-215-15FT 
LOS ANGELES MYCOLOGICAL SOCIETY  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-216-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Dorothy Cooper, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
c/o Mary Loesch, 11162 Saratoga Dr., Los Alamitos, CA 90720 
(714) 901-3171 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the California Organic Gardening Club at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 

p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To provide proof of insurance. 
 

G. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

H. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-216-15FT 
CALIFORNIA ORGANIC GARDENING CLUB  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-217-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Scott LaFleur, Director of the Garden  

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2647 East Coast Highway, Corona Del Mar, CA 92625-2103 
(949) 673-2262 Ext. 301 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the Sherman Library and Gardens at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 

p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To provide proof of insurance. 
 

G. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

H. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-217-15FT 
SHERMAN LIBRARY AND GARDENS  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-218-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Candy Nakanishi, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
c/o Bobbie West, 10550 Western Ave., #133, Stanton, CA 90680 
(714) 816-0717 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the American Begonia Society-Doug Frost Branch at Centennial Farm for the 2015 

OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 
p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

G. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 

D. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing evidence of 
coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-218-15FT 
AMERICAN BEGONIA SOCIETY-DOUG FROST BRANCH  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-219-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/14/15 through          07/20/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $          - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Display at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Lorraine Jones, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
c/o Bobbie West, 10550 Western Ave., #133, Stanton, CA 90680 
(714) 816-0717 

FUND TITLE 
 
 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
A. To provide an educational display about the Whittier Begonia Society at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed demonstrations, educational talks and public interaction at the exhibit on Friday, July 17, from 12:00 

p.m.  – 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, July 18, and Sunday, July 19, from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
 

C. To set up the demonstration area between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14, and Wednesday, July 
15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 
 

D. To provide to the District by July 13, 2015, a staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots.   
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To maintain the display throughout the term of the contract. Maintenance shall include signage, educational materials and all 
necessary cleaning. 
 

G. To remove the exhibit and all display materials on Monday, July 20, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Garden Clubs in the Community area.  Final exhibit space size and location to be determined 

by the District. 
 

B. To provide one (1) eight (8)-foot table and two (2) chairs. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes. 
 

D. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing evidence of 
coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-219-15FT 
WHITTIER BEGONIA SOCIETY  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-220-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/16/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $       150.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $     150.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Animal Boarding 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Patricia Williams, Advisor 

ADDRESS 
 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
Orange High School Agriculture Department 
525 North Shaffer Street, Orange, CA 92867 
(714) 397-2912

FUND TITLE 
 

Operating 

ITEM 
 

5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
A. To board one (1) Holstein Heifer and one (1) ram at the Orange High School Farm from July 16 – August 17, 2015. 

 
B. To pick up one (1) Holstein Heifer and one (1) ram from the Centennial Farm on Thursday, July 16, 2015, at a time to be 

mutually determined by the District and Contractor. 
 

C. To support the wellbeing and safety of animals by providing pens, feed, troughs to hold feed, clean water, troughs to hold 
water, and general security. 
 

D. To notify the Centennial Farm Supervisor of any issues that may arise while animals are in Contractor’s care. 
 

E. To return animals to the Centennial Farm on Monday, August 17, 2015, at a time to be mutually determined by the District 
and Contractor. 
 

F. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
A. To pay the Contractor a total sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($150.00) upon satisfactory completion 

of services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via US mail. 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62 – Livestock 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45639.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-220-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-221-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
STEVE MILLER 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/17/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      2,300.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   2,300.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Milking Demonstrations at Centennial Farm for the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
STEVE MILLER 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Steve Miller  

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
48 Chadron Circle, Ladera Ranch, CA 92694 
(949) 230-0105 

FUND TITLE 
 
Centennial Farm 

ITEM 
 
5100-42 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide milking demonstration services at Centennial Farm from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. Milking demonstrations shall take place in the Millennium Barn at the following times: 
 

 Wednesdays, Thursdays and Fridays: 2:30 p.m., 4:30 p.m., and 6:30 p.m. 
 Saturdays and Sundays: 12:30 p.m., 2:30 p.m., 4:30 p.m., and 6:30 p.m.  
 

C. To staff Century Barn between milking demonstration times in order to provide information to the public regarding dairy 
cows, the California Dairy Industry, and related details. 
 

D. Contractor fee is inclusive of all services rendered as well as all travel and meal expenses incurred during the term of the 
Agreement. 

 
E. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide cows and staff to milk the cows utilizing the two (2)-stall milking parlor house in the Millennium Barn. 
 

B. To provide a PA system for milking demonstrations. 
 

C. To provide necessary admission and parking credentials to Contractor. 
 

D. To provide uniforms to Contractor. 
 

E. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing evidence of 
coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 

F. To pay TWO THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,300.00) upon satisfactory completion of services herein 
required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the postal service. 
 
 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-42 – Centennial Farm 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45640.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-221-15FT 
STEVE MILLER  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-222-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 

 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/10/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      3,500.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   3,500.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Patricia Williams, Advisor 

ADDRESS 
 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
Orange High School Agriculture Department 
525 North Shaffer Street, Orange, CA 92867 
(949) 837-3722 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 





SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
A. To provide an educational exhibit to inform the public about livestock animals in the Livestock area at the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
B. To provide fully-staffed educational talks, public interaction, and adult supervision to oversee the work of the Contractor’s 

Agriculture Booster members at the exhibit, Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. and Saturdays – 
Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.   
 

C. To provide staffing schedule including names, dates and time slots by July 13, 2015. 
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To provide proof of liability insurance as required by the District. 
 

F. To set up the demonstration area on Monday, August 10, 2015, at a time to be arranged with Livestock Supervisor. 
 

G. To supply tools, equipment and/or tack necessary to maintain exhibit, including daily cleaning, feeding, providing fresh water 
and monitoring of animals. 

 
H. To follow all rules and regulations of the Livestock Department and the District, including but not limited to dress code, cell 

phone use during on-duty hours, and interaction with the public and general duties. 
 

I. To perform all necessary cleaning after each session. 
 

J. To remove the exhibit and all display materials by Sunday, August 16, 2015, at a time to be arranged with the Livestock 
Supervisor.  Contractor must receive approval from the District prior to teardown. 
 

K. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective. Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
A. To provide exhibit space in the Livestock North & South Beef Barns and Swine Tent areas. 

 
B. To provide signage with Contractor’s name and contact information. 

 
C. To provide feed (alfalfa hay) and bedding for animals on display. 

 
D. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to Contractor. 

 
E. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,500.00) upon satisfactory 

completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via US mail. 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62 – Livestock 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45641.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
  



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-222-15FT 
ORANGE AGRICULTURE BOOSTERS 
PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-223-15YR 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             09/01/14 through          08/31/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $  3,400.00 IN KIND TRADE    pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $         Taxes $          Other $  3,400.00 IN KIND TRADE     (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Loan of Cows and Donation of Calves in Trade for 2015 OC Fair Concert Tickets 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Brad Scott, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
18051 Gilman Springs Rd., Moreno Valley, CA 92555 
(951) 692-5983 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 2 of 13 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To donate four (4) dairy calves in good condition and health for the 2014-2015 Centennial Farm education tour season.   
 

B. To loan five (5) dairy cows for daily educational milking demonstrations taking place in the Millennium Barn during the 2015 
OC Fair.   
 

C. To deliver and pick-up animals at a date and time mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the District. 
 

D. Contractor shall bear all responsibility for circumstances that arise during delivery and pick-up of animals.  This includes, but 
is not limited to, injury, death, and/or damage. 
 

E. Contractor represents and warrants that to his/her knowledge, each animal provided in this agreement is serviceably sound, 
gentle and healthy and that none of the animals has dangerous habits or characteristics. 
 

F. Contractor shall be available by phone for consultation regarding problematic animals, including, but not limited to, sickness, 
injuries, and/or working habits. 

 
G. Contractor agrees to replace calves/cows that are deemed unsuitable for the program after reasonable efforts to resolve the 

problem(s) between both parties have been exhausted.  Replacement of said animal(s) shall be within a reasonable length 
of time as agreed upon by both parties at time of replacement decision.  A replacement fee shall be mutually agreed upon 
by both parties. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To support the wellbeing and safety of said animals by providing pens, feed, troughs to hold feed, water, troughs to hold 
water, and general security. 
 

B. To notify Contractor that an animal(s) may need to be replaced for non-suitability within the first ten (10) days from delivery 
date.  

 
C. To incur the costs of veterinary services, as necessary, while the animals remain in sole care of the District. 

 
D. To assume responsibility for any injury, illness or death of any calf/cow while animals are in the District’s sole care and 

possession.  District shall make payment in accordance with negotiated settlement by District and Contractor in good faith 
depending on the extent of injury or sickness.  Should death occur, the replacement value shall be mutually agreed upon by 
both parties for any loaned animals. 

 
E. To furnish Contractor with evidence of insurance coverage for the duration of the contract term. 

 
F. To provide four (4) house seat tickets for the following concerts in the Pacific Amphitheatre: 

a. July 22, 2015 – Charlie XCX/Bleachers 
b. July 23, 2015 – The Band Perry/Annie McQueen 
c. July 24, 2015 – Steve Miller Band 
d. July 30, 2015 – The Offspring/The Interrupters 

 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 3 of 13 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
 

BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
N/A 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 4 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 5 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 6 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 7 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 8 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 9 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 10 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 11 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 12 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-223-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 13 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-224-15YR 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             09/01/15 through          08/31/16 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $  3,400.00 IN KIND TRADE    pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $         Taxes $          Other $  3,400.00 IN KIND TRADE     (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Loan of Cows and Donation of Calves in Trade for 2016 OC Fair Concert Tickets 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Brad Scott, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
18051 Gilman Springs Rd., Moreno Valley, CA 92555 
(951) 692-5983 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 2 of 13 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To donate four (4) dairy calves in good condition and health for the 2015-2016 Centennial Farm education tour season.   
 

B. To loan five (5) dairy cows for daily educational milking demonstrations taking place in the Millennium Barn during the 2016 
OC Fair.   
 

C. To deliver and pick-up animals at a date and time mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the District. 
 

D. Contractor shall bear all responsibility for circumstances that arise during delivery and pick-up of animals.  This includes, but 
is not limited to, injury, death, and/or damage. 
 

E. Contractor represents and warrants that to his/her knowledge, each animal provided in this agreement is serviceably sound, 
gentle and healthy and that none of the animals has dangerous habits or characteristics. 
 

F. Contractor shall be available by phone for consultation regarding problematic animals, including, but not limited to, sickness, 
injuries, and/or working habits. 

 
G. Contractor agrees to replace calves/cows that are deemed unsuitable for the program after reasonable efforts to resolve the 

problem(s) between both parties have been exhausted.  Replacement of said animal(s) shall be within a reasonable length 
of time as agreed upon by both parties at time of replacement decision.  A replacement fee shall be mutually agreed upon 
by both parties. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To support the wellbeing and safety of said animals by providing pens, feed, troughs to hold feed, water, troughs to hold 
water, and general security. 
 

B. To notify Contractor that an animal(s) may need to be replaced for non-suitability within the first ten (10) days from delivery 
date.  

 
C. To incur the costs of veterinary services, as necessary, while the animals remain in sole care of the District. 

 
D. To assume responsibility for any injury, illness or death of any calf/cow while animals are in the District’s sole care and 

possession.  District shall make payment in accordance with negotiated settlement by District and Contractor in good faith 
depending on the extent of injury or sickness.  Should death occur, the replacement value shall be mutually agreed upon by 
both parties for any loaned animals. 

 
E. To furnish Contractor with evidence of insurance coverage for the duration of the contract term. 

 
F. To provide four (4) house seat tickets for approximately four (4) concerts in the Pacific Amphitheatre during the 2016 OC 

Fair.  Final concerts shall be mutually determined by Contractor and the District. 
 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 3 of 13 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
 

BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
N/A 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 4 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 5 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 6 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 7 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 8 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 9 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 10 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 11 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 12 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-224-15YR 
SCOTT BROTHERS DAIRY FARMS  

PAGE 13 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



  R______ A______ F______        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 

SA-225-15FT 
AM. NO. 
 
 

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 

 REGISTRATION NUMBER 

 
 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE TO: 

32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding   

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 

PREHISTORIC, INC. 
 

2.  The agreement term is from              06/29/15             through             08/19/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     - 0 -     pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $       - 0 - 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and agrees to 
comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.  

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED 
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Reptile Exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*SF 610     GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language  

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  
 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or  
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Jay Brewer, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
18822 Brookhurst Street, Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
(714) 402-4444 

FUND TITLE 
 

Operating 

ITEM 
 

N/A 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 14     

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide a Reptile Exhibit in the Explorium:  Destination Kids tent from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

B. To set up the display between Monday, June 29, 2015, and Wednesday, July 15, 2015.  Setup must be completed by 
6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 15, 2015. 

C. All display equipment and materials, including the large display dinosaur, shall be kept within Contractor’s space inside 
the Explorium:  Destination Kids tent. 

D. Reptile cases shall be elevated on pallets above water damage levels. 

E. To staff the exhibit during all hours of operation. 

F. Staff shall not remove reptiles from assigned exhibit space or Explorium:  Destination Kids tent during operating hours. 

G. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

H. To begin removal of exhibit no earlier than 11:59 p.m. on Sunday, August 16, 2015.  Contractor must receive approval 
from the District prior to tearing down display.  Final removal shall take place by Wednesday, August 19, 2015.          

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide one (1) space for demonstration, exhibit and retail purposes in the Explorium:  Destination Kids tent at no 
cost to Contractor.  Final size and location of tent to be determined by the District. 

B. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to Contractor. 

C. To allow Contractor to take and sell photographs. 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 14     

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
N/A 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
N/A 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 

13. COMPENSATION:  
The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 14     

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  
a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 

must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 14     

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority  
 

I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must 
be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid 
gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid 
gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without 
any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival 
Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, 
Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and 
liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits 
per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at 
all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time 
or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said 
expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less 
than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of 
insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no 
work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this 
contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is 
in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which 
become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



SA-225-15FT 
PREHISTORIC, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 14     

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess 
of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract 
documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  
The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival 
Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from 
each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant 
events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-
related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or 
scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                  R_____ A_____ F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-226-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1428033 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION dba MODSPACE 

2. The term of this         07/07/15 through 08/31/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $10,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To rent five (5) office trailers to the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association (“District”) for the 2015 OC Fair. Additional Scope of Work continued on page 2. 

Pages 1 – 4 
 

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9  

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement)  Pages 13 – 15 

 Exhibit F – Office Trailer Unit Specifications (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 16 

   

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION dba MODSPACE  
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Angel Meenan, Contract Analyst  
ADDRESS  
11115 Hemlock Avenue, Fontana, CA  92337 
(800) 523-7918 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 2 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To rent to the District five (5) office trailers (“Units”) from July 7 – August 31 for the 2015 OC Fair.  

2. To provide the rental Units according to the following quantities, delivery and pick-up dates: 

Location Quantity 
Delivery 

Date 
Pick-up 

Date 
Billing Period 

Begins 
Billing 

Period Ends 
Total Billing 

Period 

Hangar Building - Backstage Two (2)  07/07/15 08/20/15 07/07/15 08/20/15 1.5 Months 
Action Sports Arena - A 
(Through Gate 7) 

One (1) 07/13/15 07/20/15 07/13/15 07/20/15 0.25 Months 
Action Sports Arena - B 
(Through Gate 7) 

One (1) 07/13/15 08/17/15 07/13/15 08/17/15 1.25 Months 

Gate Operations Trailer One (1) 07/13/15 08/19/15 07/13/15 08/19/15 1.25 Months 

3. The rental rate and “one-time fees” submitted in Contractor’s quote dated June 10, 2015 and listed in the table below 
are inclusive of all equipment, step rental, personal property expense, fuel, materials, tools, labor, taxes, and any other 
fees necessary for the delivery, installation, rental period, removal and pick-up of five (5) Units. 

QTY Unit Description Monthly Fee Per Item Tax Months

All Units Rental 

(Incl. Tax)

2 EA 8X20 Trailer 286.41$                 22.91$               1.5 927.97$                       

1 EA 8X28 Trailer 241.63$                 19.33$               0.25 65.24$                         

1 EA 8X28 Trailer 241.63$                 19.33$               1.25 326.20$                       

1 EA 12x60 Trailer 370.77$                 29.66$               1.25 500.54$                       

1,819.95$                   

QTY Unit Description Fee Tax

5 EA Fuel Charge 18.00$                  1.44$               

4 EA Transportation of Building 359.00$                28.72$             

1 EA

Transportation of Building 

(12x60) 453.00$                 36.24$              

24 EA Anchor Installation 70.00$                  5.60$               

2 EA Block and Level (8x28) 80.00$                   6.40$                

1 EA Block and Level (12x60) 125.00$                 10.00$              

QTY Unit Description Fee Tax

5 EA Fuel Charge 18.00$                  1.44$               

4 EA Transportation of Building 359.00$                28.72$             

1 EA

Transportation of Building 

(12x60) 453.00$                 36.24$              

24 EA Remove Anchors 20.00$                  1.60$               

2 EA Unblock (8x28) 80.00$                   6.40$                

1 EA Unblock (12x60) 125.00$                 10.00$               135.00$                                           

489.24$                                           

489.24$                                           

1,550.88$                                       

1,814.40$                                       

518.40$                                           

135.00$                                           

172.80$                                           

2,963.52$                                       

$9,042.99Grand Total (Inclusive of all Rental, Fees, Equipment, and Tax):

Total Rental (All Equipment, Full Rental Term):

Total One‐Time Delivery/Installation Fees: 

Total One‐Time Removal/Return Delivery Fees: 

Delivery & Installation (One‐Time Items)

Removal & Return Delivery (One‐Time Items)

4,259.52$                                       

Total One‐Time Removal & 

Return Delivery Fees

97.20$                                             

Monthly Fees

Total One‐Time Delivery & 

Installation Fees

97.20$                                             

172.80$                                           

1,550.88$                                       

 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 3 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 

4. The District reserves the right to modify the rental period.  Reduced and/or additional costs, if any, will be mutually 
agreed upon by Contractor and the District. For the purposes of determining the not to exceed Agreement total, the 
“Grand Total” in Paragraph 3 above, is based on the rental period for all Units and associated equipment. The District 
shall only be charged for actual services rendered. The rental cost is to be pro-rated at a daily rate for any rental less 
than thirty (30) days. The monthly billing cycle begins the first day the rental unit is delivered and ends the day the unit 
is available for removal. The District shall not be charged any additional fees and/or early termination charges in the 
event of early termination of the rental period. 

5. To provide the Units as specified in this Agreement and according to the specifications provided in Contractor’s quote 
dated June 10, 2015. 

6. The Units shall occupy various locations within District property, as specified herein.  Contractor shall obtain approval 
from the District prior to the installation of any equipment that differs from the exact requirements below: 

a. Trailer Unit Dimension: 8’ x 20’; HVAC; Stairs/Handrails 
b. Trailer Unit Dimension: 8’ x 20’; HVAC; Stairs/Handrails 
c. Trailer Unit Dimension: 8’ x 28’; Two (2) Rooms; HVAC; Stairs/Handrails 
d. Trailer Unit Dimension: 8’ x 28’; Two (2) Rooms; HVAC; Stairs/Handrails 
e. Trailer Unit Dimension: 8’ x 28’; Three (3) Rooms – One (1) Large Middle Room and One (1) Small Room on 

Each End; HVAC; Stairs/Handrails; Two (2) Doors, Same Side; Carpet  

7. Seismic Ties: 

a. The utilization of seismic tie-downs is required for each Unit. 
b. Tie-down stakes shall be wholly removed by Contractor using a method pre-approved by the District. Removal 

of stakes by employing superficial or surface cutting is not acceptable. 
c. The District shall be responsible for patching holes resulting from seismic tie removal. 

8. Contractor shall be responsible for Unit placement, and installation and removal of all decking, stairs, seismic ties, etc. 

9. All deliveries and pick-ups shall take place between the hours 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. unless otherwise directed by the 
District.  

10. Each delivery/pick-up must be completed on the date and/or time specified, unless otherwise agreed upon by the 
District. 

11. Contractor shall provide Units that are in good condition and Units shall be delivered clean and ready to use. 

12. Contractor is responsible to ensure all necessary anchors and tie downs are installed in accordance with State 
approved foundation plans. 

13. Units are California State approved commercial coaches. 

14. Invoices shall be submitted following removal of each Unit and the District shall submit payment within thirty (30) days 
of completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice.  

15. The Units shall be referred to and billed separately using the following Unit names: 

a. Hangar Building – Backstage: Two (2) Units  
b. Action Sports Arena – A (Through Gate 7):  One (1) Unit 
c. Action Sports Arena – B (Through Gate 7):  One (1) Unit 
d. Gate Operations Trailer:  One (1) Unit 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 4 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 

16. Contractor shall bear all responsibility for theft, damage, injury, or death arising during the Contractor’s delivery, 
installation, removal, Contractor’s improper maintenance of Unit(s) and/or return delivery of Units unless such theft, 
damage, injury, or death is the direct result of Districts’ negligence or willful misconduct. 

17. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Contractor access for delivery, installation, and removal of the Units. 

2. Except as otherwise stated herein, the District shall assume liability for all risk of loss or damage to the Units while 
Units are in the District’s sole possession. 

3. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) based upon the rates as 
shown in the Contractor’s proposal dated June 10, 2015. 

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 5 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: Distribution 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
Invoices shall be submitted following the removal of each Unit. 
 
Invoice shall be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45667.  Invoice may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 6 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this 
Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any 
way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by 
reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal 
accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any 
state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even 
though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be 
obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State 
with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & 
Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its 
employees or agents.) 
 

6. DISPUTES:  
Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 

 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted 
from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon 
demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 7 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or 
sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  
With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, 
or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the 
California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set 
forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor 
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions 
Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of 
goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such 
assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the 
bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 8 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor 
but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 
portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address 
of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from 
the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the 
actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: 
It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” 
as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 9 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination 
of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor 
Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 10 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of 
child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of 
perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of 
Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting 
agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s 
compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor 
has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency 
to provide goods or services. 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 11 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or 
any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position 
in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment 
of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the 
ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 12 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder 
not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to 
air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 13 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 14 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such 
insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter 
under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



 
SA-226-15FT 
MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION  
dba MODSPACE  
PAGE 15 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-227-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the State. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/20/15 through          08/03/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $     2,000.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   2,000.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Setup and Teardown of Swine Tent in Livestock for the 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Matthew Pawlak, Farm Operations  

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
1100 Grand Avenue, Walnut, CA 91789 
(213) 663-2383 

FUND TITLE 
 
Livestock 

ITEM 
 
5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 2 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide setup and removal services for the Swine Tent located in Livestock at the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To provide the completion of the following: 
 
 Monday, July 20, 2015 – Set up the Swine Tent pen beginning at 7:00 a.m. 
 Monday, August 3, 2015 – Tear down the Swine Tent pen beginning at 7:00 a.m. 
 

C. To provide a minimum of six (6) Mt. San Antonio College students and one (1) adult for service under the direction of the 
Livestock Department 
 

D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have all been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each certified by the Contractor not to be a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To provide the necessary tools (i.e. 9/16 wrenches, linesman pliers) needed in order to complete tasks assigned. 
 

F. To complete and return to the District, proper applications of employee documentation as needed and directed. 
 

G. To support policies and decisions of District Management. 
 

H. Contractor fee is inclusive of all services rendered as well as all travel and meal expenses incurred during the term of the 
Agreement. 
 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide one (1) Supervisor from the Livestock Department and at least two (2) OC Fair personnel to oversee the work 
and operate forklifts, electric carts, and/or other State vehicles. 
 

B. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of 
services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the postal service. 
 
 

 
 

- End Exhibit A - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 3 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62 – Livestock 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45671.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

  



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 4 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 9 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 10 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-227-15FT 
MT. SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  

PAGE 13 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-228-15HB 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1428276 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 

2. The term of this         07/26/15 through 07/26/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $15,250.00 Inclusive of Backline Buyout
 of this Agreement is: ($15,000.00 FLAT PLUS $250.00 Backline Buyout)
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Aer” on stage at the Hangar Building on Sunday, Pages 1 – 3  
 July 26, for the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  4 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Hangar House Rider (Insurance Requirements) (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
BY (Authorized Signature) 


DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
c/o Patrick McAuliff, Agent                                                     13109  
ADDRESS  
Monterey International, Inc. 
200 West Superior, Suite 202, Chicago, IL  60654 
(312) 640-7500 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 4 of 16 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5770-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Sunday, July 26, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Sunday, July 26, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received by 
the District. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 5 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 6 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 7 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 8 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 9 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 10 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 11 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 12 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 13 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist, and Contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Artist”) shall adhere to all starting and ending times as 
indicated in this Agreement. 
 

CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:30 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the CEO of the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association (hereinafter referred to as “District”) prior to the performance. If this curfew is not adhered 
to, Artist shall be liable and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall 
be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) for any period thereafter. 
 

PAYMENT 
Artist shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no check 
cashing shall be authorized.  Artists who are non-residents of California will be subject to State withholding by the 
Franchise Tax Board at a rate of seven percent (7%) unless a Form 590 has been completed and returned to the District 
at least ten (10) days prior to the performance date. 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no exceptions 
to this stated time. This requirement is necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the State of 
California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff’s Department.  
 

DECIBEL LEVEL 
Sound pressure levels must not exceed: 

1. 85 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at directly backstage.  Random readings will be taken 
throughout sound check and performance.  

2. 95 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at FOH. 
3. 55 dB, LEQ average in surrounding neighborhoods (distance is typically 1,000 feet or more from the Hangar FOH 

location). 
4. If any one (1) of the above conditions is exceeded, regardless of compliance in the remaining areas, Artist will be 

asked to reduce levels to comply. 
 

House sound will include stage monitors.  District Agrees to use Artist’s monitor system, at Artist’s request, at no additional 
cost to the District. 
 

Artist shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the concert 
operate within the sound restrictions.  Artist agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of sound level 
exceedance by either the District, or a designated sound monitor or other designee, Artist shall immediately adjust the 
sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur within 
concert performance after such notification, Artist agrees to immediately terminate the concert. 
 

In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercise of its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the concert performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the 
sound restrictions. 
 

MEDIA – WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Artist place specific information about the contracted event at the OC Fair on its website.  
Information should include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performance(s) at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair 
website (www.ocfair.com). 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the Artist consent to at least one (1), fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a local 
radio station in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Radio station to be selected by the District.  Please contact 
the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the interview. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 14 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of Artist’s 
representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for news purposes only. The District 
actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall be allowed to 
photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use 
of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Artist agrees to use District-provided industry standard sound and lighting equipment. Any other expense for gear and 
associated labor to install, strike or cause any other expense is at the sole cost of the Artist. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District may provide, but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated 
in this Agreement. 

 
HOSPITALITY 
The District may provide meal service, when contracted, chosen from a District-determined menu.  District will use Artist’s 
contract rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served. Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request. Additional food and beverage service (i.e., tour bus food service) may be requested by the 
Artist at the Artist’s expense from the on-site caterer. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco 
products as a part of this Agreement. 
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CDs is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Please contact the Production Office for merchandising contact. 
  
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Artist’s sponsorships.  Artists who have a sponsor will receive one-
half (1/2) the number of signs, posters, impressions compared to the number of the District’s sponsor.  Artist’s sponsorship 
signage may be used only with District Management’s approval.  The District’s CEO and sponsorship manager shall be 
notified prior to the signing of this Agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  Artists shall not receive any 
revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Hangar is eligible for two (2) sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate number 
and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Hangar. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligations are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Hangar or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any unforeseen 
fulfillment of this Agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Artist impossible.  If such an occurrence 
shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the District and the 
Artist, then the Artist shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one (1) show only is presented and 
condition(s) beyond the control of the Artist and District which would prevent the start of the show at the scheduled time it 
is mutually agreed that the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition and to present 
herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 15 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Artist warrants that it maintains Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees as required by law. Prior to date of 
performance, all performers shall submit to the District proof of valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of 
their employees, unless performer has certified on Payee Data Record – STD. 204, that he/she is a sole proprietor and 
has no employees.   It is mutually agreed that the District is relying upon the Artist’s specific representation and warranty 
that it has the proper Workers Compensation Insurance and that the Artist will indemnify and hold harmless the District in 
the event it did not have the insurance. 
 
Artist further certifies that by signing this Agreement, Artist will comply with such provisions under Section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before 
commencing the performance of this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  

“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 

(6) performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 

Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.   

Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed by (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation. Artist shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 



SA-228-15HB 
AER TOURING, INC. F/S/O AER 
PAGE 16 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Artist shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. All Artist names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums 
must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot be made after the contract has been finalized. 
 
Artist will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or advertising material.  All Artist guidelines must be 
outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artist’s management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  
 
ARTIST COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide the Artist with a reasonable number of complimentary concert tickets. The amount will be 
negotiated at the point of booking and any tickets past that amount must be purchased by the Artist.   Should the show 
carry a co-headliner, support or an opening act, that number will be reduced proportionately.  Artist’s guests will be subject 
to a parking charge at the event.  If available, the Artist may purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. 
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artist’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Artist or Artist’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind Artist to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to 
perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to provide the services of the 
Artist shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation “F/S/O” (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_____________________________________________         ____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or         Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-229-15HB 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1428247 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 

2. The term of this         07/30/15 through 07/30/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $12,750.00  
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Easy Star All-Stars” on stage at the Hangar Building on Pages 1 – 3  
 Thursday, July 30, for the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  4 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Hangar House Rider (Insurance Requirements) (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
BY (Authorized Signature) 


DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
c/o David Strunk, Agent                                                         44577       
ADDRESS  
The Agency Group Ltd. 
1880 Century Park East, Suite 711, Los Angeles, CA  90067 
(310) 385-2800 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 4 of 16 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5770-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Thursday, July 30, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Thursday, July 30, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 5 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 6 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 7 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 8 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 9 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 10 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 11 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 12 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 13 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist, and Contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Artist”) shall adhere to all starting and ending times as 
indicated in this Agreement. 
 

CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:30 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the CEO of the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association (hereinafter referred to as “District”) prior to the performance. If this curfew is not adhered 
to, Artist shall be liable and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall 
be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) for any period thereafter. 
 

PAYMENT 
Artist shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no check 
cashing shall be authorized.  Artists who are non-residents of California will be subject to State withholding by the 
Franchise Tax Board at a rate of seven percent (7%) unless a Form 590 has been completed and returned to the District 
at least ten (10) days prior to the performance date. 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no exceptions 
to this stated time. This requirement is necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the State of 
California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff’s Department.  
 

DECIBEL LEVEL 
Sound pressure levels must not exceed: 

1. 85 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at directly backstage.  Random readings will be taken 
throughout sound check and performance.  

2. 95 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at FOH. 
3. 55 dB, LEQ average in surrounding neighborhoods (distance is typically 1,000 feet or more from the Hangar FOH 

location). 
4. If any one (1) of the above conditions is exceeded, regardless of compliance in the remaining areas, Artist will be 

asked to reduce levels to comply. 
 

House sound will include stage monitors.  District Agrees to use Artist’s monitor system, at Artist’s request, at no additional 
cost to the District. 
 

Artist shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the concert 
operate within the sound restrictions.  Artist agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of sound level 
exceedance by either the District, or a designated sound monitor or other designee, Artist shall immediately adjust the 
sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur within 
concert performance after such notification, Artist agrees to immediately terminate the concert. 
 

In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercise of its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the concert performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the 
sound restrictions. 
 

MEDIA – WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Artist place specific information about the contracted event at the OC Fair on its website.  
Information should include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performance(s) at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair 
website (www.ocfair.com). 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the Artist consent to at least one (1), fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a local 
radio station in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Radio station to be selected by the District.  Please contact 
the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the interview. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 14 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of Artist’s 
representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for news purposes only. The District 
actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall be allowed to 
photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use 
of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Artist agrees to use District-provided industry standard sound and lighting equipment. Any other expense for gear and 
associated labor to install, strike or cause any other expense is at the sole cost of the Artist. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District may provide, but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated 
in this Agreement. 

 
HOSPITALITY 
The District may provide meal service, when contracted, chosen from a District-determined menu.  District will use Artist’s 
contract rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served. Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request. Additional food and beverage service (i.e., tour bus food service) may be requested by the 
Artist at the Artist’s expense from the on-site caterer. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco 
products as a part of this Agreement. 
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CDs is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Please contact the Production Office for merchandising contact. 
  
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Artist’s sponsorships.  Artists who have a sponsor will receive one-
half (1/2) the number of signs, posters, impressions compared to the number of the District’s sponsor.  Artist’s sponsorship 
signage may be used only with District Management’s approval.  The District’s CEO and sponsorship manager shall be 
notified prior to the signing of this Agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  Artists shall not receive any 
revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Hangar is eligible for two (2) sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate number 
and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Hangar. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligations are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Hangar or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any unforeseen 
fulfillment of this Agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Artist impossible.  If such an occurrence 
shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the District and the 
Artist, then the Artist shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one (1) show only is presented and 
condition(s) beyond the control of the Artist and District which would prevent the start of the show at the scheduled time it 
is mutually agreed that the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition and to present 
herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 15 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Artist warrants that it maintains Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees as required by law. Prior to date of 
performance, all performers shall submit to the District proof of valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of 
their employees, unless performer has certified on Payee Data Record – STD. 204, that he/she is a sole proprietor and 
has no employees.   It is mutually agreed that the District is relying upon the Artist’s specific representation and warranty 
that it has the proper Workers Compensation Insurance and that the Artist will indemnify and hold harmless the District in 
the event it did not have the insurance. 
 
Artist further certifies that by signing this Agreement, Artist will comply with such provisions under Section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before 
commencing the performance of this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  

“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 

(6) performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 

Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.   

Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed by (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation. Artist shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 



SA-229-15HB 
EASY STAR RECORDS, INC. F/S/O EASY STAR ALL-STARS 
PAGE 16 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Artist shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. All Artist names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums 
must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot be made after the contract has been finalized. 
 
Artist will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or advertising material.  All Artist guidelines must be 
outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artist’s management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  
 
ARTIST COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide the Artist with a reasonable number of complimentary concert tickets. The amount will be 
negotiated at the point of booking and any tickets past that amount must be purchased by the Artist.   Should the show 
carry a co-headliner, support or an opening act, that number will be reduced proportionately.  Artist’s guests will be subject 
to a parking charge at the event.  If available, the Artist may purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. 
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artist’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Artist or Artist’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind Artist to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to 
perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to provide the services of the 
Artist shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation “F/S/O” (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_____________________________________________         ____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or         Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-230-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/01/15 through          06/30/16 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $  5,481.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP                                            pursuant to the following charges:   

Wages/Labor $     Parts/Supplies $      Taxes $     Other $5,481.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP    (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

Nichelle Hagan, Director of Sales & Marketing 
ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2720 Hotel Terrace Drive, Santa Ana, CA 92705 
(714) 556-3838 ext. 151

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-230-15SP 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 
PAGE 2 of 5  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To be a Preferred Hotel Partner of OC Fair & Event Center from July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016. 

2. To provide TWENTY-NINE (29) complementary room nights valued at ($189.00), for a total trade value of FIVE 
THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED AND EIGHTY ONE DOLLARS ($5,481.00).  

3. Complimentary room nights shall be valid for the term of this Agreement. Any complimentary rooms not reserved 
and used by June 30, 2016 shall be forfeited unless otherwise agreed to by Sponsor and the District. 

4. Sponsor shall make its best effort to accommodate reservation requests submitted by the District. 

5. Provide a fact-sheet to the OC Fair & Event Center’s Event Services Team to distribute to all event promoters 
who execute an event at the OC Fair and Event Center. 

6. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

7. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To list The Hampton Inn & Suites Santa Ana/Orange County as a preferred hotel of the 2015 OC Fair as well as 
the OC Fair and Event Center from July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016.  

2. Reservations of complimentary room nights are subject to availability and preferably should be made with a 
minimum of seven (7) days advance notice.  

3. All reservations requests are to be sent to Nichele Hagen, Director of Sales & Marketing via email or phone. 

4. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, Daily Schedule, etc. (pending 
deadlines); 

b. In all applicable 2015 print advertising; 

c. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline); and 

d. On the 2015 OC Fair website with a link to the Sponsor booking splash page.  

5. To provide the following hospitality benefits: 

a. Forty (40)  2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets; 

b. One (1) 2015 OC Fair Parking Lot Hang Tag (F-Lot):  

c. Fifteen (15) 2015 OC Fair Parking Passes (Adams Lot);  

d. Thirty (30) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3] rides per card); 

e. Two (2) seats to two (2)  Terrace Level 2015 Pacific Amphitheatre concert (tickets subject to availability);  

f. Two (2) seats to one (1) 2015 Hanger show (tickets subject to availability). 

 

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-230-15SP 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 
PAGE 3 of 5  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-230-15SP 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 
PAGE 4 of 5  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14  business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 
  



SA-230-15SP 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES SANTA ANA/ORANGE COUNTY AIRPORT 
PAGE 5 of 5  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-231-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/17/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $ 6,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP                                     pursuant to the following charges:   

Wages/Labor $     Parts/Supplies $      Taxes $     Other $6,000.00 CASH SPONSORSHIP    (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER  Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Subway Franchise Advertising Fund Trust Terms & Conditions 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

Victoria Clark, Executive Director 
ADDRESS 
 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
325 Bic Drive, Milford, CT 06461 
(203) 877-4281 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-231-15SP 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
PAGE 2 of 6  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To be a Sponsor at the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 - August 16, 2015. 

2. To provide payment in the sum of SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000) as a sponsorship fee, due upon 
execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received by the District within thirty (30) days of Sponsor’s 
receipt of District invoice. 

a. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Sponsor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Subway with Sponsorship of the 2015 OC Fair from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015. 

2. To provide Sponsor with the following signage at the Fairenheit 32º Ice Skating Rink during the 2015 OC Fair 
(signage to be produced/installed by the District): 

a. Two (2) 27” x 37” dasher boards in the rink area  

3. To include Sponsor logo: 

a. In all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Brochure, Daily Schedule, etc. (pending 
deadlines); 

b. In the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadline); and 

c. On the 2015 OC Fair web site with a link to the Sponsor web site. 

4. To include Sponsor in ice rink announcements during each skating session (15 seconds in length). 

 
 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-231-15SP 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
PAGE 3 of 6  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  See Exhibit C – Subway Franchise Advertising Fund Trust Terms & Conditions. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-231-15SP 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
PAGE 4 of 6  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14  business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 
 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 
  



SA-231-15SP 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
PAGE 5 of 6  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
If to Sponsor, to: 325 Bic Drive, Milford, CT 06461 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State and Sponsor mutually reserve the right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement. The both parties shall continue to perform the 
requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event that either party breaches the terms of this agreement, the non-breaching party 

shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs 
incurred in enforcing this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification Sponsor and 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State of 

California and the District’s sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) 
agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other and their officers, employees and agents from and against 
any liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) or claim for injury or damages arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
indemnifying party, its employees, or agents. 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
  



SA-231-15SP 
SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
PAGE 6 of 6  

EXHIBIT C – SUBWAY FRANCHISE ADVERTISING FUND TRUST 
 

A. Sponsor’s Trademarks 
As part of the Sponsorship, Sponsor grants the State a limited non-exclusive license to use certain trademarks owned 
by Doctor’s Associates Inc. (“DAI”) which have been licensed to SFAFT for the purpose of advertising the goods and 
services of SUBWAY® system. The Trademarks include, but are not limited to the following marks registered to DAI in 
the United States and which may be registered in other countries: SUBWAY®, SUBWAY® logo, and SUBWAY EAT 
FRESH® (The “Sponsor Trademarks”). Use of Sponsor Trademarks must be appropriate for, or relate solely to, the 
Sponsorship as outlined in this Agreement. The permissions granted to the State are for the limited purpose of 
promoting the Sponsorship provided that such use is in strict accordance with DAI’s and SFAFT’s policies and is 
subject to the approval of SFAFT and/or DAI. The State agrees to promptly change the manner of such use if 
requested to do so by DAI and/or SFAFT. The State will return any materials belonging to DAI and/or SFAFT to 
Sponsor at the conclusion of the Sponsorship Term or upon request of SFAFT or DAI. The State agrees that the 
Sponsor Trademarks shall not be used in a manner that degrades, diminishes, or detracts from the goodwill of the 
business associated with the Sponsor Trademarks nor shall the State use the Sponsor Trademarks in a manner that 
is scandalous, immoral, or satirical. Nothing in this Agreement grants the State any right, title, or interest in the word 
“SUBWAY” (either alone or in association with other words or names) or in the corporate names “Doctor’s Associates 
Inc.”, and/or “Subway Franchisee Advertising Fund Trust, Ltd.”, or any part thereof, or in any other sponsor Trademark 
adopted by DAI, or any copyright or goodwill of DAI and/or SFAFT. Any rights or purported rights in any of the 
Sponsor Trademarks acquired through the State’s use belong solely to DAI. All rights to use the Sponsor Trademarks 
will cease upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, at which time the State will immediately discontinue its 
use of the Marks. The State shall thereafter not use any of the Sponsor Trademarks or names which are, or any part 
of which are, confusingly similar to the Sponsor Trademarks. 
 

B. Confidentiality 
Confidential Information includes but is not limited to the prices, terms and conditions of this agreement and any 
accompanying Schedule, as well as any information of either party or their respective affiliates which is marked as or 
should be reasonably understood to be confidential/proprietary, including but not limited to the information associated 
with the SUBWAY® trademark, and franchise system (“Confidential Information”). 
 
The State will not disclose Confidential Information except as necessary to employees or affiliates who have a need to 
know the Confidential Information in order to effectuate the terms of this letter, and/or except when required by law, 
including but not limited to California Government Codes 6250-6270, or when the information is, or subsequently 
becomes, publicly available through no breach of The State’s obligations. The State will protect Confidential 
Information with the same degree of care with which it protects its own such information, in no case less than 
reasonable care. 

 
C. Dispute Resolution & Choice of Law 

Any and all claims, disputes or controversies arising out of or relating to this Sponsorship shall be settled exclusively 
by final and binding arbitration at a hearing to be administered by a neutral arbitrator in accordance with the 
Commercial Rules of the American Arbitration Association and to be held in Orange County, California, USA. Such 
claims include, but are not limited to, claims under federal, state, provincial or common law, such as employee law, 
civil rights law, contract law and tort law. 
 
 

- End Exhibit C - 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-232-15HB 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1428310 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 

2. The term of this         08/02/15 through 08/02/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $14,750.00 Inclusive of Backline Buyout
 of this Agreement is: ($14,250.00 FLAT PLUS $500.00 Backline Buyout)
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To present “Under the Streetlamp” on stage at the Hangar Building  Pages 1 – 3  
 on Sunday, August 2, for the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page  4 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 5 – 8 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 9 – 12 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Hangar House Rider (Insurance Requirements) (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 13 – 16 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
BY (Authorized Signature) 


DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           TALENT AGENCY I.D. #  
c/o Noel Largess, Agent                                                         32610 
ADDRESS  
APA, Inc. 
405 S. Beverly Drive, Beverly Hills, CA 90212 
(310) 888-4200 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 







SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 4 of 16 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5770-70 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
To pay Contractor upon satisfactory completion of work herein required on Sunday, August 2, 2015. 
 
Payment will be made by 32nd District Agricultural Association, State of California-issued check on night of performance.   
 
 
Note: Artist will not receive payment on Sunday, August 2, 2015, if a fully signed contract has not been received 
by the District. 

 
 

-End Exhibit B- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 5 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 6 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 7 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 8 of 16 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 9 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 10 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 11 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 12 of 16 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 13 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 
SHOW STARTING TIMES 
Performer, Artist, and Contractor (hereinafter referred to as “Artist”) shall adhere to all starting and ending times as 
indicated in this Agreement. 
 

CURFEW 
There is a strict 10:30 p.m. curfew in effect unless an extension of curfew is approved in writing by the CEO of the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association (hereinafter referred to as “District”) prior to the performance. If this curfew is not adhered 
to, Artist shall be liable and subject to litigation and fines by the State of California for breach of contract. These fines shall 
be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per minute for the first five (5) minutes and an additional ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) for any period thereafter. 
 

PAYMENT 
Artist shall be paid by District check upon completion of performance.  There shall be no cash payments and no check 
cashing shall be authorized.  Artists who are non-residents of California will be subject to State withholding by the 
Franchise Tax Board at a rate of seven percent (7%) unless a Form 590 has been completed and returned to the District 
at least ten (10) days prior to the performance date. 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO FACILITY 
The facility will be open to the public approximately 60 minutes prior to the start of the show.  There shall be no exceptions 
to this stated time. This requirement is necessary to meet safety and crowd control procedures set by the State of 
California Fire Marshal and the Orange County Sheriff’s Department.  
 

DECIBEL LEVEL 
Sound pressure levels must not exceed: 

1. 85 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at directly backstage.  Random readings will be taken 
throughout sound check and performance.  

2. 95 dB, no weighting, averaged over a 5-minute period at FOH. 
3. 55 dB, LEQ average in surrounding neighborhoods (distance is typically 1,000 feet or more from the Hangar FOH 

location). 
4. If any one (1) of the above conditions is exceeded, regardless of compliance in the remaining areas, Artist will be 

asked to reduce levels to comply. 
 

House sound will include stage monitors.  District Agrees to use Artist’s monitor system, at Artist’s request, at no additional 
cost to the District. 
 

Artist shall be bound by the sound covenant and shall at all times during any pre-concert sound checks and the concert 
operate within the sound restrictions.  Artist agrees that upon discovery or notification of any occurrence of sound level 
exceedance by either the District, or a designated sound monitor or other designee, Artist shall immediately adjust the 
sound level to come into compliance with sound level specifications.  If repeated sound level violations occur within 
concert performance after such notification, Artist agrees to immediately terminate the concert. 
 

In addition to the above terms, Artist agrees that the District, in exercise of its discretion and judgment, retains all rights to 
adjust the sound level or terminate the concert performance as it may deem necessary to ensure compliance with the 
sound restrictions. 
 

MEDIA – WEBSITE 
The District requires that the Artist place specific information about the contracted event at the OC Fair on its website.  
Information should include the entertainer’s name, date, time of performance(s) at the OC Fair, and a web link to OC Fair 
website (www.ocfair.com). 
 

MEDIA - INTERVIEW 
The District also requests that the Artist consent to at least one (1), fifteen (15)-minute promotional interview with a local 
radio station in advance of their performance at the OC Fair.  Radio station to be selected by the District.  Please contact 
the District’s Communications Department at (714) 708-1707 to coordinate the interview. 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 14 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 

MEDIA - VIDEO 
Local affiliates of national television networks, upon issuance of proper District press credentials and approval of Artist’s 
representative, shall be allowed to videotape up to three (3) minutes of performance for news purposes only. The District 
actively discourages all non-legitimate videotaping activity. 
 
MEDIA - STILL PHOTOGRAPHY 
Representatives of legitimate press organizations, upon issuance of proper District press credentials, shall be allowed to 
photograph a portion of the performance for review purposes only. The District actively discourages all non-legitimate use 
of still photography. 
 
SOUND AND LIGHTS 
Artist agrees to use District-provided industry standard sound and lighting equipment. Any other expense for gear and 
associated labor to install, strike or cause any other expense is at the sole cost of the Artist. 
 
RENTAL EQUIPMENT 
The District may provide, but will not be responsible for payment of rental equipment, unless otherwise specifically stated 
in this Agreement. 

 
HOSPITALITY 
The District may provide meal service, when contracted, chosen from a District-determined menu.  District will use Artist’s 
contract rider as a guide, but will be the final determiner of the meal that is served. Accommodations will be made for 
vegetarian meals upon request. Additional food and beverage service (i.e., tour bus food service) may be requested by the 
Artist at the Artist’s expense from the on-site caterer. The District will not provide alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco 
products as a part of this Agreement. 
 
MERCHANDISING 
Merchandising sales are subject to 70%/30% split with the venue selling the merchandise.  The split on media/CDs is 
90%/10%.  District will provide adequate point(s) of sale.  Please contact the Production Office for merchandising contact. 
  
 
SPONSORSHIPS 
The District’s sponsorships will take precedence over Artist’s sponsorships.  Artists who have a sponsor will receive one-
half (1/2) the number of signs, posters, impressions compared to the number of the District’s sponsor.  Artist’s sponsorship 
signage may be used only with District Management’s approval.  The District’s CEO and sponsorship manager shall be 
notified prior to the signing of this Agreement of any potential conflicts related to sponsors.  Artists shall not receive any 
revenues from District sponsorships. 
 
The Hangar is eligible for two (2) sponsorships: title and presenting.  The District shall determine the appropriate number 
and size of signs displayed inside and outside of the Hangar. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE CLAUSE 
The District’s obligations are subject to Act of God, violent storms, riots, wars, labor difficulties, epidemics, and act or order 
by any public authority of any cause similar or dissimilar beyond the District’s control, or in the event of the destruction of 
the Hangar or adjoining areas of the Fairgrounds by violent weather, fire, or national or local calamity or any unforeseen 
fulfillment of this Agreement by the District impossible and appearances of the Artist impossible.  If such an occurrence 
shall occur necessitating the cancellation of any show(s) which shall be mutually agreed upon between the District and the 
Artist, then the Artist shall be paid on a prorated basis for shows(s) performed.  When one (1) show only is presented and 
condition(s) beyond the control of the Artist and District which would prevent the start of the show at the scheduled time it 
is mutually agreed that the show can be delayed a maximum of 90 minutes to correct such condition and to present 
herein. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 15 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
Artist warrants that it maintains Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees as required by law. Prior to date of 
performance, all performers shall submit to the District proof of valid Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of 
their employees, unless performer has certified on Payee Data Record – STD. 204, that he/she is a sole proprietor and 
has no employees.   It is mutually agreed that the District is relying upon the Artist’s specific representation and warranty 
that it has the proper Workers Compensation Insurance and that the Artist will indemnify and hold harmless the District in 
the event it did not have the insurance. 
 
Artist further certifies that by signing this Agreement, Artist will comply with such provisions under Section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation claims or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code immediately upon hiring any employee and before 
commencing the performance of this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the performance 
or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, property 
damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, 
(including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable 
provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence 
of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or 
agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents). 
 
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT INDEMNIFICATION  
Artist warrants and represents that no musical, literary, or artistic work or other property protected by copyright will be 
performed, reproduced or used in the performance of this Agreement unless Artist has previously thereto obtained written 
permission from the copyright holder or is otherwise exempt under 17 U.S.C. §§110:  

“notwithstanding the provisions of Section 106, the following are not infringements of copyright:… 

(6) performance of a nondramatic musical work by a governmental body or a nonprofit agricultural or horticultural 
organization, in the course of an annual agricultural or horticultural fair or exhibition conducted by such body or 
organization; the exemption provided by this clause shall extend to any liability for copyright infringement that would 
otherwise be imposed on such body or organization, under doctrines of vicarious liability or related infringement for a 
performance by a concessionaire, business establishment, or other person at such fair or exhibition, but shall not excuse 
any such person from liability for the performance.” 

Artist acknowledges that Artist acts under this Agreement as an independent contractor charged with the responsibility, in 
Artist’s sole discretion, for selection, performance, reproduction and use of such musical, literary and artistic works as 
contractor deems appropriate and that Artist undertakes strict compliance with all laws respecting copyrights and the 
performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.   

Artist warrants that in the performance of this Agreement, Artist will not infringe any statutory, common law or other right of 
any person in performing, reproducing or otherwise making use of any work or material.  Artist will indemnify, save and 
hold harmless the State and its agencies, including District, and their officers, agents, employees and servants from and 
against all claims, costs, and expenses (including legal fees), demands, actions and liability of every kind and character 
whatsoever with respect to copyright and the performance, reproduction and use of musical, literary and artistic works.  
Artist authorizes the withholding of payment under this Agreement pending the final disposition of any claim which may 
result from the foregoing indemnification. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
The performance may be emceed by (i.e. “welcomed by”) a local market radio station personality. In no way shall this be 
considered a “co-promotion” or “presented by” situation. Artist shall be informed of the station selected prior to the 
engagement. 
 



SA-232-15HB 
STAR PRODUCTIONS, LLC F/S/O UNDER THE STREETLAMP 
PAGE 16 of 16 

EXHIBIT E – THE HANGAR HOUSE RIDER / PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (CONT.) 
 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIAL AND ADVERTISING 
Upon receipt of contract, Artist shall provide to the District any and all available materials, specifically to include 
biographical information, photographs, audio and/or video tapes (beta only) for District’s use in promotional, collateral and 
advertising material for this event/performance. 
 
All promotional, collateral and advertising material for the event will be developed and approved by the District. This 
material will be executed in a festival-style approach. All Artist names including spelling, capitalization, and addendums 
must be designated in contracts.  Changes cannot be made after the contract has been finalized. 
 
Artist will not have prior approval of any Fair-related promotional or advertising material.  All Artist guidelines must be 
outlined in contracts and will be incorporated as indicated.   
 
No preferential changes of images provided by Artist’s management or publicity agents will be permitted unless provided 
image is no longer valid due to personnel changes.  
 
ARTIST COMPLIMENTARY TICKETS 
The District will provide the Artist with a reasonable number of complimentary concert tickets. The amount will be 
negotiated at the point of booking and any tickets past that amount must be purchased by the Artist.   Should the show 
carry a co-headliner, support or an opening act, that number will be reduced proportionately.  Artist’s guests will be subject 
to a parking charge at the event.  If available, the Artist may purchase additional tickets through the OC Fair box office. 
 
PROFANE OR OBSCENE LANGUAGE 
This is a State of California facility and all performances will be viewed by adults and children alike.  The use of profane or 
obscene language or gestures will not be tolerated.  Any display of such language or gestures by any performer or their 
representatives while in the view or earshot of the public will be a finable offense subject to one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) per incident and may preclude Contractor from future performance opportunities at the OC Fair.  
 
CONFLICT OF LAWS OR TERMS 
It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California both 
substantive and procedural.  In the case of conflict between the District/State Documents and Artist’s Documents, the 
District/State Documents shall prevail if the parties can not mutually agree upon a resolution of the conflict. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY 
Artist or Artist’s designee as signatory to this Agreement is empowered and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 
and bind Artist to the terms and conditions contained herein.   If the Artist is not signing and contracting in own name to 
perform the entertainment services, then whatever business entity is signing and contracting to provide the services of the 
Artist shall clearly state:  a) the exact name of the business entity; b) the state of incorporation or principal place of 
business; c) followed by the designation “F/S/O” (for the services of) and immediately followed by the name of the 
performing Artist on the preprinted blank line on the first page. 
 
 
_____________________________________________         ____________________________________________ 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or         Artist/Producer/Contractor 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 

 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-233-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1429316 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 

2. The term of this         07/13/15 through 08/17/15 FED ID:   
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $40,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To sell merchandise at the Pacific Amphitheatre and the Hangar  Pages 1 – 2  
 Building during the 2015 OC Fair.  See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 3 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 7 

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 8 – 11 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 12 – 14 

 Exhibit F – Anticipated Merchandise Sales Schedule (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 15 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Prem Shah, Owner 
ADDRESS  
2165 McCormack Lane, Placentia, CA 92870 
(310) 922-0824 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 15 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

1. To sell merchandise at the Pacific Amphitheater and the Hangar Building from July 17 – August 16 for the 2015 OC 
Fair according to the anticipated schedule provided herein as Exhibit F.  Contractor understands and agrees the 
schedule provided herein is subject to change and the District shall only be charged for actual work performed. 

 
2. Contractor’s commission is eight percent (8%) of net merchandise sales transacted by Contractor in fulfillment of this 

Agreement. “Net merchandise sales” equals gross merchandise sales minus eight percent (8%) sales tax. 
 

3. To staff two (2) merchandise booths in the Pacific Amphitheater for twenty-four (24) nights and one (1) booth in the 
Hangar Building, estimated at three (3) to five (5) nights, for the appropriate time frame for each concert. 
 

4. To provide adequate staffing based upon the amount of merchandise anticipated.  Pacific Amphitheatre hours are 
estimated at seven (7) to nine (9) hours per day, with two (2) to three (3) staff at each booth.  The Hangar Building will 
utilize one (1) to two (2) staff.   

 
5. Most concerts will begin at 8:00 p.m. or 8:30 p.m. Some will begin as early as 6:00 p.m. 

 
6. To be responsible for the advance work with each artist/entertainer’s production or merchandise representative. 

 
7. To handle the pre and post-concert inventories. 
 
8. To settle with the merchandise representative at the end of each evening. 
 
9. To submit completed inventories, sales reports, and deposits to the designated District official prior to leaving each 

evening. 
 

10. To provide a change fund for each booth. 
 
11. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 

contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening, and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

12. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 

STATE AGREES: 
 

1. To provide credit card terminals for transactions at the Pacific Amphitheatre and the Hangar Building. 
 

2. To provide appropriate access to concert venues. 
 

3. To provide all necessary credentials, parking passes and photo identification. 
 

4. Contractor’s payment is based upon a merchandise sales commission of eight percent (8%) of net sales after tax has 
been deducted. 
 

5. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($40,000.00) upon satisfactory 
completion of work herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be made Net 30 and delivered via US 
Mail. 

 

-End Exhibit A- 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 15 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 

District Account #:   
 
5100-70 $10,000.00 
5100-72 $30,000.00 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 

Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 
All invoices are to be itemized and include the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45694.  Invoices may be sent via 
email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 
 
  

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 6 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 7 of 15 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 8 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 9 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 10 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 11 of 15 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 12 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 13 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 14 of 15 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



SA-233-15FT  
PREMSTER PRODUCTIONS, LLC 
PAGE 15 of 15 

EXHIBIT F – ANTICIPATED MERCHANDISE SALES SCHEDULE 
 

 
Pacific Amphitheatre at the 2015 OC Fair: 

 
Date Artist 

Thursday, July 16, 2015 America with Pacific Symphony 
Friday, July 17, 2015 Gabriel Iglesias 

Saturday, July 18, 2015 Iration 
Sunday, July 19, 2015 Willie Nelson & Family/ Alison Krauss & Union Station 

Wednesday, July 22, 2015 Charli XCX/Bleachers 
Thursday, July 23, 2015 The Band Perry/ Annie McQueen 

Friday, July 24, 2015 Steve Miller Band 
Saturday, July 25, 2015 Capital Cities/Big Data 

Sunday, July 26, 2015 Happy Together Tour 
Wednesday, July 29, 2015 Spandau Ballet 

Thursday, July 30, 2015 The Offspring 
Friday, July 31, 2015 Three Dog Night 

Saturday, August 01, 2015 The Fab Four- The Ultimate Beatles Tribute 
Sunday, August 02, 2015 Huey Lewis & The News 

Wednesday, August 05, 2015 Juanes 
Thursday, August 06, 2015 Pat Benatar & Neil Giraldo/ Dennis DeYoung 

Friday, August 07, 2015 Echo & The Bunnymen 
Saturday, August 08, 2015 Fifth Harmony 

Sunday, August 09, 2015 Dirty Heads/MAGIC! 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 Deep Purple/Foghat 

Thursday, August 13, 2015 Chris Young/ Danielle Bradberry 
Friday, August 14, 2015 The B-52's/The English Beat 

Saturday, August 15, 2015 Steel Pulse w. the Wailers 
Sunday, August 16, 2015 Austin Mahone w. Kalin and Myles 

 
 
 

The Hangar at the 2015 OC Fair: 
 

Date Artist 
Sunday, July 19, 2015 Seedless / Common Sense 
Sunday, July 26, 2015 AER 

Sunday, August 2, 2015 Under the Streetlamps 
 
 

-End Exhibit F- 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 

SA-235-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

 
Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/15/15 through          08/21/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      21,000.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   21,000.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Electronic Reader Boards for 2015 OC Fair 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List)  See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Dave Coutts, Outside Sales 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
13310 5th Street, Chino, CA 91710 
(909) 591-1781 

FUND TITLE 
 

Operating 

ITEM 
 

Distribution 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 

 





SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
 

A. To provide fifteen (15) rental electronic reader boards to the 32nd District Agricultural Association dba OC Fair & Event 
Center (“District”),for the 2015 OC Fair.  
 

B. The anticipated delivery schedule and electronic reader board specifications are provided herein in the table below. 
 

Super Quantity 
Unit of 

Measure 
Item Description Location  Delivery Pick-Up 

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Fairview / Adams 07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Fairview / Arlington 07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Fairview / Gate 3 
(northbound) 

07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Fairview/ Gate 3 
(southbound) 

07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Gate 1 07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Gate 2 07/15/15 08/19/15

JACK 1 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Monitor Lot (north of Fair) 07/15/15 08/19/15

DOUG 8 EACH 
Electronic LED Board 
- Model 120 only 
- Pintle Hooks 

Cow Camp - OCC 07/29/15 08/10/15

 
C. To rent the electronic reader boards to the District at the four (4) week rental rate of $1,375.00 per unit. The unit price 

includes all delivery/pick-up, sales tax, service and any other fees. Contractor agrees that for any rental period that is less 
than four (4) weeks, a mutually agreed upon weekly rental rate shall be charged. The District reserves the right to modify the 
rental period.  Reduced and/or additional costs, if any, will be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and the District. 

 
D. Unless otherwise agreed to by the District, all deliveries and pick-ups shall take place between 7:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. on the 

dates specified in table in Paragraph B above. The delivery and pick-up dates are critical.  Any delivery/pick-up arriving after 
3:00 p.m. shall be turned away and required to return for delivery/pick-up the following business day at no additional rental, 
freight, or other charge to the District.    

 
E. To provide service to each electronic reader board as needed throughout the Agreement term. 

 
F. The District shall not be responsible for paying for damage(s) to equipment except if caused directly by the District.  “Service 

fees” shall not be charged to District for repair service calls for damage caused by either the District and/or Contractor. 
 
G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 14 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 
A. To cover the cost of parts and labor for equipment repairs resulting from damage caused directly by the District.  The District 

will not be responsible for paying for damage(s) to equipment, except if caused directly by the District.  The District will not 
pay “Service Fees” for any repair service calls.   

 
B. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed TWENTY ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($21,000.00) based upon the unit 

price of each item as shown in the Contractor’s Price Quotation dated June 18, 2015. 
 

 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 

  



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 

BUDGET DETAIL: 

District Account #: Distribution 
                               

PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 

All invoices are to be itemized and include the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45697.  Invoices may be sent via email to 
AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 
 
  

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
  



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 14 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 14 

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 14 

 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 

 
 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 14 

 
 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 14 

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 14 

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-235-15FT 
HI-WAY SAFETY RENTALS, INC. 
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-236-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Sponsor. 
 
EXPERIAN 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/01/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $  40,000.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP                                     pursuant to the following charges:   

Wages/Labor $     Parts/Supplies $      Taxes $     Other $40,000.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP    (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER $40,000.00 TRADE SPONSORSHIP 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
EXPERIAN 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Russell Tieman, VP of Facilities & Administration 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
475 Anton Blvd., Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
(714) 830-5152 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

 





SA-236-15SP 
EXPERIAN 
PAGE 2 of 5 
 
SPONSOR AGREES: 

1. To provide 1,365 parking spaces in the Experian parking structure for complimentary parking and shuttle services offered 
to OC Fair patrons. The parking structure will be available from 10:00 a.m. to midnight, Saturdays and Sundays of the 
2015 OC Fair. Trade value is $40,000 based on approximately 1,600 cars parked per Saturday/Sunday of the OC Fair at 
$5.00 per space.  

2. To provide high-resolution Sponsor logo for inclusion in advertising and signage as outlined herein. 

3. To allow mutually agreeable signage to be attached to the South side of the parking structure to promote the site for 
parking and shuttle service on Saturday and Sunday during the term of the contract.  

4. To provide security from 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. on Saturdays and Sundays of the OC Fair (see “District Agrees,” Item 
#13 for reimbursement details). 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To include Sponsor logo in all applicable 2015 OC Fair print advertising. 

2. To include Sponsor logo in all applicable 2015 OC Fair collateral including the OC Fair Shopping Guide (pending 
deadlines). 

3. To include Experian name in 2015 press release boilerplate where applicable regarding Saturday & Sunday shuttle 
services. 

4. To include Sponsor logo on the 2015 OC Fair website with a link to the Sponsor website. 

5. To include Sponsor logo in the @The Fair e-newsletter, summer issue (pending deadlines). 

6. To provide signage on South side of Experian parking structure to direct patrons to the Experian parking structure during 
the term of the contract. 

7. To provide and set-up A-frame “Welcome” 18” x 24” dual-sided signage to be setup Saturday mornings in the front of the 
Experian parking structure and taken down Sunday evenings during term of contract. 

8. To provide and place portable toilets on the premises for patrons waiting for the shuttle during the term of the contract. 

9. To provide a sweeper to pick up and sweep trash, clear trash around benches and empty garbage cans every Saturday 
and Sunday evening during the term of the contract. 

10. To obtain all necessary city permits. 

11. To display a message for Sponsor on the electronic marquee during the term of the contract. 

12. That all references to Sponsor shall be approved by Sponsor prior to their use and that use of the Sponsor logo will 
comply with Sponsor’s use guidelines. 

a. Copy to read as follows: “Free parking & shuttle service available on Saturdays and Sundays from the Experian 
parking structure located off the Bristol exit of the 405 freeway.” 

13. To fully reimburse Sponsor for all labor costs associated with the agreed upon staff for the parking structure during the OC 
Fair. The District shall reimburse Sponsor within 30 days following receipt of an invoice detailing the amount of hours 
worked. Invoice shall be submitted to AP@ocfair.com. 

a.  Estimated cost for security services: 280 hours x $31.00 per hour = $8,680.00 

14. To provide the following hospitality benefits which will be used for fundraising opportunities to benefit Children’s Hospital 
of Orange County and Susan G. Komen: 

a. Two hundred (200) 2015 OC Fair admission tickets; 
b. One hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair parking passes; 
c. Two hundred (200) Carnival Ride Cards (three [3] rides per card); 
d. Two (2) Terrace Level tickets to each Pacific Amphitheatre Concert (forty-six [46] total tickets); 
e. Forty (40) tickets to Hangar Building Entertainment; and 
f. Forty (40) tickets to Action Sports Arena Entertainment. 

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-236-15SP 
EXPERIAN 
PAGE 3 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-236-15SP 
EXPERIAN 
PAGE 4 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14  business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 



SA-236-15SP 
EXPERIAN 
PAGE 5 of 5 
 

 
U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 

Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-237-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/16/15 through          07/19/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $7,500.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $7,500.00 CASH                                                                                                            (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Karen Feehan, Team Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
4264 Winter Chapel Road, Bldg. C-100, Doraville, GA 30360 
(720) 435-7862 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: Olive Garden’s Breadstick Nation mobile tour display 
and sampling (food truck & signage). 

2. To provide payment in the sum of SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($7,500) as a space fee, 
due upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than July 15, 2015.  

3. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Contractor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

5. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
Agreement have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Contractor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-
day working credentials to Contractor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 6:00 p.m. each Wednesday-Friday; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 6:00 p.m. on each Saturday and Sunday 
of the 2015 OC Fair. 

9. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook 
and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 10’ x 30’ space located at the Millennium Barn to Olive Garden to sample 3 oz. breadstick 
sandwiches and breadsticks.  

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Contractor staff 
assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of single-day working credentials (for staff working less than 
ten [10] days). 

3. To provide parking outside of Blue Gate for a 36‘ ancillary refrigerator truck to replenish food product.   

 
- End Exhibit A - 



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-237-15SP 
MOBILE MEDIA ENTERPRISE, LLC 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-238-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
rEvolution Marketing, LLC 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/17/15 through          07/27/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $18,000.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $18,000.00 CASH                                                                                                            (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
rEvolution Marketing, LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Alexander Young, Associate, Client Services 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
600 W Chicago Ave # 100, Chicago, IL 60654 
(312) 529-5864 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
1. From July 26,2015 – July 27, 2015, the space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: Spin Master 

tour display: Trailer, green screen photo opportunity, Newsletter sing-up, Spin Master Character interaction, 
product demonstrations, and interactions for Paw Patrol, Little Charmers, and Chubby Puppies.  

2. To provide payment in the sum of EIGHTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($18,000) as a space fee, due upon 
execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than [July 23, 2015].) 

3. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 
OC Fair & Event Center 

Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 

materials and concepts provided by Contractor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 
5. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support 

of this contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by 
the Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 
a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). Including no roaming of 

company mascots outside of activation space. 
b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Contractor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of 
single-day working credentials to Contractor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the 
following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 
a. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 9:00 p.m. on each Saturday and 

Sunday of the 2015 OC Fair. Spin Master must have staff onsite from the hours of 9:00 p.m. to 11 
p.m. letting guest know the activation is not open. 

9. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 
10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires 

Handbook and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or 
following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Contractor, Fire Department or any 
other applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications, and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during, or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 20’ x 70’ space located at the Family Fair Way Mobile Marketing Space for Spin Master to 
promote their children’s games with pop-up tents, green screen photo opportunity, games, demonstrations, 
and mascot meet and greets. 

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Contractor 
staff assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of single-day working credentials (for staff working 
less than ten [10] days.) 

3. To provide 30 General Admission Tickets for Account Executives at the cost of $10.00 apiece.  
4. To provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp). 

 
- End Exhibit A - 



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-238-15SP 
REVOLUTION MARKING, LLC 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-241-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
ATTACK! MARKETING 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/20/15 through          07/27/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $12,000.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $12,000.00 CASH                                                                                                            (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
ATTACK! MARKETING 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Daysha Britt-Wills, Account Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2664 Lacy Street, Los Angeles, CA 90031 
(310) 259-1849

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 2 of 10  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That from July 23, 2015 – July 26, 2015, the space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: SoCalGas’s 
Solarista Tour display (inclusive of a trailer & signage) to promote the benefit and function of solar water heaters, both 
in commercial and residential environments.  

2. Event staff will invite guests into the Solarista trailer and offer complimentary sample size hot beverages such as 
coffee, tea, and hot chocolate (sample size is not to exceed a two [2] ounce wet pour).  

3. Water heating brochures and branded pens and/or backpacks will be distributed as premiums. 

4. To provide payment in the sum of TWELVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($12,000.00) as a space fee, due upon execution 
of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than July 22, 2015. 

5. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

6. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Agency require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

7. To verify all Agency’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

8. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

9. Agency will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law Screening[s], 
etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day working 
credentials to Agency’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

10. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 23 and Friday, July 
24; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, July 25 and Sunday, 
July 26 of the 2015 OC Fair. 

11. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

12. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 
such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

13. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

14. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 10’ x 20’ space located at Millennium Barn for SoCalGas’s Solarista Tour to promote the benefit and 
function of solar water heaters, both in commercial and residential environments.  

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Agency staff assigned to 
the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of  single-day working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] days). 

3. To provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp).  

 
- End Exhibit A - 



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 3 of 10  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 4 of 10  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 5 of 10  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 6 of 10  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 7 of 10  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 8 of 10  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 9 of 10  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 
EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 



SA-241-15SP 
ATTACK! MARKETING 
PAGE 10 of 10  

 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                R_____  A_____  F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-242-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1431534 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC 

2. The term of this         08/04/15 through 08/17/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $10,000.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide an educational camel dairy exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair.   Pages 1 – 2  
 See Page 2 for additional Scope of Work.  

   

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page 3 
   

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 4 – 7 
   

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 8 – 11 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 12 – 14 

   
Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING                                                           
Gil Riegler, Owner 
ADDRESS  
26757 Old Julian Highway, Ramona, CA 92065 
(760) 787-0983 or (760) 644-8000 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 2 of 14 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To provide an educational exhibit and camel dairy milking demonstrations in the Livestock area from August 5 – 
August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

2. To include in the exhibit a total of five (5) camels, including one (1) mother camel and one (1) calf; one (1) camel for 
petting and two (2) gelding camels. 

3. To staff the exhibit Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., and Saturdays – Sundays, from 10:00 a.m. 
to 10:00 p.m. 

4. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

5. To provide a professional, customer friendly staff during OC Fair hours and adhere to the District’s Standard of 
Conduct Policies.   

6. To provide adequate feed and hay to support the animals for the duration of the Agreement term. 

7. To set up the display on Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at a time to be arranged with Livestock staff.         

8. To provide three (3) twenty (20) to thirty (30)-minute camel milking and demonstration shows daily at 1:30 p.m., 3:30 
p.m., and 5:30 p.m. 

9. To sell camel milk soap, camel milk lotion and camel milk chocolate after the demonstration shows.  To obtain all 
appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency to ensure the exhibit is at all times operating within 
the parameters set by this Agency.  

10. To provide information to the District for educational signage as well as camel saddles, props display for exhibit area 
and a sound system. 

11. To dismantle and remove the exhibit on Monday, August 17, 2015 at a time to be determined by Livestock staff. 

12. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least    
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1.   To provide a 63ˈ x 90ˈ free span structure space in the Livestock area for Oasis Camel Dairy exhibit and milking 
demonstrations at the 2015 OC Fair. 

2.   To provide bagged shavings not to exceed forty (40) for initial setup and four (4) bagged shavings per day thereafter.  
Shavings in excess of the predefined amount will be the responsibility of Contractor. 

3.   To provide signage for the exhibit area. 

4.   To provide access to electricity. 

5.   To provide local hotel accommodations for up to two (2) rooms at the District’s expense, from Tuesday, August 4, 
through Sunday, August 16, 2015. 

6.   To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to the Contractor. 

7.   To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) upon satisfactory completion 
of services herein required.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via the US Mail. 

 
 

-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 3 of 14 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: 5100-62 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and sent via the US Mail. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 4 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, 
or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in 
any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been 
caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event 
shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event 
Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents (excluding the 
Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  
The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the 
State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be 
deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the 
Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 5 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 
12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract 
Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 
Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so 
provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of 
a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out 
below:  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials 
by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney 
General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 6 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any 
portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the 
assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 
7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not 
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor 
must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may 
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small 
business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 7 of 14 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within 
such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding 
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and 
address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE 
received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the 
DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that 
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. 
Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product 
as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
-End Exhibit C- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 8 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 
(a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if 
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or 
violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 9 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less 
than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be 
taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor 
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under 
penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 
6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is 
in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 10 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements 
or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state 
agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making 
position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her 
leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose 
of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will 
a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing 

in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in 
good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 
 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 11 of 14 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

California Fair Services Authority 
 

I. Evidence of Coverage 
The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs, California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract.  This may be provided by: 
 
A. Insurance Certificate: 

The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 
 
1. List as the Additional Insured: 

“That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California 
designated agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made 
additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned.” 
 

2. Dates: 
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance.  For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 
 

3. Coverage: 
a. General Liability: 

Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000 per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types 
except arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock Events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Interim 
Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to six (6) rides, Concerts with over 5,000 
attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, 
Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is 
required. 
 

b. Automobile Liability: 
Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current 
ISO policy form #CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks, or other 
licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 
 

c. Workers’ Compensation: 
Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter’s employees, as 
required by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice: 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be 
maintained for contracts involving medical services. 
 
 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

e. Liquor Liability: 
Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 

4. Cancellation Notice: 
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance 
with policy provisions. 
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only – Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

i. 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, 
CA  92626. 

b. For Master Insurance Certificates Only – California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk 
Management, 1776 Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA  95815 is listed as the certificate 
holder. 
 

6. Insurance Company: 
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 

7. Insured: 
The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the insured. 
 

OR 
 

8. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) 
Special Events Program, when applicable. 

 

OR 
 

9. Master Certificates: 
A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 

OR 
 

10. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 

 
A. Maintenance of Coverage: 

The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract.  In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide 
the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided 
for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) 
year.  New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority, and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the 
event  the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair 
may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions:  (1) declare a material 
breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and 
deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of 
this contract. 



SA-242-15FT 
OASIS CAMEL DAIRY LLC  
PAGE 14 of 14 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available 
to the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 
 

C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  
Insurance coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to 
it under contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s 
indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, 
termination or assignment of this contract. 
 

D. Certified Copies of Policies: 
Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  
Fairtime Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an 
underwriter, to California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

III. Participant Waivers 
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a property executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include, but are not limited to, any event within the following broad categories:  Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, 
skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further 
information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-243-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
THERESA VARGAS 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/04/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      1,200.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   1,200.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Chicken Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
THERESA VARGAS  

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Theresa Vargas 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
PO Box 26112, Santa Ana, CA 92799 
(714) 580-2827 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide an educational chicken exhibit in the Livestock area from August 5 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To set up the exhibit on Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at a time to be arranged with the Livestock Supervisor.  
 
C. To provide staffing, signage, feed, supplies, and equipment necessary to maintain exhibit. 

 
D. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 

have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

E. To remove the exhibit no earlier than Sunday, August 16, 2015 at 10:00 p.m.  Contractor must receive approval from the 
District prior to tear down. 

 
F. Contractor fee is inclusive of all services rendered as well as all travel expenses incurred during the term of the Agreement. 

 
G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide space for the exhibit in the Livestock area.  Final size and location shall be determined by the District. 
 

B. To provide necessary admission credential(s) and parking passes to Contractor. 
 

C. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, and as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing 
evidence of coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 

D. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,200.00) based upon the 
satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be Net 10 and delivered via 
US Mail. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.   
 
Invoices may be sent via email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
  



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-243-15FT 
THERESA VARGAS  
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-244-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/04/15 through          08/09/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $         - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Horse Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Melissa Reese, Representative 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
3700 South Plaza Dr., Suite G102, Santa Ana, CA 92704 
(619) 571-9977 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 2 of 13 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide an educational exhibit highlighting a variety of horse-related activities in the Livestock area from August 5 – 
August 9 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To set up the exhibit on Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at a time to be arranged with the Livestock Supervisor.  
 

C. To feature activities, including, but not limited to, an assortment of horses on display, horse veterinarian, Ferrier, groups and 
clubs focused on horses, and an activity/photo station. 
 

D. To provide staffing, signage, tools, and equipment necessary to maintain exhibit, including the daily cleaning, feeding, 
providing of fresh water and monitoring of animals. 
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To remove the exhibit no earlier than Sunday, August 9, 2015 at 10:00 p.m.  Contractor must receive approval from the 
District prior to tear down. 
 

G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide space for the exhibit in the Livestock area under the Swine Tent.  Final size and location shall be determined by 
the District. 
 

B. To provide livestock pens and trash receptacles as warranted.   
 

C. To provide bedding such as straw or shavings for animals on display. 
 

D. To provide exhibit signage. 
 

E. To provide necessary admission credential(s) and parking passes to Contractor. 
 

F. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, and as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing 
evidence of coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 3 of 13 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
  



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 4 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 5 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 6 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 7 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 8 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 9 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 10 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 11 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 12 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-244-15FT 
SOCAL HEALTH COACH  

PAGE 13 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-245-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 

1431898 

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/11/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      5,390.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   5,390.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Horse Show Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Stephanie Rodarmel, President 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
381 Shadow Tree Drive, Oceanside, CA 92058   
(760) 672-7000 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To provide an educational exhibit highlighting a variety of horse-related activities in the Livestock area from August 12 – 
August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

B. To set up the exhibit on Tuesday, August 11, 2015 at a time to be arranged with the Livestock Supervisor.  
 

C. To provide demonstrations and/or activities featuring the following: 
1. Tacking and untacking horses for exercise and horse show days. 
2. Grooming care such as bathing, brushing, and hair and hoof care techniques. 
3. Mounting and dismounting a horse properly as well as position, and hand and leg control. 
4. Teaching body parts of the horse. 
5. Teaching and explaining the relationship between the human and horse as well as the benefits used in disability 

riding therapy programs.  
6. Area with the labeling and display various types of tack equipment, necessary clothing and essentials in horse 

showing and normal day to day care of horses.  
7. Full size jump display at each entrance to show the heights and sizes of horses that would be jumping during show 

competitions.  One will be a traditional “show jumper” jump and the other will be a traditional “hunter style” jump.    
8. Small size horse jumps for kids to lower, raise and jump. 
9. Display of various photos, ribbons and awards. 
10. Mounted flat screen and video showing competitions and different types of horse show classes.  
11. Discussion/display of the food and treats that horses enjoy.  
12. Show trunks on display so the public can see what goes inside and how to pack for a week long horse show.     

 
D. To provide staffing, signage, tools, and equipment necessary to maintain exhibit, including the daily cleaning, feeding, 

providing of fresh water and monitoring of animals. 
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

 

F. To remove the exhibit no earlier than Sunday, August 16, 2015 at 10:00 p.m. to be completed by Monday, August 17, 2015 at 
3:00 p.m. Contractor must receive approval from the District prior to tear down. 

 

G. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty (30) 
days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

A. To provide space for the exhibit in the Livestock area under the Swine Tent.  Final size and location shall be determined by 
the District. 
 

B. To provide livestock horse pens and trash receptacles as warranted.   
 

C. To provide bedding such as straw or shavings for animals on display. 
 

D. To provide orchard grass. 
 

E. To provide horse mats. 
 

F. To provide exhibit signage. 
 

G. To provide necessary admission credential(s) and parking passes to Contractor. 
 

H. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E – 
Insurance Requirements, and as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing evidence 
of coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 

 

I. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed FIVE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY DOLLARS ($5,390.00) based 
upon the satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.  Payment will be Net 10 and 
delivered via US Mail. 
 

-End Exhibit A- 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.   
 
Invoices may be sent via email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-245-15FT 
EUROPEAN EQUINE ASSOCIATES, INC.  
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-246-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/11/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      850.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   850.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Sheepherding Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
SILVER ROSE RANCH  

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Tina Bevan, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
2954 English Road, Chino Hills, CA 91709  
(909) 364-9191 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-62 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide an educational sheepherding exhibit in the Livestock area from August 12 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To set up the exhibit on Tuesday, August 11, 2015, between the hours of 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.  
 

C. To provide educational sheepherding demonstrations in the Livestock show ring at the following approximate times: 12:45 
p.m., 2:45 p.m., 4:45 p.m., and 6:45 p.m.  Demonstrations should not exceed thirty (30) minutes in length. 
 

D. To provide appropriate staffing for the exhibit and demonstrations. 
 

E. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

F. To remove the exhibit no earlier than Sunday, August 16, 2015 at 10:00 p.m.  Contractor must receive approval from the 
District prior to tear down. 

 
G. Contractor fee is inclusive of all services rendered as well as all travel expenses incurred during the term of the Agreement. 

 
H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide space and time in the Livestock show ring for sheepherding demonstrations.   
 

B. To provide table and chairs as needed. 
 

C. To provide space in South Barn to house four (4) to six (6) sheep overnight throughout the duration of the contract, including 
adequate bedding and feed. 

D. To provide necessary admission credentials and parking passes to Contractor. 
 

E. To provide Special Event Liability Insurance (SELI), which will satisfy the General Liability requirement as listed in Exhibit E 
– Insurance Requirements, and as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Contractor is responsible for providing 
evidence of coverage for Automobile Liability and/or Workers’ Compensation insurance, as applicable. 
 

F. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed EIGHT HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($850.00) based upon the satisfactory 
completion of services herein required.  Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-62  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and sent via US Mail.   
 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
  



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-246-15FT 
SILVER ROSE RANCH 
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-247-15FT 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/11/15 through          08/16/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $         - 0 - pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $      - 0 - (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Educational Rat & Mouse Exhibit at 2015 OC Fair  
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Deborah Newgard, Representative 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
24292 Twig Street, Lake Forest, CA 92630  
(949) 770-0323 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 2 of 13 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. To provide an educational rat and mouse exhibit in the Livestock area from August 12 – August 16 for the 2015 OC Fair. 
 

B. To set up the exhibit on Tuesday, August 11, 2015 between the hours of 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.  
 

C. To staff the exhibit during all hours of the Fair, including Wednesdays – Fridays, from 12:00 p.m. – 11:00 p.m.; Saturdays 
from 10:00 a.m. – 11:00 p.m., and Sundays from 10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
 

D. To provide staffing, signage, tools, and equipment necessary to maintain exhibit, including the daily cleaning, feeding, 
providing of fresh water and monitoring of animals. 
 

E. To provide to the District a schedule of volunteers by Tuesday, June 30, 2015. 
 

F. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 
 

G. To remove the exhibit no earlier than Sunday, August 16, 2015 at 10:00 p.m.  Contractor must receive approval from the 
District prior to tear down. 
 

H. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of 
further payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

A. To provide space for the exhibit in the Livestock area.  Final size and location shall be determined by the District. 
 

B. To provide table and chairs as needed.   
 

C. To provide necessary admission credential(s) and parking passes to Contractor. 
 
 
 

 
-End Exhibit A- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 3 of 13 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 

 
 
  



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 4 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 5 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 6 of 13 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 

recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 7 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 8 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 9 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 10 of 13 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 11 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 12 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-247-15FT 
RAT & MOUSE CLUB OF AMERICA 

PAGE 13 of 13 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-248-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/23/15 through          08/03/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $7,500.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $7,500.00 CASH                                                                                                            (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Jill Christopher, Sr. Account Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
211 Nevada St., El Segundo, CA 90245 
(310) 546-9585 x310 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That from July 30, 2015 – August 2, 2015, the space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: Maruchan mobile 
tour display, to include a 10’ x 10’ tent and sprinter vehicle, for the distribution of Maruchan ramen pillow packs. 

2. To provide payment in the sum of SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($7,500.00) as a space fee, due 
upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than July 25, 2015. 

3. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials, and 
concepts provided by Contractor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

5. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Contractor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day 
working credentials to Contractor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from 12:00 p.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 30 and Friday 
July 31; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, August 1 and 
Sunday, August 2 of the 2015 OC Fair. 

9. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 
such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Contractor, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during, or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide Contractor with a 10’ x 20’ space located at “Outside Blue Gate” for the promotion of Maruchan Ramen by 
distributing pre-packaged ramen pillow packs.  

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Contractor staff 
assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form single-day working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] 
days). 

3. To provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp.) 

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-248-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-249-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             07/24/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $29,250.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other $29,250.00 CASH                                                                                                            (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Keith Schooley, Western Regional Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
211 Nevada St., El Segundo, CA 90245 
(310) 546-9585 x256 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
1. That the space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: General Mills to distribute sample pre-packaged 

products from Totino’s, Nature Valley Granola Bars, Yoplait Yogurt, and Cereal (Trix, Dora the Explorer, Cinnamon 
Toast Crunch, Cocoa Puffs, and Cheerios). Samples distributed may not exceed 2 oz.  

2. The onsite Activation Dates for Brand promotion and sampling are as follows: 
a. Thursday, July 30 through Sunday, August 2; 
b. Thursday, August 6 through Sunday, August 9; and 
c. Thursday, August 13 through Sunday, August 16. 

3. Activation Elements include: two (2) 10’x 10’ branded tents, three (3) 16’ wind blade flags, and four (4) 8’ tables with 
branded covers. All Activation Elements are to be provided by Contractor. 

4. To provide payment in the sum of TWENTY-NINE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS ($29,250.00) 
as a space fee, due upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than July 29, 2015. 

5. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 
OC Fair & Event Center 

Attn: Accounts Receivable 
88 Fair Drive 

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
6. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials, and 

concepts provided by Contractor require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 
7. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 

contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is 
not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

8. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 
a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 
b. Any staff member working ten (10) days or more at the 2015 OC Fair will be provided a photo badge 

credential for admission. Each individual is responsible for obtaining his or her credential from the badging 
office during operations hours. Prior to reporting to the badging office the required paperwork must be 
submitted to Tandem including the Megan’s Law Screening(s). Photo badge credentials must be obtained 
prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

c. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 
9. Contractor will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 

Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day 
working credentials to Contractor’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

10. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 
a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from 12:00 p.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. each Thursday and Friday; and 
b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and Sunday of 

the 2015 OC Fair Contractor Activation Dates. 
11. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 
12. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 

such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during, or following the Term. 
13. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Contractor, Fire Department or any other 

applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 
14. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 

requests as made by the District prior to, during, or following the 2015 OC Fair. 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 10’ x 20’ space located at Family Fair Way West/Plaza Arts for General Mills to sample pre-packaged 
products from Totino’s, Nature Valley Granola Bars, Yoplait Yogurt, and Cereal (Trix, Dora the Explorer, Cinnamon 
Toast Crunch, Cocoa Puffs, and Cheerios). 

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Contractor staff 
assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of either photo badges (for staff working ten [10] days or more) or 
single-day working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] days). 

3. To provide one (1) female NEMA L-17 on a 60 amp circuit. The District will provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each 
additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp.) 

4. To provide one (1) Lot F hang tag for Sprinter Van parking to replenish product stock for run of Fair.  

 
- End Exhibit A - 



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-249-15SP 
MAKAI EVENTS, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____        
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-250-15PS 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding        

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
C. EPTING, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             06/22/15 through          06/21/16 

3.  The maximum amount payable is $      4,975.00 pursuant to the following charges: 

     Wages/Labor $        Parts/Supplies $        Taxes $        Other $   4,975.00 (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms (Note:  All payments are in arrears.)      ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY 

      ITEMIZED INVOICE      OTHER   

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Commemorative OC Fair Book Services 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
C. EPTING, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
Chris Epting, Owner 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
16835 Algonquin Street, #293, Huntington Beach, CA 92649 
(714) 362-5490; chris@chrisepting.com 

FUND TITLE 
 
Operating 

ITEM 
 
5100-06 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 

 





SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 13 

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To allow the District to purchase an unlimited number of The Orange County Fair: A History of Celebration commemorative 
books for a fifty (50%) discount off the retail price. 

 

B. The District may sell the books at official OC Fair merchandise locations at a special OC Fair discounted price to be mutually 
agreed upon by the District and Contractor. 

 

C. To grant the District opportunities to proof the finished manuscript of The Orange County Fair: A History of Celebration for 
factual and historical accuracy. 

 

D. To gain pre-approval from the District for the use of OC Fair markets and logos and that all retail display elements, materials 
and concepts containing the OC Fair & Event Center and/or OC Fair brands require the approval of the District prior to 
implementation. 

 

E. To make a personal appearance and fifteen (15)-minute presentation about the book and the OC Fair’s history to the OC Fair 
& Event Center Board of Directors during their June 25, 2015 meeting at 10:00 a.m. 

 

F. To make a personal appearance and book signing at the launch of the OC Fair’s 125th Anniversary exhibit launch party at 
John Wayne Airport on July 15, 2015 from 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

 

G. To make the following personal appearances at the 2015 OC Fair which will include a thirty (30)-minute presentation to Fair 
guests about the history of the OC Fair, audience Q&A and book signings: 

 

1. Friday, July 17, 5:00 p.m. – Promenade Stage 
2. Sunday, July 26, 1:00 p.m. – Promenade Stage 
3. Thursday, July 30, 7:00 p.m. – Promenade Stage 
4. Saturday, August 8, 8:00 p.m. – Visual Arts Stage 

 

H. To verify all Contractor’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered 
sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

 

I. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least thirty (30) 
days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the District of further 
payment, obligations, and/or performances required in the terms of the contract. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 
 

A. All rights to The Orange County Fair: A History of Celebration and revenue generated from the distribution and sale of the 
book at the retail level belong to Contractor and publisher. 

 

B. To grant Contractor access to the OC Fair archives for research and photography purposes. Appointment times shall be pre-
arranged through the District. 

 

C. To provide admission credentials and parking passes for each appearance date that Contractor will be onsite at the 2015 OC 
Fair. 

 

D. To pay Contractor an honorarium not to exceed FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE DOLLARS 
($4,975.00) upon the satisfactory completion of above-scheduled personal appearances and receipt of proper invoice.  
Payment will be made Net 10 and delivered via US Mail. 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit A- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 13 

EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #:  5100-06  
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

 
Payment will be made Net 10 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and receipt of proper invoice.   
 
Invoices may be sent via email to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties 
and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of 
the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the 
form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or 
their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. Contractor 
agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a 
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. 
(Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District Agricultural 
Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and employees from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not limited 
to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, injury, 
property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute or 
regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 
32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective 
employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the 
requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the State shall be deducted from any 
sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post consumer 
material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  With 
respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification 
required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious 
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the 
evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code 
of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations 
with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform 
work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses 
incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means of a 
competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or materials by 
the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General 
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public purchase. 
Government Code Section 4550. 

 

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will 
assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under 
Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, 
materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government 
Code Section 4552. 

 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary 
recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive 
reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were 
not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the 
recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the 

cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of 
law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee 
declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, 
that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply with all 

applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, 
disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree 
that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then Contractor must 
within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may be 
specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business 
participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise (DVBE) 
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such 
other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding department: 
(1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) 
that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime 
Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual 
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or entity that knowingly provides false 
information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 
14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It 
is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as 
defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the prospective 
Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) 
and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or termination of 
the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification 
by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to 
comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations 
Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.) \ 
 
 
  



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  
Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 
10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may be taken 
into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public 
works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, 
equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or 
produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of 
sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor 
or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they 
adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations 
website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, documents, 
agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with 
the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has 
any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must 
be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or employee 
receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency to 
provide goods or services. 
  



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may enter 
into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part 
of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in 
the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement void. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than payment of 
each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code 
§10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 
(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be verifying 

that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to 
the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of 
financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good standing in 

order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or 
ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of 
the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 13 

EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desistorder not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or 
discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be provided 
by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs, 
their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only insofar as 
the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for Fairtime 
Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track motorcycle 
racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate and any 
Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and with any 
Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; 
$2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts 
with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, 
Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 
per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per accident 
for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for contracts 
involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with policy 
provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 Tribute 

Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California Fair 

Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a new 
certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term 
of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of 
California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the 
giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein 
provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a 
material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until 
notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct 
premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-250-15PS 
C. EPTING, INC. 
PAGE 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage obtained 
in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such minimum 
coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or by law, 
including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The contractor/renter 
indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, with 
said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California 
Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 
 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-251-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
TRILOGY LLC 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/12/15 through          08/14/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $7,500.00 CASH 

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
TRILOGY LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Marisa Rahl, Event Manager 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
5601 Democracy Dr #105, Plano, Texas 75024 
(469) 767-5222 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That from August 12, 2015 through August 14, 2015 space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: HP mobile 
tour display inclusive of trailer and signage. 

2. To provide payment in the sum of SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($7,500.00) as a space fee, due 
upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than August 12th, 2015. 

3. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Agency require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

5. To verify all Agency’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract 
have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a 
registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Agency will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law Screening[s], 
etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day working 
credentials to Agency’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 11:00 p.m. Wednesday, August 12, 2015 through 
Friday, August 14, 2015. 

9. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any 
such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 50’ x 20’ space located outside of Blue Gate. 

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Agency staff assigned to 
the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form single-day working credentials (for staff working less than ten [10] days.) 

3. To provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp).  

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-251-15SP 
TRILOGY LLC 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-252-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/07/15 through          08/17/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $25,000.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Jason Colvin, Senior Manager, Venues & Sponsorship 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
727 North Washington Street, Alexandria, VA  22314 
(703) 519-6831 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: GEICO mobile tour displays. 

2. GEICO mobile tour displays shall execute according to the following schedule and with the following activations: 

a. August 7, 2015 through August 9, 2015 – GEICO Bus Tour: 

i. GEICO bus with GIECO pinball machine and karaoke; 

ii. Two (2) 10’ x 10’ easy-up tents for GEICO lead generation through iPads; 

iii. GEICO dice game; 

iv. Distribution of branded premiums; 

v. $500.00 giveaway for one registrant from the weekend; 

vi. GEICO Gecko (no roaming allowed); and 

vii. Light ambient music and booth emcee. 

b. August 14, 2015 through August 16, 2015 – GEICO National Tour: 

i. One 10’ x 20’ booth space for GEICO lead generation through iPads; 

ii. Distribution of branded premiums; 

iii. GEICO dice game;  

iv. GEICO pinball machine; 

v. GEICO Gecko (no roaming allowed); and 

vi. $200.00 giveaway for one specific registrant from the weekend. 

3.  To provide payment in the sum of TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) as a space fee, due 
upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than August 14, 2015. 

4. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

5. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Agency require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

6. To verify all Agency’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

7. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

8. Agency will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-
day working credentials to Agency’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

9. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 11:00 p.m. each Friday; and 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on each Saturday and Sunday 
of the 2015 OC Fair. 



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 11 
  

10. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

11. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook 
and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

12. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other 
applicable entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these 
organizations. 

13. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 
reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 40’ x 50’ space located at Park Plaza from August 7, 2015 through August 9, 2015 for the GEICO 
Bus Tour.  

2. To provide a 10’ x 20’ space located at Green Gate/Family Fair Way MMT space from August 14, 2105 through 
August 16, 2015 for the GEICO National Tour. 

3. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Agency staff 
assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of single-day working credentials for staff working less than 
ten (10) days. 

4. To provide two (2) 110v/20amp lines of electricity for the GEICO National Tour on August 14, 2015 through 
August 16, 2015 at Green Gate/Family Fair Way MMT space.  

5. To provide parking for box truck for both weekends pending space availability.  

 

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-252-15SP 
REDPEG MARKETING, INC. 
PAGE 11 of 11 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-253-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
FUSE, LLC 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/06/15 through          08/10/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $10,000.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                                (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
FUSE, LLC 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Jessica Phelan, Account Manager, Brand Strategy 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
P.O. Box 4509, Burlington, Vermont 05406 
(802) 585-4472 

FUND TITLE 
 

Sales 

ITEM 
 

4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

 
  

 





SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 2 of 10 

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. That space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: Starbuck Double Shot mobile tour display, inclusive signage as 
well as the following activation elements: 

a. Starbuck trailer (12’ x12’) 

b. Gazebo sampling booth (10’ x 15’) 

c. Starbuck Double Shot 2oz. poured samples 

2. To provide payment in the sum of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) as a space fee, due upon execution of this 
agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than August 8, 2015. 

3. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

4. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, materials and 
concepts provided by Agency require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

5. To verify all Agency’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this contract have 
been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the Contractor, is not a registered sex 
offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

6. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 

a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 

b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

7. Agency will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law Screening[s], etc.) to 
Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-day working credentials to Agency’s 
display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

8. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 

a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 7:30 p.m. Thursday, August 6 and Friday, August 7; 
AND 

b. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 7:30 p.m. on Saturday, August 8 and Sunday, 
August 9 of the 2015 OC Fair provided Contractor remains in the Outside Blue Gate MMT location; OR 

c. By 9:30 a.m. and open to the public from 10:00 a.m. to at least 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, August 8 and Sunday, 
August 9 of the 2015 OC Fair if Contractor relocates to the Family Fair Way/Green Gate MMT location. 

9. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 

10. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook and any such 
other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 

11. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department or any other applicable 
entities and ensure display(s) are at all times operating within the parameters set by these organizations. 

12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such reasonable 
requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 

 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 20’ x 20’ space located at the Outside Blue Gate MMT location OR Family Fair Way/Green Gate MMT location 
for Starbucks Double Shot sampling. Final Contractor placement shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and District.  

2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Agency staff assigned to the 
Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of single-day working credentials for staff working less than ten (10) days. 

3. To provide electricity for Four (4) 100 amps.  

4. To assist with the coordination of the logistics with Pepsi and Fuse to order Starbucks product to be sampled.  

- End Exhibit A - 



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 3 of 10 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 4 of 10 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 5 of 10 

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 6 of 10 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 7 of 10 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 9 of 10 

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 
EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 



SA-253-15SP 
FUSE, LLC 
PAGE 10 of 10 

 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



R_____ A_____ F_____         
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SHORT FORM CONTRACT 
(For agreements up to $9,999.99) 
STD. 210 (Revised 6/2003) 

CONTRACT NUMBER 
 
SA-258-15SP 

AM. NO. 
 
      

FEDERAL TAXPAYER ID. NUMBER 
 
 

REGISTRATION NUMBER 
 
      

Invoice must show contract number, itemized expenses, service 
dates, vendor name, address and phone number. 
SUBMIT INVOICE IN TRIPLICATE TO: 
      
32nd District Agricultural Association 
OC Fair & Event Center 
88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

FOR STATE USE ONLY 
 
STD. 204  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS 
CCCs  N/A  ON FILE  ATTACHED  CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

 DVBE      %  N/A  GFE        
 Late reason        
 Public Works Contractor’s License        
 Exempt from bidding  Sponsorship 

1.  The parties to this agreement are: 

STATE AGENCY’S NAME, hereafter called the District. 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME, hereafter called the Contractor. 
 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 

 

2.  The agreement term is from             08/14/15 through          08/14/15 

3.  The maximum amount payable is  $2,500.00 CASH  

 pursuant to the following charges:   Wages/Labor $       Parts/Supplies $       Taxes $       

Other                                                                                                                                               (Attach list if applicable.) 

4.  Payment Terms: 

 ONE TIME PAYMENT (Lump sum)       MONTHLY      QUARTERLY      ITEMIZED INVOICE  

 OTHER   Payable to: “OC Fair & Event Center” 

5.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services described herein and 
agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part hereof by this reference.   

      ADDITIONAL PAGES ATTACHED  
 

Exhibit A – Sponsorship Agreement Provisions 
Exhibit B – Sponsorship Agreement Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) 
Exhibit D – Rules and Regulations Governing Rental Space 

EXHIBITS (Items checked in this box are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.) 

 GTC*      610      GIA*       *If not attached, view at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language. 

 Other Exhibits (List) See Section 5 above. 

In Witness Whereof, this agreement has been executed by the parties identified below:
STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR 

AGENCY NAME 
 
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, 
partnership, etc.) 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Lindsay Fisher, Director, Property Marketing 

ADDRESS 
 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

ADDRESS 
Ballston Tower 
671 N. Glebe Road, Suite 800, Arlington VA 22203 USA 
703-317-4625 

FUND TITLE 
 
Sales 

ITEM 
 
4375-87 

FISCAL YEAR 
 
      

CHAPTER 
 
      

STATUTE 
 
      

OBJECT CODE 
 
      

 

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 
 

SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER DATE SIGNED 

  

 





SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT A – SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT PROVISIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
1. That space(s) shall be used for the following purpose only: AvalonBay Communities, Inc. to promote Avalon 

Irvine apartment and giving away the following branded premiums: 
a. Fitbit 
b. Gift card to South Coast Mall  
c. Frisbees 
d. Cozies 
e. Two (2) bikes 

2. To provide the following display elements: 
a. One (1) 10’x10’ white pop up tent 
b. One (1) 10’x1’ “Avalon Irvine” banner secured to front of pop up tent (pending District approval of the 

graphic) 
3. To provide payment in the sum of TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500) as a space fee, due 

upon execution of this agreement. Payment in full must be received no later than August 12, 2015. 
4. Payments shall be remitted to the following address: 

OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

5. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos and that all display elements, 
materials and concepts provided by Agency require the approval of the District prior to implementation. 

6. To verify all Agency’s intended paid and unpaid staff who will be working on District property in support of this 
contract have been processed through Megan’s Law screening and each individual, as certified by the 
Contractor, is not a registered sex offender per the Megan’s Law registry. 

7. That staff members shall comply with the following requirements: 
a. No staff member will promote brand outside of designated space(s). 
b. Any staff working less than ten (10) days will be provided single-day working credentials. 

8. Agency will provide a list of staff working the following week and any required paperwork (Megan’s Law 
Screening[s], etc.) to Tandem by 5:00 p.m. each Friday. Tandem will deliver the appropriate number of single-
day working credentials to Agency’s display by 5:00 p.m. each Sunday for staff working the following week. 

9. To have its displays fully staffed by uniformed representatives: 
a. By 11:30 a.m. and open to the public from Noon to at least 11:00 p.m. each Wednesday-Friday;  

10. That other mobile tours and exhibitors may be near the designated spaces. 
11. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the 2015 OC Fair Exhibitor and Concessionaires Handbook 

and any such other reasonable parameters as set forth by the District staff prior to, during or following the Term. 
12. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, certifications and comply with all such 

reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during or following the 2015 OC Fair. 
 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide a 10’ x 10’ space located at Park Plaza to promote Avalon Irvine Apartments. 
2. To provide a mutually agreed number of Admission Credentials and Staff Parking Passes for Agency staff 

assigned to the Mobile Marketing Tour in the form of single-day working credentials for staff working less than 
ten (10) days. 

3. To provide electricity up to 50 amps. (Each additional amp will be at a $4.00 charge per amp). 
4. To provide the following: 

a. One (1) 8 foot table 
b. Two (2) chairs   

 
- End Exhibit A - 



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 3 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Title of Event.  The Event shall be known as the “OC Fair” and Sponsor agrees that it shall refer to the Event in all 
advertising and promotional materials by the Event’s full name.  

 
B. Participants’ Names.  Sponsor acknowledges that State does not have the right to use the names, signatures, 

photographs or likenesses of any performer who may appear at the Event or on Sponsor’s Stage in connection with a 
commercial product or service, and the individual performer must approve all such uses by Sponsor.  State does have 
the right to approve on behalf of individual performers the use of their names, photographs or likenesses in advertising 
which primarily promotes the Event and the Stage and mentions Sponsor’s involvement as a Sponsor, and Sponsor 
will submit any such advertising to State for prior approval as provided in Paragraph M. 

 
C. Right to Remove Name.  Sponsor shall have the right, at any time and for any reason, to request in writing the State 

remove its name from any and/or all signage and other materials associated with the Event.  State shall use its best 
efforts to comply with said request, but if State will incur any additional expenses in connection with such compliance, 
it will notify Sponsor in writing and obtain Sponsor’s prior written approval.  Sponsor will reimburse State for all such 
approved expenses.  State shall notify Sponsor if time does not reasonably permit compliance with Sponsor’s request.  
Nothing herein shall relieve Sponsor of its obligations under the body of this Agreement. 

 
D. Delivery and Service.  At Sponsor’s expense, Sponsor shall deliver the Products to, and store such Products at, 

State’s location.  Sponsor agrees to provide service personnel on an “on call” basis to assist in the delivery, 
installation, repair, maintenance and removal of the Products, in a number mutually agreed upon between the parties.  
All of Sponsor’s personnel shall be subject to State’s security and personnel policies and practices. 

 
E. Sponsor Insurance.  During the Term of this Agreement, Sponsor agrees to carry worker’s compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance, in such amounts as may be required by law, for any personnel Sponsor may utilize for 
the delivery, installation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Product. 

 
F. Risk of Loss.  State represents and warrants that to the extent storage of the Products is under the control and/or 

supervision of State, State will assume all risk of loss and will further store the Products safely and securely in a 
manner which will not cause the Products to become defective or not merchantable or fit for their intended purpose. 

 
G. Sponsor’s Trademarks.  Sponsor’s trademarks, label designs, product identifications, artwork and other symbols and 

devices associated with Sponsor’s Products (“Sponsor’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain Sponsor’s property, and 
Sponsor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to protect such Sponsor’s Trademarks through U.S. federal 
registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and through reasonable prosecution of infringements. 

 
H. Sponsor’s Authorization of State.  State is hereby authorized to use Sponsor’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting the Event during the Term of this Agreement, provided Sponsor shall have the right to approve all such 
uses in writing in advance. 

 
I. State’s Submission for Approval.  State shall submit all materials to Sponsor in writing and if Sponsor does not 

approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then Sponsor shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
J. Uses for Benefit of Sponsor.  The right to use Sponsor’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and 

nontransferable.  All uses by State of Sponsor’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of Sponsor. 
 

K. State’s Trademarks.  State’s trademarks, designs, artwork and other symbols and devices associated with the Event 
(“State’s Trademarks”) are and shall remain State’s property and State shall take all steps reasonably necessary to 
protect State’s Trademarks through U.S. federal registrations and foreign registrations as it deems desirable and 
through reasonable prosecutions of infringements. 

 
L. State’s Authorization of Sponsor.  Sponsor is hereby authorized to use State’s Trademarks in advertising and 

promoting Sponsor’s Products until 15 days after the Event takes place, provided State shall have the right to approve 
all such uses in writing in advance. 

 
  



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 4 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

M. Sponsor’s Submission for Approval.  Sponsor shall submit materials to State in writing and if State does not 
approve or reject such materials in writing within 10 – 14 business days after receipt thereof, then State shall be 
deemed to have approved such materials. 

 
N. Benefit of State.  The right to use State’s Trademarks is non-exclusive, non-assignable and nontransferable.  All 

uses by Sponsor of State’s Trademarks shall inure solely to the benefit of State. 
 

O. Merchandise.  State shall not manufacture or sell, or license the manufacture and/or sale, of any promotional or other 
merchandise which bears Sponsor’s Trademarks without Sponsor’s prior written consent.  Sponsor shall have the 
right to manufacture and/or sell promotional or other merchandise which bears State’s Trademarks. 

 
P. Ambush Prevention-State’s Action.  State agrees to take all reasonable measures to prevent the unauthorized use 

of State’s Trademarks (and facsimiles thereof) and to prevent the dilution of the value of Sponsor’s rights hereunder 
by using its best efforts to exclude competing signage, competitive product sales and competitive product sampling 
from the Venue and the area surrounding the Venue, and to prosecute specific instances of trademark and copyright 
infringement, trademark and trade dress dilution, unfair competition and/or consumer deception whenever it is, in the 
opinion of State’s counsel, reasonable to do so.  State shall bear all costs of such prosecution and shall retain the 
proceeds thereof, if any.  Sponsor shall cooperate with State in any such litigation. 

 
Q. Owner Warranties.  State represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
 
2. State’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names or other rights of any other person; 

 
3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct the Event as 

contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

4. it will comply with all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances pertaining to the promotion and conduct of 
the Event. 

 
R. Sponsor Warranties.  Sponsor represents and warrants that: 

 
1. it has the full right and legal authority to enter into and fully perform this Agreement in accordance with its 

terms without violating the rights of any other person; 
   

2. Sponsor’s Trademarks do not infringe the trademarks or trade names of any other person; 
 

3. it has all government licenses, permits or other authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and 
 

4. all Products furnished by Sponsor shall be of high quality and shall be free from product defects and shall be 
merchantable and suited for their intended purpose. 

 
 S.   Effect of Cancellation on Sponsor.  In the event that the Event does not take place, in whole or in part, due to any 

Act of God or force majeure, including, without limitation, weather, fire, flood, strike, labor dispute, civil commotion, riot 
or threat of violence of similar cause beyond the control of the parties, then Sponsor shall be entitled to an immediate 
refund of the Sponsorship Fee (or a pro rata portion thereof if the Event took place only in part) less any expenses 
incurred on behalf of the Sponsor and an immediate refund of the value (as measured by Sponsor’s cost) of all 
Products contributed by Sponsor (or a pro rata portion of the value of the Products used in the Event if the Event took 
place only in part).  State will provide adequate revenue protection insurance to cover its obligations hereunder. 

 
T. No Joint Venture of Partnership.  This agreement shall not be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, 

principal-agent, employer-employee or similar relationship between State and Sponsor. 
 
 
 



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 5 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT B - SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 
 

U. Invalidity.  The determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable shall not invalidate the 
Agreement, all of said provisions being inserted conditionally on their being considered legally valid, and this 
Agreement shall be construed and performed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were 
omitted. 

 
V. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been duly given when delivered or sent by prepaid certified or registered mail: 
 

If to State, to:  88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
 
or such other address as either party may designate in writing to the other party for this purpose. 
 

W. Commissions.  Sponsor and State shall each be responsible for its own sales agency, sponsorship agency, 
advertising agency or other commissions or brokers fees which either is or may become obligated to pay as a result of 
or attendant to this Agreement. 

 
X. Non-Assignment.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party, 

except that Sponsor may assign this Agreement to any entity which acquires substantially all of its assets. 
 

Y. Complete Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
other agreements, if any, express or implied, whether written or oral.  State has made and makes no representations 
of any kind except those specifically set forth herein. 

 
Z. Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.  

 
AA. Cancellation.  The State reserves the sole and exclusive right to terminate this agreement, with or without cause, 

upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Sponsor. If, during the performance of this agreement, a dispute arises 
between the Sponsor and the State, which cannot be settled by discussion, the Sponsor shall, within eight hours of 
the incident giving rise to the dispute, submit a written statement to State.  A decision by the State, in writing, shall be 
given to the Sponsor within four hours of receipt of such statement, and shall be final and conclusive. The Sponsor 
shall continue to perform the requirements herein without interruptions during the dispute period. 

 
BB. Breach of Agreement.  In the event the Sponsor breaches the terms of this agreement, the State shall be entitled to 

recover, in addition to any other damages and remedies that they may be entitled to, all costs incurred in enforcing 
this agreement, including attorney’s fees. 

 
CC. Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd 

District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, 
employees, and their sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, dba Tandem) from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description (including, but not 
limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or in any way related to the 
performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of negligence; by reason of death, 
injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any state or federal accessibility law, statute 
or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or 
comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to 
the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify 
the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their 
respective employees, or agents (excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
 

- End Exhibit B - 
 
  



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 6 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or agreement 
(hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural Associations, County Fairs, 
Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, 
officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences related to operations under the contract. This may be 
provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is acceptable), 
lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which the 
County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, California 
Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated agricultural 
fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional insured, but only 
insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates must be 
listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current Insurance 
Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per occurrence for 
Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except arena or track 
motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all types with a paid gate 
and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without a paid gate and 
with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All Types without any Rough 
Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 
rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions 
All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for all other contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) 
is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO policy 
form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits per 
accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed vehicles) on 
fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required by 
law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

  



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 7 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

4. Cancellation Notice:   
Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 

Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 
 

  
6.  Insurance Company:   

The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 
 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special Events 
Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with California 

Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for shall be in effect at all 
times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is cancelled at any time or times 
prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the fair, prior to said expiration date, a 
new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of 
the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. New certificates of insurance are subject to the 
approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be 
performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the 
following actions: (1) declare a material breach by contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all 
payments due to contractor/renter until notice is received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain 
such insurance coverage and deduct premiums for same from any sums due or which become due to 
contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 

  



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 8 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 
 

B. Primary Coverage: 
The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to the 
fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held responsible 
for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in excess of such 
minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under contract documents or 
by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity obligations.  The 
contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or assignment of this 
contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required hereunder, 
with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime Carnival Ride 
contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to California Fair 
Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of liability 
agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) from each 
participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous participant events include 
but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team Events; Equestrian-related Events; 
Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, skateboard, or scooter.  Contact 
California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
  



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 9 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

A. The District hereby grants to the Contractor the right to occupy the aforestated space(s) for the purpose set forth 
herein and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Commercial Space and Concessions Rules and Regulations Handbook hereby becomes a part of this 
Agreement by reference and is on file with the District.  By signing the Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges that they have read the Handbook and agrees to abide by said Rules and Regulations. 

 
C. Contractor represents and warrants that the commercial offering, and all materials used in connection therewith, 

including, without limitation, all graphic and written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Contractor or all 
required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Contractor, and (ii) as far as 
Contractor is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, 
copyright, or other intellectual property rights of any third party. 

 
D. Contractor further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter 

any permits issued to Contractor or his employees hereunder. 
 
E. In the event Contractor fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and 

Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by the 
District and the District shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of the 
District. 

 
F. No Contractor will be allowed to open booth space/exhibit until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have 

been complied with. 
 
G. Contractor will conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, 

paper, etc. in receptacles provided by the District near said booth space/exhibit for such purpose, and will keep the 
area within and surrounding said booth space/exhibit free from all rubbish and debris. 

 
H. The District will furnish necessary janitorial services for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but 

Contractor must, at his own expense, keep the booth/exhibit space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  
All equipment must be clean, all coverings removed, and the booth/exhibit ready for business each day at least one 
hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Contractor’s 
trash, and such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

I. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of this Agreement shall have the prior approval of District 
and the local fire suppression authorities.  

 
J. Contractor will conduct the privileges granted in this Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the 

State Department of Health Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and 
privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or transact any business whatsoever for which an 
exclusive privilege is sold by the District, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within said premises 
or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to 
the space and privilege provided in the Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Contractor shall not 
include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 

 
K. All sound-producing devices used by Contractor within or outside its space must be of such a nature and must be so 

operated as not to cause annoyance or inconvenience to its patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and 
the decision of the District as to the desirability of any such sound producing device shall be final and conclusive. 
Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from the District. 

 
L. Contractor agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in 

which money is used as a prize or premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes 
or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the space.  Only straight merchandising methods 
shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the the 
District and the local law enforcement officials. 

 



SA-258-15SP 
AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES, INC. 
PAGE 10 of 10 
  

EXHIBIT D – RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE (CONT.) 
 
M. Contractor is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Contractor and agrees to reimburse the District for any 

damage to the real property, equipment, or grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Contractor, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Contractor’s control excepted. 

 
N. The District may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of 

Contractor’s, but the District shall not be responsible for loss or damage to the property of Contractor. 
 
O. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in 

connection with the space and owned by Contractor must be removed from the buildings and grounds by 
Contractor, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by the District.  It is understood in the event of 
Contractor’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained, the 
District may and is hereby authorized and made the agent of Contractor to remove and store the concession and all 
other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Contractor’s risk and expense, and Contractor shall reimburse the 
District for expenses thus incurred. 

 
P. No Contractor will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in 

the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made 
unless Contractor is authorized in writing by the District and unless it holds a lawful license authorizing such sales 
on said premises. 

 
Q. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 
R. Failure of the District to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of 

these rules and regulations shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and 
regulations. 

 
S. Contractor recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation 

and that the Contractor may be subject to the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
T. The District shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 
U. The parties hereto agree that Contractor, and any agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the District. 
 
V. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall 

extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

 
W. By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of 

California building, including the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival 
area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  
This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens.  During OCFEC-produced events 
(i.e. OC Fair, Imaginology) smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens will be limited 
to areas designated by the Association.  

 
-End Exhibit D- 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT                                                                                                  R_____ A_____ F_____ 
STD 213 (Rev 06/03) AGREEMENT NUMBER 

 SA-259-15FT 
 REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 1436468 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below: 

 STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 CONTRACTOR'S NAME 

 JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 

2. The term of this         06/08/15 through 08/19/15 FED ID:  
 Agreement is:  
 

3. The maximum amount  $20,390.00 
 of this Agreement is:  
 

4.  The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – To provide twinkle lights at the OC Fair & Event Center for the 
2015 OC Fair. Additional Scope of Work continued on page 2. 

Pages 1 – 4 

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Page   5 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 6 – 9  

 Check mark one item below as Exhibit D:  

   Exhibit - D Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement) Pages 10 – 13 

   Exhibit - D* Special Terms and Conditions   

 Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements (Attached hereto as part of this agreement)  Pages 14 – 16 

   

Items shown with an Asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at www.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language          

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR California Department of General 
Services Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Josh Barnett, President 
ADDRESS  
4725 Panama Lane D3-257, Bakersfield, CA 93313 
(661) 900-7185 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME  
32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
BY (Authorized Signature) 

 
DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  Exempt per:       

Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 
Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 

      

ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 2 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To conduct all services, installations, and teardowns between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. PST on the 
following dates: 

Item Super Category Quantity
Unit of 

Measure
Item Description Additional Notes Location  Delivery Pick-Up

Preferred 
Delivery Time

Account Price

A. TERESA M.
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

Double Strung Canopy of Lights Between 
12 Elm Trees w/ Lights Strung Crisscross 
Across Roadway - BLUE & CLEAR

Crafter's Village 06/08/15 08/19/15 8:00-Noon 5220-64  $  1,465.00 

B. REYMUNDO
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

12 TREES Check Existing Lights in 12 Elm Trees Check Existing Lights
Baja Blues Deck 
& Baja Lawn

06/12/14 -
No 

Preference
5220-63  $  4,935.00 

C. LOVE
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

6 TREES 15' Coral Trees w/ Multi Trunks - CLEAR Check Existing Lights
Main Gate 
(Turnaround)

06/17/15
No 

Preference
5220-51  $  4,935.00 

D. LOVE
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

6 Elm Trees - WHITE Check Existing Lights Yellow Gate 06/17/15
No 

Preference
5220-50  $  2,625.00 

E. BARB G.
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

8 TREES 30' Palm Trees Starting 12' Up to Top Check Existing Lights

Centennial Farm - 
Pacific 
Amphitheatre 
Entrance

06/19/15 -
No 

Preference
5220-42  $  1,575.00 

F. BARB G.
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

Outline Legs & Crossbars - 4 Spotlights on 
Windmill Blades

Check Existing Lights
Centennial Farm - 
Windmill

06/19/15 -
No 

Preference
5220-42  $     525.00 

G. BARB G.
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

Outline Edge of Sign & 4 Legs w/ 4 
Spotlights on Words

Check Existing Lights
Centennial Farm 
Sign

06/19/15 -
No 

Preference
5220-42  $     420.00 

H. RENEE
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

1 TENT
30' x 40' x 10' Canopy Frame Pole Wrap 
Including Top

Exhibit 
Promenade - 
Breezeway

06/23/15 08/19/15
No 

Preference
5220-80  $     655.00 

I. RENEE
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

2 TENT
30' x 60' x 10' Canopy Frame Pole Wrap 
Including Top

Exhibit 
Promenade - 
Breezeway

06/23/15 08/19/15
No 

Preference
5220-80  $  1,680.00 

J. JASON
TWINKLE 
LIGHTS

4 TREES Check Existing Lights in 4 Trees Check Existing Lights
Fair Square Park - 
Blue Gate

07/02/15 -
No 

Preference
5220-09  $  1,575.00 

TOTAL 20,390.00$  

2. To provide lighting and light services as specified below: 

 
A. Crafters Village 

 
Services: 
Install and tear down the following lighted elements: 

i. Double strung canopy of lights created among twelve (12) elm trees with lights strung crisscross 
across the roadway  

ii. Twinkle lights to have blue and clear bulbs 
iii. 2,000 lights strung over roadway 

 
LED Commercial Grade Total: $1,465.00 

 
 

B. Baja Blues Deck and Baja Lawn 
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Twelve (12) Chinese elms 
 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $4,935.00 
 
 

C. Main Gate Parking Turnaround - Coral Trees 
 
Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Wrap six (6) – 15’ coral trees 
ii. 3,000 lights per tree 
iii. 18,000 lights total 

 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $4,935.00 

 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 3 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 
 

 

D. Yellow Gate 
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Six (6) elm trees with clear twinkle lights 
ii. 3,000 lights per tree 
iii. 18,000 lights total 

 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $2,625.00 
 
 

E. Centennial Farm - Pacific Amphitheatre Entrance 
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Eight (8) – 30’ palms: lighting starts 12’ from tree base and spirals to top of tree 
ii. 1,500 lights per tree 
iii. 12,000 lights total 

 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $1,575.00 

 
 

F. Centennial Farm - Windmill  
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Outline legs and crossbars and four (4) spotlights on windmill blades 
ii. 1,500 lights total 

 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $525.00 
 
 

G. Centennial Farm Sign 
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Outline edge of sign, all four (4) sign legs, and spotlight on words 
   
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $420.00 
 
 

H. Exhibit Promenade – Breezeway 
 

Services: 
Install and tear down the following lighted elements: 
 

i. Wrapping of canopies and poles in clear twinkle lights including top 
ii. One (1) - 30’ x 40’ x 10’ Canopy  

 
LED Commercial Grade Total: $655.00 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 4 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK (CONT.) 

 
CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.): 

 
 

I. Exhibit Promenade – Breezeway 
 

Services: 
Install and tear down the following lighted elements: 
 

i. Wrapping of canopies and poles in clear twinkle lights including top 
ii. Two (2) - 30’ x 60’ x 10’ Canopies 

 
LED Commercial Grade Total: $1,680.00 
 
 

J. Fair Square Park – Blue Gate 
 

Services: 
Check and repair the following lighted elements: 

i. Four (4) trees 
 
Heavy Duty Grade Total: $1,575.00 
 

3. The District reserves the right to terminate any contract at any time by giving the Contractor notice in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the 
District of further payment, obligations and/or performances required in the terms of the contract.  

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To provide 60’ manlift for twinkle light installation. 

2. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed TWENTY THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY DOLLLARS 
($20,390.00) based upon the rates outlined and as shown in the Contractor’s proposal dated June 11, 2015. 

 

 

-End Exhibit A- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 5 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT B – BUDGET DETAIL & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

 
BUDGET DETAIL: 
 
District Account #: Distribution 
 
 
PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
Payment will be made Net 30 upon satisfactory completion of services herein required and upon receipt of proper 
invoice. 
 
Invoice shall be itemized and contain the District’s Purchase Order (PO) number 45791.  Invoice may be sent via email 
to AP@ocfair.com or mailed as follows: 

 
OC Fair & Event Center 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

88 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit B- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 6 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GTC 610 
 

1. APPROVAL:  
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by the Department of General 
Services, if required. Contractor may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained. 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the 
parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  

This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in 
the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. AUDIT:  

Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State 
Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is 
stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to 
allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, 
Contractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, 
Section 1896). 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION:  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State District and their respective agents, directors, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, of every kind, nature and description 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, expert fees, and costs of suit), directly, or indirectly, arising from, or 
in any way related to the performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, regardless of responsibility of 
negligence; by reason of death, injury, property damage, or any claim arising from the alleged violation of any 
state or federal accessibility law, statute or regulation, (including but not limited to, the Americans With 
Disabilities Act, and/or any state, local, successor, or comparable provision of law) however caused or alleged to 
have been caused, and even though claimed to be due to the negligence of the State.  Provided, however, that in 
no event shall Contractor be obligated to defend or indemnify the 32nd District Agricultural Association, the OC 
Fair & Event Center, or the State with respect to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 32nd District 
Agricultural Association, the OC Fair & Event Center, the State, or their respective employees, or agents 
(excluding the Lessee herein, or any of its employees or agents.) 

 
6. DISPUTES:  

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 
 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  

The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform 
the requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such 
termination the State may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the 
State shall be deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the balance, if any, shall be 
paid to the Contractor upon demand. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  

Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the State. 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 7 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION:  

The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post 
consumer material as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or 
supplies offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public Contract 
Code Section 12209.  With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of 
Section 12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. 
Contract Code §12205). 

 
10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, 
ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical 
condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Contractor and 
subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment 
are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the 
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code 
Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which 
they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to 
perform work under the Agreement. 
 

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:  
The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES contained in the document CCC 307 are hereby incorporated 
by reference and made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.  

 
12. TIMELINESS:  

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
13. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all of Contractor's 
expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly 
so provided.  

 
14. GOVERNING LAW:  

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are obtained by means 
of a competitive bid, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set 
out below.  
 

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:  
 

i. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods, services, or 
materials by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the 
Attorney General may bring an action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the 
Business and Professions Code. 
 

ii. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency making a public 
purchase. Government Code Section 4550. 

 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 8 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 

will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have 
under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising 
from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to 
the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders 
final payment to the bidder. Government Code Section 4552. 

 
c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a 

monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to 
receive reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public 
body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by 
the assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in 
obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553. 

 
d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign 

the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the 
violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or 
(b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 
4554. 

 
16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:   

For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract 
Code 7110, that: 

 
a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply 

with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but 
not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

 
b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 

employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the 
California Employment Development Department. 

 
17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION:  

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties 
agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

 
18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS:   

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling 
vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353. 

 
19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business participation, then 
Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time 
period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) report to the awarding department the actual 
percentage of small business participation that was achieved.  (Govt. Code § 14841.) 
 

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran business enterprise 
(DVBE) participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under this Contract 
(or within such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the 
awarding department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract; (2) the 
name and address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the Contract; (3) the amount 
each DVBE received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all payments under the Contract have been  



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 9 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT C – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved.  A person or 
entity that knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each violation.  (Mil. 
& Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.) 

 
20. LOSS LEADER:   

If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies then the following statement is 
incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or 
product as a “loss leader” as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and Professions Code.  (PCC 10344(e).) 

 
 
 

-End Exhibit C- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 10 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
CCC-307 CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind the 
prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 

  

Federal ID Number 

  

By (Authorized Signature) 

  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

  

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:  

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code 
§12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to public entities.) 
 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:  
Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free 
workplace by taking the following actions: 
 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against 
employees for violations. 
 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 
iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  

 
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

i. receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
ii. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on the 

Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Agreement or 
termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements 
if the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, 
or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  
 

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION:  
Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's 
failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 11 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO REQUIREMENT:  

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and 
Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003.   
 
Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services 
during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the 
firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of 
less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 
 
Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal services, and may 
be taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

 
5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:   

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within 
the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of 
California. 
 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   
a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding 

accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a 
public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been 
laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured 
labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or 
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, 
abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  The contractor further 
declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the 
California Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract 
Code Section 6108. 
 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the contractor’s records, 
documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required by authorized officials of the 
contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the 
contractor’s compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

 
7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:   

For contracts over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007, the contractor certifies that contractor 
is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

 
DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 
 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If 
Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the 
awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  
 
Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  
1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the officer or 
employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state 
agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  
 
2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state 
agency to provide goods or services. 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 12 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 
1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee 
may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, 
arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity 
by any state agency. 
 
2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or 
employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state agency in a 
policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 
 
If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall render this Agreement 
void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 
 
Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. 
(Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e) 
 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION:  
Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms 
to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 
 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE:  
An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a 
new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  
 

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  
a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies will be 

verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure that all 
obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   
 

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction for the 
purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, 
rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

 
c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in good 

standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will determine whether a 
corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  
A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, 
or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing 
execution of the agreement. 
 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:  
Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review 
promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist  



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 13 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT D – SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT.) 

 
order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law 
relating to air or water pollution. 

 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:  

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit D- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 14 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
California Fair Services Authority  
 
I.  Evidence of Coverage 
 

The contractor/renter shall provide a signed original evidence of coverage form for the term of the contract or 
agreement (hereinafter “contract”) protecting the legal liability of the State of California, District Agricultural 
Associations, County Fairs, Counties in which County Fairs are located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is 
leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fairs,  California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating 
California designated agricultural fairs,  their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, from occurrences 
related to operations under the contract. This may be provided by: 

         
A. Insurance Certificate: 

 The contractor/renter provides the fair with a signed original certificate of insurance (the ACORD form is 
acceptable), lawfully transacted, which sets forth the following: 

 
1. List as the Additional Insured:   

"That the State of California, the District Agricultural Association, County Fair, the County in which 
the County Fair is located, Lessor/Sublessor if fair site is leased/subleased, Citrus Fruit Fair, 
California Exposition and State Fair, or Entities (public or non-profit) operating California designated 
agricultural fairs, their directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees are made additional 
insured, but only insofar as the operations under this contract are concerned." 
 

2. Dates:   
The dates of inception and expiration of the insurance. For individual events, the specific event dates 
must be listed, along with all set-up and tear down dates. 

 
3. Coverages:   

a. General Liability 
Commercial General Liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, at least as broad as the current 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policy form #CG 0001.  Limits shall be not less than $5,000,000  per 
occurrence for Fairtime Carnival Rides; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Motorized Events All Types except 
arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $3,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events all 
types with a paid gate and any Rough Stock events; $2,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo Events All 
Types without a paid gate and with any Rough Stock events;  $1,000,000 per occurrence for Rodeo 
Events All Types without any Rough Stock Events; $2,000,000  per occurrence for Interim Carnival 
Rides, Fairtime Kiddie Carnival Rides of up to 6 rides, Concerts with over 5,000 attendees, Rave Type 
Events All Types, Mechanical Bulls, Extreme Attractions All Types, Orbitrons, Simulators, and Motorized 
Events of arena or track motorcycle racing and go-cart racing; $1,000,000 per occurrence for all other 
contracts for which liability insurance (and liquor liability, if applicable) is required. 

 
b. Automobile Liability 

  Commercial Automobile Liability coverage, on a per accident basis, at least as broad as the current ISO 
policy form # CA 0001, Symbol #1 (Any Auto) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limits per accident for contracts involving use of contractor vehicles (autos, trucks or other licensed 
vehicles) on fairgrounds. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be maintained covering contractor/renter's employees, as required 
by law. 

 
d. Medical Malpractice 

Medical Malpractice coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained 
for contracts involving medical services. 

 
e. Liquor Liability 

Liquor Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained for 
contracts involving the sale of alcoholic beverages. 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 15 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
4. Cancellation Notice:   

Notice of cancellation of the listed policy or policies shall be sent to the Certificate Holder in accordance with 
policy provisions.  
 

5. Certificate Holder: 
a. For Individual Events Only - Fair, along with fair’s address, is listed as the certificate holder: 

 
 32nd District Agricultural Association, OC Fair & Event Center, 88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 

92626 
 

b.    For Master Insurance Certificates Only - California Fair Services Authority, Attn: Risk Management, 1776 
Tribute Road, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 is listed as the certificate holder. 

 
  

6.  Insurance Company:   
The company providing insurance coverage must be acceptable to the California Department of Insurance. 

 
7. Insured:  

The contractor/renter must be specifically listed as the Insured. 
 

OR 
 

B. CFSA Special Events Program: 
The contractor/renter obtains liability protection through the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA) Special 
Events Program, when applicable. 

 
OR 

  
C. Master Certificates: 
  A current master certificate of insurance for the contractor/renter has been approved by and is on file with 

California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 
 

OR 
 

D. Self-Insurance: 
The contractor/renter is self-insured and acceptable evidence of self-insurance has been approved by California 
Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
II. General Provisions 
  

A. Maintenance of Coverage: 
The contractor/renter agrees that the commercial general liability (and automobile liability, workers’ 
compensation, medical malpractice and/or liquor liability, if applicable) insurance coverage herein provided for 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this contract. In the event said insurance coverage expires or is 
cancelled at any time or times prior to or during the term of this contract, contractor/renter agrees to provide the 
fair, prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided for 
herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the contract, or for a period of not less than one (1) year. 
New certificates of insurance are subject to the approval of California Fair Services Authority,  and 
contractor/renter agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval. In the 
event the contractor/renter fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, the fair may, 
in addition to any other remedies it may have, take any of the following actions: (1) declare a material breach by 
contractor/renter and terminate this contract; (2) withhold all payments due to contractor/renter until notice is 
received that such insurance coverage is in effect; and (3) obtain such insurance coverage and deduct premiums 
for same from any sums due or which become due to contractor/renter under the terms of this contract. 

 
 
 



 
SA-259-15FT 
JOSH BARNETT PRODUCTIONS, INC. DBA LIGHTASMIC! 
PAGE 16 of 16  

 
EXHIBIT E – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (CONT.) 

 
B. Primary Coverage: 

The contractor/renter’s insurance coverage shall be primary and any separate coverage or protection available to 
the fair or any other additional insured shall be secondary. 

 
C. Contractor’s Responsibility: 

Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which contractor/renter may be held 
responsible for damages resulting from contractor/renter’s operations, acts, omissions or negligence.  Insurance 
coverage obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve contractor/renter of liability in 
excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude the fair from taking other actions available to it under 
contract documents or by law, including, but not limited to, actions pursuant to contractor/renter’s indemnity 
obligations.  The contractor/renter indemnity obligations shall survive the expiration, termination or 
assignment of this contract.  

 
D. Certified Copies of Policies: 

Upon request by fair, contractor/renter shall immediately furnish a complete copy of any policy required 
hereunder, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy.  Fairtime 
Carnival Ride contractors must submit copies of actual liability insurance policies, certified by an underwriter, to 
California Fair Services Authority (CFSA). 

 
III.  Participant Waivers   
 

For hazardous participant events, the contractor/renter agrees to obtain a properly executed release and waiver of 
liability agreement (Form required by contractor/renter’s insurance company or CFSA Release and Waiver Form) 
from each participant prior to his/her participation in the events sponsored by contractor/renter.  Hazardous 
participant events include but are not limited to any event within the following broad categories: Athletic Team 
Events; Equestrian-related Events; Motorized Events; Rodeo Events; and Wheeled Events, including bicycle, skates, 
skateboard, or scooter.  Contact California Fair Services Authority at (916) 921-2213 for further information. 
 
 
 
 

-End Exhibit E- 



 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                      R_______   A_______  F_______ 
 
X CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED 1 Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-028-15BL #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

1398063 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 STATEWIDE SEATING & GRANDSTANDS, INC.
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is         04/27/15 through 10/07/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $13,400.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $52,085.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #028-15BL, dated February 3, 2015, between the District and Statewide Seating & 
Grandstands, Inc. is hereby amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to provide additional rental bleachers in the Action Sports Arena and Livestock 
area from July 13 – August 17 for the 2015 OC Fair. 

 
2. To provide the rental bleachers for the cost of $13,400.00, thereby increasing the original contract value from 

$38,685.00 to $52,085.00. 
 
 
 

-See Next Page- 

   

  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

STATEWIDE SEATING & GRANDSTANDS, INC.
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Amanda Daniels, Vice President 
ADDRESS 

P.O. Box 99031, San Diego, CA  92169 
(619) 239-4040 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

  

Acct. #: Distribution 
  



SA-028-15BL, AMENDMENT #1 
STATEWIDE SEATING AND GRANDSTANDS, INC. 
PAGE 2 of 2 
 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 
3. To provide the rental bleachers according to the  below specifications and schedule: 
 

Super Quantity
Unit of 

Measure
Item Description Location  Delivery Pick-Up

Preferred 
Delivery Time

Account Price

DAN G. 2 EACH 60' x 11 Rows of Seating
Pig Races - 
Livestock

07/13/15 08/17/15
No 

Preference
5220-70  $    5,600.00 

DAN G. 8 EACH
Non-Elevated Bleachers 15' x 6 
Rows/45 Seats (11' deep)  

ASA 
(Ma'Ceo)

07/21/15 07/26/15 Afternoon 5220-70  $    4,800.00 

DAN G. 2 EACH 15' x 5 Rows (9' deep)
ASA 
(Ma'Ceo)

07/21/15 07/26/15 Afternoon 5220-70  $    1,000.00 

TERESA 
D.

4 EACH 15' x 5 Rows of Seating
Livestock 
(North Tent)

08/03/15 08/17/15
No 

Preference
5220-62  $    2,000.00 

TOTAL 13,400.00$     
 

4. All deliveries and pick-ups shall take place between 7:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. on the dates specified above. The delivery 
and pick-up dates are critical.  Each delivery/pick-up must be completed on the date and/or time specified above, 
unless otherwise agreed upon by the District. The bleachers for “ASA (Ma’Cao)” need to be removed either 
between 8:00 p.m. - 9:00 p.m. on July 26, 2015, or no later than 9:00 a.m. on July 27, 2015.  
 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed FIFTY TWO THOUSAND EIGHTY FIVE DOLLARS ($52,085.00) 
based upon the unit price of each item as shown in the Contractor’s Price Quotation dated June 23, 2015. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 



 
SASTATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                          R_______ A_______ F_______ 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-56-12PA #3 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

1202327 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 XL VIDEO, INC. 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is 07/08/15 through 08/31/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $205,891.60 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $788,278.96
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #56-12PA, dated March 07, 2012, between the District and XL Video, Inc. is hereby amended as 
follows: 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
1. To amend the original contract to provide video equipment and services at the Pacific Amphitheatre for the OC Fair & 

Event Center with the third year option to renew for the amount of TWO HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED 
NINETY ONE DOLLARS AND SIXTY CENTS ($205,891.60). 
 

2. To provide all necessary equipment, tools and personnel to set up and tear down systems, including, but not limited to 
heavy equipment (i.e. lifts). 

 
STATE AGREES: 
1. To pay the Contractor a total amount not to exceed SEVEN HUNDRED EIGHTY EIGHT THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED 

SEVENTY EIGHT DOLLARS AND NINETY SIX CENTS ($788,278.96) upon satisfactory completion of work herein 
required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

XL VIDEO, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Cary Tan, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

3380 North San Fernando Road, Los Angeles, CA 90065 
(818) 765-7700 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

Account #: 5220-72 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                     R_______   A_______   F_______ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages Total AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-061-15YR #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 
1410702 

 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 COUNTY OF ORANGE 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is         07/01/15 through 06/30/16  
3. The maximum amount of this  $0.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $390,000.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #061-15YR, dated April 15, 2015, between the District and the County of Orange is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to provide and coordinate law enforcement services during Year Round Events 
at the OC Fair & Event Center by incorporating Contractor’s “Agreement between the State of California and 
the County of Orange” as “Exhibit F” attached hereto as part of this Agreement. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed THREE HUNDRED NINETY THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($390,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of work herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

 

-See Next Page- 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Chair of the Board of Supervisors 
ADDRESS 

320 North Flower Street, Santa Ana, CA  92703 
(714) 834-6739 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

Account #: Distribution 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                     R_______   A_______   F_______ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages Total AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-062-15FT #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 
1410697 

 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 COUNTY OF ORANGE 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is         07/17/15 through 08/16/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $0.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $500,000.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #062-15FT, dated April 15, 2015, between the District and the County of Orange is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to provide and coordinate law enforcement services during the 2015 OC Fair at 
the OC Fair & Event Center by incorporating Contractor’s “Agreement between the State of California and the 
County of Orange” as “Exhibit F” attached hereto as part of this Agreement. 

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($500,000.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of work herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

 

-See Next Page- 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Chair of the Board of Supervisors 
ADDRESS 

320 North Flower Street, Santa Ana, CA  92703 
(714) 834-6739 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

Account #: Distribution 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                     R_______   A_______   F_______ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages Total AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-067-15GE #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 
 

 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 MUSIC ZIRCONIA, INC. F/S/O HEAVY MELLOW & BEN WOODS
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is         08/07/15 through 08/16/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $900.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $1,800.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #067-15GE, dated April 16, 2015, between the District and Music Zirconia, Inc. f/s/o Heavy 
Mellow & Ben Woods is hereby amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to include an additional performance by Heavy Mellow on Sunday, August 16, 
2015, in the Hangar Building.  The fee for this additional performance is NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($900.00).   

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,800.00) 
upon satisfactory completion of work herein required. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

 

-See Next Page- 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

MUSIC ZIRCONIA, INC. F/S/O HEAVY MELLOW & BEN WOODS 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Brent Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
ADDRESS 

5595 Magnatron Blvd., Suite A, San Diego, CA 92111 
323.828.3110, brent@musiczirconia.com

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

Account #: 5770-70 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                     R_______   A_______   F_______ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages Total AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-084-15GE #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 
1411349 

 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 ENTERTAINING THE KING TOURING, INC. F/S/O STREET DRUM CORPS 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is         07/16/15 through 08/16/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $500.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $18,325.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #084-15GE, dated April 22, 2015, between the District and Entertaining the King Touring, Inc. 
f/s/o Street Drum Corps is hereby amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to include an additional performance by Street Drum Corps on Thursday, July 
16, 2015, from 5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m., in support of the Pacific Amphitheatre Ribbon Cutting Ceremony.  The 
fee for this additional performance is FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00).   

DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed EIGHTEEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE 
DOLLARS ($18,325.00) upon satisfactory completion of work herein required and upon receipt of proper 
invoice. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

 

-See Next Page- 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

ENTERTAINING THE KING TOURING, INC. F/S/O STREET DRUM 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Frank Zummo, Founding Member 
ADDRESS 

16133 Ventura Blvd., Suite 880, Encino, CA 91436 
(818) 784-9000 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

Account #: Distribution 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                         R_________  A________ F________ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-086-15FT #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 SHAILE SOCHER 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is 07/22/15 through 08/16/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  Less $920.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $3,680.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #086-15FT, dated April 24, 2015, between the District and Shaile Socher, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
1. To amend the original contract amount for sugar arts and sculpture demonstrations at the 2015 OC Fair by 

removing four (4) days of work performed in the Garden & Floral Exhibit from July 30 – August 2 at the rate of 
two hundred thirty dollars ($230.00) per day.  Demonstrations have been reduced to July 22 – July 29, 2015. 

2. To amend the original contract from $4,600.00 to $3,680.00. 
3. To provide an invoice for the first six (6) days worked at the daily rate of TWO HUNDRED THIRTY DOLLARS 

($230.00) per day, for a total of ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY DOLLARS ($1,380.00), to be 
submitted after July 29, 2015.  Payment will be Net 10 upon submission of invoice. 
 

DISTRICT AGREES: 
1. To pay Contractor a total amount not to exceed THREE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED EIGHTY DOLLARS 

($3,680.00) upon satisfactory completion of work herein required and upon receipt of proper invoice. 
2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 

  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

SHAILE SOCHER 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Shaile Socher 
ADDRESS 

305 10th Street, Apartment G, Huntington Beach, CA 92648 
(714) 334-8931; pieceakake@earthlink.net

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

  

Account #: 5780-42 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                R_________   A________ F_______ 
 
 CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED  Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-124-15AS #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

1416951 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 MONSTER TRUCK ENTERTAINMENT, LLC 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is 07/27/15 through 08/03/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $1,500.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $75,000.00
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #124-15AS, dated May 21, 2015 between the District and Monster Truck 
Entertainment, LLC is hereby amended as follows: 
 
CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to include an additional ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($1,500.00) to provide all labor, equipment and materials to produce the Monster X Tour Monster Truck Show 
at the Action Sports Arena. 

 
DISTRICT AGREES: 

1. To pay Contractor a total sum not to exceed SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($75,000.00) upon 
satisfactory completion of work herein required. 

2. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 
 

   

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

MONSTER TRUCK ENTERTAINMENT, LLC
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Tony Maderazzo, Chief Operations Officer 
ADDRESS 

4921 Industry Drive, Central Point, OR  97502 
(480) 773-6822 or (602) 531-3334 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer  or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  

District Account #:  5770-70    



 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                        R_______  A_______  F_______ 
x CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED 1 Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-054-15FT #1 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

1408809 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 CART MART, INC 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is 04/13/15 through 08/31/15  
3. The maximum amount of this  $5,515.00 Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is: $11,354.00 Total Not To Exeed
4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 

of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #054-15FT, dated April 17, 2015, between the District and Cart Mart, Inc., is hereby 
amended as follows: 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to include additional Electric Cart Rental Units (“Units”). Additional Units shall 
be Club Car Carryall style carts. 

 

-See Next Page- 
 

 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

CART MART, INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Brian Rott, President 
ADDRESS 

237 South Bent Avenue, San Marcos, CA  92078 
(760) 744-4420 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

  

Account #: N/A 
 



SA-054-15FT, AMENDMENT #1 
CART MART, INC. 
PAGE 2 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.) 

2. The rental rate and “one-time fees” submitted in Contractor’s supplementary quote dated June 8, 2015 and listed in 
the table below are inclusive of all equipment, fuel, materials, tools, labor, taxes, and any other fees necessary for the 
delivery, installation, rental period, removal and pick-up of four (4) added rental Units. 

 
 

DISTRICT AGREES 
 
1. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 
 

Account
Monthly 

Rental Rate

Monthly 

Rental 

Discount

Monthly 

Rental 

Subtotal

Rental 

Months

Delivery/ 

Pick‐Up Fee 

(one time fee)

Extended Total Tax
Total Fees 

Per Cart

5220‐62 735.00$           (147.00)$  588.00$    2 100.00$              1,276.00$           102.08$   1,378.08$     

5220‐64 735.00$           (147.00)$  588.00$    2 100.00$              1,276.00$           102.08$   1,378.08$     

5220‐64 735.00$           (147.00)$  588.00$    2 100.00$              1,276.00$           102.08$   1,378.08$     

5220‐64 735.00$           (147.00)$  588.00$    2 100.00$              1,276.00$           102.08$   1,378.08$     

Grand Total of All Fees Four Carts (Inclusive of Tax): 5,512.32$     

Added Club Car Carryall Units



 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)                                                                                                                                                                                                                        R_______  A_______  F_______ 
x CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE ATTACHED 1 Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 SA-167-12SP #3 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 

1219210 
 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 BACKYARD BBQ VILLAGE INC. 
2. The term of this    FED ID:  
 Agreement is 07/01/15 through 06/30/16  
3. The maximum amount of this  $15,000.00 PRODUCT/CASH SPONSORSHIP Amendment
 Agreement after this amendment is:  

4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a part 
of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

 Standard Agreement #167-12SP, dated May 23, 2012, between the District and Backyard BBQ Village Inc., 
is hereby amended as follows: 

CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

1. To amend the original contract to provide OCFEC private label bottled water and five (5)-gallon jugs of water 
(“Water”) to the District, encompassing the 2015 OC Fair as well as the District’s 2015/2016 Year Round 
Event program. 

2. To provide up to FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) in Water during the term of this Agreement 
as Contractor’s product/cash sponsorship. 

3. The cost of Water ordered by the District shall be applied against the established FIFTEEN THOUSAND 
DOLLAR ($15,000.00) product/cash sponsorship, according to the previously established contracted rates.  
There shall be no purchase cost charged to the District. 

4. The remaining balance of the FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLAR ($15,000.00) product/cash sponsorship, if any, 
shall be paid to the District in cash at the end of the Agreement. 

-See Next Page- 

   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

BACKYARD BBQ VILLAGE INC. 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

Jose De La Cruz, President 
ADDRESS 

12127 Mall Boulevard, Suite A, #463, Victorville, CA  92392 
(702) 303-4420 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

32ND DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:      
      Kathy Kramer, CFE, CMP, Chief Executive Officer or 

Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
ADDRESS 

88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

  

Account #: N/A 
 



SA-167-12SP, AMENDMENT #3 
BACKYARD BBQ VILLAGE INC. 
PAGE 2 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREES (CONT.) 

5. This Agreement encompasses Water through June 30, 2016.  The District shall have no obligation to Contractor 
beyond June 30, 2016. 

6. This is a non-exclusive agreement.  The District may procure similar services from an alternative vendor(s). 
 

DISTRICT AGREES 
 
1. Except as herein amended, all other terms and conditions remain as previously agreed upon. 
 



RA # CONTRACTOR EVENT DESCRIPTION FACILITIES CONTRACT DATES CONTRACT AMOUNT

R-042-15 Orange County Wine Society Orange County Wine Society Management 
Meeting Meeting Baja Blues Restaurant 09/11/15 $1,501.50

R-043-15 Orange County Wine Society Orange County Wine Society Barbeque Private event Courtyard 09/13/15 $1,805.00

R-044-15 Orange County Wine Society Orange County Wine Society Chili Cook Off Private event Courtyard 10/18/15 $2,279.00

R-050-15 Sand Sports Super Show Sand Sports Super Show / Stadium Super 
Trucks Event Consumer show All Grounds 09/15/15-09/23/15 SSSS: $111,887.00

Truck Event: $35,571.75
R-069-15
(Revised)

Sugar Plum Festivals Sugar Plum Arts & Crafts Festivals Consumer show Costa Mesa Building 11/09/15-11/15/15 Revised Total: $28,993.00

R-083-15 Shoreline Dog Fanciers Association The Holiday Classic Dog Show Dog show

Costa Mesa Building, 
Huntington Beach 
Building, Santa Ana 
Pavilion

12/03/15-12/08/15 $34,872.11

R-084-15 Malibu Kennel Club The Holiday Classic Dog Show Dog show

Costa Mesa Building, 
Huntington Beach 
Building, Santa Ana 
Pavilion

12/03/15-12/08/15 $33,272.11

R-110-15 Southwest Airlines, SNA Southwest Airlines Holiday Party Private event Baja Blues Restaurant 12/05/15-12/06/15 $1,390.00 

R-116-15 Santa Monica Cat Club CFA All Breed Cat Show Cat show Costa Mesa Building 10/30/15-11/02/15 $18,119.00 

R-120-15 Lucky 7 Trailer Rally Trailer Rally Campground 08/21/15-08/23/15 $25.00 per night per RV

R-124-15 Ditech Mortgage Corp. Company Picnic Private event Hospitality Area 08/15/15 $576.50 

R-126-15 The OC Marathon OC Fair Fun Run 5K race All Grounds 08/09/15 50% of net proceeds

R-130-15 Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo

Company Picnic Private event Hospitality Area 08/01/15 $576.50 

R-131-15 Ultimate Trade Shows & Events, LLC The Ultimate Home & Outdoor Living Expo Home show Anaheim Building, Los 
Alamitos Building

10/02/15-10/05/15 $21,398.00 

R-134-15 Copper Hill Entertainment, LLC Fluffy Breaks Even TV filming Various 07/26/15 $1,454.50 

R-142-15 HOST VIP Bea Miller VIP Meet & Greet Private event Pacific Amphitheatre 08/08/15 $408.75

R-014-16 Apartment Association of Orange 
County

Apartment Association of Orange County 
Annual Trade Show Trade show

Costa Mesa Building, 
Huntington Beach 
Building

03/22/16-03/24/16 $20,147.00

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER
RENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015



RA # CONTRACTOR EVENT DESCRIPTION FACILITIES CONTRACT DATES CONTRACT AMOUNT

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER
RENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015

FT-018-15 The Kala Truck Food Truck Fare, Imaginology, Fair Food truck Pacific Amphitheatre, 
Imaginology, Fair

01/01/15-12/31/15 Varies $35.00-$400.00





































































































JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY PROJECT # PROJECT DATE PROJECT DESCRIPTION PRIMARY CONTRACTOR
APPROVED 

PROJECT TOTAL

Continuing
California Fair Financing Authority C0732X.454 02/01/12 Main Mall Renovation Sanders Construction $3,402,000.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Const 01/10/12 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Phase I Construction Innovative Construction Solutions $2,022,634.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Arch 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Architecture MAKE Architecture $575,792.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03211031, Geo 01/18/13 Pacific Amphitheatre Renovation - Geotechnical Willdan Geotechnical $21,001.00
California Fair Financing Authority 03213006 06/10/13 Pac Amp Campground PMT Upgrade-Solicitation of Bids CFFA $16,011.00 
California Fair Financing Authority 03213031/B, Const 08/15/13 Pac Amp Berm Renovation - Phase II CFFA $12,806,857.70 
California Fair Financing Authority 03213034 10/11/13 West End Facility Electrical Upgrade CFFA $549,284.00 
New

Revision/Amendment

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

ACTIVE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY AGREEMENTS

As of Jun 30, 2015



 
 
 

New Joint Powers Authority 
Agreements 

 
 
 
 
 

June 2015 
 

None 
 



 
 

Joint Powers Authority 
 
 
 
 
 

Invoices Paid in June 2015 

 



















































































































































CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION LOCATION TERM SPACE SIZE AMOUNT

15717 Renewal by Andersen of Orange County Andersen Brand windows and doors. Lead generating only. Festival of Products 07/01/15-08/18/15 20' x 10' $20,000.00

15741 Resort Vacations, Inc. Vacation ownership. Lead generating only. Pacific Amphitheatre 07/01/15-08/18/15 10' x 10' $10,000.00

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

PLATINUM RENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015



          
REVIEWED__________                   AGREEMENT NO.    15717               
APPROVED__________                   DATE        June 24, 2015 

PLATINUM 
RENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT by and between the 32nd District Agricultural Association (OC Fair & Event Center), (the "Association") and  

Renewal by Andersen of Orange County (the "Renter"). 
WITNESSETH: 
1. THAT WHEREAS, The Renter desires to secure from the Association certain rights and privileges and to obtain permission from the Association to use Association 

premises for only the dates as follows: 7/01/2015-8/18/2015   CLOSED MONDAYS & TUESDAYS. 
2. NOW, THEREFORE, Association hereby grants to the Renter the right to occupy the space(s) described below for the purpose hereinafter set forth, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement: FP #201, #202 
3. The purpose of occupancy shall be limited to (see attached Product and Services), and shall be for no other purpose or purposes whatsoever. 
4. Availability of camping space is very limited.  It is the intent of the OC Fair to accommodate all vendors that camped at the prior Fair. Vendor camping requests in excess 
of capacity will be placed on a wait list. 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Renter agrees to pay to Association for the rights and privileges hereby granted, the amounts and in the manner set forth below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed Rental Agreement and Certificate of Insurance are due on or before the Payment due date. 
6. Association shall have the right to audit and monitor any and all sales as well as access to the premises. 
 

7. Renter further agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Association and the State of California, and their officers, directors, agents, representatives, employers, and 
the Association’s sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, a Delaware Limited Partnership dba Tandem), predecessors-in-interest, 
successors-in-interest, transferees and assigns, from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, suits, costs (including attorney's fees), judgments or demands (collectively, 
"Claims") arising from or in any way related to the operation of Renter's concession under this Agreement, including, but not limited to Claims for personal injury, property 
damage, or loss of property, goods, wares or merchandise. 

A. Renter represents and warrants that the subject concession, and all materials used in connection therewith, including, without limitation, all graphic and 
written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Renter or all required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Renter, 
and (ii) as far as Renter is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property 
rights of any third party. 

 B. Renter further agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Association and the State of California, and their officers, directors, agents,  
 representatives, employees, predecessors-in-interest, successors-in-interest, transferees and assigns, from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, suits, costs 
 (including attorneys' fees), judgments or demands (collectively, "Claims") arising from or in any way related to Claims for misappropriation or infringement  of 

trademark copyright and other intellectual property rights. 
 

8. Renter further agrees that he will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter any permits issued to Renter or his employees hereunder. 
 

9.It is mutually understood and agreed that this contract or the privileges granted herein, or any part thereof, cannot be assigned or otherwise disposed of without the written 
consent of Association. 
 

10. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms of this contract shall be valid, unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, 
and that no oral understanding or agreements not incorporated herein and no alterations or variations of the terms hereof, unless made in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto, shall be binding upon any of the parties hereto. 
 

11. The Rules and Regulations included hereof are made a part of this agreement as though fully incorporated herein, and Renter agrees that he has read this agreement and 
the said Rules and Regulations and understands that they shall apply, unless amended by mutual consent in writing of the parties hereto.  
 

12. In the event Renter fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space 
shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by Association and Association shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of 
Association. 
 

13. Special Provision: By signing this Agreement, the undersigned agrees to abide by the Commercial Space & Concessions Program Handbook.  By this 
reference, the Handbook is incorporated into and becomes a part of this Agreement and is on file with the Association. 
 

14.This agreement is not binding upon Association until it has been duly accepted and signed by its authorized representative, and approved (if required) by the Department 
of Food and Agriculture and Department of General Services. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, This agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the parties hereto, the day and year first above written. 
 
Renewal by Andersen of Orange County  32nd District Agricultural Assocation 
22982 Alcalde Drive, Suite #100 88 Fair Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA   92653 Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  
By_____________________________________   By______________________________________ 
Title:   Angelia McCormick Title:  Sharon Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
 

 
 
 
 

Description                             Size            Space Type                                                           Charges 
Festival of Products                             20' x 10'       Platinum Corner                                                         $20,000.00 
  
 

                            Due Date                    Amount 
Signed Rental Agreement, Exhibit A and Payment Due                 6/29/2015                 Total:      $20,000.00                                 

              
*Payments postmarked after the due date will be subject to a late fee of $100 per payment.                    
 



RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

1. No Renter will be allowed to open until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have been complied with. 
 

2. Renter will conduct his business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, paper, etc. in receptacles 
provided by the Association within said concession plot for such purpose, and will keep the area within and surrounding said concessions free 
from all rubbish and debris. 
 

3. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of Rental Agreement shall have the prior approval of Association and the local fire 
suppression authorities.  All eating concessions not restricted to specific items will submit menus and prices to Association for approval at least twelve 
(12) hours in advance of each day’s operation. 
 

4. Renter will furnish Association with a list of all sales prices and other charges of any kind whatsoever to be charged by the Renter in said space(s). 
 

5. Renter must furnish receipts for license fees, tax deposits, insurance, etc., prior to event. 
 

6. Renter will conduct the privileges granted in the Rental Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the State Department of Health 
Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or 
transact any business whatsoever for which an exclusive privilege is sold by Association, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within 
said premises or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to the space and privilege 
provided in the Rental Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Renter shall not include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 
 

7. Renter will cause to be posted in a conspicuous manner at the front entrance to the concession, a sign showing the prices to be charged for all articles 
offered for sale to the public under the Rental Agreement; the size of said sign, manner and place of posting to be approved by Association. 
 

8. Association will furnish necessary janitor service for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but Renter must, at his own expense, keep 
the concession space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  All concessions must be clean, all coverings removed, and the concession ready for 
business each day at least one hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Renter’s trash, and 
such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

9. All sound-producing devices used by Renter within or outside his space must be of such a nature and must be so operated as not to cause annoyance or 
inconvenience to his patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and the decision of Association as to the desirability of any such sound producing 
device shall be final and conclusive. Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from Association. 
 

10. Renter agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in which money is used as a prize or 
premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the 
space.  Only straight merchandising methods shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the 
Association and the local law enforcement officials. 
 

11. Renter is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Renter and agrees to reimburse Association for any damage to the real property, equipment, or 
grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Renter, reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Renter’s control excepted. 
 

12. Association may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of Renter’s, but Association shall not be 
responsible for loss or damage to the property of Renter. 
 

13. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in connection with the space and 
owned by Renter must be removed from the buildings and grounds by Renter, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by Association.  It is 
understood in the event of Renter’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained.  Association may and is 
hereby authorized and made the agent of Renter to remove and store the concession and all other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Renter’s risk 
and expense, and Renter shall reimburse Association for expenses thus incurred. 
 

14. No Renter will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, 
except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made unless Renter is authorized in writing by Association and unless he holds a 
lawful license authorizing such sales on said premises. 
 

15. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 

16. Failure of Association to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of these rules and regulations shall not 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and regulations. 
 

17. This Rental Agreement shall be subject to termination by either party at any time during the term hereof by giving the other party notice in writing at 
least 30 days next prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the Association of any further 
performance of the terms of this Agreement. 
 

18. Renter, by signing this contract, does swear under penalty that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against that contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of the Contractor’s failure to comply with an order of 
the National Labor Relations Board (Government Code Section 14780.5) (SAM Sec. 12127). 
 

19. Renter recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation and that the Renter may be subject to 
the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 

20. The Association shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 

21. The parties hereto agree that Renter, and any agents and employees of Renter, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent 
capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of Association. 
 

22. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties hereto. 
 

Hazardous Agreements:  If this Agreement provides for a hazardous activity, the current Form FE-13, Statement Regarding Insurance, must be attached 
to each copy.   
 

By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of California building, including 
the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating 
area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens. 
 



 
 
Renewal by Andersen of Orange County      Agreement No:  15717    
Location/Space:   Festival of Products #201, #202                                                      Date:  June 24, 2015 
 
 
Andersen Brand Windows and Doors 
 
 
Lead Generating Only
 



 

OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1500 • ocfair.com 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
AGREEMENT NO. 15717 
 
Renter:  
Renewal by Andersen of Orange County 
Business License Number: N/A 
Seller’s Permit Number: 102-519285 
Taxpayer ID Number: 
22982 Alcalde Drive, Suite #100 
Laguna Hills, CA  92653 
(949) 910-8946 
Angelia McCormick, Events Manager 
  
Space Description: 
Festival of Products – FP #201, #202 (20’x10’) 
 
Space Fee: 
$20,000 
 
Term:  July 1, 2015 – August 18, 2015 
 
Renter agrees that space(s) shall be used only for the purpose as follows:   
Andersen Brand Windows and Doors (Lead Generating Only) 
 
Renter Agrees:  

1. To be a Platinum Partner from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015 at the OC Fair. 
2. To provide payment in the sum of TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) as a 

Platinum Partner fee, due upon execution of this agreement.  Exact payment schedule is as 
outlined on the Rental Agreement.  Payment in full must be received no later than June 29, 2015. 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos, and that all display 
elements, materials and concepts provided by Renter require the approval of the District prior to 
implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Renter logo as outlined herein for inclusion in advertising and 
signage. 

5. That staff members shall comply with all requirements as follows: 
a. No staff member will promote Renewal by Andersen of Orange County outside of 

designated space(s). 
i. To provide lead generation only for the following services/products at the 

location(s) indicated below. 
1. Andersen Brand Windows and Doors (product/service); FP #201, #202 

(location) 
b. Each individual assigned a Photo Credential is responsible for obtaining his or her 

credential from the badging office during scheduled operating hours. 
c. All working staff accessing the OC Fair by Photo or Courtesy Credentials are required to 

submit proper paperwork to Tandem, including Megan’s Law Screening(s).  Credentials 
to be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair.   

 



 

 

d. Booth space(s) must be fully staffed by uniformed representatives by 9:30 AM and open 
to the public from 10:00 AM to at least 11:00 PM on each Saturday and Sunday of 2015 
OC Fair dates, and by 11:30 AM and open to the public from 12:00 Noon to at least 
11:00 PM on each Wednesday, Thursday and Friday of 2015 OC Fair dates. 

6. To the understanding that mobile tours and other exhibitors may be located in close proximity to  
contractually designated space(s). 

7. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the Commercial Space & Concessions Program 
Handbook, including those regarding taxes and any other such reasonable parameters as set forth 
by District staff prior to and during the term of this agreement. 

8. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department 
or any other applicable entities, and to ensure display at all times within the parameters set forth 
by these organizations. 

9. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, applicable certifications and 
permits, and to comply with all such reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during 
and following the 2015 OC Fair. 

   

District Agrees:  
1. To provide 200 square feet of space located in Festival of Products (FP #201, #202). 
2. To provide ten (10) 2015 OC Fair Photo Credentials per booth for working staff (10 total photo 

credentials). 
3. To provide forty-six (46) 2015 OC Fair Working Credentials per booth for working staff (46 total 

working credentials). 
4. To provide ten (10) 2015 OC Fair Parking Hang Tags per booth for working staff                         

(10 total hang tags). 
5. To provide one (1) 2015 OC Fair F Lot Parking Hang Tag.  
6. To provide one hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets (for business development).  
7. To provide one (1) 36” round, branded floor decal to display in front of booth(s) FP #201, #202; 

decal to be designed, produced and installed by the OC Fair – logo to be provided by Renter.  
8. To provide access to one (1) complimentary Wi-Fi connection or DSL line for staff use at 

booth(s) FP #201, #202. 
9. To provide link to Renter website on applicable section of the OC Fair website. 

 
Renewal by Andersen of Orange County  32nd District Agricultural Association 
22982 Alcalde Drive, Suite #100  88 Fair Drive    
Laguna Hills, CA  92653   Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
                                                              
                                         
  
_____________________________     ___________________________________ 
Angelia McCormick, Events Manager  Sharon Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 



          
REVIEWED__________                   AGREEMENT NO.    15741               
APPROVED__________                   DATE        July 11, 2015 

PLATINUM 
RENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT by and between the 32nd District Agricultural Association (OC Fair & Event Center), (the "Association") and  

Resort Vacations, Inc. (the "Renter"). 
WITNESSETH: 
1. THAT WHEREAS, The Renter desires to secure from the Association certain rights and privileges and to obtain permission from the Association to use Association 

premises for only the dates as follows: 7/15/2015-8/18/2015   CLOSED MONDAYS & TUESDAYS. 
2. NOW, THEREFORE, Association hereby grants to the Renter the right to occupy the space(s) described below for the purpose hereinafter set forth, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement: PA #2 
3. The purpose of occupancy shall be limited to (see attached Product and Services), and shall be for no other purpose or purposes whatsoever. 
4. Availability of camping space is very limited.  It is the intent of the OC Fair to accommodate all vendors that camped at the prior Fair. Vendor camping requests in excess 
of capacity will be placed on a wait list. 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Renter agrees to pay to Association for the rights and privileges hereby granted, the amounts and in the manner set forth below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed Rental Agreement and Certificate of Insurance are due on or before due date. 
6. Association shall have the right to audit and monitor any and all sales as well as access to the premises. 
 

7. Renter further agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Association and the State of California, and their officers, directors, agents, representatives, employers, and 
the Association’s sales agency of record (currently Moor + South/Pier Management Co., LP, a Delaware Limited Partnership dba Tandem), predecessors-in-interest, 
successors-in-interest, transferees and assigns, from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, suits, costs (including attorney's fees), judgments or demands (collectively, 
"Claims") arising from or in any way related to the operation of Renter's concession under this Agreement, including, but not limited to Claims for personal injury, property 
damage, or loss of property, goods, wares or merchandise. 

A. Renter represents and warrants that the subject concession, and all materials used in connection therewith, including, without limitation, all graphic and 
written material, (i) are either owned by or produced by Renter or all required permissions and license agreements have been obtained and paid for by the Renter, 
and (ii) as far as Renter is aware, are not the subject of any claim for misappropriation or infringement of the trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property 
rights of any third party. 

 B. Renter further agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Association and the State of California, and their officers, directors, agents,  
 representatives, employees, predecessors-in-interest, successors-in-interest, transferees and assigns, from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, suits, costs 
 (including attorneys' fees), judgments or demands (collectively, "Claims") arising from or in any way related to Claims for misappropriation or infringement  of 

trademark copyright and other intellectual property rights. 
 

8. Renter further agrees that he will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit his employees to sell, exchange or barter any permits issued to Renter or his employees hereunder. 
 

9.It is mutually understood and agreed that this contract or the privileges granted herein, or any part thereof, cannot be assigned or otherwise disposed of without the written 
consent of Association. 
 

10. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms of this contract shall be valid, unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, 
and that no oral understanding or agreements not incorporated herein and no alterations or variations of the terms hereof, unless made in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto, shall be binding upon any of the parties hereto. 
 

11. The Rules and Regulations included hereof are made a part of this agreement as though fully incorporated herein, and Renter agrees that he has read this agreement and 
the said Rules and Regulations and understands that they shall apply, unless amended by mutual consent in writing of the parties hereto.  
 

12. In the event Renter fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement and the Rules and Regulations referred to herein, all payments for this rental space 
shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by Association and Association shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best interest of 
Association. 
 

13. Special Provision: By signing this Agreement, the undersigned agrees to abide by the Commercial Space & Concessions Program Handbook.  By this 
reference, the Handbook is incorporated into and becomes a part of this Agreement and is on file with the Association. 
 

14.This agreement is not binding upon Association until it has been duly accepted and signed by its authorized representative, and approved (if required) by the Department 
of Food and Agriculture and Department of General Services. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, This agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the parties hereto, the day and year first above written. 
 
Resort Vacations, Inc.  32nd District Agricultural Assocation 
550 North Golden Circle Drive, Suite A 88 Fair Drive 
Santa Ana, CA   92705 Costa Mesa, CA  92626 
  
By_____________________________________   By______________________________________ 
Title:   Tim Michalec Title:  Sharon Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
 

 
 
 
 

Description                             Size            Space Type                                                           Charges 
Pacific Amphitheatre                          10' x 10'         Platinum Space                                                         $10,000.00 
  
 

                            Due Date                      Amount 
Signed Rental Agreement, Exhibit A and Payment Due                7/16/2015                Total:         $10,000.00 
                          
*Payments postmarked after the due date will be subject to a late fee of $100 per payment.                    
 



RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING RENTAL SPACE 
 

1. No Renter will be allowed to open until all the preliminary requirements herein set forth have been complied with. 
 

2. Renter will conduct his business in a quiet and orderly manner; will deposit all rubbish, slop, garbage, tin cans, paper, etc. in receptacles 
provided by the Association within said concession plot for such purpose, and will keep the area within and surrounding said concessions free 
from all rubbish and debris. 
 

3. All buildings, tents, or enclosures erected under the term of Rental Agreement shall have the prior approval of Association and the local fire 
suppression authorities.  All eating concessions not restricted to specific items will submit menus and prices to Association for approval at least twelve 
(12) hours in advance of each day’s operation. 
 

4. Renter will furnish Association with a list of all sales prices and other charges of any kind whatsoever to be charged by the Renter in said space(s). 
 

5. Renter must furnish receipts for license fees, tax deposits, insurance, etc., prior to event. 
 

6. Renter will conduct the privileges granted in the Rental Agreement according to all the rules and requirements of the State Department of Health 
Services and local health authorities, and without infringement upon the rights and privileges of others; will not handle or sell any commodities or 
transact any business whatsoever for which an exclusive privilege is sold by Association, nor engage in any other business whatsoever upon or within 
said premises or fairgrounds, except that which is herein expressly stipulated and contracted for; will confine said transactions to the space and privilege 
provided in the Rental Agreement, and that any and all exclusives granted Renter shall not include the Carnival and the Carnival Area. 
 

7. Renter will cause to be posted in a conspicuous manner at the front entrance to the concession, a sign showing the prices to be charged for all articles 
offered for sale to the public under the Rental Agreement; the size of said sign, manner and place of posting to be approved by Association. 
 

8. Association will furnish necessary janitor service for all aisles, streets, roads and areas used by the public, but Renter must, at his own expense, keep 
the concession space and adjacent areas properly arranged and clean.  All concessions must be clean, all coverings removed, and the concession ready for 
business each day at least one hour before the Fair is open to the public.  Receptacles will be provided at several locations to receive Renter’s trash, and 
such trash must not be swept into the aisles or streets or any public space. 
 

9. All sound-producing devices used by Renter within or outside his space must be of such a nature and must be so operated as not to cause annoyance or 
inconvenience to his patrons or to other Concessionaires or Exhibitors and the decision of Association as to the desirability of any such sound producing 
device shall be final and conclusive. Sound-amplification equipment may be installed within or outside any space only by first obtaining written 
permission thereof from Association. 
 

10. Renter agrees that there will be no games, gambling or any other activities within the confine of his space in which money is used as a prize or 
premium, and that he will not buy and/or permit “buy backs” for cash, any prizes or premiums given away to patrons in connection with the use of the 
space.  Only straight merchandising methods shall be used and all methods of operation, demonstration and sale shall be subject to the approval of the 
Association and the local law enforcement officials. 
 

11. Renter is entirely responsible for the space allotted to Renter and agrees to reimburse Association for any damage to the real property, equipment, or 
grounds use in connection with the space allotted to Renter, reasonable wear and tear and damage from cause beyond Renter’s control excepted. 
 

12. Association may provide watchman service, which will provide for reasonable protection of the property of Renter’s, but Association shall not be 
responsible for loss or damage to the property of Renter. 
 

13. Each and every article of the space and all boxes, crates, packing material, and debris of whatsoever nature used in connection with the space and 
owned by Renter must be removed from the buildings and grounds by Renter, at his own expense, no later than a date specified by Association.  It is 
understood in the event of Renter’s failure to vacate said premises herein provided, unless permission in writing is first obtained.  Association may and is 
hereby authorized and made the agent of Renter to remove and store the concession and all other material of any nature whatsoever, at the Renter’s risk 
and expense, and Renter shall reimburse Association for expenses thus incurred. 
 

14. No Renter will be permitted to sell or dispose of anywhere on the Fairgrounds alcoholic beverages as defined in the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, 
except in the concession space.  Even such limited sales are not to be made unless Renter is authorized in writing by Association and unless he holds a 
lawful license authorizing such sales on said premises. 
 

15. All safety orders of the Division of Industrial Safety, Department of Industrial Relations, must be strictly observed. 
 

16. Failure of Association to insist in any one or more instances upon the observance and/or performance of any of these rules and regulations shall not 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any such rules and regulations. 
 

17. This Rental Agreement shall be subject to termination by either party at any time during the term hereof by giving the other party notice in writing at 
least 30 days next prior to the date when such termination shall become effective.  Such termination shall relieve the Association of any further 
performance of the terms of this Agreement. 
 

18. Renter, by signing this contract, does swear under penalty that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against that contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of the Contractor’s failure to comply with an order of 
the National Labor Relations Board (Government Code Section 14780.5) (SAM Sec. 12127). 
 

19. Renter recognizes and understands that this rental may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation and that the Renter may be subject to 
the payment or property taxes levied on such interest. 
 

20. The Association shall have the privilege of inspecting the premises covered by this Agreement at any time or all times. 
 

21. The parties hereto agree that Renter, and any agents and employees of Renter, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent 
capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of Association. 
 

22. Time is of the essence of each and all the provisions of this Agreement, and the provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties hereto. 
 

Hazardous Agreements:  If this Agreement provides for a hazardous activity, the current Form FE-13, Statement Regarding Insurance, must be attached 
to each copy.   
 

By state law and in the interest of public health, smoking shall not be permitted in or within 20 feet of any State of California building, including 
the Santa Ana Pavilion area, OC Promenade area, Centennial Farm, Kidland carnival area, the Livestock area, Pacific Amphitheatre seating 
area, and Arena grandstand and bleacher seating areas.  This policy includes the use of electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and oil/wax pens. 
 



 
 
Resort Vacations, Inc.        Agreement No:  15741    
Location/Space:   Pacific Amphitheatre #2                                                     Date:  July 11, 2015 
 
 
Vacation Ownership  
 
 
 
Lead Generating Only
 



 

OC Fair & Event Center  •  32nd District Agricultural Association 
88 Fair Drive, Costa Mesa, CA  92626  • (714) 708-1500 • ocfair.com 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
AGREEMENT NO. 15741 
 
Renter: 
Resort Vacations, Inc. 
Business License Number: 342219  
Seller’s Permit Number: N/A 
Taxpayer ID Number: 
550 North Golden Circle Drive, Suite A 
Santa Ana, CA  92705 
(714) 361-3102 
Tim Michalec, Vice President of Marketing 
  
Space Description: 
Pacific Amphitheatre - PA #2 (10’x10’) 
 
Space Fee: 
$10,000 
 
Term:  July 15, 2015 – August 18, 2015 
 
Renter agrees that space(s) shall be used only for the purpose as follows:   
Vacation Ownership (Lead Generating Only) 
 
Renter Agrees:  

1. To be a Platinum Partner from July 17, 2015 – August 16, 2015 at the OC Fair. 
2. To provide payment in the sum of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) as a Platinum 

Partner fee, due upon execution of this agreement.  Exact payment schedule is as outlined on the 
Rental Agreement.  Payment in full must be received no later than Thursday, July 16, 2015. 

3. To gain pre-approval from the District for use of OC Fair marks and logos, and that all display 
elements, materials and concepts provided by Renter require the approval of the District prior to 
implementation. 

4. To provide high-resolution Renter logo as outlined herein for inclusion in advertising and 
signage. 

5. That staff members shall comply with all requirements as follows: 
a. No staff member will promote Resort Vacations, Inc. outside of designated space(s). 

i. To provide lead generation only for the following services/products at the 
location(s) indicated below. 

1. Vacation Ownership (product/service); PA #2 (location) 
b. Each individual assigned a Photo Credential is responsible for obtaining his or her 

credential from the badging office during scheduled operating hours. 
c. All working staff accessing the OC Fair by Photo or Courtesy Credentials are required to 

submit proper paperwork to Tandem, including Megan’s Law Screening(s).  Credentials 
to be obtained prior to the start of the 2015 OC Fair. 

d. Booth space(s) must be fully staffed by uniformed representatives 30 minutes before 
Pacific Amphitheatre gates open and remain staffed through end of the event each of the 
2015 OC Fair dates. 



 

 

6. To the understanding that mobile tours and other exhibitors may be located in close proximity to  
contractually designated space(s). 

7. To abide by the rules and regulations included in the Commercial Space & Concessions Program 
Handbook, including those regarding taxes and any other such reasonable parameters as set forth 
by District staff prior to and during the term of this agreement. 

8. To obtain all appropriate permits from the Orange County Health Care Agency, Fire Department 
or any other applicable entities, and to ensure display at all times within the parameters set forth 
by these organizations. 

9. To provide Certificates of Insurance, fire safety training information, applicable certifications and 
permits, and to comply with all such reasonable requests as made by the District prior to, during 
and following the 2015 OC Fair. 

   

District Agrees:  
1. To provide 100 square feet of space located at Pacific Amphitheatre (PA #2). 
2. To provide ten (10) 2015 OC Fair Photo Credentials per booth for working staff (10 total photo 

credentials). 
3. To provide forty-six (46) OC Fair Working Credentials per booth for working staff (46 total 

working credentials). 
4. To provide ten (10) 2015 OC Fair Parking Hang Tags per booth for working staff (10 total hang 

tags). 
5. To provide one (1) 2015 OC Fair F Lot Parking Hang Tag.  
6. To provide one hundred (100) 2015 OC Fair Admission Tickets (for business development).  

 
Resort Vacations, Inc.    32nd District Agricultural Association 
550 North Golden Circle Drive, Suite A  88 Fair Drive 
Santa Ana, CA  92705                                       Costa Mesa, CA  92626                       
                                         
  
_____________________________     ___________________________________ 
Tim Michalec, Vice President of Marketing        Sharon Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 



CONTRACT 
#

CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION EFFORT TYPE TERM RECEIPT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED 

EXPENSE AMOUNT

GF-014-15 Ania Norwood Judging Divisions Arrangements Fair 07/21/15-08/11/15 $180.00

GF-015-15 Lynne Gallaugher Judging Divisions Honey Fair 07/16/15-08/04/15 $150.00

GF-016-15 Lonnie Scott Judging Divisions Honey Fair 08/04/15 $75.00

GF-017-15 Deborah Ghamouch Judging Divisions Honey Fair 07/16/15 $75.00

HA-022-15 Karen Krajzynski Judging Fiber Art Competitions for the Home Arts Exhibit Fair 07/01/15 $100.00

VA-027-15 Rick J. Delanty Judging Plein Air Arts Contest Fair 08/02/15 $200.00

OC FAIR & EVENT CENTER

JUDGING AGREEMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

AUGUST 2015











R_____ 
 
A_____           
 
        Agreement # HA-022-15 
 
 

32nd DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
Costa Mesa, California 

 
AGREEMENT FOR JUDGING 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 19th day of June, 2015 by and between the 32nd 
District Agricultural Association, an agency of the State of California, through its duly 
appointed, qualified and acting Secretary-Manager, party of the first part, hereinafter called the 
State, and Karen Krajzynski, party of the second part, hereinafter called the Judge. 
 
WITNESSETH:  That the Judge for and in consideration of the covenants, conditions, 
agreements, stipulations of the State hereinafter expressed, does hereby agree to furnish to the 
State services, as follows: 
 
Judging Fiber Art Competitions for the Home Arts Exhibit at the 2015 OC Fair of said 
Association. 
 
Services to be provided by the Judge on July 1st, beginning at 10 a.m. for the total amount of 
$100.00 which includes all expenses (i.e. mileage, travel costs, meals, lodging, etc.).  
Payment to be net 10 upon completion of agreement. 
 
The following provisions constitute a part of this agreement: 
 

1. The state hereby agrees to pay for the services at the times, in the manner and for 
the consideration, herein expressed. 

2. The parties hereto agree that the Judge, and any agents and employees of the 
Judge, in the performance of this agreement, shall act in an independent capacity 
and not as officers or employees or agents of the State of California. 

3. Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, this agreement may be 
terminated and the provisions of this agreement may be altered, changed or 
amended, by mutual consent of the parties hereto. 

4. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms of this 
agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, 
and that no oral understandings or agreements not incorporated herein, and no 
alterations or variations of the terms hereof unless made in writing between the 
parties hereto shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF:  This agreement has been executed, in triplicate, by and on behalf of 
the parties hereto, the day and year first above written. 
 
32nd DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
 
By____________________________________  ________________________________ 
       Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer, or   Judge’s Signature 
       Sharon M. Augenstein, Chief Financial Officer 
      

 Karen Krajzynski 
2100 E. Howell, #211  
Anaheim, CA 92806 

  
  

 

 
Date Judged______________________________ 
 
 
Coordinator’s Signature 





 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9A 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports 
 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:    Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information item only.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
To assure compliance with the Bagley-Keene Act, Committee reports are only for 
the purpose of the Committee chair, Task Force members or Liaison to provide a 
verbal update. Should the Board want to discuss any Committee work item not 
already on the agenda; those would need to be agendized for a future Board 
meeting.  

 
i. Centennial Farm Foundation Board (Vice Chair Mouet) 
ii. Heroes Hall Veteran’s Foundation Board (Director Berardino, Director La Belle) 
iii. Workers Memorial Task Force (Director Berardino, Chair Aitken) 
iv. 2015 OC Fair City Liaison Committee (Director La Belle, Director Nguyen) 
v. Legislative Monitoring Task Force (Director Nguyen, Director Cervantes) 

   
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9B 

 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion on Board Position Regarding SB 716 Related 
to Treatment of Elephants 

 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer   
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the Board of Director’s discretion. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Current Status of California Senate Bill 716  
This bill would ban the use of the elephant guide (also called a bull hook/ankus) in 
the State of California beginning in 2018. It would apply not only to circuses but zoos 
and all other elephant exhibitors and facilities in California. 
 
After passing through the Senate (29 ayes, 7 noes, 3 NVR), the bill passed through 
the Assembly Public Safety Committee (4/2/1) and the Assembly Arts, 
Entertainment, Sports, Tourism, And Internet Media Committee (4/2/1). It has been 
re-referred to the Committee on Appropriations on July 14, 2015. 
 
See attached analysis from:  
 
Assembly Arts, Entertainment, Sports, Tourism, And Internet Media (07/13/15) 
Assembly Public Safety (06/29/15) 
Senate Floor Analyses (06/09/15) 
Senate Public Safety (06/09/15) 
 
Board Actions 
On March 23, 2012, the OCFEC Board of Directors voted to terminate elephant rides 
at the Orange County Fair. This action terminated the contract with “Have Truck Will 
Travel.” At that time, the Board did not adopt a broader policy around this issue.  

























































 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9C 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Discussion of the Hiring of a Legislative Monitoring Firm 
 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer   
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the Board of Director’s discretion. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the request of Director Berardino, the Board of Directors will discuss retaining a 
legislative monitoring firm. This will provide a resource to the OCFEC Board of 
Directors and CEO to monitor any legislation that would be relevant to the 
operations of the fairgrounds.  



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9D 

 

 

SUBJECT: Architectural Design Service for Heroes Hall Project 
 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

  
Approve the development of architectural and constructions plans for Heroes Hall. 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
At the November 20, 2014 meeting, the Board of Directors approved funding of up to 
$20,000 for the development of initial conceptual drawings for the Heroes Hall 
Veterans Exhibit. 
 
ATI Architects and Engineers was selected to development the initial renderings 
based on input from the Heroes Hall Advisory Group. These renderings were 
presented to the full Board of Directors and approved at the June 25, 2015 meeting. 
 
Staff is seeking additional approval and funding for ATI Architects and Engineers to 
take the next step to develop complete architectural and construction plans in order 
to create a bid package for construction of the project.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The estimated cost for development of architectural and construction plans is not to 
exceed $175,000. 
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9E 

 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion of Appointees to the Heroes Hall Veterans 
Foundation Board of Directors 

 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Director Berardino and Director La Belle  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Director Berardino and Director La Belle 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the appointment of Robert V. “Bobby” McDonald to the Heroes Hall Board 
of Directors. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board of Directors will consider the appointment of Robert V. “Bobby” McDonald 
(see attached) to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation Board of Directors. 
 
On June 25, the Board of Directors approved the appointment of Julio Perez, OC 
Labor Federation Executive Director; Pat Lavin, IBEW Local 47 Business Manager; 
Carina Franck-Pantone, President of the Franck Firm; Attorney David Brahms; 
(USMC Retired) Attorney Douglas Applegate (USMC Retired); Tina Javid, Sempra 
Energy; and Darrell Miller, Vice President of Youth and Facility Development for 
Major League Baseball as nominees to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation Board 
of Directors. 
 
On May 28, the Board of Directors approved the appointment of Eric Spitz, OC 
Register; Aaron Reed, Aaron Reed & Associates; Lezlee Neebe, OCEA President; 
Doug La Belle, OCFEC Board of Directors, and Nick Berardino, OCFEC Board of 
Directors to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation. 
 
At the April 23 meeting, the Board of Directors approved the Heroes Hall Veterans 
Foundation Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation. As amended, the Bylaws stipulate 
that the number of Foundation Board members will range from eleven to fifteen, 
including two members appointed from the OCFEC Board of Directors.  
 



Bobby McDonald is president and executive director of 
the Black Chamber of Commerce of  Orange County, and 
he is leading the organization into its 30th year. Under his 
leadership, the Black Chamber of Commerce of Orange 
County has partnered consistently with minority business 
associations, local chambers and legislators to provide 
support and advocate for the county’s many 
small-business owners. 
 
     McDonald is an effective, personable 
community and business leader, 
accomplished sales, marketing and 
promotional forerunner, and a notable 
speaker, writer, historian and author.
 
     McDonald developed the chamber’s 
educational outreach programs and 
has established the chamber’s veteran’s 
business network programs.  Through a 
partnership with Explorer Studios, two 
award winning educational films have 
been produced, “Building the Dream” and 
“History of the Buffalo Soldiers”.  McDonald 

is now a member of the PBS So Cal Board of  Trustees, where he has  assisted with historic African American PBS 
presentations such as “The March at 50” and  “African Americans, Many Rivers To Cross”.
 
     His many honors include the Human Relations Leadership Award from the Orange County Human Relations 
Commission; being named the Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Millennial Man of the Year by COR AME Church,; Alpha Phi 
Alpha Fraternity Inc. International Alumni Brother of the Year in 1999 and Distinguished Alumnus Award from Cal 
State Fullerton. He has been president of the CSUF Alumni Association; president of the CSU Statewide Alumni Council; 
recognized as one of CSU’s Statewide Outstanding African American Alumni and one of Cal State Fullerton’s 50th 
Anniversary prominent alums.  LA Harbor College, for their 60th Anniversary, bestowed their prestigious Outstanding 
Community Leader, their Alumnus of the Year award and inducted McDonald into their Athletic Hall of Fame.
 
     McDonald is also a U.S. Navy Vietnam Veteran, a member of the 9th and 10th (Horse) Calvary Association-Buffalo 
Soldiers, a former Student Body President at Los Angeles Harbor College and he served  as a governor’s appointee to 
the California Cultural Historical Endowment Board and  the  17 member State Board of Governor’s of the California 
Community College System where he created and chaired the Board’s  Veteran’s Affairs Committee.  He was recently 
re-appointed to the Orange County Veterans Advisory Council, where he is now chair of the council.
 
Cal State Fullerton recently featured McDonald in the OC Register and used this quote “ Like many of today’s CSUF 
students, alumnus Bobby McDonald, president and executive director of the Black Chamber of Orange County, has the 
heart of a true community servant.  A longtime volunteer and activist, Bobby shows that TITANS REACH HIGHER”.

   

ROBERT V. “Bobby” McDonald



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9F 

 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of Issuance of OC Fair Lifetime Credential to 
Roger Grable 

 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair   
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the issuance of a Lifetime Credential to Roger Grable. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Policy 2.9.4., it is recommended that the Board of Directors 
approve the issuance of a Lifetime Credential to Roger Grable of Manatt, Phelps & 
Phillips, LLP. As legal counsel for the 32nd District Agricultural Association from 2010 
through early 2015, Grable has provided steady and consistent support for the 
Board of Directors and the Executive Management Team contributing to the success 
of the OC Fair & Event Center. 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9G 

 

 

SUBJECT: Appointment of Members to the Nominating Task Force 
by the Board Chair 

 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Ashleigh Aitken, Board Chair   
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information item only. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board Chair will appoint a two person task force to deliberate and make a 
recommendation for Officers of the Board for the upcoming year. 
 
The Nominating Task Force will present their nominations at the October 22, 2015 
meeting of the OCFEC Board of Directors. 
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9H 

 

 

SUBJECT: Operational Report on Designated Smoking Policy 
 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Michele Richards, VP Business Development  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information item only. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff will present an operational summary of the designated smoking areas program 
as implemented during the 2015 OC Fair. 
 
On January 22, 2015 the Board of Directors voted to limit smoking to designated 
areas for all OCFEC produced events. 
 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9I 

 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of Submission of Bad Debt Write Off 
 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Kathlyn Keife, Accounting Supervisor  
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Kathy Kramer, Chief Executive Officer 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the submission of form STD.27 to the State Controller’s Office for the 
discharge of outstanding debts for Mr. Mike Cruz in the amount of $745.92 and for 
Locallife in the amount of $5,000.00 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Currently, when a District Agricultural Association (DAA) discharges an outstanding 
debt of $500 or more, the DAA submits a form STD.27 to the Board of Directors for 
review and approval. The form is subsequently submitted to the State Controller’s 
Office for final review and approval. 
 
The 32nd DAA submits two (2) STD.27 for the following debts: 
 
1. Mike Cruz $745.92. This debt was incurred in 2008 by a former employee of the 

32nd DAA. The DAA informed Mr. Cruz he was no longer eligible for direct pay of 
his medical benefits but was still responsible for his monthly premiums. Mr. Cruz 
paid monthly payments to bring the debt down but then defaulted. The Debt was 
sent to a collection agency to no avail. Mr. Cruz is no longer reachable.  
 

2. Locallife $5,000.00. This debt was incurred in 2010. STD.210 contract number 
SA-176-10SP in the amount of $38,500.00 was entered into with the 32nd DAA. 
The purpose of the contract was for a mobile marketing sponsorship during the 
2010 Fair. Locallife was not satisfied with the performance of the tour. Tandem 
modified the contract by amending the original contract by $5,000.00. Locallife 
was not satisfied and refused to pay the remaining $5,000.00 balance due. 
Multiple attempts were made to contact Locallife, to no avail. This was not sent to 



a collection agency. The 32nd DAA believes an amendment to the contract with 
Locallife (less the debt of the remaining $5,000.00) would have been the best 
option, but was unable to contact Locallife, which made it unfeasible. 
 
Further attempts to collect these debts are not cost effective.  

 



 

Board of Directors Agenda Report 
MEETING DATE: AUGUST 27, 2015  ITEM NUMBER: 9K 

 

 

SUBJECT: Orange County Marketplace Rental Agreement 
Amendment to Relocate Two Structures 

 
DATE:   August 21, 2015 
  
FROM:  Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
  
PRESENTATION BY:   Michele Richards, VP Business Development 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

  
If deemed necessary, approve the layout pending review by Staff. 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
During the latter part of the 2015 OC Fair Tel Phil approached the Association about 
relocating their modular mobile homes and tent to a new location within their existing 
footprint.  Tel Phil presented a concept and Staff reviewed the request.  Staff 
provided feedback to Tel Phil in order to ensure the new location would not be a 
challenge to the Association’s events.  After further review by Tel Phil they decided 
to place the modular homes and tent as identified in the Rental Agreement in the 
same place however the tent will be shifted 90 degrees enabling a different 
presentation.  Based on Staff’s review, this does not present a material change in 
use of the space identified in the Rental Agreement.  Staff requested Tel Phil provide 
a layout of the modular homes and tent in order for Staff to review it with the Board. 
 


	August 27 Agenda
	CEO's Operational Announcements & Updates
	AP Check Registry - June 2015 

	Minutes
	Board meeting held June 25, 2015

	Consent Calendar
	Standard Agreements 
	Rental Agreements
	Active Joint Powers Authority Agreements
	Platinum Rental Agreements
	Judging Agreements

	Governance Process
	A. Committee / Task Force / Liaison Reports
	B. Discussion on Board Position Regarding SB 716 Related to Treatment ofElephants
	C. Discussion of the Hiring of a Legislative Monitoring Firm
	D. Approval of Architectural Designs Service for Heroes Hall Project
	E. Discussion of Appointees to the Heroes Hall Veterans Foundation Board of Directors
	F. Approval of Issuance of OC Fair Lifetime Credential to Roger Grable
	G. Appointment of Members to the Nominating Task Force by the Board Chair
	H. Operational Report on Designated Smoking Policy
	I. Approval of Submission of Bad Debt Write Off
	K. Orange County Marketplace Rental Agreement Amendment to Relocate Two Structures




